NIFS ID:CLPW12000008

Capital: X

Department: Public Works

SERVICE: Amend |-CM Svcs Bay Park Sludge Dewatering-S35121-09M

Contract 1D #:CFPW14000036 NIFS Entry Date: 18-JUN-19

Amendment

Term: from 27-JUL-19 to 26-JUL-20

1) Mandated Program:

2) Comptroller Approval Form

Time Extension: X Attached: Y
Addl Funds: 3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance v
: Attached:
Blasket Resolution: 4) Vendor Ownership & Mgmt. v
RES# Disclosure Attached:
5) Insurance Required Y
Vendor Info: Depariment:
Name: Jacobs Project Vendor ID#: | EEGEGIN Contact Name: Kenneth G. Arnold
Management Co.
Address: || N NN | Contact Person: | N Address: 1194 Prospect Avenue \
_— I | | Vcsibury, NY 11590 =
‘:'“J‘&I
R Phone; 516-571-9607 =
1
Phonc: IR
v
o
L
&
Routing Slip
Department NIFS Entry: X 19-JUN-19 - LDIONISIO
Department NIFS Approval: X 25-JUN-19 -- JHOUDEK
DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 25-JUN-19 -- KARNOLD
owmB NIFA Approval: X 25-JUN-19 -- CNOLAN
omMB NIFS Approval: X 25-JUN-19 -- NGUMIENIAK
County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 25-JUN-19 -- AAMATO
County Atty. Approval to Form: X 27-JUN-19 -- DGREGWARE




CPO Approval: X 28-JUN-19 - KOHAGENCE
DCEC Approval: X 02-JUL-19 -- JCHIARA
Dep. CE Approval: X 02-JUL-19 -- BSCHNEIDER
Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 05-JUL-19 -- JSCHANTZ
Legislature Approval:

Comptroller Deputy:

NIFA NIFA Approval:

Contract Summary

Purpose; Amend the existing Personal Services Agreement for Construction Management services for Bay Park STP Sludge
Dewatering for one (1) additional year at no additional cost to the County. This contract for construction management services must
continue until the construction of the Bay Sludge Dewater facility is completed by 1st quarter 2020. The construction management is

needed for coordination and to oversee final approvals for the fire alarm system and resolution of any equipment warranty issues,

1993,

Method of Procurement: Qualification Based Selection (QBS) procedure for the procurement of professional services, developed in

accordance with procedures stipulated in the Board of Supervisor's Resolution 928-1993 and the County Executive's Order No. 1-

Procurement History: A Request for Proposal (RFP) was advertised in Newsday and the County Website on April 4, 2014 with
technical proposals received on April 25, 2014. Eight {8) Firms responded to this RFP. All of the Firms except one (1) were
considered local Firms (Firms having a main or branch office in Nassau or Suffolk Counties), After review of the Technical Proposals

and Costs, JACOBS was deemed the highest technical rank.

related services,

Description of General Provisions: This Personal Services Agreement provides for complete Construction Management Services

including furnishing resident engineer, inspectors, schedulers, cost estimators, evaluation of contractor claims, and other construction

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: This term extension is at no additional cost to the County.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES FUNDING INDEX/OBJECT
Fund: CSW SOURCE AMOUNT LINE CODF AMOUNT
Control: 35 Revenue 01 PWCSWEFC35123- $0.01
Resp: 123 Coniract; L32/00003 '
Objcct: 00003 County $0.00 $0.00
Transaction: CL Federal $0.00 $0.00
Projoct #: 35123 State $0.00 50,00
Detail: L32 Capital $0.01 :
Other $0.00 $0.00
RENEWAL TOTAL | 50.01 TOTAT $0.00
% “ 1 $0.01
Increase

%
Dccrease







N | F A Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Jacobs Project Managemant Co.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $.01
Amount to be encumbered: $.01

This is a Amendment

If new confract - $§ amount should be full amount of contract

If advisement — NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: expires 7/26/2020
Has work or services on this confract commenced? Y

JPS—

If yes, please explain: contract amendment

4. Funding Source:

General Fund (GEN) Grant Fund (GRT)
X Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal % 100
Other State % ©
: County % 0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract? Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N
Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A
Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description {4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

Amend the existing Personal Services Agreement for Construction Management services for Bay Park STP Sludge Dewatering for one (1) additional year at
no additionat cost to the County.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and cifation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. ldentify all contracts (with dollar amounts} with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:




AUTHORIZATION

To the hest of my knowledge, | hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is frue an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. | understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation

8.

CNOLAN 25-JUN-19
Authenticated {Iser Date
COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, | hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

_ | certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract,

If this is a capital project:
| certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA,
Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

.
)

Authenticated User al

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA: _

Paymaent is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all refevant accounis and relevant Nassau County Legisiature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein,

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.



RULES RESOLUTION NO. 2019

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE
TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON
BEHALY OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS, AND JACOBS PROJECT MANAGEMENT CO.

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated an amendment to a personal
services agreement with Jacobs Project Management Co. to provide
construction management services for the Bay Park Sewage Treatment
Sludge Dewatering Facility Demolition and Improvements, a copy of which

is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County
Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said amendment

to an agreement with Jacobs Project Management Co.



Jack Schuirman
Comptroller

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
240 Old Country Road .
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Aftach this form along with all personal, professional or human services confracts, contract renewaly, extensions
. and amendments. ‘

CONTRACTOR NAME: Jacobs Proj e.g:'t‘l\/lanagemant Company

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS: 1305 Franklin Avenue, Suite 245, Garden City, NY 11530

FEDERAL TAX ID #. 852321280

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (“E1”) after one of the following
roman numexrals, and provide all the requested information.

L [0 The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement
for sealed bids. The contract was awatded after a tequest for sealed bids was published
in - |newspaper] on
[date]. The sealed bids were publicly opened on [date]. ‘[#] of
sealed bids were received and opened.

IL. O The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals,
The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on
[date]. Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by

advertisement in [newspaper], posting on indusiry websites, via
email to interested parties and by publication on the County procurement website. Proposals were due
on [date]. - [state #] proposals were received and evalvated. The

evalnation commitiee consisted of

(list # of persons on
commitiee and their respective departments). The proposals were scored and ranked. As a result of the
scoring aund ranking, the highest-ranking proposer was selected.



IIL @ This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract,
The contract was originally executed by Nassau County on July 7, 2014 [date]. Thisis a
renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or RFP

{copies of the relevant pages are aitached). The original contract was entered into
after an RFF was Issued and sight (8) proposals were recslved and evaluated. The Jacohs proposal was judged io be technlcally sound with ths

lowsst cost based on the expectad man hours required for the project.

. : [describe
procurement method, i.e., RFP, three proposals evaluated, etc.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation
of the contractor’s performance for any contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not
teceived a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be
permitted to continue to contract with the county,

IV. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three
proposals were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the
department head describes the proposals received, along with the cost of each
proposal,

O A. The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR?

[1 B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s) why the
contract was awarded to other than the lowsst-cost proposer. The attachmient includes a specific’
delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed
supetiot, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to petform more quickly than other
proposers,

Y. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not
obtain at least three proposals.

[1 A. There are only one or two providers of the services sought or less than three providers
submitted proposals. The memoranduim describes how the contractor was determined to be the
sole source provider of the personal service needed or explains why only two proposals could be
obtained. If two proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was
awarded to the lowest cost proposer, or why the selected proposer offered the higher quality
proposal, the proposer’s unigue and special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to
petform in the most immediate and timely manner.

[t B. The memorandum explains that the coniractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a
federal or New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. (Copies of the relevant
documents are atiached),

L1 €. Pursvant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
required through a New York State Office of General Services contract
1o, , and the attached memorandum explains how the purchase is
within the scope of the terms of that contract,

————e



L1 D. Pursusnt to General Municipal Law Section 119-0, the department is purchasing the services
required through an inter-municipal agreement,

VL 0O This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a

competitive process has not been initiated, Attached is 2 memorandum that explains the reasons
for entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department
intends to initiate'a competitive process for the future award of these services, For any such contract, where
the vendor has previously provided services to the county, attach a copy of the most recent evalyation of
the vendor’s performance. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must
explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county,

In certain limited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance
ovaluations may not be possible because of the nature of the human setvices programi, or because of a
compelling need to continue services. through the same provider. In those circumstances, attach an
explanation of why a competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicable,

VIL. [0 This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering
or surveying services, The attached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance
with Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No. 928 of 1993, including its receipt and evaluation of annual

Statements of Qualifications & Performance Deta, and its negotiations with the mest highly qualified
firms.

Instructions with respect fo Sections VI, IX and X: All Departments must check the box for VIII,
‘Then, check the box for either IX or X, as applicable.

VIII. B’Participation of Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County
Contracts. The selected contractor has agreed that it has an obligation to utilize best efforts to hire
MWBE sub-contractors. Proof of the contractual utilization of best efforts as outlined in Exhibit “EE”
may be requested at any time, fiom time to time, by the Comptroller’s Office prior to the approval of
claim vouchers,

IX. E(Depal‘tment MWBE responsibilities. To ensure compliance with MWBE requirements
as outlined in BExhibi{ “EE”, Department will require vendor to submit list of sub-coniractor
requirements prior to submission of the first claita voucher, for services under this contract being
submitted o the Comptroller,

X. [ Vendor will not require any sub-contractors.

In additlon, if this is a coniract with an Individual or with en entity that has only one or two employeas: [ a review of the
criteria set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1 C.B, 296, attached as Appendix A o the
Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004, congerning independent contraciors and employees indicates that the

contractor would not be considered an employee for federal tax purposes.

Deﬁartment Head Signatore

13/

Ddte ‘

NOTE: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be Included in the county’s “staff summary” form
in len of o separnte memorandum,
Compt, form Pers./Praof. Services Contracts: Rev. 01/18 3



COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two
years prior {o the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, fo the
campaigh commitiees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County
Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?
If yes, to what campaign committee?

No

2, VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or
Vendor autliorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate,

The undersi ther certific i at the contribution(s) o the cumpaien commitiees
identifie abnve were made freel aniw:thout cluress, threat or any promise of vernmental

Vendor: Jacpbs Pruéct,wlanagement GCompany
¢

Dated: / /s? 3/ 289 Signed:

Lo

Print NamesMinedit A. Mangiere, P.E.

SRR ST N S Y W o
NIURKA OZUNA

Notary Pubtic - Stale of New York Title: Vice President
NQ, 01028167412

GQuatiited In Bronk County

Mv(:omm ni‘xpites mté.glaaﬁ';_ i
/76@' (Ao

Rev, 3-2016



Page 1 of 4

COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term
“lobbyist” means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any
client to influence - or promote a matier before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads, legistators or committees, including but not limited to the Open
Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are
not timited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to
County regulation, procurements. The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director,
trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when
discharging his or her official duties.

Nane

2, List whether and where the person/organization is vegistered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau
County, New York State):

Nohe

KH Name, address and telephone number of client{s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the
lobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

Nore

Rev. 32616



Page 2 of 4

4, Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify
client(s) for each activity listed. See page 4 for a complete deseription of lobbying activities,

None

5. The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the labbyist
expects to lobby:

None

Rev, 3-2016



Page 3 of 4

6. 1f such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a writlen agreement of retainer or
employment, you must attach a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or
employment is oral, attach a written statement of the subsiance thereof. If the written apreement
of retainer or emplayment does not contain a sighed authorization from the client by whom you
have been authorized to lobby, separately attach such a written authorization from the client.

7. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign
contributions pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1,
2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period
beginning two years priot to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure,
to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the
campaign committees of any candidates for any of the foliowing Nassau County elected offices:
the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County
Legislator? If yes, to what campaign commitiee?

None

I understand that copies of this form will be sent fo the Nassau County Department of
Information Technology (*IT™) to be posted on the County’s website.

1 also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation 1 must
give written notice o the County Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination,

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood
the foregoing statements and they are, to histher knowledge, true and accurate,

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees
listed above were made Treely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental

benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remunsration.

"", LY
Print Name: (Vingeﬂd. Mangiere, P E.

Dated: // L 3/ 2017 Signed:

NIURKA OZUNA 4
Notary Public - Slale of Maw York
MO, DIOQZ6T167612

Quailfied in Bronk Coun

M‘i%nfﬁmues ﬁé&?_{i_
EAe

Title: Vice President

Rev, 3-2016



Page 4 of 4

The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of & grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commigsions, department heads or commitices, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Patks Advisory Conuniitee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
biclding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect {o a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the propasal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of & County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an ¢lected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legistation has been formally introduced and whether-or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term Mlobbying™ or *lobbying activities” does not include: Persons engaged in drafiing
legislation, rules, regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on
proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rutes, where such professional services are not
otherwise connected with legishative or executive action on such legislation or administrative
action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and
television stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection
with proposed legistation, rules, regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadeast of
news items, editorials or other comment, or paid advertisements; persons who participate as
witnesses, attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-making proceedings of
a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public
record thereol and all prepavation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to
influence a County agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York
State Administrative Procedurs Act,

Rev. 3-2016



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORN

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space fo answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire, *

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND {T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD

Vingent A, Manglere

1. Principal Name
Date of birth |
Home addres

City/state/zip
Business address 500 Yth Avenue, 17t Floor

Cityfstatefzip __New York, NY 10018
Telephone _ 546-808-B550

Other prasent address{es)
Citylstatefzip
Telaphone
List of other addresses and telaphone numbers attached

jand

Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President -/ / Treasurer / /

Chairman of Board / / Shareholdar / /

Chief Exec. Officer / { Secratary / /

Chief Financial Officer / / Parther / [

Vice President _01 / 04 /2008  to Present

{Other)

3. Do you have an equity infersst in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES __ NO _X | Yes, provide details.

4 Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of secwity or lease or any
other typa of contribution made in whale or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO _X_ If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you bean a principal owner or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES X _ NO __:
if Yes, ptovide details. See attached

* The answers to the questions on this questionnaive that pertaln to affiliates of the business
submitting the questionnalre, Jacebs Project Management Go., are responsive for Unlted States
affiliates ounly. Jacobs Project Management Co. operates in the United States ouly.

Kev. 3-LULo



8. Has any governmental enlity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 gears while Jou were a principal owner or officer? YES X NO

if Yes,

provide tetails. See attache:

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose auvtomatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked “YES", If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businessas or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section § in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?
YES NO X IYes, provide details for each such instance.

Been declared In default andfor terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any
contracts cancalled for cause? YES NO X if Yes, pravide details for each
such instance. See attached

Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but net limited lo, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES
NO X I Yes, provide details for @ach such instance.

Been suspended by any goverriment agency from entering into any contract with it;
andfor is any aclion pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business's ability to bid or propose on contract? YES NO _X_  if Yes, provide
details for each such Instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptey petition andfor been the subject of involuntary bankruptoy proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptey as a result of bankruptcy proceedings inltiated more than 7 years ago andfor is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptey proceedings, whenever
initiated? If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Frovide a detailed response to all
questions checked "YES". if you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a)

by

c}

d)

Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES __ NO_X_ If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

{s there any misdemeanor charge pending againstyou? YES __ NO X |f
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

Is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO X If
Yes, provide details for each such charga.

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after triat or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which relatad to the conduct of business? YES ___ NO _X  f Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.

Rev, 3-2016



e} Inthe past § years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES _ NO _X_ Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO _X_  If Yes, provide details for each such
ocouiTance.

8. In addition to the Information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past &
years, have you been the subject of g criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local progecuting or investigative agency andfor the
subject of an Investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on bahalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in
response to Question 57 YES ___ NO X If Yes, provide detalls for each such
investigation.

10. in addition to the information provided, In {he past § years has any business or organization
listed in response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any gavernment agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were 2
principal owner or officer? YES ___ NO _X  If Yes; provide details for each such
investigation. See attached

11. In the past & years, bave you or thig businass, or any other affiliated business listed in
response to Question § had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect o any professional license held? YES NO X . HYes;
provide details for each such instance.

12. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not imited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO X [f Yes, provide details for each such
year.

Rev. 322016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE iN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

j, Vincent A. Mangiere . being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand ail
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County In writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County wili rely on the information supplied in this
guestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

=
Swornh to before me this 27 rday of j;fmnit/ 207
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Jacobs Project Management Co.
Name of submitting business

Vincent A, Mghgiers
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Signéture

Vice President
Title
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Date
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Response to guestion 5

Vincent Mangiere, within the past 3 years, has been and officer of the following United States Jacobs
companies, which are affiliates of the submitting business, Jacobs Project Management Co.:

“Jacobs Engiﬁe g

Response to question 6

Jacobs Project Management Co. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc., and its subsidiaries form an organization that is comprised of over 250 operating
companies and affiliates, having a total current employment complement of approximately 74,000
persons and revenues of approximately $15 billion.

From time to time in the ordinary course of business, governmental entities, including federal, state,
municipal and local entities, have awarded contracts to one or more of the U.S. Jacobs entities listed in
the answer to Question 5.

Response fo question 7b

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Businesses listed in Question 5, have not been declared in
default and/or terminated for cause on any contract and/or had any contract cancelled for cause. From
time to time and in the ordinary course of its business, Jacobs Project Management Co. and/or its
affiliated companies are subject to various terminations for convenience and claims and disputes,
including but not limited to, arbitrations and other legal proceedings. No such terminaticn is expected to
have a materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Response to question 10

The answer remains “no" to Question 10 and the Jacobs companies listed in response to Question 5
have not in the past & years been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or civil anfi-trust Investigation.
The question also asks about “any other type of investigation by any government agency, including but
not limited to federal, state and local regulatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or
officer.” The term “investigation™ as used in this segment of the question is very broad and not defined
and is subject {o interpretation. Itis possible that the submission of a proposal or letter of interest
prompts a public entity to research or investigate a company without the knowletge of that company.
Therefore, it is difficult to answer this question with any degree of certainty. As a result, to the best of our
knowledge and belief the Jacobs companies listed in the answer to Question 5 have not been the subject
of any investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local
regulatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or officer.



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All guestions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire. *

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO

SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL

WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND 1T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR

AWARD

1.

Principal Name Michael Carlin
Date of hirth
Home addres

City/state/zip
Business address 1999 Bryan St
City/state/zip _ Dallas, TX 75206
Telephone _ 214.583.8413

Other present address(es)

City/statefzip

Telephone _

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President / / Treasurer _11 /15 /2016

Chairman of Board / / Shareholder __/ /

Chief Exec. Officer / / Secretary / /

Chief Financial Officer / / Fartner / f

Vice President / / / /

{Other) '

Po you have an egquity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES __ NO _X If Yes, provide details.

Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submiiting the questionnaire? YES __ NO _X_ If Yes, provide details.

Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business ar not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES X_NO ___;
i Yes, provide details. See Attached

* The answers to the questions on this questionnaire that pertain to affiliates of the business
submitting the questionnaire, Jacobs Project Management Co., are responsive for Unlied States
affiliates only. Jacobs Project Management Co. operates in the United States only.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts o a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES X NO
If Yes, provide details. Port Authority of New York & New Jersey; New York City Health and Hospitals
Corporation; City of Yonkers; New York City Economic Development Corp.
NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.
Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". i you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the guestionnaire.

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section & in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES ____ NO X__ If Yes, provide details for each
such instance. See Attached

¢. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES
NO X  If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering info any contract with it:
and/or is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business’s ability to bid or propose on contract? YES __ NO _X  |If Yes, provide
details for each such instance. '

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptcy petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceedings during
the past 7 years, andfor for any portion of the [ast 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptey proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever
initiated? If ‘Yes’, provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked "YES". If you heed more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a) Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES ____ NO _X_ If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

b) Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO X if
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

c} is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO X |f
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

d} Inthe past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underying facts
of which related to the conduct of business? YES __ NO _X_  If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.
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8.

10.

11.

12.

e) Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES ___ NO_X If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO _X  If Yes, provide details for each such
oceurrence.

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity andfor an affiliated business listed in
response to Question 57 YES __ NO X If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

in addition to the information provided, in the past & years has any business or organization
listed in response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
inctuding but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principal owner or officer? YES ____ NO _X_ If Yes; provide details for each such
investigation. See Attached

In the past b years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in
response to Question & had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES __~ NO X  |f Yes;
provide details for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or faled to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO X If Yes, provide details for each such
year.
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

|, Michael Carlin , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the ltemsscontained in the foregeing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely an the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity,

Sworn to before me thisg\gyé\? of-Warch.  20]° 9
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Michael Carlin
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Response to question § .

Michage] Carlin, within the past 3 years, has been an officer of the following United States Jacobs
companies, which are affiliates of the submitting business, Jacobs Project Managemenl Co.:

Company Name Role Start Date Title
Jacohs Engineering Group inc, 08/29/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Project Management Co, 11/ 15/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Civil Canstructors, Inc. 12715716 Treasurer
Jacobs Consultancy inc. 12/12/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Eagleton LLC 12/14/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Englneering Company Q1/a7/17 Treasurer
Jacobs Engineering Foundation 02/14/17 AssistantTreasurer
Jacobs Engineering Inc. 12/10/16 Treasurer
lacobs Engineering New York inc. 12/01/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Fleld Services America Inc. 12/01/16 Treasurer
lacobs Fleld Services North America, Inc. 10/27/16 Treasurer
lacobs Government Services Company 11/15/16 Treasurer
Jacobs Industrial Servicas, Inc. 12/01716 Treasurer
Jacobs Minerdls Inc, . 02/08/17 Treasurer
Jacobs Professional Services 02/01/17 Treasurer
Jacobs PSG Inc. 02/08/17 Treasurer
lacohs Technology Inc. 12/01/16 Treasurer
Jacabs Telecommunications Inc, 12/01/16 Treasurer
JE Associates, Inc, 12/06/16 Treasurer
JE Professional Resources, Inc, 02/01/17 Treasurer
LeighFisher Inc. 12/06/16 Treasurer
Payne & Keller Company, Inc. 12/01/16 Treasurer
Sverdrup Hydro Projects, Inc. 12/11/16 Treasurer
Sverdrup Jacobs Services, tnc. 01/11/17 Treasurer

gt B ]

Jacobs Project Management Co. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jacobs Enginesring Group Inc. Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc., and its subsidiaries form an organization that is comprised of over 250 operating
companies and affiliates, having a totai current employment complement of approximately 74,000
persons and revenues of approximately $15 billion. :

From time to time in the ordinary course of business, governmental entities, including federal, slate,
municipal and local entities, have awarded contracls to one or more of the U.S. Jacobs entities listed in
the answer to Question 5.

Response {o guestion 75,
From Time to time and in the ordinary course of its business, Jacobs Project Management Co. and/or its
affitiated companies are subject to various terminations for convenience and dlairns and disputes,




including but nol limited to, arbirations and other lagal proceedings, Mo such termination is expected io
have a materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial siatements.,

Response to guestion 10

The answer remains "no” to Question 10 and the Jacobs companies listed in response {o Quesiion 5
have not in the past 5 years been ihs sublect of a criminal investigation andfor civll anti-frust investigation.
The guestion also asks about "any other type of investigation by any government agency, including but
not limited to federal, state and local reguiatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or
officer,” The term “investigation” as used in this segment of the question is very broad and not defined
and is subject o interpretation. 1t is possible thai the submisslon of a propasal or letter of interest
prompts a public entity to research or investigate a company without the knowledge of that company.
Therefore, it is difficult io answer this guestion with any degree of certainty, As a resuilt, to the best of our
knowledge and belief the Jacobs companies listed in the answar to Ciuastion & have not been the subject
of an investigation by any government agency, Including but not limited to federal, state and local
regulatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or officer,



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent {10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in Ink, if you nead more space io answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page{s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire. *

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY, FAILURE TQ
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL

WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WiLL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD

1,  Principal Name Michasl Robert Tyler

Date of birth
Home addres
City/state/zip
Business address 155 North Lake Avenue
City/state/zip _ Pasadena, CA 91101
Telephone _ 6265783500

Other present address(es)
City/state/zip
Telephone
List of other addresses and lelephone numbers attached

2.  Paositions held in submitting business and starting date of each {check all applicable)
President ) Treasurer I | |
Chairman of Board I Sharsholder A
Chief Exec. Officer / / Secretary 09 / 30 /2016
Chief Financial Officer [ Fartner f__
Vice President [ / /
(Cther)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES___ NQO_X_ f Yes, provide details.

:4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of securily or lease or any
other type of confribution made in whole or in part betwaen you and the business
submitting the questionnaira? YES ___ NO _X _ If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you bean a principal owner or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES X NO___;
if Yes, ptovide delails. See Altached
* The answers to the questions on this questionnaire that pertaln to affiliates of the business
submitiing the questionnalre, Jacohs Project Management Co., ave responsive for United States
affiliates only. Jacobs Project Management Go. operates in the United States andy.
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8. Has any governmenial entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES _X_ NO __
if Yes, provide dstails. See Attached

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arese automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action talen by a government agency,

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. 'In the past (5) years, have you andfor any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed In Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency’?
YES NO _X I Yes, provide details fot each such Instance.

Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, andfor had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO _X _ If Yes, provide detalls for each
such hstance, See Attached

Been denied tha award of a contract and/or the opporiunily o bid on a contract,
including, but not fimited to, fallure to mest pre-guaiification standards? YES
NO _X I Yes, provide detalls for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it;
and/or is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business’s ability to bld or proposa on contract? YES ___ NO _X_ If Yes, provide
details for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listad in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptcy petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/ar for any portion of the [ast 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptey proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago andfor Is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptey proceeclings, whenever
Inltiated? If 'Yes', provide details for sach such instance. (Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked "YES". If you nead more space, pholocopy the appropriate page and
aftach it {o the questionnaire.)

a)

b)

e

d)

Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO X __  If Yes, provide
details for sach such charge.

Is there any misdemeanaor charge pending against you? YES NGO X i
Yes, provide detalls far sach such charge.

Is there any adninistrative charge pending against you? YES NO X If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

In the past 10 yaars, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an element of which refates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related fo the conduct of business? YES ___ NO_X_  If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction,
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11.

12.

g) Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of &
misdemaanor?
YES ___ NO_X_ ifYes, provide details for each such conviction.

f} In the past 5 years, have you been found in viclation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO _X_ if Yes, provide details for each such
OCCUITENCa,

In addition {o the information provided In response o the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was refated to activities performed at,
for, ar on behalf of the submitting business entity andfor an affilialed business listed in
response to Question 57 YES ___ NO_X_ If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

. In addition to the information providad, in the past 5 years has any business or organization

lisled in response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not fimited to federal, stale, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principal owner or officer? YES ___ NO _X_ If Yes; provide detalls for each such
Investigation. Ses Attached

In the past & years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated husiness listed in
response to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES ___ NO _X  If Yes;
provide detalls for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any

applicable federal, state or local taxas or other assessed charges, including but not limited

to water and sewer charges? YES NC X If Yes, provide details for each such
year.
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CERTIFICATION

AMATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

{, __Michasl Robert Tyler , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplisd full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | wiil notify the County In writing of any change in
chroumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that alf information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
Information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
guestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Sworn to before me thl’sﬂﬂ"éay of Phauth 20 1
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Jdacobs Project [Management Co.
Name of submitting business
Michael Robert Tyler
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Secretary
Title
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Response fo question 5

Michael Tyler, within the past 3 years, has been and officer of the following United States Jacobs
companies, which are affiliates of the submitting business, Jacobs Project Management Co.:

, Inc. Secretary Officer

Jacobs Civil Consultants, Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Consultancy Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. General Counsel Officer 07/25/2013
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Senior Vice President Officer 07/25/2013
Jacobs Engineering Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Engineering New York Inc. | Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Field Services North Secretary Office 09/30/2015
America Inc.

Jacobs Government Services Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Company

Jacobs Industrial Services Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Project Management Co. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
Jacobs Technology Inc. Secretary Officer 08/15/2015
Jacobs Telecommunications, Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015
JE Professional Resources, Inc. Secretary Officer 09/01/2015
LeighFisher inc. Secretary Officer 08/30/2015
Payne & Keller Company, Inc. Secretary Officer 09/30/2015

Response to question 6

Jacobs Project Management Co. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc., and its subsidiaries form an organization that is comprised of over 250 operating
companies and affiliates, having a total current employment complement of approximately 74,000
persons and revenues of approximately $15 billion.

From time to time in the ordinary course of business, governmental entities, including federal, state,
municipal and local entities, have awarded contracts to one or more of the U.S. Jacobs entities listed in
the answer to Question 5.

Response to question 7h

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Businesses listed in Question 5, have not been declared in
default andfor terminated for cause on any contract and/or had any contract cancelled for cause. From
time to time and in the ordinary course of its business, Jacobs Project Management Co. and/or its
affiliated companies are subject to various terminations for convenience and claims and disputes,
including but not limited to, arbitrations and other legal proceedings. No such termination is expected to
have a materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Response fo question 10

The answer remains “no” to Question 10 and the Jacobs companies listed in response to Question 5
have not in the past 5 years been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or civil anti-trust investigation.
The question also asks about “any other type of investigation by any government agency, including but
not limited fo federal, state and local regulatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or
officer.” The term “investigation” as used in this segment of the question is very broad and not defined
and is subject fo interpretation. It is possible that the submission of a proposal or letter of interest



prompts a public entity to research or invaestigate a company without the knowledge of that company.
Therefore, it is difficult to answer this question with any degree of certainty. As a result, to the best of our
knowledge and belief the Jacobs companies listed in the answer to Question 5 have not heen the subject
of any investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local
regulatory agencies while the Principal was a principal owner or officer.



Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the diseretion of the County,
taking into consideration the rellability of the proposer and the capacily of the proposer to
perform the services required by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the public inferest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this
guestionnaire. The questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or parfnership submitting the Proposal,

NOTE: Al questions require a response, even if response is "none” or “not-applicable.”
No bianks,

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Dater January 11, 2019

1) Proposer's Legal Name: _Jaccbs Projest Management Company

2) Address of Place of Business: 1308 Franklin Avenues, Suite 245 Garden Cily, NY 11530

List all other business addresses used within last five years:
See aftached

3) Mailing Address (if different);_NA

Phone : 2129442000

Does the business own or rent its facilities?  Rent

4) Dun and Bradstreet number; 187683014

5} Federal LI), Number; 352321289

6) The praposer is a (check one): Sole Froprietorship Fartnership _*
Corporation ___ Other {Describe)

7} Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other
business?
Yes _X_No___ I Yes, please provide details: See Attached

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes __ No X If Yes, please
provide detalls:

* The answers to the questions on this questionnaire that pertain to affiliates of the husiness
submitting the questionnaire, Jacobs Peoject Management Co., are respoasive for United States
affiliates only. Jacobs Project Manggement Co. aperates in the United States only.
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8) Does this business have one or more affiliates, andlor is it 3 subsidiary of, or controlled by,
any other business? Yes ¥ No_ If Yes, provide details,_See Allached

10} Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassay
County or any other government entily terminated? Yes ___ No X [If Yes, state the
name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such cancellation
or forfeiture: or detalls regarding the termination {if a contract), _Ses Atuehad

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes __ No X
if Yes, state date, court Jurisdiction, arount of liabilities and amount of assets

12} In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affiliated business, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any fadleral, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency? Andfor, in
the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any afflliated business bean the subject of
a criminal investigation and/or a civlt anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related {o activities
performed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated business.

Yes . No_X_ IfYes, provide details for each such investigation.

13) In the past & years, has this business and/or any of its awners and/or officers andfor any
affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including
but not limited to faderal, stale and local reguiatory agencies? Andfor, in the past 5 years,
has any owner and/or officer of an affillated business been the subject of an investigation by
any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies, for matters pertaining 1o that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business. Yes ___ No _*__  If Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business
had, gither before or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertained to events that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the
submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending? Yes__ No _X I Yes, provide details for
aach such charge.

by Any misdemeanor charge pending? Yes _ No X If Yes, provide details
for each such charge.

¢} Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony
and/or any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the
undarlying facts of which related o the conduct of business? Yes ___ No X

Rev. 3-2016



if Yes, provide details for each such conviction _See Attachad

d) inthe past 5 ysars, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
Yes_ No_®_ If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

g} Inthe past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or
reguiatary provisions? Yes ___ No _*_ [f Yes, provide details for each such
oceurrence. Ses Attacied

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with
respect to any professional license held? Yes __ No _X_; If Yes, provide details for
each such inslance.,

16) Far the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to
pay any applicable féderal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not
fimited to water and sewetr charges? Yes ___ No _X__  If Yes, provide details for each
such year. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked 'YES'. If you need more
space, pholocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

Provide a detailed response to all guestions checked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17} Conftict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below, NOTE: If no
conflicts exist, please expressly state “No canflict exists.”
() Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may craate & conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in

acting on behalf of Nassau County.
See Altachay

(i) Any family refationship that any employee of your firm has with any County
public servant that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict

of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
See Attached

(i) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or

the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
Mo Lonfiet Exisls

b) Plaase describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the

County that a conflict of interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
Bea Allachad

RRev. 3-2010



A. include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experiencs in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and
the results of these expeariences, must be identified,

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include;
) Date of formation; January 4, 2008

i) Name, addresses, and positian of all persons having a financial interest in the
company, including shareholders, members, general or limited partner;

iy Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company; See Attached
) State of incorporation (if applicable); Dsiaware - See Attachad

v)  The number of employess in the firm; 74,000

vi}  Annual revenue of firm; See Atlached 2017 10K Report

vii}  Summary of relevant accorplishments See Attached

viiiy Copies of all state and tocal licenses and permits. NY License - See Atinchad

' The Company, Jacobs Project Management Co,, was incorporated
B. Indicate number of years in business. 01/04/2008. However, its parent company, Jacobs Engineering Group,
Inc. was originally incorporated on 8/23/1987,
C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
Froposer’s capacity and reliability to perform these services.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer
has provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to
petform this work.

Company New York Glty Houstng Authordly Sandy Recavery

Contact Person Brad Bundy, Construcion Management Oversight Lead
(lisaster Recovery Office fSandy Program Unit / Recover to Resflency

Address 250 Broadway, 27 Floos

City{State Maw Yarik, MY 10007

Telephqne 212 308-8301 {Offlee) 412 838-6770 {Ceil)

Fax #

E-Mail Address bradley. bundy@ebi.com
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Gompany Nassau Communily College

Contact Person Carol Fricdman, VP Faclifies Managemenl
Addrass One Education Drive, F Cluster, 2m Floor
Citylstate CGiarden Gily, NY 11530-6793
Telephone 516.572,5756 Exiengion 28325

Fax#

E-Mail Addrass Carol Friedman@nce.edy

Company Slate University Ganstruction Fund / Steny Brook University

Contact Person Loufs (Lou} Rispoll, Associale Vice President, Faciifles and Support
Campus Planning, Design and Construction Research snd Suppor Services Suite

Address 180 Development Drive

City/State Stony Brook, NY 11794-6010

Telsphone G631-632-6218

Fax#

E-Mail Address Louis. Fispolid@stonybrook atiu

Rev. 3-2016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESE ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

5, Vlﬂf‘é‘” + A . Mﬁmm’rfi _, being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments, that | supplied full and complete answers to each tem thereln to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief, that [ will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances oeccurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County wili rely on the information supplied in this
gquestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting businass
entity.

_ red :}‘
Sworn to hefore me this 12 day of anuary 2019
i IR o S S SO R N O o g
. NILURKA OZUNA
AN [ Ao d  Notary Public - Slate of New York |
SO % NO, 01026167612
Notary Public ) Qualillad In Bronx County :‘
L, Sommission Explras 79783 i
Name of su bmitting bhusiness: Jacohs Project Management Company
By: Vingent A, Mang[zre. P.E.

Frintnameé i f *

Signature J
1oE éﬁfgm 29

Title

8§ z2h f g
Date

Rev. 3-2016



Business History Form Supplemental Information

Response to Question 2

Address of Place of Business: 1305 Franklin Avenue, Suite 245 Garden City, New York 11530

List all other business addresses used within the last five years:

N

500 Avenue; 17
New York, NY 10018

Frldor - 7 New Manhattan Office

155 North Lake Avenue Corporate Office
Pasadena CA 90272
1999 Bryan Street Corporate Office

Dallas, TX 75206

Response to Question 7

The Business shares office space, equipment and expenses with the following US affiliates:

Federal ID# ' | ¢
~13-0436690

500 7" Avenue,

17" Floor |
New Yorl, NY 10018

{Parent Company)

95-4081636 Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (JEG)

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

13-2749347 Jacaobs Engineering New York Inc. (JENY)

500 7" Avenue, 17™" Floor
New York, NY 10018

75-2923005 JE Architects/Engineers, P.C

777 Main Street
Fort Worth, TX 76102

13-3914330 Iffland Kavanagh Waterbury, PLLC

500 7% Avenue, 17" Floor
New York, NY 10018

80-0529415 LeighFisher Inc.

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

22-3514442 Jacobs Telecommunications Inc.

299 Madison Avenue
Morristown, NJ 07962

80-0078173 CH2M Hill New York, Inc.
{a Jacobs Company) *

22 Cortlandt Street
New York, NY 10007

From time to time, an entity will provide services to ancther entity on a project.

* On December 15, 2017, CH2M Hill Companies Ltd. (CH2M), through an acquisition became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Jacobs). Jacobs will update its
certifications and representations and make disclosures as necessary.




Response to Question 9
The Business, Jacobs Preoject Management Co., is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc. Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (*Jacobs”) form an organization that is
comprised of approximately 250 operating companies and affiliates, having a total current employment
compliment of over 74,000 persons and revenues approximately $15 billion.

The parent and US affiliates of Jacobs Project Management Co., located at Two Penn Plaza, New York,
NY 10121, include the following:

ederal D #
05-4081636 |

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (JEG)

i‘e’ss._'r R
1999 Bryan Street, 1200

(Parent Company) Dallas, TX 75201
13-0436690 Jacobs Civil Consultants Ing, (JCCI) 500 7% Avenue, 17" Floor
New York, NY 10018
13-2749347 Jacobs Engineering New York Inc. {(JENY) 500 7% Avenue, 17% Floor
New York, NY 10018
66-0286979 Jacobs Government Services Co. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
74-1712438 Jacebs Field Service North America Inc. 5995 Rogerdale Road
Houston, TX 77072
74-1744538 Jacebs Consultancy Inc. 5995 Rogerdale Road
Houston, TX 77072
05-2744655 Jacobs Engineering Inc. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
95-3669738 Jacobs Advisers Inc. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
95-4362684 JE Professional Resources Inc. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
62-0510412 Jacobs Technology Inc. 600 William Norther Blvd.
Tuliahoma, TN 37388
43-1865020 Jacobs Industrial Services Inc. 501 North Broadway
St. Louis, MO 63102
57-0745288 CRSS International Inc. 5995 Rogerdale Road
Houston, TX 77072
22-3514442 Jacobs Telecommunications Ing, 299 Madison Avenue
Morristown, NJ 07962
36-4090392 Edwards and Kelcey Design Services Inc. 130 East Randolph
Chicago, IL 608601
95-3525833 Jacobs Engineering Company 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
13-4224332 Edwards and Kelcey Pariners LLP 299 Madison Avenue
Morristown, NJ 07962
95-4065257 Payne & Keller Company Inc. 4949 Essen Lane
Baton Rouge, LA 70809
58-0907412 Jordan Jones and Goulding, Inc. 6801 Governors Lake Parkway
Norcross, GA 30071
80-0529415 LeighFisher Inc. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
35-2449995 Integrated Pipeline Solutions Inc. 19299 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
58-1923778 Resource Spectrum Inc. 1989 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
13-3914330 IKW 500 7" Avenue, 17" Floor

New York, NY 10018

* 93-0549963

CH2M Hill Companies LTD.

9191 South Jamaica Street
Englewood, CO 80112




The following is a list of US affiliates and related entities that conduct business in New York or are parent
companies of companies licensed to do business in New York.

) - y L

13-0436690 Jacobs Civil Consultants Inc. (JCCY) 500 7" Avenue, 17" Floor
New York, NY 10018
35-2321289 Jacobs Project Management Co. (JPMCo.) 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
95-4081636 Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (JEG) 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
{Parent Company) Dallas, TX 75201
13-2749347 Jacobs Engineering New York Inc. (JENY) 500 7" Avenue, 17 Floor
New York, NY 10018
75-2923095 JE Architects/Engineers, P.C 777 Main Street
Fort Worth, TX 76102
80-0529415 LeighFisher Inc. 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201
22-3514442 Jacchs Telecommunications Inc. 299 Madison Avenue
Marristown, NJ 07962
13-3914330 Ifftand Kavanagh Waterbury, PLLC 500 7*" Avenue, 17t Floor
New York, NY 10018
80-0078173 CH2M Hill New York, Inc. 22 Cortlandt Street
(a Jacobs Company) * New York, NY 10007

Jacobs Project Management Co. is submitting this proposal but we acknowledge that there are several
Jacobs entities that conduct business in New York. We are aware of the requirements regarding conflicts
of interest and will adhere te those requirements during the duration of the agreement if awarded the
contract.

* On December 15, 2017, CH2M Hill LTD (CHM} through an acquisition became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. {*Jacobs™). Jacobs will update its certifications and

make disclosures as necessary.

Response to Question 10
To the best of our knowledge and belief, Jacobs Project Management Co. has not had a bond or surety
cancelled or forfeited or a contract with Nassau County terminated

The Company, Jacobs Project Management Co. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc.. Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its subsidiaries ("Jacobs”) form an organization that is
comprised of approximately 250 operating companies and affiliates, having a total current employment
complement of over 74,000 persons and revenues approximately $15 billion. From time to time and in
the ordinary course of business, Jacobs is subject to various terminations for convenience and claims and
disputes, including but not limited to, arbitrations and other legal proceeding. No such termination is
expected to have a materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Response to Question 14

The answers provided for question 14 are responsive for employees of the business, Jacobs Project
Management Co., during their employment with Jacobs Project Management Co. only. The business
does not have or track Information regarding employment before or other than employment with Jacobs
Project Management Co. and cannot respond to that aspect of the question.

Response to Question 14e

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no current or former director, owner or officer or managerial
employee of this business, Jacobs Project Management Co., has been found in viclation of any
administrative, statutory or regulatory provision while an employee of this business, Jacobs Project
Management Co., related to the conduct of the business. Jacobs Project Management Co, does not have




or track information pertaining to employment of its employees prior to their employment with this
business and does not have information fo respond to that inquiry.

Response to Question 17a (i)

To the best of our knowledge and belief Jacobs Project Management Co. does not have any material
financial relationship that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting on behalf of Nassau County. However, while Jacabs Project Management Co. is unaware of any
material financial relationship that a firm employee may have that may create a conflict of interest or the
appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County. Jacobs does not maintain files
or track this infermation.

Response to Question 17a (ii}

To the best of our knowledge and belief Jacobs Project Managsment Co. does not have knowledge of
any family relationship that any employee of Jacobs Project Management Co. has with any County public
servant that may create a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County. However, Jacobs
Project Management Co. does not maintain record and does not have information to adequately answer
the question.

Response to Question 17b

The managers of the various lines of business within the company will verify pursuits and existing projects
with each other to confirm that a conflict of interest does not exist. The Legal and Contracts Management
group conduct a search of an internal database which contains information regarding proposals and
contracts. This database provides information to confirm a conflict does not exist. If a conflict should
arise in the future, Jacobs has proposed and created an action plan for resolution of a conflict of interest.
This plan included restrictions on employees working on certain projects from working on other specific
projects, the execution of confidentiality agreements by employees and additional restrictions regarding
future pursuits, supervision of employees and exchanging information, etc.




Response to A. (iii)

Mandel, Joseph Gary

Director

mpany Officers and Directors

Houston, TX 77058

Bunderson, Michael

Vice President

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Progada, Robert V.

Director

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Bante, Michael J.

Assistant Secretary

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Carlin, Michael

Treasurer

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Goldfarb, Jeffrey Michael

Assistant Treasurer

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

McCallister, Scott

Vice President

3161 Michelson Drive, Suite 500
Irvine, CA 92612

Davis, Jim

Vice President

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Sabbatini, Julian

Vice President

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Tanjuaquio, Allan

Vice President

1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

Refinski, Elizabeth A.

Assistant Secretary

299 Madison Ave
Morristown, NJ 07962

600 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1000

Tyler, Michasl R. Secretary Los Angeles, CA 90017
Khalaf. Issam Vice President / Authorized 3161 Michfelson Drive, Suite 500
’ Signer Irving, CA 92612
Mangiere, Vincent A Vice Presid(?nt { Authorized 500 7t Avenue, 17" Floor
' ' Signer New York, NY 10018
Massey, J. G Vice Presidgnt { Authorized 10 10t Street, Suite 1400
A Signer Atlanta, GA 30309
MecLean. Jim Vice Preside_nt { Authorized 525 West Monroe, Suite 1600
’ Signer Chicago, IL 60661
Allen, William Vice President 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 1200

Dallas, TX 75201

Syphard, David W.

Vice President / Authorized

2224 Bay Area Boulevard Suite 200

Signer Houston, TX 77058
Titzer Dou Vice President / Authorized 11 North Glebe Road, Suite 500
» Loug Signer Adington, VA 22201
Hsu, Mike Director, Tax, North America 155 North Lake Avenue

Pasadena, CA 91101

Lyon, Davinia

Sr. Director, Tax, Transfer
Pricing & Global Tax
Accounting

2191 South Jamaica Street
Englewoced, CO 80112

Winters, Keven

Director, Tax, accounting
Methods & Tax Controversy
Matters

9191 South Jamaica Street
Englewood, CO 80112

Sheldon, Tyler

Vice President

155 Grand Avenue, Suite 800
Qakland, CA 94612




Response to A. vii}
n recognition of our ability to provide unmatched construction and program management

services for clients in the NYC region, we have received Prog'ect Achievement Awards from
t{l\e CMAA NY/NJ Chapter, including most recently for our efforts on a project in the Bronx for
YC DDC.

Response to D. . . .
Per your requirements for our Technical Proposal, we have provided client references for

work that is similarin scope to that for which we arerProposmﬁ_.We encourage NCDPW to
confact each reference to verify our capability to perform on this project.



State of Incotporation

elaware ..

The First State
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Liate of Delavam
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CERTIFICATE OF INCOHPORATION
oy

SACORY PROJRCT MANAGERIENY 0.

ARTIOLE 1
RAME OR CORPFORATION

Vo nema of the Corporation Iy JACOES FROTECT MANAGHMENT CO,

ARTECLE I
WEGIETERED OFHCE

The adidsess of the coglatored offins of tha Comporation n tho State of Delawarg [y
Lomportion Tows Ceoter, 1208 Granige Steeot, Wilinduptor, New Cagtle County, Delinme
19R0L, wsd thue nae of L regrlteredd agent of that 2ddrogs i3 The Corpasution Trust Omnpeny,

ARTICLY N
PIRPOE

The grurpree of ta Corporation 15 W engags i eny ewdil oot or tetivi ty for which
carporations way bo ergrnleed mdvr the Corel Corporation Law of S Bste of Delaware

ARTIOLE IV
. AUTHGRIZED CARYRAL 700K

Ths Corporation ahial he sutherieed (o isme one closs of sloek 1o be desjgnated oo

Rlock; the total number of shases which the Corportion shal} bave suthority 1o 1ssus I3 10,600,
and egeh sueh ehiaro shall Wove o par value of §1.00.

ARTICLR V
ROARE POWER REQARDING BYLAWS

In lurtherunos and not i Britatdon of th powers confirred by riatuts, the Bosrd nf
Direstons ia enpressly authoriucd to make, repesl, alter, tutood and yescim! the bylawe of thi
T feparation

ARTICHE v
BLECTION OF MARCTONS

Elections of divectors need not by by waitten ballot unloes the bylawrs of the Carporation
ahall so provide,
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SACORS

ARTICLE vH
LAABKLSTY

A dirootoe of o Corporation shull aot be Hubie 10 the Coyporstion vr it stookholdess for
tmanelary dansges for breach of fduelary daty s o dlrector, ecopt 1o the exteat sk axeenption
fraen lishitity or lmitation theraof 15 wel purmbied under the Censrel Comporation Law of the
Biws of Delowary oy e sere axdify or iy hergafler bo moeadnd, fuy omendiment,
modification or sepyat of the frapolog sentence sl not adversely effoc sy 1ight of protoction
of s direstor of the Cosporation heseunder In reapeot of any act or aminglen coruing prior to the
W of el mnendmnt, moditication o rupeal.

ARTICLE Wi
CORPORATY, POWER

The Comporation saerves tho elght to smend, Wher, chmnge or rapand nsy provision
wentained in this Cenilficate of Modipomiian, In (he nianner now or heveafier preceribed By
ituduts, sad sl righis conlbrred o stockholdore horeln ave grented subjet o this reservation,

ARTICLE iX
INCORMIRATOR

T mzmmo rad muiliing sbivens of thi incorpuruter of hw Corporation iy ws folkows:

Elie M, Mepea
FA1 Bowth CGleand Avense, Bulie 4854
Los Angeles, DA 90071

ARTICLE X
BLECEION OF INITIAL DIRRCTORS

“Tan poreze of they incoeporaing ane ta lerminate wpon the (ing of thir Cestificats of
Icorporation with the Secretery of Stals of (he Staty of Dalaware, The nemes and raailing
uddregyes, of the persuns whi are 10 astve w o Inftia] directons of the Cosporation yndi i Snd
annual wsethyg of stoakholders of B Corporation, or adl ielr suceorsory are doly glected prd
gunlilied, are

Wastin Stroar Addregs Cliy Etate Zip
George A. w'n Jacohe Brginearing Choup Ino, Pasodens CA FH0s
Kunlierger 1111 Seuth Atrowo Parkvay
Craig L. Magtin | /0 Jnoobs Bugineoting Group Ine, Pamufens OA 91108
1111 South Arove Padkway

Uhog . Landry | efo Jacobs Baghwering Group fiw Pusatann CA gito%
115) Soutis Arraye Packyray
4
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Jacobs Project Management Go,
Officers and Direclors

| YP

SACORS

Name Address i 88H Do Drivers
et L o Licenge i
DIRCGTORS
Gaorge Kunber:gor 1111 G Ateoye Patltwoy LIG-02-6640 1 1IM52 | PR 25454750
Dirgglor | Pasadena GA D105 t 4. e
Crolg L. Marln 111 8 Arvoyo Packway B15.54.0400 ] 11125040 | CA BS2381G4
| DirecioriPrasldant faandona. GA D108 . I B
Grog 4 Landry 1111 8. Arraya Parkway 439725980 | 020G | TX TIL34278900
Dlrostor N S
COFFICERS
Robert M. Gioriant 777 Main 5L 133-38.0582 | N PAME |0 NEBTS4F7
vP JLEUWodh, TX VG102 .
Philfip J. Stags: 1111 5. Arroye Padkway 566959010 | QUIBASS | Albarm 145084,
R .| Pasndend, CA 91105 1. e oy
Staven Ander Hultgron 1527 Gols eunavard 323401812 | 2RI | CO - D330
vp e Boldon COBO4GY ] L | uois
i John Wikren Prosaer, Jr 117 8. Atmyﬂ Parkwoy G88.80.8717 | Ou2enas | CATKOI0BEOE
Traasucey Pasndona, CABII108 o N
1 Whtam G de Markioy 1111 8. Arvoyo Parkway GCB.56.9132 | 12/21M% | CA EO205505
Socentary Puspdeny, CA 91105 . e
Jatirgy Michaat Goldiark 0T N Brosdweny 228-03.548% 1 07/0331 | MO 220065483
Assistort Treggurar 51 Louiy, MO B3 102 .
Jnftray Dwayng Hobortgon 1911 §. Arinya Packway 25648901 | TUOND | GA BBUIIOLE
Asglatunt Sacrafpry | Pusadana, OA §110% ]
Scolt Blsl MeGalliviar 5?!:1 F’EB?E’I tr,, Sutm 130 SOY-4T.0462 | 00252 | CA NABYEAGY
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THE YNDERSIGNED, bolng e incumporates herelwboforo nmmed, for the prrpose of

{noarporating snd orgadeing 2 corporstion ynder the Genern) Corpoution Law of s Biat of
Dalawere, doss taake end s this Cenifisats of Insosporation.

Uratod: Jamugy 4, 2008 2
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H, Y. 5. DEPARTMBHT OF STATR
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PARTI
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are
statements that do not directly relate to any historical or current fact. When used herein, words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “plans,” “intends,” “future,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “can,”
“may,” and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements. You should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although such statements are based on management’s current
estimates and expectations and/or currently available competitive, financial, and economic data, forward-looking
statements are inherently uncertain and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from what may be inferred from the forward-looking statements, Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences include, but are not limited to, those listed and discussed in Item 1A—Risk Factors below.
‘We undertake no obligation te release publicly any revisions or updates to any forward-looking statements, We
encourage you to read carefully the risk factors described herein and in other documents we file from time to
time with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

33

Unless the context otherwise requires, 21l references herein to “Jacobs” or the “Registrant” are to Jacobs

3, 1T &L

Engineering Group Inc. and its predecessors, and references to the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our” are to Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Item 1. BUSINESS
General Background Information

We are one of the largest technical professional services firms in the world, We provide a diverse range of
technical, professional, and construction services to a large number of industrial, commercial, and governmental
clients.

We focus our services on clients operating in the following sectors:

*  Oil and gas exploration, production, and refining;

*  Chemicals and polymers;

+  Programs for various national governments, including aerospace, defense, and environmental
programs;

»  Buildings {including specialized buildings for clients operating in the fields of healthcare, edncation,
and high technology; governmental complexes; other specialized civic and mission critical buildings,
installations, and laboratories; and retail and commercial buildings);

. Infrastructure and telecommunications;

*  Mining and minerals;

= Pharmaceuticals and biotechnology;

*  Power;

«  Pulp and paper;

»  Technology and manufacturing; and,

*  Food and consumer products, among others,

Jacobs was founded in 1947 and incorporated as a Delaware corporation in 1987. We are headquartered in

Dallas, Texas, USA, and provide our services through more than 200 offices located around the globe in North
America, South America, Burope, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and Asia.
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How We Operate

As a broad-based technical professional services firm, we offer a range of services to help our clients
maintain a competitive edge in their respective markets. From consulting and feasibility studies to design, to
engineering, to construction, to start-up and commissioning, and then to operations and maintenance, we
customize our services to meet business and project goals. Our global network of professionals works with a
multi-office approach in an effort to provide clients with the best, most economical project or program solutions.

We strive to provide client value through continuous improvement in our performance. We regularly
monitor our clients’ expectations, our project delivery protocols and system, and our operational performance.
Tools such as our Jacobs Value Enhancing Practices, Global Standard Operating Procedures, project reviews, the
Jacobs System to Ensure Project Success (“JSTEPS”) and Safe Plans of Action (“SPAs”) provide added value to
our clients’ projects. They also allow us to create performance improvement actions during the project execution.
Through continuous improvement, with our tools and our processes, we believe we can offer our clients superior
value when they do business with us.

JacobsValue+ g (“Value Plus”) is an internal tool we use to document and quantify the actual value or
savings we provide to our clients and their projects. Some of the benefits achieved through the Value Plus
program include lower total installed costs, shorter schedules, and reduced life cycle costs. Value Plus is
implemented at project initiation: a project goal is created, and cost-saving ideas are entered into the Value Plus
database. When the Value Plus cycle is complete, the project team and client identify and agree on the unique
cost and/or schedule reductions for the project.

The Company’s Strategy
Our strategy is based on three key prioritics:

»  Build a High Performance Culture—Reinforce a culture of accountability, inspirational leadership and
innovation that will drive long-term outperformance;

= Transform the Core—Fundamentally change the way we operate to improve project delivery, sales
effectiveness and business excellence; and

*  Grow Profitably—Execute a balanced strategy focused on organic growth, M&A and active portfolio
management to drive profitable growth in the most attractive sectors and geographies.

Employees and Safety

Our employees are our most important and valnable asset and, therefore, the prevention of job-related
injuries is given top priority. It is the policy of the Company to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment and to follow operating practices that safeguard all employees and result in a more efficient
operation. BeyondZero®, the name of our program that promotes our culture of caring, moves beyond efforts ta
have an incident and injury-free safety performance. We implement a culture of caring where concern for
employees’ health, safety, and welfare extends outside the office walls, beyond the project site fences and into
their homes, cars, and all the places where they interact with family, friends, and fellow employees. We have
commenced a mental health program which aims to promote positive mental health across our Company.

Since Jacobs’ founding, the Company has been based on doing business honestly, ethically, and with the
utmost integrity, Our culture, and our Code of Conduct which all employees are required to sign annually,
prescribe that everyone at the Company must adhere to Jacobs® values and cthical code, and comply with the
laws that govern the Company’s activities worldwide, Ovor employees and business partners are expected to
follow the highest principles of business conduct, integrity, and ethics as they carry out their responsibilities, and
are guided by the following principles in carrying out their responsibilities: loyalty, compliance with applicable
laws, obscrvance of ethical standards, avoidance of conflicts of interest, and communication. We endeavor to
deal fairly with our employees, customers, suppliers, and competitors, and to respect the policies and procedures
of those outside the Company.
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We strive to present a clear and consistent image of our Company to our clients, employees, shareholders,
and business partners, regarding how we behave, how we communicate, how we look, and most importantly,
how our promises to our clients are delivered, anywhere in the world.

We accomplish this foremost through our vision, mission and values, which allow us to behave as one
company and unify us worldwide. By keeping our values as a central focus of our Company, we are able to think
the same way and arrive at similar conclusions, regardless of our physical location. With respect to our values:

*  Qur values stand on a foundation of safety and integrity;
+  People are the heart of our business;

+  Clients are our valued partners;

+  Performance excellence is our commitment; and

= Profitable growth is an imperative.

Our Vision statement “solutions for a more connected sustainable world” underping our commitment to
sustainability. Plan Beyond is how we define and identify with our approach to sustainability. Building on
BeyondZero and our culture of caring, Plan Beyond helps us to focus on locking beyond our company and how
we contribute as a global corporate citizen. Our sustainability activities encompass Jacobs stakeholders at Jacobs
including our clients, our people and wider communities, our supply chain partners and our investors,

Through planning beyond compliance our people are empowered to explore, to innovate, and to develop
solutions that help our clients deliver their sustainable goals, We have the experience and competency to assist
our clients with the challenges of climate change, resilience of cities and infrastructure, efficient and sustainable
procurement, resource reuse and recycling, water resouree management, energy source management and
environmental protection and enhancement.

As our company values espouse, people are the heart of our business. It is the talent of our people that is the
key to our contribution to achieving our company vision. By their innovation and determination to embed
sustainability into their design and delivery of service, we will contribute significantly to address the challenges
facing sustainability through the thousands of clients, and their stakeholders, whorn we work with every vear.

Applying the best, most efficient and effective sustainable solutions for clients worldwide, in all major
industries in which our clients operate, allows us to make a significant contribution to a safe and sustainable
future. Each year we issue a Sustainability Report that describes many of our efforts and accomplishments
regarding sustainability.

With respect to human resources, cur goal is to establish an inclusive, diverse workplace that energizes the
people who fuel our Company’s growth. Although we are a large company with over 54,700 employees in over
25 countries, our employees are unified in their focus on superior value, safety, and ethical business practices
regardless of the country in which they work, and employees frequently move around the globe as they grow
their careers.

How We Grow

Jacobs has grown significantly since its founding in 1947. Both organic growth and strategic acquisitions
play an important part of the Company’s growth strategy. We have acquired and integrated numerous companies
over the years that have enhanced our capabilities, geographic reach, and offerings.

In terms of organic growth, our relationship-based business model is central to our sustained growth and
profitability. We pursue the development of long-term relationships and alliances with our clients. By working
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with our clients to solve their challenges, we increase our understanding of their overall business needs, as well
as the unique technical requirements of their specific projects. This increased understanding enables us to provide
superior value to our clients. Our approach provides us with opportunities to market the following services to our
clients:

¢ consulting;
. system enhancements;

= pre-design phases of large projects, which include master planning, project permitting, and project
finance options;

*  design phase; and

*  construction, post-start-up and commissioning phases of a facility, including operations and
maintenance services.

Our relationships with clients also present ongoing opportunities to expand into adjacent markets, For
example, clients operating in the mining and minerals market often have a need for our infrastructure and
buildings capabilities, The same is frue for clients operating in other markets.

We market our services to clients in a wide range of public, institutional, process, and industrial markets.
‘We increase our opportunities through focused market diversity, and are able to price contracts competitively and
enhance overall profitability while delivering additional value to our clients by integrating and bundling our
services. In complex economic times, we believe we have the ability to evolve along with market cycles
worldwide. When opportunities decrease in a particular market or geography, other opportunities often increase.
Because of our focused market diversity, we believe we are well positioned to address a wide range of
opportunities across many markets and geographies, which helps us grow our business.

The Role of Acquisitions and Strategic Investments in the Development of Our Business

When we review acquisition targets, we are conscious of the effect the acquisition may have on our client
base. We favor acquisitions that are aligned with our growth strategy, which target enhancements of our
capabilities and add value to our customers and shareholders. We do this by (i) expanding into a new client
market; (ii) enhancing the range of services we provide existing clients; and/or (iii) accessing new geographic
areas in which our clients either already operate or plan to expand. By expanding into new geographic areas and
adding to our existing technical and project management capabilities, we strive to position ourselves as a
preferred, single-source provider of techaical, professional, and construction services to our clients,

On August 1, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement™)
with CH2M HILL Companies, Lid. (“CHZM”), and Basketball Merger Sub Inc., a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub™). Pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger
Agreement, (i) Merger Sub will merge with and into CH2M, with CH2M continuing as the surviving corporation
and becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”™) and (ii) each outstanding share of
common stock of CHZM will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of the holder thereof in
accordance with, and subject to, the terms, conditions and procedures set forth in the Merger Agreement, in each
case without interest the following consideration: (a) the combination of (x) $52.85 in cash and (y) 0.6677 shares
of common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the Company; (b) $88.08 in cash; or (¢} 1.6693 shares of the
Company’s common stock.,

The Merger is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals
and approval by CH2M stockholders.
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Also, see the following brief description of some of our recent key acquisitions (in reverse chronological
order):

¢ On August 31, 2017, we acquired Blue Canopy, LLC headquartered in Reston, Virginia, Blue Canopy
provides data analytics, cybersecurity and application development.

*  On January 27, 2017, we acquired Aguenta Consulting Pty Ltd. (“Aquenta”) headquartered in Sydney,
Australia. Aguenta provides integrated project services,

*  On April 12, 2016, we acquired The Van Dyke Technology Group, Inc. {*“Van Dyke”) headquartered in
Columbia, Maryland., Van Dyke provides advanced cybersecurity services and solutions designed to
protect sensitive information within classified networks, with a focus on supporting the U.S.
Intelligence Community.

+  On December 7, 2015, we acquired J.L. Patterson & Associates (“JLP”) headquartered in Orange,
California. JLP is a consulting and professional services engineering firm specializing in rail planning,
environmental permitting, design and construction management. It provides services to numerous
public transit agencies and is a major provider of professional consulting services to Class 1 railroads
across the U.S,

*  OnMarch 31, 2015, we acquired Suzhou Hans Chemical Engineering Co. ("SHCE"} headquartered in
China. SHCE has two specialty Class A design licenses in China’s Chemical, Petrochemical and
Pharmaceutical industries, which allow the firm to provide engineering design for chemical projects in
China and project management services for various projects in China.

For additional information regarding certain issues related to our acquisition strategy, please refer to
Itern 1A—Risk Factors below,

Lines of Business

During the second quarter of fiscal 2016, we reorganized our operations around four global lines of
business, or “LOBs”. This reorganization was intended to better serve our global clients, leverage our workforce,
help streamline operations, and provide enhanced growth opportunities. Our four global lines of business are:
Aerospace & Technology, Buildings & Infrastructure, Industrial and Petroleum & Chemicals. Each LOB has a
president that reports directly to the Company’s Chairman & CEO. As part of the reorganization, certain support
functions (i.e. Sales), which were managed centrally for many years, have been embedded in the lines of business
and report to the respective line of business presidents. The costs of other support functions (e.g., accounting,
legal, information technology and other) and certain other activities (e.g., global insurance) are assigned or
allocated to each new LOB using a rationale method of assignmentfallocation, or remain an element of corporate
general and administrative expenses. [n connection with the reorganization, the Company significantly modified
its cash incentive plan utilizing performance metrics aligned along the new lines of business.

Services

Our services fall into four broad categories: Project Services; Process, Scientific and Systems Consulting
Services; Construction Services; and Operations and Maintenance Services.

Project Services

‘We employ the engineering, architecture, interiors, design, planning, and related disciplines necessary to
design and engineer modern process plants, buildings, infrastructure projects, technology and manufacturing
facilities, consumer products manufacturing facilities, power plants and stations, pulp and paper plants, and other
facilities.
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We are capable of providing our clients with a variety of value engineering services, including “safety in
design”. Through safety in design we integrate best practices, hazard analysis, and risk assessment methods early
in the design phase of projects, with the goal of eliminating or mitigating injury and damage during the
construction, start-up, testing and commissioning, and operations phases of a project.

In the area of construction management, we provide our clients with a wide range of services as an agent for
our clients. We may act as program director, whereby we oversee, on the owner’s behalf, the complete planning,
design, and construction phases of the project. Alternatively, our services may be limited to providing
construction consulting.

Project Services also includes planning, scheduling, procurement, estimating, cost engineering, project
accounting, project delivery (quality), safety, and all other key support services needed for complete
cradle-to-grave project delivery.

Process, Scientific and Systems Consulting Services

We employ the professional and technical skills and expertise with respect fo a broad range of consulting
services, including: performing pricing studies, market analyses, and financial projections necessary in
determining the feasibility of a project; performing gasoline reformulation modeling; analyzing and evaluating
layout and mechanical designs for complex processing plants; analyzing automation and control systems;
analyzing, designing, and executing bio containment strategies; developing and performing process protocols
with respect to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration-mandated qualification and validation requirements; and
performing geological and metallurgical studies,

Also included in this service category are revenues relating to defense and acrospace-related programs. Such
services typically are more technical and scientific in nature than other project services we provide, and may
involve tasks such as supporting the development and testing of conventional weapons systems; weapons
modeling and simulations; computer systems development, maintenance, and support; evaluation and testing of
mission-critical control systems; aerospace, testing, and propulsion systems and facilities; cyber security and [T
services; and other highly technical or scientific tasks.

Construction Services

In addition to the construction management services included under Project Services above, we provide
traditional field Construction Services to private and public sector clients, We also provide modular constraction
consulting services. In the area of environmental remediation and restoration, we also provide environmental
remedial construction services for a variety of public and private sector clients.

Historically, our field construction activities have been focused primarily on those construction projects for
which we perform much of the related engineering and design work. By focusing our construction efforts in this
way, we attempt to minimize the risks associated with constructing complex projects based on designs prepared
by third parties. The financial risk to us of constructing complex assets based on designs prepared by third parties
may be particularly significant on fixed-price contracts, though we ensure appropriate controls are in place to
manage risk. However, we will pursue construction-only projects when we can negotiate pricing and other
contract terms we deem acceptable and which we believe can result in a fair return for the degree of risk we
assume:

Operations and Maintenance Services

Operations and Maintenance (“O&M”) refers to all of the tasks required to operate and maintain large,
complex facilities on behalf of clients. We provide key management and support services over all aspects of the
operations of a facility, including managing subcontractors and other on-site personnel, O&M also includes
process plant maintenance services, which generally involves all tasks required to keep a process plant (typically
4 refinery or chemical plant) in day-to-day operation.
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Within the aerospace and defense areas, O&M often requires us to provide the management and technical
support services necessary to operate and maintain such sites as engine test facilities, weapons integration
facilities, and high-tech simulation and verification centers. Such O&M contracts also frequently require us to
provide facilities management and maintenance services, utilities operations and maintenance services, property
management and disposition services, and construction support services.

Within the environmental area, O&M often includes engineering and technical support services as well as
program management services necessary to remediate contaminated sites,

Although the gross profit margins we realize from O&M services are generally lower than those associated
with the other services we provide, the costs to support maintenance activities are also generally lower. In
addition, O&M services offer us an opportunity to build and maintain long-term relationships with clients, This
aspect of O&M services greatly reduces the selling costs in respect of such services.

The following table sets forth our revenues from each of our four service categories for the years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands);

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Project SEerviCes . ..o vvi it $ 4,805,863 § 5,738,840 $ 6,307,015
Process, Scientific and Systems Consulting

TS ool S P 805,144 852,329 1,188,418

Construction Services .....ove i iii it inrana 3,374,261 3,258,890 3,291,823

Operations and Maintenance Services ............. 1,037,520 1,114,098 1,327,576

Total ... i e e, $10,022,788  $10,964,157  $12,114,832

Segments

As discussed above, the services we provide fall into the following four lines of business (“LOB™):
Acrospace & Technology, Buildings & Infrastructure, Industrial, and Petrolenm & Chemicals, which are also the
Company’s reportable segments.

For additional information regarding our segments, including information about our financial results by
segment and financial results by geography, see Note 15—>Segment Information of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Aerospace & Technology—We provide an in-depth range of scientific, engineering, construction, nuclear
and technical support services to the aerospace, defense, technical and automotive industries in several countries,
Long-term clients include the Ministry of Defence in the UK., the UK Nuclear Decommissioning Authority,
NASA, the U.5. Department of Defense (“DoD”), the U.S. Special Operations Command, the U.S. Intelligence
community, and the Australian Department of Defence. Specific to NASA, one of our major government
customers in the U.5., is our ability to design, build, operate, and maintain highly complex facilities relating to
space systems, including test and evaluation facilities, launch facilities, and support infrastructure. We provide
environmental characterization and restoration services to commercial and government customers both in the US
and UK, This includes designing, building and operating high hazard remediation systems including for
radiologically contaminated media.

In addition, we design and build acrodynamic, climatic, altitude and acoustic facilities in support of the
automotive industry, and are a provider of a wide range of services in the telecommunications market,

Our experience in the defense sector includes military systems acquisition management and strategic
planning; operations and maintenance of test facilities and ranges; test and evaluation services in computer,

Page 9



laboratory, facility, and range environments; test facility computer systems instrumentation and diagnostics; and
test facility design and build. We also provide systems engineering and integration of complex weapons and
space systems, as well as hardware and software design of complex flight and ground systems.

We have provided advanced technology engineering services to the DoD for more than 50 years, and
currenfly support major defense programs in the U.S. and internationally. We operate and maintain several DoD
test centers and provide services and assist in the acquisition and development of systems and equipment for
Special Operations Forces, as well as the development of biological, chemical, and nuclear detection and
protection systems.

‘We maintain enterprise information systems for government and commercial clients worldwide, ranging
from the operation of complex computational networks to the development and validation of specific software
applications. We also support the DoD and the intelligence community in a number of information technology
programs, including network design, integration, and support, command and control technology; development
and maintenance of databases and customized applications; and cyber security solutions.

Buildings & Infrastructure—We provide services to transit, aviation, built environment, mission critical,
rail, and civil construction projects throughout North America, Europe, India, the Middle East, Australia, and
Asia. Our representative clients include national government departments/agencies in the U.S., UK., Australia,
and Asia, state and local depattments of transportation within the U.S., and private industry freight transport
firms.

Typical projects include providing development/rehabilitation plans for highways, bridges, transit, tunnets,
airports, railroads, intermodal facilities, and maritime or port projects. Our interdisciplinary teams can work
independently or as an extension of the client’s staff. We have experience with alternative financing methods,
which have been used in Europe through the privatization of public infrastructure systems,

Our water infrastructure group aids emerging economies, which are investing heavily in water and
wastewater systems, and governments in North America and Europe, which are addressing the challenges of
drought and an aging infrastructure system. We develop or rehabilitate critical water resource systems, watet/
wastewater conveyance systems, and flood defense projects.

We also plan, design, and construct buildings for a variety of clients and markets. We believe our global
presence and understanding of contracting and delivery demands keep us well positioned to provide professional
services worldwide. Qur diversified client base encompasses both public and private sectors and relates primarily
to institutional, commercial, government and corporate buildings, including projects at many of the world’s
leading medical and research centers, and universities. We focus our efforts and resources in two areas: where
capital-spending initiatives drive demand, and where changes and advances in technology require innovative,
value-adding solutions. We also provide integrated facility management services (sometimes through joint
ventures with third parties) for which we assume responsibility for the ongoing operation and maintenance of
entire commercial or industrial complexes on behalf of clients.

We have specific capabilities in energy and power, master planning, and commissioning of office
headquarters, aviation facilities, mission-critical facilities, municipal and civic buildings, courts and correctional
facilities, mixed-use and commercial centers, healthcare and education campuses, and recreational complexes.
For advanced technology clients, who require highly speciatized buildings in the fields of medical research, nano
science, biotechnology, and laser sciences, we offer total integrated design and construction management
solutions. We also have global capabilities in the pharma-bio, data center, government intelligence, corporate
headquartersfinteriors, and science and technology-based education markets. Qur government building projects
include large, multi-year programs in the U.S. and Europe supporting various U.S. and U.K. government
agencies.
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We added specialist integrated project services capability through the Aquenta acquisition in Australia in
early 2017. These skills include cost management & analysis, project planning & controls, contract &
commercial advisory services, and project management services. These services are provided across the breadth
of Jacobs client sectors with the potential to further expand to other geographies.

Industrial—We provide engineering, procurement, project management, construction, and on-site
maintenance to our global clients in the Life Sciences, Mining & Minerals, Specialty Chemicals &
Manufacturing and Field Services markets, We provide our Life Sciences clients single-point consulting,
engineering, procurement, construction management, and validation project delivery, enabling us to execute large
capital programs on a single-responsibility basis. Typical projects in the life sciences sector include laboratories,
research and development facilities, pilot plants, bulk active pharmaceutical ingredient production facilities, full-
scale biotechnology production facilities, and tertiary manufacturing facilities.

We provide services relating to modular construction, as well as other consulting and strategic planning to
help our clients complete capital projects faster and more efficiently.

In addition, we offer services in containment, barrier technology, locally controlled environments, building
systems automation, and off-the-site design and fabrication of facility modules, as well as vaccine production and
purification, and aseptic processing,

Our mining and minerals business targets the non-ferrous and ferrous metal markets, precious metals,
energy minerals (uranium, coal, oil sands), and industrial and fertilizer minerals (borates, trona, phosphates and
potash). We work with many rescurce companies undertaking new and existing facility upgrades, process plant
and underground and surface material handling and infrastructure developments.

We offer project management, front-end studies, full engineering, procurement and construction
management (“EPCM”) and engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”) capabilities, and completions,
commissioning and start-up services specializing in new plant construction, brownfield expansions, and
sustaining capital and maintenance projects. We are also able to deliver value to our mining clients by providing
distinctive adjacent large infrastructure capabilities to support their mining operations.

We provide a wide range of specialty chemicals & manufacturing services and products to our global client
base. Our specialty chemicals areas are focused on sulfuric acids, synthetic chemicals, and manufactured
equipment. Our manufacturing business areas include the Food & Beverage, Consumer Products, and Pulp &
Paper markets.

Our global Field Services unit supports construction and O&M across the company, and performs our direct
hire services,

Our construction activities include both construction management services and traditional field construction
services to our clients. Historically, our field construction activities focused primarily on those construction
projects where we perform much of the related engineering and design work, However, we pursue construction-
only projects when we can negotiate pricing and other contract terms we deem accepiable and which we believe
can result in a fair return for the degree of risk we assume.

In our O&M business, we perform tasks required to operate and maintain large, complex facilities on behalf
of clients. We provide key management and support services over all aspects of the operations of a facility,
including managing subcontractors and other on-site personnel, O&M also includes process plant maintenance
services, which generally involves all tasks required to keep a process plant (typically a refincry or chemical
plant) in day-to-day operation.

Petroleum & Chemicals—We provide integrated delivery of complex projects for our Qil and Gas,
Refining, and Petrochemical sector clients. Bridging the upstream, midstream and downstream industries, our
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end to end services encompass consulting, engineering, design, procurement, construction, commissioning,
start-up and maintenance, and project management,

We provide services relating to both onshore and oftshore oil and gas production facilities, including
stationary and floating platforms and subsea tie-backs, as well as full field development solutions, including
processing facilities, gathering systems, transmission pipelines, storage and terminals. Our heavy oil processing
experience makes us a leader in upgrading, steam-assisted gravity drainage and in-situ oil sands projects. We
have developed and delivered modular well pad and central processing facility designs. We also provide
fit-for-purpose and standardized designs in the onshore conventional and unconventional oil & gas sector, paying
particular attention to water and environmental issues.

In addition, we provide our refining customers with feasibility/economic studies, technology evaluation and
conceptual engineering, front end engineering & design, detailed engineering, procurement, construction,
commissioning, start-up and maintenance services. We deliver installed EPC solutions to grass root plants, and
offer expansions and revamps of existing units. Our focus is on both the inside the battery limit processing units
as well as utilities and offsites infrastructure, We have engineering alliances and onsite maintenance programs
that span decades with core clients, With the objective of driving our clients’ total installed costs down, we
endeavor to leverage emerging market sourcing and high value engineering centers (HVEC), Our Comprimo
Suifur Solutions® is a significant patented technology for gas treatment and sulfur recovery plants around the
world.

We also provide services to technically complex petrochemical facilities; from new manufacturing
complexes, to expansions and medifications, and the overall management of plant relocations. We have
experience with many licensed chemical processing technologies, integrated basic petrochemicals, commodity
and specialty chemicals projects, and olefins, aromatics, synthesis gas and their respective derivatives.

Backlog

Backlog represents the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of
performing work under contracts that have been awarded to us. With respect to O&M contracts, however, we
include in backlog the amount of revenues we expect to receive for only one succeeding year, regardless of the
remaining life of the contract. For national government programs (other than U.S. federal O&M contracts), our
policy is to include in backlog the tull contract award, whether funded or unfunded, excluding option periods. In
accordance with industry practice, substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation, termination, or
suspension at the discretion of the client. In addition, the contracts in our backlog are subject to changes in the
scope of services to be provided as well as adjustments to the costs relating to the contracts. Accordingly,
backlog is not necessarily indicative of our future revenues or earnings.

Our backlog includes expected revenues for contracts that are based on estimates, The following table
summarizes our backlog for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in
thousands):

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016

2015
Backlog:
Aecrospace & Technology .......... ... 0.t $ 6,231426  $ 5109973  § 4,880,775
Buildings & Infrastructure ...........cccviin.. 5,412,377 5,033,539 4,723,034
Indostrial ... i e 2,836,854 3,106,575 3,050,520
Petroleum & Chemicals ..., . .0 5,307,956 5,510,442 5,552,241
1 1 $19,788,613  $18,760,520  $18,806,570

For additional information regarding our backlog including those risk factors specific to backlog, please
refer to Item 1 A—Risk Factors, and ltem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Page 12



Results of Operations below, Subject to the factors discussed in Item 1A—Risk Factors below, we estimate that
approximately $7 billion, or 35%, of total backlog at September 29, 2017 will be realized as revenues within the
next fiscal year.

Significant Customers

The following table sets forth the percentage of total revenues earned directly or indirectly from agencies of
the U.S. federal government for each of the last five fiscal years:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

19.2% 21.4% 21.7% 17.8% 19.9%

Given the percentage of total revenue derived directly from the U.S. federal government, the loss of U.S.
federal government agencies as customers would have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, any
or all of our government contracts could be terminated, we could be suspended or debarred from all government
contract work, or payment of our costs could be disallowed. Approximately 88% of revenue derived directly
from the U.S. federal government is in the Aerospace & Technology segment. For more information on risks
relating to our government contracts, see Item 1A—Risk Factors.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Selected financial information regarding the geographic areas in which we operate is included in Note
15—Segment Information of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. For fiscal 2017, approximately 42% of our
revenues were earned from clients outside the United States, Our international operations are subject to a variety
of risks, which are described under Item 1 A—Risk Factors below.

Contracts

While there is considerable variation in the pricing provisions of the contracts we undertake, our contracts
generally fall into two broad categories: cost-reimbursable and fixed-price. The following table sets forth the
percentages of total revenues represented by these types of contracts for each of the Jast five fiscal years:

20017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Cost-reimbursable ... ....ovviiiiiir it st 81% B82% 83% 83% 85%
Fixed-price ....... ... i e 19% 18% 17% 17% 15%

In accordance with industry practice, most of our contracts (including those with the U.S, federal
government) are subject to termination at the discretion of the client, which is discussed in greater detail in
Item 1A~-Risk Factors. In such situations, our contracts typically provide for reimbursement of costs incurred
and payment of fees earned through the date of termination.

When we are directly responsible for engineering, design, procurement, and construction of a project or the
maintenance of a client’s plant or facility, we reflect the costs of materials, equipment, and subcontracts in both
revenues and costs. On other projects, where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we haye no
associated responsibility for such items, these amounts are not reflected in either revenues or costs. The
following table sets forth the approximate amount of such pass-through costs included in revenues for each of the
last five fiscal years (in millions of dollars):

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
$2,539.3 $2,489.9 $2,602.6 $2,954.9 $2,624.8
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Cost-Reimbursable Contracts

Cost-reimbursable contracts generally provide for reimbursement of costs incurred plus an amount of profit.
The profit element may be in the form of a simple mark-up applied to the labor costs incurred or it may be in the
form of a fee, or a combination of a mark-up and a fee. The fee element can also take several forms, The fee may
be a fixed amount; it may be an amount based on a percentage of the costs incurred; or it may be an incentive fee
based on targets, milestones, or performance factors defined in the contract. In general, we prefer cost-
reimbursable contracts because we believe the primary reason for awarding a contract to us should be our
technical expertise and professional qualifications rather than price.

Fixed-Price Contracts

Fixed-price contracts include both “lump sum bid” contracts and “negotiated fixed-price” contracts, Under
Iump sum bid contracts, we typically bid against other contractors based on specifications the client furnishes.
This type of pricing presents certain inherent risks, including the possibility of ambiguities in the specifications
received, problems with new technologies, and economic and other changes that may occur over the contract
period. Additionally, it is not unusual for lump sum bid contracts to lead to an adversarial relationship with
clients, which is contrary to our relationship-based business model. Accordingly, lump sum bid contracts are not
our preferred form of contract, and, as such, the Company has rarely entered into individual lump sum bid
contracts that are material to its financial results. In contrast, under a negotiated fixed-price contract, we are
selected as the contractor first and then we negotiate a price with our client, Negotiated fixed-price contracts
frequently exist in single-responsibility arrangements where we perform some portion of the work before
negotiating the total price of the project. Thus, although both types of contracts involve a firm price for the client,
the lump sum bid contract provides the greater degree of risk to us. However, because of economies that may be
realized during the contract term, both negotiated fixed-price and lump sum bid contracts may offer greater profit
potential than other types of contracts. The Company carefully manages the risk inherent in these types of
contracts, Over the past five years, most of our fixed-price work has been either negotiated fixed-price contracts
or lump sum bid contracts for project services, rather than turnkey construction.

Competition

With respect to each of the four broad categories of services we provide, we compete with a large namber of
companies across the world. Typically, no single company or companies dominate the market in which we
provide any such services. We compete based on the following factors, among others: price of services, technical
capabilities, reputation for quality, safety record, availability of qualified personnel, ability to timely perform
work, and willingness to accept project-related risk. For more information regarding the competitive conditions
in our business, please refer to Item 1A—Risk Factors below.

Employees

At September 29, 2017, we had approximately 44,800 full-time, staff employees (including contract staff).
Additionally, as of September 29, 2017, there were approximately 9,900 persons employed in the field on a
project basis, The number of field employees varies in relation to the number and size of the maintenance and
construction projects in progress at any particular time.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (c) through (g) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K
(except for information required by Paragraph (e) of that Item to the extent the required information pertains to
our executive officers) and Item 405 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the captions “Members of the Board of
Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement to
be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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The following table presents the information required by Paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K.

Year Joined the

Name E Position with the Company Registrant
Steven I. Demetriou ....... 59 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 2015
Kevin C. Berryman , ....... 58 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2014
Terence D. Hagen ......... 53  President, Aerospace & Technology 1987
Joseph G. Mandel (1) ...... 57 Executive Vice President, Integration Management Office 2011
Robert V. Pragada .. ....... 49 President, Buildings & Infrastructure 2016
William B. Allen .......... 53 Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer 2016
Michael R. Tyler .......... 61 Senior Vice President and General Counsel 2013

(1) Mr. Mandel was appointed as Executive Vice President, Integration Management Office on August 2, 2017,
Previously, he served as President, Petroleum & Chemicals,

All of the officers listed in the preceding table serve in their respective capacities at the pleasure of the
Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Hagen has served in executive and senior management capacities with
the Company for more than five years. Below is additional information on the other executive officers.

Mr. Demetriou joined the Company in August 2015, Mr. Demetriou served as Chairman and CEO of Aleris
Corporation for 14 years, a global downstream aluminum producer based in Cleveland, Ohio, Over the course of
his career, he has gained broad experience with companies in a range of industries including metals, specialty
chemicals, oil & gas, manufacturing and fertilizers.

Mr. Berryman joined the Company in December 2014, Mr. Berryman served as EVP and CFO for five years
at International Flavors and Fragrances Inc., an S&P 500 company and leading global creator of flavors and
fragrances used in a wide variety of consumer products. Prior to that, he spent 25 years at Nestlé in a number of
finance roles including treasury, mergers & acquisitions, strategic planning, and control.

Mr. Hagen joined the Company in 1987. Mr. Hagen has worked in a number of the Company’s market
sectors in both senior operational and sales roles. Prior to becoming President, Aerospace & Technology, he was
the Executive Vice President, Global Sales and Marketing.

Mr. Mandel joined the Company in February 2011 through the acquisition of certain operating companies
comprising the process and construction business of Aker Solutions ASA, a global provider of products, systems
and services to the oil and gas industry. Mr. Mandel served in various senior management roles with Aker
Solutions ASA since first joining them in 1995,

Mr, Pragada rejoined the Company in February 2016 after serving as President and Chief Executive Officer
of The Brock Group since August 2014. From March 2006 to August 2014 Mr. Pragada served in executive and
senior management capacities with the Company,

Mr, Allen joined the Company in October 2016, Mr, Allen served as Vice President, Finance and Principal
Accounting Officer at Lyondellbasell Industries, N.V. from 2013 to 2016. Prior to that, he was with Albemarle
Corporation, where he served as Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer from 2009
to 2013 after serving in CHO roles for their Catalysts and Fine Chemistry businesses from 20035 to 2009,

Mr. Tyler joined the Company in June 2013. He previously served as Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary of Sanmina Corporation, a global electronics manufacturing services provider from April
2007 to June 2013, and Chief Legal and Administrative Officer of Gateway, Inc., a computer hardware company,
from January 2004 to April 2007.
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Available Information

You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room located at
100 E Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, In order to obtain information about the operation of the Public
Reference Room, a person may call the SEC at 1-800-732-0330. The SEC also maintains a site on the Internet
that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. The SEC’s website is http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and download the
various reports we file with, or furnish to, the SEC free of charge from our website at www.jacobs.com.,
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

We operate in a changing environment that involves numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties
that conld materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. The risks
described below highlight some of the factors that have affected and could affect us in the future, We may also be
affected by unknown risks or risks that we currently think are immaterial, If any such events actually occur, our
business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially adversely affected,

Construction and maintenance sites are inherently dangerous workplaces. If we, the owner, or others working
at the project site fail to maintain safe work sites, we can be exposed to significant financial losses and
reputational harm, as well as civil and criminal liabilities.

Construction and maintenance sites often put our employees and others in close proximity with large pieces
of mechanized equipment, moving vehicles, chemical and manufacturing processes, and highly regulated
materials, in a challenging environment, and often in geographically remote locations. If we fail to implement
such procedures or if the procedutes we implement are ineffective, or if others working at the site fail to
implement and follow appropriate safety procedures, our employees and others may become injured, disabled or
even lose their lives, the completion or commencement of our projects may be delayed, and we may be exposed
to litigation or investigations. Unsafe work sites also have the potential to increase employee turnover, increase
the cost of a project to our clients, and raise our operating and insurance costs. Any of the foregoing could result
in financial losses or reputational harm, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

In addition, our projects can involve the handling of hazardous and other highly regulated materials, which,
if impropertly handled or disposed of, could subject us to civil andfor criminal liabilities. We are also subject to
regulations dealing with occupational health and safety. Although we maintain functional groups whose primary
purpose is to ensure we implement effective health, safety, and environmental (“IISE”) work procedures
throughout our organization, including coastruction sites and maintenance sites, the failure to comply with such
regulations could subject us to liability. In addition, despite the work of our functional groups, we cannot
guarantee the safety of our personnel or that there will be no damage to or loss of our work, equipment or
supplies.

Our safety record is critical to our reputation. Many of our clients require that we meet certain safety criteria
to be eligible to bid for contracts and many contracts provide for automatic termination or forfeiture of some or
all of our contract fees or profit in the event we fail to meet certain measures. Accordingly, if we fail to maintain
adequate safety standards, we could suffer reduced profitability or the loss of projects or clients, which could
have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our vuilnerability to the cyclical nature of the sectors and industries in which our clients operate is
exacerbated during economic downturns and times of pelitical uncertainty.

We provide technical, professional, construction, and O&M services to clients operating in a number of
sectors and industries, including oil and gas exploration, production, and refining; programs for various naticnal
governments, including the U.S. federal government; chemicals and polymers; mining and minerals;
pharmaceuticals and biotechnology; infrastructure; buildings; power; and other general industrial and consumer
businesses and markets (such as technology and manufacturing; pulp and paper; and food and consumer
products). These sectors and industries and the resulting demand for our services have been, and we expect will
continue to be, cyclical and subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors beyond our control,
including economic conditions and changes in client spending, particularly during periods of economic or
political uncertainty.

Current global economic and political conditions have negatively impacted many of our clients’ ability and
willingness to fund their projects, including their ability to raise capital and pay, or timely pay, our invoices,
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They have also caused our clients to reduce their capital expenditures, alter the mix of services purchased, seck
more favorable price and other contract terms, and otherwise slow their spending on our services, For example,
in the public sector, declines in state and local tax revenues as well as other economic declines may result in
lower state and local government spending. In addition, due to these conditions many of our competitors may be
more inclined to take greater or unusual risks or accept terms and conditions in contracts that we might not deem
acceptable. These conditions have reduced, and may continue to reduce, the demand for our services, which has
had, and may continue to have, a significant negative impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Current economic and political conditions also make it extremely difficult for our clients, our vendors, and
us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities, We cannot predict the timing, strength or duration of
any economic recovery or downturn worldwide or in our clients’ markets. In addition, our business has
traditionally lagged recoveries in the general economy and, therefore, may not recover as quickly as the economy
at large. A continuation or worsening of current weak economic conditions, a failure to obtain expected benefits
from any increased infrastructure spending, or a reduction in government spending could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Furthermore, if a significant portion of our
clients or projects are concentrated in a specific geographic area or industry, our business may be
disproportionately affected by negative trends or economic downturns in those specific geographic areas or
industries.

Regardless of economic or market conditions, investment decisions by our customers may vary by location
or as a vesult of other factors like the availability of labor or relative construction cost. Because we are dependent
on the timing and funding of new awards, we are therefore vulnerable to changes in our clients’ markets and
investment decisions. As a result, our past results have varied and may continue to vary depending upon the
demand for futare projects in the markets and the locations in which we operate,

Fluctuations in commodity prices may affect our customers’ investment decisions and therefore subject us to
risks of cancellation, delays in existing work, or changes in the timing and funding of new awards.

Commuodity prices can affect our customers in a number of ways. For example, for those customers that
produce commodity products such as oil, gas, copper, or fertilizers, fluctuations in price can have a direct effect
on their profitability and cash flow and, therefore, their willingness to continue to invest or make new capital
investments. Furthermore, declines in commodity prices can negatively impact our business in regions whose
economies are substantially dependent on commedity prices, such as the Middle East. To the extent commodity
prices decline or fluctuate and cur customers defer new investments or cancel or delay existing projects, the
demand for our services decreases, which may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Commodity prices can also strongly affect the costs of projects. Rising commodity prices can negatively
impact the potential returns on investments that are planned, as well as those in progress, and result in customers
deferring new investments or canceling or delaying existing projects. Cancellations and delays have affected our
past results and may continue to do so in significant and unpredictable ways and could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our project execution activities may result in liability for faulty services.

If we fail to provide our services in accordance with applicable professional standards or contractual
requirements, we could be exposed to significant monetary damages or even criminal violations. Qur engineering
practice, for example, involves professional judgments regarding the planning, design, development,
construction, operations and management of industrial facilities and public infrastructure projects, While we do
not generally accept liability for consequential damages in our contracts, and although we have adopted a range
of insurance, risk management and risk avoidance programs designed to reduce potential liabilities, a
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catastrophic event at one of our project sites or completed projects resulting from the services we have performed
could result in significant professional or product liability, and warranty or other claims against us as well as
reputational harm, especially if public safety is impacted. These liabilities could exceed our insurance limits or
the fees we generate, may not be covered by insurance at all due to various exclusions in our coverage, and could
impact our ability to obtain insurance in the future. Further, even where coverage applies, the policies have
deductibles, which result in our assumption of exposure for certain amounts with respect to any claim filed
against us. In addition, clients or subcontractors who have agreed to indemnify us against any such liabilities or
losses might refuse or be unable to pay us. An uninsured claim, either in part or in whole, as well as any claim
covered by insurance but subject to a high deductible, if successful and of a material magnitude, could have a
material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We engage in a highly competitive business. If we are unable to compete effectively, we could lose market
share and our business and results of operations could be negatively impacted,

We face intense competition to provide technical, professional, and construction services to clients, The
markets we serve are highly competitive and we compete against a large number of regional, national, and
multinational companies.

The extent of our competition varies by industry, geographic area, and project type. For example, with
respect to our construction, and operations and maintenance setvices, clients generally award large projects to
large contractors, which may give our larger competitors an advantage when bidding for these projects.
Conversely, with respect to our engineering, design, architectural, and consulting services, low barriers of entry
can result in competition with smaller, newer competitors. The extent and type of competition varies by market
and geographic area.

Our projects are frequently awarded through a competitive bidding process, which is standard in our
industry. We are constantly competing for project awards based on pricing, schedule and the breadth and
technical sophistication of our services. Competition can place downward pressure on our contract prices and
profit margins, and may force us to accept contractual terms and conditions that are less favorable to s, thereby
increasing the risk that, among other things, we may not realize profit margins at the same rates as we’ve seen in
the past or may become responsible for costs or other liabilities we have not accepted in the past. If we are unable
to compete effectively, we may experience a loss of market share or reduced profitability or both, which if
significant, could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations,

Our results of operations depend on the award of new contracts and the timing of the performance of these
contracts.

Our revenues are derived from new contract awards, Delays in the timing of the awards or cancellations of
such prospects as a result of economic conditions, material and equipment pricing and availability or other
factors could impact our long-term projected results. It is particularly difficult to predict whether or when we will
receive large-scale projects as these contracts frequently involve a lengthy and complex bidding and selection
process, which is affected by a number of factors, such as market conditions or governmental and environmental
approvals, Since a significant pertion of our revenues is generated from such projects, our results of operations
and cash flows can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter depending on the timing of our coniract awards
and the commencement or progress of work under awarded contracts. Furthermore, many of these contracts are
subject to financing contingencies and, as a result, we are subject to the risk that the customer will not be able to
secure the necessary financing for the project.

In addition, many of our contracts require us to satisfy specific progress or performance milestones in order
to receive payment from the customer. As a result, we may incur significant costs for engineering, materials,
components, equipment, labor or subcontractors prior to receipt of payment from a customer,
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The uncertainty of our contract award timing can also present difficulties in matching workforce size with
contract needs. In some cases, we maintain and bear the cost of a ready workforce that is larger than necessary
under existing contracts in anticipation of future workforce needs for expected contract awards. If an expected
contract award is delayed or not received, we may incur additional costs resulting from reductions in staff or
redundancy of facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The outcome of pending and future claims and litigation could have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are a party to claims and litigation in the normal course of business. Since we engage in engineering and
construction activities for large facilities and projects where design, construction or systems failures can result in
substantial injury or damage to employees or others, we are exposed to substantial claims and litigation and
investigations if there is a failure at any such facility or project. Such claims could relate to, among other things,
personal injury, loss of life, business interruption, property damage, pollution, and environmental damage and be
brought by our clients or third parties, such as those who use or reside near our clients’ projects. We can also be
exposed to claims if we agreed that a project will achieve certain performance standards or satisfy certain
technical requirements and those standards or requirements are not met. In many of our contracts with clients,
subcontractors, and vendors, we agree to retain or assume potential liabilities for damages, penalties, losses, and
other exposures relating to projects that could result in claims that greatly exceed the anticipated profits relating
to those contracts. In addition, while clients and subcontractors may agree to indemnify us against certain
liabilities, such third parties may refuse or be unable to pay us.

We maintain insurance coverage for various aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance programs
have varying coverage limits as well as exclusions for matters such as fraud, and insurance companies may
attempt to deny claims for which we seek coverage. In addition, we have elected to retain a portion of losses that
may occur through the use of various deductibles, retentions and limits under these programs. As a result, we
may be subject to future liability for which we are only partially insured, or completely uninsured.

Although in the past we have been generally able to cover our insurance needs, there can be no assurances
that we can secure all necessary or appropriate insurance in the future, or that such insurance can be
economically secured. For example, catastrophic events can result in decreased coverage limits, coverage that is
more limited, or increased premium costs or higher deductibles. We monitor the financial health of the insurance
companies from which we procure insurance, and this is one of the factors we take into account when purchasing
insurance. Our insurance is purchased from a number of the world’s leading providers, often in layered insurance
or quota share arrangements. If any of our third party insurers fail, abruptly cancel our coverage or otherwise
cannot satisfy their insurance requirements to us, then our overall risk exposure and operational expenses counld
be increased and our business operations could be interrupted.

In additicn, the nature of our business sometimes results in clients, subcontractors, and vendors presenting
claims to us for, among other things, recovery of costs related to certain projects. Similarly, we occasionally
present change orders and claims to our clieats, subcontractors, and vendors for, among other things, additional
costs exceeding the original contract price. If we fail to document properly the nature of our claims and change
orders or are otherwise unsuccessful in negotiating reasonable settlements with our clients, subcontractors, and
vendors, we could incur cost overruns, reduced profits or, in some cases, a loss for a project. Further, these
claims can be the subject of lengthy negotiations, arbitration or litigation proceedings, which could result in the
investment of significant amounts of working capital pending the resolution of the relevant change orders and
claims. A failure to promptly recover on these types of claims could have a material adverse impact on our
liquidity and financial results. Additionally, irrespective of how well we document the nature of our claims and
change orders, the cost to prosecute and defend claims and change orders can be significant.

Litigation and regulatory proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainties and unfavorable rulings can and
do oceur, Pending or future claims against us could result in professional liability, produet liability, criminal
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liability, warranty obligations, default under our credit agreements and other liabilities which, to the extent we
are not insured against a loss or our insurer fails to provide coverage, could have a matenal adverse impact on
our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The nature of our contracts, particularly those that are fixed-price, subject us to risks of cost overruns, We
may experience reduced profits or, in some cases, losses if costs increase above budgets or estimates or if the
project experiences schedule delays.

For fiscal 2017, approximately 19% of our revenues were earned under fixed-price contracis. Both fixed-
price and many cost reimbursable contracts require us to estimate the total cost of the project in advance of our
performance. For fixed-price contracts, we may benefit from any cost-savings, but we bear greater risk of paying
some, if not all, of any cost overruns. Fixed-price contracts are established in part on partial or incomplete
designs, cost and scheduling estimates that are based on a number of assumptions, including those about future
economic conditions, commodity and other materials pricing and availability of labor, equipment and materials,
and other exigencies. If the design or the estimates prove inaceurate or if circumstances change due to, among
other things, unanticipated technical problems, difficulties in obtaining permits or approvals, changes in local
laws or labor conditions, weather or other delays beyond our control, changes in the costs of equipment or raw
materials, our vendors’ or subcontractors’ inability or failure to perform, or changes in general economic
conditions, then cost overruns may occur and we could experience reduced profits or, in some cases, a loss for
that project. These risks are exacerbated for projects with long-term durations because there is an increased risk
that the circumstances on which we based our original estimates will change in a manner that increases costs. If
the project is significant, or there are one or more issues that impact multiple projects, costs overruns could have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our contracts that are fundamentally cost reimbursable in nature may also present a risk to the extent the
final cost on a project exceeds the amount the customer expected or budgeted. Like fixed-price contracts, the
expected cost of cost-reimbursable projects are based in part on partial design and our estimates of the resources
and time necessary to perform such contracts. A portion of the fee is often linked to the final cost and schedule
objectives and if for whatever reason, the project may be less profitable than we expect or even result in losses.

CQur continned success is dependent upon our ability to hire, reiain, and utilize qualified personnel.

The success of our business is dependent upon our ability to hire, retain, and utilize qualified personnel,
including engineers, architects, designers, craft personnel, and corporate management professionals who have the
required experience and expertise at a reasonable cost. The market for these and other personnel is competitive.
From time to time, it may be difficult to attract and retain qualified individuals with the expertise, and in the
timeframe, demanded by our clients, or to replace such personnel when needed in a timely manner. In certain
geographic areas, for example, we may not be able to satisfy the demand for our services because of our inability
to successfully hire and retain qualified personnel. Furthermore, some of our personnel hold government granted
clearance that may be required to obtain government projects. If we were to lose some or all of these personnel,
they would be difficult to replace. Loss of the services of, or failure to recruit, qualified technical and
management personnel could limit our ability to successfully complete existing projects and compete for new
projects.

In addition, in the event that any of our key personnel retire or otherwise leave the Company, we need to
have appropriate succession plans in place and to successfully implement such plans, which requires devoting
time and resources toward identifying and integrating new personnel into leadership roles and other key
positions. If we cannot attract and retain qualified personnel or effectively implement appropriate succession
plans, it could have a material adverse Impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations,

The cost of providing our services, including the extent to which we utilize our workforce, affects our
profitability. For example, the uncertainty of contract award timing can present difficulties in matching our
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workforce size with our contracts. If an expected contract award is delayed or not received, we could incur costs
resulting from excess staff, reductions in staff, or redundancy of facilities that could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financtal conditions, and results of operations.

The contracts in our backlog may be adjusted, cancelled or suspended by our clients and, therefore, our
backlog is not necessarily indicative of our future revenues or earnings. Additionally, even if fully performed,
our backlog is not a good indicator of our future gross margins.

Backlog represents the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of
performing work under contracts that have been awarded to us. As of the end of fiscal 2017, our backlog totaled
approximately $19.8 billion. There is no assurance that backlog will actually be realized as revenues in the
amounts reported or, if realized, will result in profits. In accordance with industry practice, substantially all of
our contracts are subject to cancellation, termination, or suspension at the discretion of the client, In the event of
a project cancellation, we would generally have no contractual right to the total revenue reflected in our backlog.
Projects can remain in backlog for extended periods of time because of the nature of the project and the timing of
the particular services required by the project. The risk of contracts in backlog being cancelled or suspended
generally increases during periods of widespread economic slowdowns or in response to changes in commodity
prices.

The contracts in our backlog are subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as
adjustments to the costs relating to the contracts. The revenve for certain contracts included in backlog is based
on estimates. Additicnally, the way we perform on our individual contracts can affect greatly our gross margins
and hence, future profitability.

In some markets, there is a continuing trend towards cost-reimbursable contracts with incentive-fee
arrangements. Typically, our incentive fees are based on such things as achievement of target completion dates or
target costs, overall safety performance, overall client satisfaction, and other performance criterig, If we fail to
meet such targets or achieve the expected performance standards, we may receive a lower, or even zero,
incentive fee resulting in lower gross margins. Accordingly, there is no assurance that the contracts in backlog,
assuming they produce the revenues currently expected, will generate gross margins at the rates we have realized
in the past.

Contracts with the U.S. federal government and other governments and their agencies pose additional risks
relating to future funding and compliance,

Contracts with the U.S. federal government and other governments and their agencies, which are a
significant source of our revenue and profit, are subject to various uncertainties, restrictions, and regulations
including oversight audits by various government authorities as well as profit and cost controls, which conld
result in withholding or delay of payments to us. Government contracts are also exposed to uncertainties
associated with funding such as sequestration and budget deficits, Contracts with the 1.5, federal government,
for example, are subject to the uncertainties of Congressional funding. Governments are typically under no
obligation to maintain funding at any specific level, and funds for government programs may even be eliminated.
Legislatures typically appropriate funds on a year-by-year basis, while contract performance may take more than
one year. As a result, contracts with government agencies may be only partially funded or may be terminated,
and we may not realize all of the potential revenue and profit from those contracts.

Our government clients may reduce the scope or terminate our contracts for convenience or decide not to
renew our contracts with little or no prior notice. Since government contracts represent a significant percentage
of our revenues (for example, those with the U.S. federal government represented approximately 19.2% of our
total revenue in fiscal 2017), a significant reduction in government funding or the loss of such contracts conld
have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations,
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Most government contracts are awarded through a rigorous competitive process. The U.S. federal
government has increasingly relied upon multiple-year contracts with multiple contractors that generally require
those contractors to engage in an additional competitive bidding process for each task order issued under a
contract. This process may result in us facing significant additional pricing pressure and uncertainty and
incurring additional costs. Moreover, we may not be awarded government contracts because of existing policies
designed to protect small businesses and under-represented minorities. Qur inability to win new contracts or be
awarded work under existing contracts could have a negative impact on our business and results of operations.

In addition, government contracts are subject to specific procurement regulations and a variety of other
socio-economic requirements, which affect how we transact business with our clients and, in some instances,
impose additional costs on our business operations. For example, for contracts with the U.S. federal government,
we must comply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation, the Truth in Negotiations Act, the Cost Accounting
Standards, the Service Contract Act, and numerous regulations governing environmental protection and
employment practices. Government contracts also contain terms that expose us to heightened levels of risk and
potential liability than non-government contracts. This includes, for example, unlimited indemnification
obligations.

We also are subject to government audits, investigations, and proceedings. For example, government
agencies such as the U.S, Defense Contract Audit Agency routinely review and audit us to determine the
adequacy of and our compliance with our internal control systems and policies and whether allowable costs are in
accordance with applicable regulations, These audits can result in a determination that a rule or regulation has
been violated or that adjustments are necessary to the amount of contract costs we believe are reimbursable by
the agencies and the amount of our overhead costs allocated to the agencies.

If we violate a rule or regulation, fail to comply with a contractual or other requirement or do not satisfy an
audit, a variety of penalties can be imposed on us including monetary damages and criminal and civil penalties.
For example, in so-called “qui tam™ actions brought by individuals or the government under the U.S. Federal
False Claims Act or under similar state and local laws, treble damages can be awarded. In addition, any or all of
our government contracts could be terminated, we could be suspended or debarred from all government contract
work, or payment of our costs could be disallowed. The occcurrence of any of these actions could harm our
reputation and our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be negatively impacted.

Many of our federal government contracts require us to have security clearances, which can be difficult and
time consuming to obtain. If our employees are unable to obtain or retain the necessary securities clearances, our
clients could terminate or not renew existing contracts or award us new contracts. To the extent this cccurs, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted. ‘

Our use of joint ventures and parinerships exposes us to risks and uncertainties, many of which are ouiside of
our control.

As 1s common in our industry, we perform certain contracts as a member of joint ventures, partnerships, and
similar arrangements. This situation exposes us to a number of risks, including the risk that our partners may be
unable to fulfill their obligations to us or our clients.

Further, we have limited ability to control the actions of our joint venture partners, including with respect to
nonperformance, default, bankruptey or legal or regulatory compliance. Our partners may be unable or unwilling
to provide the required levels of financial support to the partnerships. If these circumstances occur, we may be
liable for claims and losses attributable to the partner by operation of law or contract. These circumstances could
also lead to disputes and litigation with our partners or clients, all of which could have a material adverse impact
on our reputation, business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We depend on the management effectiveness of our joint venture partners. Differences in views among the
joint venture participants may result in delayed decisions or in failures to agree on major issues, which could
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materially affect the business and operations of these ventures. In addition, in many of the countries in which we
engage in joint ventures, it may be difficult to enforce our contractual rights under the applicable joint venture
agreement. If we are not able to enforce our contractual rights, we may not be able to realize the benefits of the
joint venture or we may be subject to additional liabilities.

We participate in joint ventures and similar arrangements in which we are not the controlling partner. In
these cases, we have limited control over the actions of the joint venture. These joint ventures may not be subject
to the same requirements regarding internal controls and internal control over financial reporting that we follow.
To the extent the controlling partner makes decisions that negatively impact the joint venture or internal control
problems arise within the joint venture, it could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

The failure by a joint venture partner to comply with applicable laws, regulations or client requirements
could negatively impact our business and, for government clients, could result in fines, penalties, suspension or
even debarment being imposed on us, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

We are dependent on third parties to complete many of our contracts.

Third-party subcontractors we hire perform much of the work performed under our confracts. We also rely
on third-party equipment manufacturers or suppliers to provide much of the equipment and materials used for
projects. If we are unable to hire qualified subcontractors or find qualified equipment manufacturers or suppliers,
our ability to successfully complete a project could be impaired. If we are not able to locate qualified third-party
subcontractors or the amount we are required to pay for subcontractors or equipment and supplies exceeds what
we have estimated, especially in a lump sum or a fixed-price contract, we may suffer losses on these contracts, If
a subcontractor, supplier, or manufacturer fails to provide services, supplies or equipment as required under a
contract for any reason, we may be required to source these services, equipment or supplies to other third parties
on a delayed basis or on less favorable terms, which could impact contract profitability. There is a risk that we
may have disputes with our subcontractors relating to, among other things, the quality and timeliness of work
performed, customer concerns about the subcontractor, or our failure to extend existing task orders or issue new
task orders under a contract. In addition, faulty workmanship, equipment or materials could impact the overall
project, resulting in claims against us for failure to meet required project specifications,

In the current economic environment, third parties may find it difficult to obtain sufficient financing to help
fund their operations. The inability to obtain financing could adversely affect a third party’s ability to provide
materials, equipment or services which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition,
and results of operations. In addition, a failure by a third party subcontractor, supplier or manufacturer to comply
with applicable laws, regulations or client requirements could negatively impact our business and, for
government clients, could result in fines, penalties, suspension or even debarment being imposed on us, which
could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Negative conditions in the credit and financial markets and delays in receiving client payments could result in
liquddity problems, adversely affecting our cost of borrowing and our business.

Although we finance much of our operations using cash provided by operations, at times we depend on the
availability of credit to grow our business and to help fund business acquisitions. Instability in the credit markets
in the U.S. or abroad could cause the availability of credit to be relatively difficult or expensive to obtain at
competitive rates, on commercially reasonable terms or in sufficient amounts. This situation could make it more
difficult or more expensive for us to access funds, refinance our existing indebtedness, enter into agreements for
new indebtedness, or obtain funding through the issuance of securities or such additional capital may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. We may also enter into business acquisition agreements that require
us to access credit, which if not available at the closing of the acquisition could result in a breach of the
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acquisition agreement and a resulting claim for damages by the sellers of such business. In addition, market
conditions could negatively impact our clients’ ability to fund their projects and, therefore, utilize our services,
which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, we are subject to the risk that the counterparties to our credit agreements may go bankrupt if
they suffer catastrophic demand on their liquidity that will prevent them from fulfilling their contractual
obligations to us. We also routinely enter into contracts with counterparties including vendors, suppliers, and
subcontractors that may be negatively impacted by eveats in the credit markets. If those counterparties are unable
to perform their obligations to us or our clients, we may be required to provide additional services or make
alternate arrangements on less favorable terms with other parties to ensure adequate performance and delivery of
services to our clients. These circumstances could also lead to disputes and litigation with our partners or clients,
which could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Some of our customers, suppliers and subcontractors depend on access to commercial financing and capital
markets to fund their operations. Disruptions of the credit or capital markets could adversely affect our clients’
ability to finance projects and could result in contract cancellations or suspensions, project delays and payment
delays or defanlts by our clients. In addition, clients may be unable to fund new projects, may choose to make
fewer capital expenditures or otherwise slow their spending on our services or to seek contract terms more
favorable to them. Our government clients may face budget deficits that prohibit them from funding proposed
and existing projects or that cause them to exercise their right to terminate our contracts with little or no prior
notice. In addition, any financial difficulties suffered by our subcontractors or suppliers could increase our cost or
adversely impact project schedules, These disruptions could materially impact our backlog and have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and resulis of operations.

In addition, we typically bill our clients for our services in arrears and are, therefore, subject to our clients
delaying or failing to pay our invoices after we have already committed resources to their projects. In weak
economlic environments, we may experience increased delays and failures due to, among other reasons, our
clients’ unwillingness to pay for alleged poor performance or to preserve their own working capital. If one or
more clients delays in paying or fails to pay us a significant amount of our outstanding receivables, it conld have
a material adverse impact on our liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, our cash balances and short-term investments are maintained in accounts held by major banks
and financial institutions located primarily in North America, Europe, South America, Australia and Asia, Some
of our accounts hold deposits in amounts that exceed available insurance. Although none of the financial
institutions in which we hold our cash and investments have gene into bankruptcy or forced receivership, or have
been seized by their governments, there is a risk that such events may occur in the future. If any such events were
to occut, we would be at risk of not being able to access our cash, which may result in a temporary liquidity crisis
that could impede our ability to fund our operations, which could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Maintaining adequate bonding and letter of credit capacity is necessary for us to successfully bid on and win
some Contracts.

In line with industry practice, we are often required to provide performance or payment bonds or letters of
credit to our customers. These instruments indemnify the customer should we fail to perform our obligations
under the contract. If a bond or a letter of credit is required for a particular project and we are unable to obtain an
appropriate bond or letter of credit, we cannot pursue that project. Historically, we have had adequate bonding
and letter of credit capacity but, as is typically the case, the issuance of a bond is at the surety’s sole discretion
and the issuance of a letter of credit is based on the Company’s credit-worthiness. Because of an overall lack of
worldwide bonding capacity, we may find it difficult to find sureties who will provide required levels of bonding
or such bonding may only be available at significant additional cost. There can be no assurance that our bonding
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capacity will continue to be available to us on reasonable terms. In addition, future projects may require us to
obtain letters of credit that extend beyond the term of our existing credit facilities. Our inability to obtain
adequate bonding and, as a result, to bid on new contracts that require such bonding or letter of credit could have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows,

Past and future environmental, heath, and safety laws could impose significant additional costs and ligbilities.

‘We are subject to a variety of environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations governing, among
other things, discharges to air and water, the handling, storage, and disposal of hazardous or waste materials and
the remediation of contamination associated with the releases of hazardous substances and human health and
safety, These laws and regulations and the risk of attendant litigation can cause significant delays to a project and
add significantly to its cost, Violations of these regulations could subject us and our management to civil and
criminal penalties and other liabilities.

Various U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign environmental laws and regulations may impose liability for
property damage and costs of investigation and cleanup of hazardous or toxic substances on property currently or
previously owned by us or arising out of our waste management or environmental remediation activities, These
laws may impose responsibility and liability without regard to knowledge of or causation of the presence of
contaminants. The liability under these laws is joint and several. We have potential liabilities associated with our
past waste management and other activities and with our current and prior ownership of various properties, The
discovery of additional contaminants or the imposition of unforeseen clean-up obligations at these or other sites
could have a material adverse impact on cur financial condition and results of operations.

When we perform our services, cur personnel and equipment may be exposed to radioactive and hazardous
materials and conditions. We may be subject to liability claims by employees, customers, and third parties as a
result of such exposures. In addition, we may be subject to fines, penalties or other liabilities arising under
environmental or safety laws. A claim, if not covered or only partially covered by insurance, could have a
material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Health safety, and environmental laws and regulations and policies are reviewed periodically and any
changes thereto could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such changes could, for example, relax or
repeal laws and regulations relating to the environment, which could result in a decline in the demand for our
environmental services and, in turn, could negatively impact our revenue. Changes in the environmental laws and
regulations, remediation obligations, enforcement actions, stricter interpretations of existing requirements, future
discovery of contamination or claims for damages to persons, property, natural resources or the environment
could result in material costs and liabilities that we currently do not anticipate. If we fail to comply with any
environmental, health, or safety faws or regulations, whether actnal or alleged, we could be exposed to fines,
penalties or potential litigation liabilities, including costs, settlements and judgments, any of which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, we and many of our clients operate in highly regulated environments, which may require us or
our clients to obtain, and to comply with, federal, state, and local government permits and approvals. Any of
these permits or approvals may be subject to denial, revocation or modification under varions circumstances.
Failure to obtain or comply with, or the loss or modification of, the conditions of permits or approvals may
subject us to penalties or other liabilities, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and result of operations.

If we fail to comply with federal, state, local or foreign governmental requirements, our business may be
adversely affected.

We are subject to U.S. federal, staie, local and foreign laws and regulations that affect our business. For
example, our global operations require importing and exporting goods and technology across international
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borders which requires full compliance with both Export Regulatory Laws and International Trafficking in Arms
Regulations (“ITAR”). Although we have policies and procedures to comply with U.S. and foreign international
trade laws, the violation of such laws could subject the Company and its employees to civil or criminal penalties,
including substantial monetary fines, or other adverse actions including denial of import or export privileges or
debarment from participation in U.S. government contracts, and could damage our reputation and our ability to
do business.

Employee, agent or pariner misconduct or our overall failure to comply with laws or regulations could weaken
our ability to win contracts, which could result in reduced revenues and profits.

Misconduct, fraud, non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or other improper activities by one
of our employees, agents or partners could have a significant negative impact on our business and reputation.
Such misconduct could include the failure to comply with government procurement regulations, regulations
regarding the protection of classified information, regulations prohibiting bribery and other corrupt practices,
regulations regarding the pricing of labor and other costs in government contracts, regulations on lobbying or
similar activities, regulations pertaining to the internal controls over financial reporting, regulations pertaining to
export control, environmental laws, and any other applicable laws or regulations. For example, we routinely
provide services that may be highly sensitive or that relate to critical national security matters; if a security
breach were to occur, our ability to procure future government contracts could be severely limited. The
precautions we take to prevent and detect these activities may not be effective, and we could face unknown risks
or losses. Our failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations or acts of misconduct could subject us to
fines and penalties, cancellation of contracts, loss of security clearance, and suspension or debarment from
contracting, which could weaken our ability to win contracts and result in reduced revenues and profits and could
have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We could be adversely affected by violutions of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar worldwide
anti-bribery laws.

The U.8. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), the U.K. Bribery Act of 2010, and similar anti-bribery
laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments
for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Our policies mandate compliance with these anti-bribery laws,
including the requirements to maintain accurate information and internal controls. We operate in many paris of
the world that have experienced governmental corruption to some degree and in certain circumstances; strict
compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict with local customs and practices. Despite our training and
compliance programs, there is no assurance that our internal control policies and procedures will protect us from
acts committed by our employees or agents, If we arc found to be liable for FCPA or other violations (either due
to our own acts or our inadvertence, or due to the acts or inadvertence of others), we could suffer from civil and
criminal penalties or other sanctions, including contract cancellations or debarment, and loss of reputation, any of
which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The loss of or a significant reduction ir business from one or a few customers could have a material adverse
impact on us.

A few clients have in the past and may in the future account for a significant portion of our revenue and/or
backlog in any one year or over a period of scveral consecutive years. For example, in fiscal 2017, 2016, and
20135, approximately 19.2%, 21.4% and 21.7%, respectively, of our revenue was earned directly or indirectly
from agencies of the U.S. federal government, Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our
significant clients, our clients may unilaterally reduce, delay, or cancel their contracts at any time. Qur loss of or
a significant reduction in business from a significant client could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.
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Our international operations are exposed to addifional risks and uncertainties, including unfavorable political
developments and weak foreign economies.

For fiscal 2017, approximately 42% of our revenue was earned from clients outside the U.S, Qur business is
dependent on the continned success of our international operations, and we expect our international operations to
continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenues. Our international operations are subject to a
variety of risks, including:

*  Recessions and other economic crises in other regions, such as Europe, or specific foreign economies
and the impact on our costs of doing business in those countries;

= Difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations, including logistical and communication
challenges;

*  Unexpected changes in foreign government policies and regulatory requirements;

*  Potential non-compliance with a wide variety of laws and regulations, including anti-corruption, export
contrel and anti-boycott laws and similar non-U.S. laws and regulations;

»  Lack of developed legal systems to enforce contractual rights;

»  Expropriation and nationalization of our assets in a foreign country;

*  Renegotiation or nullification of our existing contracts;

*  The adoption of new, and the expansion of existing, trade or other restrictions;

+  Embargoes or other trade restrictions, including sanctions;

*  Changes in labor conditions;

*  Acts of war, civil unrest, force majeure, and terrorism;

. The.ability to finance efficiently our foreign operations;

*  Social, political, and economic instability;

*  Expropriation of property;

»  Tax increases;

+  Currency exchanges rate fluctuations;

»  Limitations on the ability to repatriate foreign earnings; and

» 1.8, government policy changes in relation to the foreign countries in which we operate,

The lack of a well-developed legal sysfem in some of these countries may make it difficult to enforce our
contractual rights, In addition, military action or continued unrest, particularly in the Middle East, could impact
the supply or pricing of oil, disrupt our operations in the region and elsewhere and increase our security costs. To

the extent our infernational operations are affected by unexpected or adverse economic, political and other
conditions, our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be adversely affected.

We work in international locations where there are high security risks, which could result in harm to our
employees or unanticipated cost,

Some of our services are performed in high-risk locations, where the country or location is subject to
political, social or economic risks, or war or civil unrest. In those locations where we have employees or
operations, we may expend significant efforts and incur substantial security costs to maintain the safety of our
personnel. Despite these activities, in these locations, we cannot guaraniee the safety of our personnel and we
may suffer future losses of employees and subcontractors. Acis of terrorism and threats of armed conflicts in or
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around various areas in which we operate could limit or disrupt markets and our operations, including disruptions
resulting from the evacuation of personnel, cancellation of contracts, or the loss of key employees, contractors or
assets.

Foreign exchange risks may affect our ability to realize a profit from certain projects.

Our reported financial condition and results of operations are exposed to the effects (both positive and
negative) that fluctuating exchange rates have on the process of translating the financial statements of our
international operations, which are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, into the U.S. dollar.
While we generally attempt to denominate our contracts in the currencies of our expenditures, we do enter into
contracts that expose us to curtency risk, particularly to the extent contract revenue is denominated in a currency
different than the contract costs. We attempt to minimize our exposure from currency risks by obtaining
escalation provisions for projects in inflationary economies or entering into derivative (hedging) instruments,
when there is currency risk exposure that is not naturally mitigated via our contracts. These actions, however,
may not always eliminate currency risk exposure. The governments of certain countries have or may in the future
impose restrictive exchange conirols on local currencies and it may not be possible for us to engage in effective
hedging transactions to mitigate the risks associated with fluctuations in a particular currency. Based on
fluctuations in currency, the U.S. dollar value of our backlog may from time to time increase or decrease
significantly. We may also be exposed to limitations on our ability to reinvest earnings from operations in one
country to fund the financing requirements of our eperations in other countries.

Our operations may be impacted by the United Kingdom’s proposed exit from the European Union.

In June 2016, the U.K. held a referendum in which voters approved an exit from the E.U., commonly
referred to as “Brexit,” As a result of the U.K.’s exit from the E.U., there may be greater restrictions on imports
and exports between the U.K. and E.U. countries and increased regulatory complexities. These changes may
adversely affect our relationships with our existing and future customers, suppliers, employees, and
subcontractors, or otherwise have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The ongoing negotiations between the UK. and the E.U. as to the terms upon which the U.K. will exit from the
E.U, and the uncertainty as to their futare trade agreement continues to create economic uncertainty, which may
cause our customers to closely monitor their costs, terminate or reduce the scope of existing contracts, decrease
or postpone currently planned contracts, or negotiate for more favorable deal terms, cach of which may have a
negative impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business strategy relies in part on acquisitions to sustain our growth. Acquisitions of other companies
present certain risks and uncertainties,

Our business strategy involves growth through, among other things, the acquisition of other companies.
Acquiring companies presents a number of risks, including:

. Assumption of liabilities of an acquired business, including liabilities that were unknown at the time
the acquisition was negotiated;

+  Valvation methodologies may not accurately capture the value of the acquired business;
*  Failure to realize anticipated benefits, such as cost savings and revenue enhancements;

»  Difficulties relating to combining previously separate entities into a single, integrated, and efficient
business;

*  The effects of diverting management’s attention from day-to-day operations to matters involving the
integration of acquired companies;

*  Potentially substantial transaction costs associated with business combinations;
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»  Potential impairment resulting from the overpayment for an acquisition or post-acquisition
deterioration in an acquired business;

»  Difficulties relating to assimilating the personnel, services, and systems of an acquired business and to
assimilating marketing and other operational capabilities;

+  Difficulties retaining key personnel of an acquired business;

+  Increased burdens on our staff and on our administrative, internal control and operating systems, which
may hinder our legal and regulatory compliance activities;

+  Difficulties in applying and integrating our system of internal controls to an acquired business;

»  Increased financial and accounting challenges and complexities in areas such as tax planning, treasury
management, financial reporting and internal controls; and

+  The potential requirement for additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available, or if
available, may not have favorable terms.

While we may obtain indemnification rights from the sellers of acquired businesses, such rights may be
difficult to enforce, the losses may exceed any dedicated escrow funds, and the indemnitors may not have the
ability to financially support the indemnity.

If our management is unable to successfully integrate acquired companies or implement our growth
strategy, our operating results could be harmed. In addition, even if the operations of an acquisition are integrated
successfully, we may not realize the full benefits of an acquisition, including the synergies, cost savings, or sales
or growth opportunities that we expect. These benefits may not be achieved within the anticipated time frame, or
at all. Moreover, we cannot assure that we will continue to successfully expand or that growth or expansion will
result in profitability,

In addition, there is no assurance that we will continue to locate suitable acquisition targets or that we will
be able to consummate any such transactions on terms and conditions acceptable to us, Existing cash balances
and cash flow from operations, together with borrowing capacity under our credit facilities, may be insufficient
to make acquisitions. Future acquisitions may require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may
not be available on atiractive terms, or at all. Acquisitions may also bring us into businesses we have not
previously conducted and expose us to additional business risks that are different than those we have traditionally
experienced.

In the event we issue stock as consideration for certain acquisitions we may make, we could dilute share
ownership.

One method of acquiring companies or otherwise funding our corporate activities is through the issuance of
additional equity securities. If we issue additional equity securities, as is contemplated, for example, in
connection with the Merger, such issuances could have the effect of diluting our earnings per share as well as our
existing shareholders’ individual ownership percentages in the Company.

There can be no assurance that we will pay dividends on our common stock.

Our Board of Directors initiated a quarterly cash dividend program in fiscal 2017 under which we have paid,
and intend to continue paying, a regular quarterly dividend. The declaration, amount and timing of such
dividends are subject to capital availability and determinations by our Board of Directors that cash dividends are
in the best interest of our stockholders and are in compliance with all respective laws and our agreements
applicable to the declaration and payment of cash dividends. Our ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other factors, our cash balances and potential future capital requirements for strategic transactions,
including acquisitions, debt service requirements, results of operations, financial condition and other factors that
our Board of Directors may deem relevant. A reduction in or elimination of our dividend payments and/or our
dividend program could have a material negative effect on our stock price.
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Our quarterly results may fluctuate significantly, which could have a material negative effect on the price of
our common stock.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly, which could cause our operating results to fall
below the expectations of securities analysts and have a material negative effect on the price of our common
stock. Fluctuations are caused by a number of factors, including:

»  Fluctuations in the spending patterns of our government and commercial customers;
*  The number and significance of projects executed during a quarter;
*  Unanticipated changes in contract performance, particularly with contracts that have funding limits;

»  The timing of resolving change orders, requests for equitable adjustments, and other contract
adjustments;

*  Delays incurred in connection with a project,;

»  Changes in prices of commodities or other supplies;

*  Changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

*  Weather conditions that delay work at project sites;

»  The timing of expenses incurred in connection with acquisitions or other corporate initiatives;

»  The decision by the Board of Directors to begin or cease paying a dividend, and the expectation that if
the Company pays dividends, it would declare dividends at the same or higher levels in the future;

«  Natural disasters or other crises;
. Staff levels and utilization rates;
»  Changes in prices of services offered by our competitors; and

*  General econcmic and political conditions.

Our actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions used to prepare our financial statements.

In preparing our financial statements, our management is required under U.S. GAAP to make estimates and
assumptions as of the date of the financial statements. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported values
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, Areas requiring
significant estimates by our management include:

+  Recognition of contract revenue, costs, profit or losses in applying the principles of percentage of
completion accounting;

+  Hstimated amounts for expected project losses, warranty costs, contract close-out or other costs;
*  Recognition of recoveries under contract change orders or claims;

*  Collectability of billed and unbilled accounts receivable and the need and amount of any allowance for
doubtful accounts;

»  Estimates of other liabilities, including litigation and insurance revenues/reserves and reserves
necessary for self-insured risks;

*  Accruals for estimated liabilities, including litigation reserves;

*  Valuation of assets acquired, and liabilities, goodwill, and intangible assets assumed, in acquisitions;
= Valuation of stock-based compensation;

*  The determination of liabilities under pension and other post-retirement benefit programs; and

»  Income tax provisions and related valuation allowances.
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Our actual business and financial results could differ from our estimates of such results, which could have a
material negative impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

An impairment charge on our goodwill could have a material adverse impact on our financial position and
results of operations.

Because we have grown in part through acquisitions, goodwill and intangible assets represent a substantial
portion of our assets. Under U.S. GAAP, we are required to test goodwill carried in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets for possible impairment on an annual basis based upon a fair value approach. As of September 29, 2017,
we had $3.0 billion of goodwill, representing 40.8% of our total assets of $7.4 billion. We have chosen to
perform our annual impairment reviews of goodwill at the end of the third quarter of our fiscal year. We also are
required to test goodwill for impairment between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce our enterprise fair value below its book value. These events or circumstances could
include a significant change in the business climate, including a significant sustained decline in a reporting unit's
market value, legal factors, operating performance indicators, competition, sale or disposition of a significant
portion of our business, potential government actions toward our facilities, and other factors.

If our market capitalization drops significantly below the amount of net equity recorded on our balance
sheet, it might indicate a decline in our fair value and would require us to further evaluate whether our goodwill
has been impaired. If the fair value of our reporting units is less than their carrying value, we could be required to
record an impairment charge. The amonnt of any impairment could be significant and could have a material
adverse impact on our financial position and results of operations for the period in which the charge is taken, For
a further discussion of goodwill impairment testing, please see Item 7- Management’s Discussion and Analvsis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations below.

We may be required to contribute additional cash to meet any underfunded benefit obligations associated with
retirement and post-retirement benefit plans we manage.

We have various employee benetit plan obligations that require us to make contributions to satisfy, over
time, our underfunded benefit obligations, which are generally determined by calculating the projected benefit
obligations minus the fair value of plan assets. For example, as of September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016,
our defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans were underfunded by $252.0 million and
$403.1 million, respectively, See Note 7- Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Plans of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
disclosure. In the future, our benefit plan obligations may increase or decrease depending on changes in the
levels of interest rates, pension plan asset performance and other factors. If we are required to contribute a
significant amount of the deficit for underfunded benefit plans, our cash flows could be materially and adversely
affected.

Rising inflation, interest rates, and/or construction costs could reduce the demand for our services as well as
decrease our profit on our existing contracts, in particular with respect to our fixed-price contracts.

Rising inflation, interest rates, or construction costs could reduce the demand for our services. In addition,
we bear all of the risk of rising inflation with respect to those contracts that are fixed-price. Because a significant
portion of our revenues are earned from cost-reimbursable type contracts (approximately 81% during fiscal
2017), the effects of inflation on our financial condition and results of operations over the past few years have
been generally minor. However, if we expand our business into markets and geographic areas where fixed-price
and lump-sum work is more prevalent, inflation may have a larger impact on our results of operations in the
future. Therefore, increases in inflation, interest rates or construction costs could have a material adverse impact
on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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We may be affected by market or regulatory responses to climate change.

Growing concerns about climate change may result in the imposition of additional environmental
regulations. Legislation, international protocols, regulation or other restrictions on emissions could result in
increased compliance costs for us and our clients and have other impacts on our clients, including those who are
involved in the exploration, production or refining of fossil fuels, emit greenhouse gases through the combustion
of fossil fuels or emit greenhouse gases through the mining, manufacture, utilization or production of materials or
goods. Such policy changes could increase the costs of projects for our clients or, in some cases, prevent a project
from going forward, thereby potentially reducing the need for our services, which would in turn have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. However, these changes could also
increase the pace of projects, such as carbon capture or storage projects, that could have a positive impact on our
business. We cannot predict when or whether any of these various proposals may be enacted or what their effect
will be on us or on our customers.

Our effective tax rate may increase or decrease.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxes, In the ordinary course of our business, there
are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. We are regularly under
audit by tax authorities, Although we believe that our tax estimates and tax positions are reasonable, they could
be materially affected by many factors including the final outcome of tax audits and related litigation, the
introduction of new tax accounting standards, legislation, regulations, and related interpretations, our global mix
of earnings, the realizability of deferred tax assets and changes in uncertain tax positions. An increase or decrease
in our effective tax rate, or an ultimate determination that the Company owes more taxes than the amounts
previously accrued, could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations,

Systems and information technology interruption or failure and data security breaches could adversely impact
our ability to operate or expose us to significant financial losses and reputational harm.

We rely heavily on computer, information, and communications technology and related systems in order to
properly operate our business, From time to time, we experience occasional system interruptions and delays. In
the event we are unable to regularly deploy software and hardware, effectively upgrade our systems and network
infrastructure, and take other steps to maintain or improve the efficiency and efficacy of our systems, the
operation of such systems could be interrupted or result in the loss, corruption, or release of data. In addition, our
computer and communication systems and operations could be damaged or interrupted by natural disasters, force
majeure events, telecommunications failures, power loss, acts of war or terrorism, computer viruses, malicious
code, physical or electronic security breaches, intentional or inadvertent user misuse or error, or similar events or
disruptions. Any of these or other events could cause interruptions, delays, loss of critical and/or sensitive data or
similar effects, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, protection of
intellectual property, and results of operations, as well as those of our clients,

In addition, we face the threat to our computer systems of unauthorized access, computer hackers, computer
viruses, malicious code, organized cyber-attacks and other security problems and system disruptions, including
possible unauthorized access to and disclosure of our and our clients’ proprietary or classified information. As
part of our ongoing effort to utilize industry accepted security measures and technology to securely maintain all
confidential and proprietary information on our computer systems, we have observed increased threat activity to
our computer systems, and have identified instances of unauthorized access to certain of our computer systems
occurring in the 2014-2016 timeframe. In response, we are conducting an ongoing internal investigation with the
assistance of outside counsel and technical experts to identify and remediate the source and impact of these
incursions, as well as comply with related notification and disclosure obligations. Expenses incurred to date
related to this matter have not been material. We will incur additional expenses and may incur losses in
connection with this matter, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial conditions,
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results of operations and cash flows; however, at this time we are unable to reasonably estimate any such
additional expenses or losses,

While we have security measures and technoelogy in place to protect our and our clients’ proprietary or
classified information, if these measures fail as a result of a cyber-attack, other third-party action, employee
error, malfeasance or otherwise, and someone obtains unauthorized access to our or our clients’ information, cur
reputation could be damaged, our business may suffer and we could incur significant liability. Because the
techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or sabotage systems change frequently and generally are not
identified until they are launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to
implement adequate preventative measures. As a result, we may be required to expend significant resources to
protect against the threat of system disruptions and security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these
disruptions and breaches. Any of these events could damage our reputation and have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We continuously evaluate the need to upgrade and/or replace our systems and network infrastructure to
protect our computing environment, to stay current on vendor supported products and to improve the efficiency
of our systems and for other business reasons. The implementation of new systems and information technology
could adversely impact our operations by imposing substantial capital expenditures, demands on management
time and risks of delays or difficulties in transitioning to new systems. And, our systems implementations may
not result in productivity improvements at the levels anticipated. Systems implementation disruption and any
other information technology disruption, if not anticipated and appropriately mitigated, could have an adverse
effect on our business.

We may not be able to profect our intellectual property or that of our clients.

Our technology and intellectual property provide us, in certain instances, with a competitive advantage,
Alihough we protect our property through patent registrations, license restrictions, and similar mechanisms, we
may not be able to successtully preserve our rights and they could be invalidated, circumvented, challenged or
become obsolete. Our employees and contractors are subject to confidentiality obligations, but this protection
may be inadequate to deter or prevent misappropriation of our confidential information and/or infringement of
our intellectual property. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries in which we operate do not protect
intellectnal property rights to the same extent as the U.S. If we are unable to protect and maintain our intellectual
property rights or if there are any successful intellectual property challenges or infringement proceedings against
us, our ability to differentiate our service offerings could be reduced. Litigation to determine the scope of
intellectual property rights, even if ultimately successful, could be costly and could divert management’s
attention away from other aspects of our business.

We also hold licenses from third parties which may be utilized in our business operations. If we are no
longer able to license such technology on commercially reasonable terms or otherwise, our business and financial
performance could be adversely affected.

If our intellectual property rights or work processes become obsolete, we may not be able to differentiate
our service offerings and some of our competitors may be able to offer more attractive services to our customers.
Our competitors may independently attempt to develop or obtain access to technologies that are similar or
superior to our technologies.

Our clients or other third parties may also provide us with their technology and intellectual property. There
is a risk we may not sufficiently protect our or their information from improper use or dissemination and, as a
result, could be subject to claims and litigation and resulting liabilities, loss of contracts or other consequences
that could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Page 34



Our businesses could be materially and adversely affected by events outside of our control.

Extraordinary or force majeure events beyond ocur control, such as natural or man-made disasters, could
negatively impact our ability to operate. As an example, from time to time we face unexpected severe weather
conditions which may result in weather-related delays that are not always reimbursable under a fixed-price
contract; evacuation of personnel and curtailment of services; increased labor and material costs in areas
resulting from weather-related damage and subsequent increased demand for labor and materials for repairing
and rebuilding; inability to deliver materials, equipment and personnel to jobsites in accordance with contract
schedules; and loss of productivity. We may remain obligated to perform our services after any such natural or
man-made event, unless a force majeure clause or other contractual provision provides us with relief from our
contractual obligations. If we are not able to react quickly to such events, or if a high concentration of our
projects are in a specific geographic region that suffers from a natural or man-made catastrophe, our operations
may be significantly affected, which could have a negative impact on our operations. In addition, if we cannot
complete our contracts on time, we may be subject to potential liability claims by our clients which may reduce
our profits.

We are subject to professional standards, duties and statutory obligations on professional reports and opinions
we issue, which could subject us to monetary damages,

We issne reperts and opinions to clients based on our professional engineering expertise as well as our other
professional credentials that subject us to professional standards, duties and obligations regulating the
performance of our services. For example, we issue opinions and reports to government clients in connection
with securities offerings, H a client or another third party alleges that our report or opinion is incorrect or it is
improperly relied upon and we are held responsible, we could be subject to significant monetary damages. In
addition, our reports and other work product may need to comply with professional standards, licensing
requirements, securities regulations and other laws and rules governing the performance of professional services
in the jurisdiction where the services are performed. We could be liable to third parties who use or rely upon our
reports and other work product even if we are not contractually bound to those third parties, These events could
in turn result in monetary damages and penalties,

Delaware law and our charter documents may impede or discourage a takeover or change of control,

We are a Delaware corporation, Certain anti-takeover provisions of the Delaware general corporation law
impose restrictions on the ability of others to acquire control of us. In addition, certain provisions of our charter
documents may impede or discourage a takeover, For example:

. Only our Board of Directors can fill vacancies on ihe board;

»  There are various restrictions on the ability of a shareholder to nominate a director for election; and

+  Our Board of Directors can authorize the issuance of preferred shares.

These types of provisions, as well as our ability to adopt a shareholder rights agreement in the future, could

make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if the acquisition would be beneficial to our
shareholders. Accordingly, shareholders may be limited in the ability to obtain a premium for their shares.

Failure of the Merger to be consummated, the termination of the Merger Agreement or a significant delay in
the consummation of the Merger could negatively affect our stock price and our future business and financial
results,

Our obligations and CH2M’s obligations to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver
of certain customary conditions, including, but not limited to: (i) the approval of the Merger Agreement by the
CH2M stockhelders, (ii) the expiration or termination of applicable waiting periods under, or receipt of the
applicable consents required under, the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended and
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certain foreign antitrust and competition laws, each of which have been satisfied or obtained, (iii} the absence of
any order, applicable law or other legal restraints of certain specified governmental authorities enjoining or
otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Merger, (iv) the accuracy of certain representations and
warranties of each of the parties contained in the Merger Agreement, subject to specified materiality
qualifications, (v) compliance, in all material respects, by each of.the parties with their respective covenants
contained in the Merger Agreement, (vi) the effectiveness of the registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the
Company for the issuance of the Company common stock in the Merger, which was satisfied on November 9,
2017, and the approval of the listing of such shares on the New York Stock Exchange, (vii) the absence of a
material adverse effect on either CH2M or the Company since the date of the Merger Agreement and (viii) the
other conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, There can be no assurance that these conditions to the
consummation of the Merger will be satisfied in a timely manner or at all. In addition, other factors such as
Jacobs® ability to obtain the debt financing it needs to consummate the Merger, or legal proceedings related to the
Merger, may affect when and whether the Merger will occur.

If the Merger is not consummated or is delayed, our ongoing business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially adversely affected and the market price of our common stock may decline
significantly, particularly to the extent that the market price reflects a market assumption that the Merger will be
consummated or will be consummated on 2 particular timeframe, In addition, we and our subsidiaries may
experience negative reactions from our respective clients, regulators, vendors and employees.

Furthermore, we have incurred and expect to continue to incur substantial expenses in connection with the
completion of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. If the Merger is not consummated, we
will have paid these expenses without realizing the expected benefits of the transaction. Any of the foregoing, or
other risks arising in connection with a failure or delay in consummating the Merger, including the diversion of
management attention or loss of other opportunities during the pendency of the Merger, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If Jacobs’ financing for the Merger becomes unavailable, the Merger may not be completed.

Jacobs intends to finance the cash component of the consideration payable to CH2M stockholders in the
Merger, the repayment of CHZM’s outstanding indebtedness and other transaction expenses with a combination
of cash on hand and debt financing, which includes the Jacobs Term Loan Facility in an aggregate principal
amount of $1.5 billion and additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. Jacobs currently estimates
that the aggregate principal amount of indebtedness to be incurred in connection with the Merger will be
approximately $1.9 billion, There are a number of conditions in the Jacobs Term Loan Credit Agreement and the
Revolving Credit Facility that must be satisfied or waived in order for closing of the debt financing to occur,
There is a risk that these conditions will not be satisfied. In the event that the financing contemplated by the
Jacobs Term Loan Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Facility is not available, Jacobs may obtain
alternative financing to finance the consideration payable to CH2M stockholders in the Merger, the repayment of
CHZM'’s outstanding indebtedness and other transaction expenses. Such alternative financing may not be
available on acceptable terms, in a timely manner or at all. While obtaining financing is not a condition to
Jacobs’ obligation to effect the Merger, if other financing becomes necessary and Jacobs is unable to secure such
other financing, the Merger may not be completed,

The Merger may adversely affect the outcome of pending and future claims and litigation.

If the Merger is completed, it may give rise to unexpected liabilities and costs, including costs associated
with the defense and resolution of possible litigation or other claims, and may have an adverse effect on any
pending claims against Jacobs or CH2M. Jacobs could also be subject to claims or litigation related to the
Merger, whether or not the Merger is consummated. Such actions may create additional uncertainty relating to
the Merger, and responding to such claims and defending such actions may be costly and distracting to
management.
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The current ownership and voting interests of Jacobs stockholders will be diluted by the Merger.

Upon the completion of the Merger, except for stockholders who own stock in both Jacobs and CH2M, each
Jacobs stockholder will have a percentage ownership of Jacobs that is smaller than such stockholder’s current
percentage ownership of Jacobs. Because of this, Jacobs stockholders will generally have less influence on the
management and policies of the combined company than they now have on the management and policies of
Jacobs. If the combined company is unable to realize the full strategic and financial benefits currently anticipated
from the Merger, Jacobs stockholders will have experienced substantial dilution of their ownership interests in
their respective companies without receiving any commensurate benefit, or only receiving part of the strategic
and financial benefits currently anticipated from the Merger.

The combined company may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger.

The success of the Merger will depend on, among other things, the combined company’s ability to realize
the anticipated benefits from combining Jacobs’ and CH2M’s businesses, including achieving cost savings and
operating synergies. The combined company’s ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger will
depend, to a large extent, on the ability of Jacobs to integrate the businesses of CII2M with Jacobs. The
combination of two independent companies is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. As a result, the
combined company will be required to devote significant management attention and resources to integrating the
business practices and operations of Jacobs and CH2M. The integration process may disrupt the business of
either or both of the companies and, if implemented ineffectively, could preclude or delay the realization of the
full benefits expected by Jacobs. The failure of the combined company to meet the challenges involved in
integrating successfully the operations of Jacobs and CH2M or otherwise to realize the anticipated benefits of the
Merger could cause an interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, the activities of the combined company and
could seriously harm its results of operations. In addition, the overall integration of the two companies may result
in material unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, competitive responses, loss of client relationships and
diversion of management’s attention, and may cause the combined company’s stock price to decline,

The difficulties of combining the operations of the companies include, among others:

«  difficulties in achieving anticipated cost savings, synergies, business opportunities and growth
prospects from the combination;

+  delays, unexpected costs or difficulties in completing the integration of CH2M or its assets;

= unanticipated issues in integrating logistics, information, communications and other systems;

+  unanticipated changes in applicable laws and regulations;

»  difficulties assimilating the operations and personnel of acquired companies into our operations;

»  unanticipated changes in the combined business due to potential divestitures or other requirements
imposed by antitrust regulators;

= diversion of the attention and resources of management or other disruptions to current operations;
*  challenges in attracting and retaining key personnel;

*  retaining key customers and suppliers;

«  challenges in obtaining new customers and winning customer contracts;

»  retaining and obtaining required regulatory approvals, licenses and permits;

. organizational conflicts of interast;

» difficulties in managing the expanded operations of a significantly larger and more complex company;
and

*  potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen increased expenses or delays associated with the Merger.
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Many of these factors will be cutside of Jacobs” and the combined company’s control and any one of them
could result in increased costs, decreases in the amount of expected revenues and diversion of management’s
time and energy, which could materially impact Jacobs” and the combined company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In addition, even if the operations of Jacobs and CH2M are integrated successfully, the combined company
may not realize the full benefits of the proposed transactions, including the synergies, cost savings or growth
opportunities that the combined company expects. These benefits may not be achieved within the anticipated
time frame, or at all. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Merger will result in the realization of the full
benefits anticipated from the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

We will be subject to business uncertainties while the Merger is pending and following the combination.

Uncertainty about the effect of the Merger on Jacobs’ employees and business relationships may have an
adverse effect on Jacobs and on the combined company following the closing of the Merger. Our continued
success depends, in part, upon our ability to retain the talents and dedication of our key employees and the ability
of the combined company to retain the talents and dedication of CH2M's key employees. Employees may decide
not to temain with the Company or CH2M, as applicable, while the Merger is pending. If key employees
terminate their employment, or if an insufficient number of employees are retained to maintain effective
operations, our business activities may be adversely affected and management’s attention may be diverted from
successfully managing our business to hiring suitable replacements, any of which factors may cause our business
to deteriorate. In addition, we or CH2M may not be able to motivate certain key employees during the pendency
of the Merger due to a perceived lack of appropriate opportunities for advancement or other reasons.

In addition, uncertainties during the pendency of the Merger may cause third parties who deal with the
Company and/or CH2M to seek to change existing business relationships with vs or CH2M. Moreover,
customers’ uncertainty about the effect of the Merger, ineluding the perception of potential conflicts of interest
with respect to projects where CH2ZM assumes, or will assume, a project role and Jacobs assumes, or will assume,
a delivery role, and vice versa, may have an adverse effect on the ability of Jacobs andfor CH2M to attract or
retain customers or to win customer contracts.

In addition, competitors may target the Company’s or CH2M’s clients by highlighting potential
uncertainties and integration difficulties that may result {from the Merger. The pursuit of the Merger and the
preparation for the integration will require management attention and use of internal resources. Any significant
diversion of management attention away from ongoing business concerns and any business difficulties resulting
from the transition and integration process could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

During the pendency of the Merger and following the Merger, our operating results and share price may be
volatile, which could cause the value of our stockholder’s investments to decline.

During the pendency of the Merger and following the Merger, our quarterly and annual operating results, as
well as our stock price, may fluctuate, and such fluctuations may be significant, Such fluctuations may occur due
to the accretion, or anticipated accretion, of the value of the Merger, the progress and success of the integration
process or the perception of such progress or success, additions or departures of key personnel, or sales of large
blocks of stock or the perception that such sales may occur.

Jacobs expects to incur substantial indebtedness to finance the Merger, which may decrease Jacobs’ business
Jexiblility and could adversely impact Jacobs’ financial condition and resulls of operations.

In addition to using cash on hand at Jacobs and CH2M, Jacobs intends to finance the cash component of the
consideration payable to the CH2ZM stockholders in the Merger, the repayment of CH2M’s outstanding

Page 38



indebtedness and other transaction expenses with debt financing, which includes the Jacobs Term Loan Facility
in an aggregate principal amount of $1.5 billion and additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility.
Jacobs currently estimates that the aggregate principal amount of indebtedness to be incurred in connection with
the Merger will be approximately $1.9 billion. The financial and other covenants to which Jacobs has agreed to,
or may agree to in connection with the incurrence of new indebtedness, and the combined company’s increased
indebtedness may have the effect, among other things, of reducing the combined company’s flexibility to
respond fo changing business and economic conditions, thereby placing the combined company at a competitive
disadvantage compared to competitors that have less indebtedness and making the combined company more
vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions. The combined company’s increased
indebtedness will also increase borrowing costs, and the covenants pertaining thereto may also limit the
combined company’s ability to obtain additional financing to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions or general corporate requirements. The combined company will also be required to dedicate a larger
portion of its cash flow from operations to payments on its indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of its
cash flow for other purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. In
addition, the terms and conditions of such debt may not be favorable to the combined company and, as such,
could further increase the costs of the Merger, as well as the overall burden of such debt upon the combined
company and the combined company’s business flexibility. Further, the combined company will be expesed to
the risk of increased interest rates as a result of (i) higher leverage at or after the closing of the Merger and

(ii) unless the combined company enters into offsetting hedging transactions, interest rates that vary based on
LIBOR or a bank’s prime rate.

The combined company’s ability to make payments on and to refinance its debt obligations and to fund
planned capital expenditures will depend on its ability to generate cash from the combined company’s operations.
This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other
factors that are beyond the combined company’s control.

The combined company may not be able to refinance any of its indebtedness on commercially reasonable
terms, or at all, If the combined company cannot service its indebtedness, the combined company may have to
take actions such as selling assets, selling additional equity or reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic
acquisitions, investments or alliances, any of which could impede the implementation of the combined
company’s business strategy or prevent the combined company from entering into transactions that would
otherwise benefit its business. Additionally, the combined company may not be able to effect such actions, if
necessary, on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

Any of the foregoing consequences could adversely affect the combined company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None,

Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our properties consist primarily of office space within general, commercial office buildings located in major
cities primarily in the following countries: United States; Australia; Austria; Belgium; Canada; Chile; China;
Finland; Germany; Greece; India; [taly; Malaysia; Mexico; Morocco; The Netherlands; Oman; The Philippines;
Puerto Rico; Peru; Republic of Ireland; Saudi Arabia; South Africa; Singapore; Spain;, Sweden; United Arab
Emirates; and the United Kingdom. Such space is used for operations (providing technical, professional, and
other home office services), sales, and administration. Most of our properties are leased. In addition, we have
fabrication facilities located in Canada in Pickering, Ontario and Edmonton and Lamont, Alberta. The total
amount of space used by us for all of our operations is approximately 7.6 million square feet.
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We also lease smaller, project offices located throughout the U.S., the UK., and in certain other countries.
We also rent most of our construction equipment on a short-term basis.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by this Item 3 is included in Note 12—Contractual Guarantees, Litigation,
Investigations, and Insurance of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this
Annuval Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act™)
requires domestic mine operators to disclose violations and orders issued under the Federal Mine Safety and
Health Act of 1977 (the “Mine Act”) by the federal Mine Safety and Health Administration. Under the Mine Act,
an independent contractor, such as Jacobs, that performs services or construction of a mine is included within the
definition of a mining operator, We do not act as the owner of any mines.

Information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the
Dodd-Frank Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K is included in Exhibit 93,
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Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Jacobs’ common stock is listed on the NYSE and trades under the symbol JEC. We provided to the NYSE,
without qualification, the required annual certification of our Chief Executive Officer regarding compliance with
the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards. The following table sets forth the low and high sales prices
of a share of our common stock during each of the fiscal quarters presented, based on the NYSE Composite Price
History:

Low Sales  High Sales

Price Price

Fiscal 2017:

First quarter ... ... e i i et $49.16 $63.42

Second QUATTEE . .. ..ot e e 52.39 62.20

Third quarter ... .. e e e 50.53 5597

Fourthquarter ... ..o i i i e e cinn s 49.31 58.51
Fiscal 2016:

First quarter ... ..ot e i i $37.51 $45.41

Second qUarter . .. ... e e e 34.76 44.77

Third quarter ....... ot i et e 40.93 53.33

Fourth quarter . ..., ... . it erriaeanr e 48.13 55.89

Shareholders

According to the records of our transfer agent, there were 989 shareholders of record as of November 10,
2017.

Share Repurchases

On July 23, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a program to repurchase up to $300 million of the
Company’s common stock over the next three years. Share repurchases may be executed through various means
including, without limitation, open market transactions. The share repurchase program, which expires on July 22,
2018, does not oblige the Company to purchase any shares, The authorization for the share repurchase program
may be terminated, increased, or decreased by the Company's Board of Directors in its discretion at any time,
The timing of our share repurchases may depend upon market conditions, other uses of capital, and other factors,

There were no repurchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017,

Dividends

Our current poliey is to use cash flows from operations to fund future growth, pay down debt, and, subject
to market conditions, repurchase common stock under a stock buy-back program approved by our Board of
Directors. On December 1, 2016, the Company announced that the Board of Directors has approved the initiation
of a cash dividend program. Quarterly dividends of $0.15 per share were paid in each of the second, third and
fourth quarters of fiscal 2017. On September 27, 2017, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend
of $0.15 per share, which was paid on November 10, 2017, Future dividend payments are subject to review and
approval by the Company’s Board of Directors,

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities.

None,
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Performance Graph

The following graph and table shows the changes over the five-year period ended September 29, 2017 in the
value of $100 as of the close of market on September 30, 2012 in (1) the common stock of Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc., (2) the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, and (3) the Dow Jones Heavy Construction Group Index.
The values of each investment are based on share price appreciation, with reinvestment of all dividends, provided
any were paid, The investments are assumed to have occurred at the beginning of the peried presented. The stock
performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., the S&P 500 Index
and the Dow Jones US Heavy Construction Index

$250 -

$200 4

$150 -

$100

$50
$0 L 1 i 1
92 913 914 915 916 917
—B— Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. —-A—S&P 500 ---O--- Dow Jones US Heavy Construction

*$100 invested on 9/30/12 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending September 30.

Copyright© 2017 S&P, a division of McGraw Hill Financial, All rights reserved,
Copyright© 2017 Dow Jones & Co. All rights reserved.

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Jacobs Engineering GroupInc, ................... 100.00 14399 120,75 92,58 127.92 145.32
S&PS500 ... e 100.00 11934 142.89 142.02 163.93 1%4.44
Dow Jones US Heavy Construction . ............... 100.00 12597 12024 §9.30 101.31 109.49

Note: The above information was provided by Research Data Group, Inc,
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected financial data for each of the last five fiscal years. This selected
financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes
beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Dollar amounts are presented in thousands, except

for per share information:

2017 (a) 2016 (b) 2015 (c) 2014 (d) 2013
Results of Operations:
Revenues .........ccvvivivnnnn. $10,022,788 $10,964,157 $12,114,832 $12,695,157 $11,818,376
Net earnings attributable to
Jacobs ... 293,727 210,463 302,971 328,108 423,093
Financial Positicn:
Currentratio ............cvvvn., 1.56to 1 1.61to1 1.58t01 1.58to 1 2.07tol
Working capital ................. 1,069,953 1,081,784 1,141,512 1,372,332 2,020,853
Currentassets ............c..c.... 2,996,180 2,864,470 3,122,678 3,722,178 3,908,473
Totalassets .o veeii et 7,380,859 7,360,022 7,185,926 8,453,659 7,274,144
Cash ... e 774,151 655,716 460,859 732,647 1,256,405
Long-termdebt ......,......., .. 235,000 385,330 584,434 764,075 415,086
Total Jacobs stockholders’ equity . . . 4,428,352 4,265,276 4,291,745 4,469,255 4,213,097
Return on average equity . ... ....., 6.76% 4.92% 6.92% 7.56% 10.66%
Backlog:
Technical professional services . . ... 12,593,615 12,013,121 11,692,404 12,607,029 11,118,400
Hieldservices . ... unn 7,194,998 6,747,408 7,114,166 5,773,005 6,099,500
Total ...t e 19,788,613 18,760,529 18,806,570 18,380,034 17,217,900
Per Share Information:
Basic earnings per share .......... 243 1.75 242 2.51 3.27
Diluted earnings per share ......... 242 1.73 2.40 2.48 3.23
Stockholders’ equity ............. 36.78 3526 34.85 33.92 32.00
Average Number of Shares of Common
Stock and Common Stock Equivalents
Outstanding (Diluted) .............. 121,466 121,483 126,110 132,371 130,945
Common Shares Outstanding At Year
End ... i 120,386 120,951 123,153 131,753 131,639
Cash Dividends Peclared Per Common
Share ... v $ 0.60 — — — —

(a) Includes costs of $87.9 million, or $0.73 per diluted share, related to the Company’s restructuring and other
initiatives in the first, second, third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2017. Also included in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2017 are after-tax charges of $10.6 million, or $0.09 per diluted share, respectively, in professional
fees and related costs associated with the pending CH2M acquisition, For a description of these
restructuring and other initiatives, see “Restructuring and Other Charges” in Itern 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(b) Includes costs of $135.6 million, or $1.12 per diluted share, related to the Company’s restructuring
initiatives in the first, second, third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2016. Also included in the fourth quartter of
fiscal 2016 are (i} a loss on sale of our French subsidiary of $17.1 million or $0.14 per diluted share; and
(ii) a non-cash write-off on an equity investment of $10.4 million or $0.09 per diluted share. For a
description of these restructuring and other initiatives, see “Restructuring and Other Charges™ in Ttem 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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(c) Includes costs of $107.9 million, or $0.86 per diluted share, related to the Company’s restructuring
initiatives in the second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2015. For a description of these restructuring and
other initiatives, see “Restructuring and Other Charges” in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(d) Includes costs of $109.2 million, or $0.82 per diluted share, related to the Company’s restructurmg
initiatives in the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2014.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In order to understand better the changes that occur to key elements of our financial condition, results of
operations, and cash flows, a reader of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditicn and
Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be aware of the critical accounting policies we apply in preparing our
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements contained in this report were prepared in accordance with U.S,
GAAP. The preparation of our consclidated financial statements and the financial statements of any business
performing long-term engineering and construction-type contracts requires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect both the entity’s results of operations and the carrying values of its assets and
liabilities. Although our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2—Significant Accounting Policies
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the
following discussion is intended to highlight and describe those accounting policies that are especially critical to
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements,

Revenue Accounting for Contracts and Use of Joint Ventures—We recognize revenue earned on our
technical professional and field services projects under the percentage-of-completion method described in ASC
6035-335, Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts. In general, we recognize revenues at the time we
provide services. Pre-contract costs are generally expensed as incurred. Contracts are generally segmented
between types of services, such as project services and construction, and accordingly, gross margin related to
each activity is recognized as those separate services are rendered. For multiple contracts with a single customer
we account for each contract separately.

The percentage-of-completion method of accounting is applied by comparing contract costs incurred to date
to the total estimated costs at completion. On cost-reimbursable contracts, the cost of materials and subcontracts
are generally excluded from the calculation of the measure of progress towards completion to provide a more
meaningful atlocation of income. Contract losses are provided for in their entirety in the period they become
known, without regard to the percentage-of-completion.

Unapproved change orders are included in the contract price to the extent it is probable that such change
orders will result in additional contract revenue and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably
estimated. Claims meeting these recogmtlon criteria are included in revenues only to the extent of the related
costs incurred.

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts include incentive-fee arrangements. These incentive fees can be based
on a variety of factors but the most common are the achievement of target completion dates, target costs, and/or
other performance criteria. Failure to meet these targets can result in unrealized incentive fees, We recognize
incentive fees based on expected results using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. As the
contract progresses and more information becomes available, the estimate of the anticipated incentive fee that
will be earned is revised as necessary. We bill incentive fees based on the terms and conditions of the individual
contracts. In certain situations, we are allowed to bill a portion of the incentive fees over the performance period
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of the contract. In other situations, we are allowed to bill incentive fees only after the target criterion has been
achieved. Incentive fees which have been recognized but not billed are included in receivables in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts with government customers as well as certain commercial clients
provide that contract costs are subject to audit and adjustment. In this situation, revenues are recorded at the time
services are performed based upon the amounts we expect to realize upon completion of the contracts. Revenues
are not recognized for non-recoverable costs. In those situations where an audit indicates that we may have billed
a client for costs not allowable under the terms of the contract, we estimate the amount of such nonbillable costs
and adjust our revenues accordingly,

When we are directly responsible for subcontractor labor or third-party materials and equipment, we reflect
the costs of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer to such costs as “pass-through” costs). On those
projects where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we have no associated responsibility for such
items, these amounts are not reflected in either revenues or costs.

As is common to the industry, we execute certain contracts jointly with third parties through various forms
of joint ventures and consortiums. Although the joint ventures own and hold the contracts with the clients, the
services required by the contracts are typically performed by us and our joint venture partners, or by other
subcontractors under subcontracting agreements with the joint ventures. The assets of our joint ventures,
therefore, consist almost entirely of cash and receivables (representing amounts due from clients), and the
liabilities of our joint ventures consist almost entirely of amounts due to the joint venture partners (for services
provided by the partners to the joint ventures under their individual subcontracts) and other subcontractors. In
general, at any given time, the equity of our joint ventures represents the undistributed profits earned on contracts
the joint ventures hold with clients. Very few of our joint ventures have employees. None of our joint ventures
have third-party debt or credit facilities. Under U.S, GAAP, our share of profits and losses associated with the
contracts held by the joint ventures is reflected in our Consolidated Financia!l Statements.

Certain of our joint ventures meet the definition of a VIE. In evaluating our VIEs for possibie conselidation,
we perform a qualitative analysis to determine whether or not we have a “controlling financial interest™ in the
VIE as defined by U.S. GAAP. We consolidate only those VIEs over which we have a controlling financial
interest and are the primary beneficiary.

For the Compary’s unconsolidated joint ventures, we use either the equity method of accounting or
proportional consolidation.

There were no changes in facts and circumstances duoring the period that caused the Company to reassess the
method of accounting for its VIEs.

Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and Others—We measure the cost of employee services received
in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the estimated grant-date fair value of the award, We
estimate the fair value of stock options granted to employees and directors using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Like all option-pricing models, the Black-Scholes model requires the use of subjective
assumptions including (i) the expected volatility of the market price of the underlying stock, and (ii) the expected
term of the award, among others. Accordingly, changes in assumplions and any subsequent adjustments to those
assumptions can cause different fair values to be assigned to our stock option awards. For restricted stock units
containing service and performance conditions with measures external to the Company, compensation expense is
based on the fair value of such units determined using Monte Carlo Simulations.

Accounting for Pension Plans-—The accounting for pension plans requires the use of assumptions and
estimates in order to calculate periodic pension cost and the value of the plans’ assets and liabilities. These

assumptions include discount rates, investment returns, and projected salary increases, among others. The
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actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses of the plans are provided in Note 7—Pension and
other Postretirement Benefit Plans of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The expected rates of return on plan assets for fiscal 2018 range from 3.5% to 8.5% which is the same for
the fiscal 2017. We believe the range of rates selected for fiscal 2018 reflects the long-term returns expected on
the plans’ assets, considering recent market conditions, projected rates of inflation, the diversification of the
plans’ assets, and the expected real rates of market returns. The discount rates used to compute plan liabilities
were changed from a range of 0.7% to 7.0% in fiscal 2016 to a range of 1.3% to 7.0% in fiscal 2017, These
assumptions represent the Company’s best estimate of the rates at which its pension obligations could be
effectively settled.

Changes in the actuarial assumptions often have a material effect on the values assigned to plan assets and
liabilities, and the associated pension expense. For example, if the discount rate used to value the net pension
benefit obligation (“PBO”) at September 30, 2017, was higher (lower) by 0.5%, the PBO would have been lower
(higher) at that date by approximately $119.7 million for non-U.S, plans, and by approximately $7.3 million for
U.S. plans. If the expected return on plan assets was higher (lower) by 1,0%, the net periodic pension cost for
fiscal 2017 would be lower (higher) by approximately $10.7 million for non-U.S. plans, and by approximately
$1.3 million for U.S. plans. Differences between actuarial assumptions and actual performance (i.e., actuarial
gains and losses) that are not recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost in the period in which such
differences arise are recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and are recognized as part of
net periodic pension cost in future periods in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Management monitors trends in the
marketplace within which our pension plans operate in an effort to assure the fairness of the actuarial
assumptions used.

Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations, and Insurance—In the normal course of business, we
are subject to certain contractual guarantees and litigation. The guarantees to which we are a party generally
relate to project schedules and plant performance. Most of the litigation in which we are involved has us as a
defendant in workers’ compensation; personal injury; environmental; employment/labor; professional liability;
and other similar lawsuits. We maintain insurance coverage for various aspects of our business and operations,
We have elected, however, to retain a portion of losses that occur through the use of varicus deductibles, limits,
and retentions under our insurance programs. In addition, our insurance policies may contain exclusions for
certain matters, and insurance companies may seek to deny coverage for claims against us. This situation may
subject us to some future liability for which we are only partially insured, or completely uninsured, and we intend
to mitigate any such future liability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms
and conditions of our contracts,

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we record in our Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our
estimated liability relating to such guarantees, litigation, and insurance claims. We include any adjustments to
such liabilities in our consolidated results of operations.

In addition, as a contracter providing services to the 1.5. federal government and several of its agencies, we
are subject to many levels of audits, investigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the U.S. federal government
with respect to confract performance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement practices. We adjust
revenues based upon the amounts we expect to realize considering the effects of any client audits or
governmental investigations.

Testing Goodwill for Possible Impairment—The goodwill carried on our Consolidated Balance Sheets is
tested annually for possible impairment. In performing the annual impairment test, we evaluate our goodwill at
the reporting unit level. The Company performs the annual goodwill impairment test for the reporting units at the
end of the third quarter of our fiscal year. The Company will test goodwill for impairment between annual tests if
an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit
below its carrying amount,
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During the second quarter of fiscal 2016, we reorganized our operations around four global lines of
business, which also serve as our operating segments: Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastructure,
Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. We determined that this new organization would better support the
needs of managing each unique set of customers that fall within each segment. As a result of the new
organization, we subsequently realigned our internal reporting structures to enable our Chief Executive Officer,
who is also our Chief Operating Decision Maker, to evaluate the performance of each of these segments and
make appropriate resource allocations among each of the segments. For purposes of our goodwill impairment
testing, we have determined that our operating segments are also our reporting units based on management’s
conclusion that the components comprising each of our operating segments share similar economic
characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria in accordance with ASC 350.

U.S. GAAP does not prescribe a specific valuation method for estimating the fair value of reporting units.
Any valuation technique used to estimate the fair value of a reporting unit requires the use of significant
estimates and assumptions, including revenue growth rates, operating margins, discount rates and future market
conditions, among others.

We used both an income approach and a market approach to test our goodwill for possible impairment. Such
apptoaches require us to make estimates and judgments. Under the income approach, fair value is determined by
using the discounted cash flows of our reporting units. The Company’s discount rate reflects & weighted average
cost of capital (“WACC”) for a peer group of companies representative of the Company’s respective reporting
units. Under the market approach, the fair value of our reporting units is determined by reference to guideline
companies that are reasonably comparable to our reporting units; the fair values are estimated based on the
valuation multiples of the invested capital associated with the guideline companies. In assessing whether there is
an indication that the carrying value of goodwill has been impaired, we utilize the results of both valuation
techniques and consider the range of fair values indicated. The fair values for each reporting unit exceeded the
respective book values ranging from 27% to 110%.

It is possible that changes in market conditions, economy, facts and circumstances, judgments, and
assumptions used in estimating the fair value could change, resulting in possible impairment of goodwill in the
future. The fair values resulting from the valuation techniques used are not necessarily representative of the
values we might obtain in a sale of the reporting units to willing third parties.

In performing the Company’s annual impairment test as of the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2017 the
Company performed a qualitative assessment, and determined that it was more likely than not that the fair value
of its reporting units exceeded their carrying amounts. As a result, the Company is not required to proceed to a
quantitative impairment assessment.

We have determined that the fair value of our reporting units substantially exceeded their respective
carrying values for the Consclidated Balance Sheets presented.

Restructuring and Other Charges

During the second fiscal quarter of 2015, the Company began implementing a series of initiatives intended
to improve operational efficiency, reduce costs, and better position itself to drive growth of the business in the
future. We refer to these initiatives, in the aggregate, as the “2015 Restructuring”, These activities evolved and
developed over time as management identified and evaluated opportunities for changes in the Company’s
operations {and related areas of potential cost savings), as economic conditions changed and as the realignment
of the Company’s operations into its four global lines of business was implemented. Actions related to the 2015
Restructuring include involuntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, combining operational
organizations, and the co-location of employees into other existing offices. We did not exit any service types or
client end-markets in connection with the 2015 Restructuring.
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The majority of the costs associated with the 2015 Restructuring are included in SG&A expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. The following table summarizes the impact of the 2015 Restructuring for
the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, Sepiember 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Lease Abandoniments . ...ttt i $55,647 $ 92643 § 90,569

Involuntary Terminations ............oviiiiiirir i enrnnrnnsn 30,716 85,599 55,313

OULSide SerVICES oo i i it e e e e 4,236 7,398 12,734
Other restructuring related, net ... i i 8,089 2,267 (1,424)

Total .. e e $98,688 $187,907  $157,192

The 2015 Restructuring was completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017, with the results of this program
generally being in line with management’s expectations. The Company expects annual savings from the 2015
Restructuring to be approximately $285 million per year.

During the second fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company entered into strategic business restructuring
activities associated with realignment of its Europe, U.K. and Middle East regional operations in our Buildings &
Infrastructure segment. Pre-tax net charges of $22.6 million were recorded associated mainly with net realizable
value write-offs on contract accounts receivable of $16.5 million, with additional charges recorded for statutory
redundancy and severance costs of $1.4 million and other liabilities of $4.7 million which are both expected to be
paid or settled within fiscal 2018, Additional charges of $1.2 million were recorded under this business exit
during third quarter fiscal 2017 associated mainly with contract accounts receivable charges. Further,
management has determined that these business restructuring activities do not qualify for discontinued operations
treatment in accordance with U.S. GAAP as the associated businesses were not material.

During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company implemented certain restructuring activities
(primarily severance related activities) associated with the Company’s announced definitive agreement to acquire
CH2M as well as final charges recognized in connection with the completion of the 2015 Restructuring.
Approximately $13.6 million, or $0.11 per diluted shate of after tax charges were recorded in association with
these activities,

Collectively, the 2015 Restructuring and the above mentioned restructuring activities are referred to as
“Restructuring and other charges.”

Also, our fourth quarter of fiscal 2017 included after-tax charges of $10.6 million, or $0.09 per diluted share
in professional fees and related costs associated with the pending CH2M aequisition.
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The following table summarizes the effects of Restructuring and other charges and CH2M and professional
fees and integration costs in the Company’s consolidated results of operations for the years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015, respectively (in thousands, except for earnings per share):

Year Ended
September 29, 2017

Effects of
CH2M
Effects of professional
Restructuring fees and
and Other integration

U.S. GAAP Charges cosis Adjusted
REVENUE . ...\t i it e s et $10,022,788 $ 17,526 $ — $10,040,314
Directcostof contracts .......................... (8,250,536) 4,913 — (8,245,623)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ......,.. (1,379.983) 111,767 17,100 (1,251,116)
Total otherincome, N8t ........ovtiie e, 948 1,233 — 2,181
EBarnings beforetaxes . ............. ...y, 393,217 135,439 17,100 545,756
Incometaxexpense .........coviiiiiiii. ., (105,842) (42,663) (6,498) (155,003)
Netearningsof thegroup ............ ... ... ..., 287,375 92,776 10,602 390,753
Net earnings attributable to non-controlling interests . . . 6,352 (4,913) — 1,439
Net earnings attributable to Jacobs ...............,, $ 203,727 § 87,863 $10,602 $§ 392,192
Diluted earnings pershare .. .........covviiinnnn, $ 242 $ 073 $ 009 § 3.24
Year Ended
September 30, 2016
Effects of 2015
U.S. GAAP Restructuring Adjusted
REVBIUE . .ottt et i e e e e $10,964,157 % — $10,964,157
Direct cost of CONracts . ..., .. i iin i nenss (9,196,326) v (9,196,326)
Selling, general and administrative expenses .........covvveen.. (1,429,233) 187,630 (1,241,603)
Total other (expense) income, net . .............coeeinvin..., (51,875) 41,687 (10,188)
Earnings before taxes ... iini i, 286,723 226,317 516,040
Income tax @XPense . .. .. i i e e (72,208) (66,225) (138,433)
Netearningsof the group ... ... ... ..., 214,515 163,092 377,607
Net earnings attributable to non-controlling interests . ............ (4,052) e (4,052}
Net earnings attributabletoJacobs ........ ... i, $ 210463  $163,092 $ 373,555
Diluted earnings pershare .. ..o o . $ 173§ 135 § 3.08
Year Ended
October 2, 2615
Effects of 2015
U.S. GAAP Restructuring Adjusted
Revenue ... . i e e e e $12,114832 $ — $12,114,832
Direct cost of CONtracts ., . ..t it et ittt ie e nens (10,146,494) — (10,146,494
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. ................ (1,522,811) 154,283 {1,368,528)
Total other {expense) income, net ..........ccvvviuinenn..., (15,390) 2,909 (12,481)
Eamingsbeforetaxes .......... .. 0 it i i 430,137 157,192 587,329
InCOme taXx 8XPENSE ...\ttt ittt e e (101,255) {49,278} {150,533)
Netearningsof thegroup ......... .. o i i 328,882 107,914 436,796
Net earnings attributable to non-controlling interesis ........... (25,911) - (25,911)
Net earnings attributable to Jacobs .. ...............coon.t... $ 302971 $107914  § 410,885
Diluted earnings pershare .. .......... . o ivrnnns. b 240 $ 086 % 3.26




JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016, and October 2, 2015
(In thousands, except per share information)

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017

2016 2015

Revermues ... i it e 510,022,788 $10,964,157 $ 12,114,832
Costs and Expenses:

Direct costs of contracts .. ... v i i ns (8.250,536) (9,196,326) (10,146,494)

Selling, general and administrative expenses .............. (1,379,983) (1,429233) (1,522,811)
Operating Profit ......... .o i e 392,269 338,598 445,527
Other Income (Expense):

L) YT oo 1= Y 8,748 7.848 7,262

Interestexpense ................ e e (12,035) (15,260) (19,503)

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of business and investments ., ,..... © 10,880 (41,410) (2,909)

Miscellaneous expense, et . ........ovvirniiniaan., {6,643) (3,053) (240)

Total other income (expense), net ..........c.vvvnn.. 9438 (51,875) (15,390)

Earnings Before Taxes . .........cov it 393,217 286,723 430,137
Income Tax Expense ... v iniiiiiiriinnnnes (105,842) (72,208) (101,255)
Net Earnings of the Group ........... ... .o i, 287,375 214,515 328,882
Net Earnings (Loss) Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests ... ... 6,352 (4,052) (25911)
Net Earnings Attributable toJacobs ......................... $ 293,727 § 210463 $ 302,971
Net Earnings Per Share:

BaSIC . ot e $ 243 % 175§ 2.42

Diluted ... o e e s 3 242 % 1.73 § 240
2017 Overview

The Company’s net earnings for fiscal 2017 were $293.7 million, an increase of $83.3 million, or 39.6%,
when compared to fiscal 2016. The Company’s results for the current year when compared to the prior year were
favorably impacted by improving gross margins based on benefits from our improvements in project execution
and favorable mix. Our results were also favorably affected by lower SG&A of $49.2 million year over year, due
largely to lower costs from our 2015 Restructuring initiatives which concluded at the end of fiscal 2017, with
resulting ongoing savings from these initiatives helping offset higher personnel related costs and professional
services. Our fiscal 2017 results were also favorably impacted in comparision to 2016 by an $11 million pre tax
gain on the sale of our Neste Jacobs JV combined with the non-recurrence of 2016 charges associated with the
loss on sale of our French subsidiary of $24.4 million and the noncash write-off on an equity investment of
$17 million. Income taxes for fiscal 2017 were higher by $33.6 million due mainly to higher pre-tax income.

On August 1, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”)
with CH2M HILI. Companies, Ltd. (“CH2M™), and Basketball Merger Sub Inc., a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger
Agreement, (1) Merger Sub will merge with and into CH2M, with CH2M continuing as the surviving corporation
and becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company {the “Merger”) and (ii) each ontstanding share of
cominon stock of CH2M will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of the holder thereof in
accordance with, and subject to, the terms, conditions and procedures set forth in the Merger Agreement, in each
case without interest the following consideration: (a) the combination of (x) $52.85 in cash and (y) 0.6677 shares
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of common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the Company; (b) $88.08 in cash; or {¢) 1.6693 shares of the
Company’s common stock. The Merger is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including
regulatory approvals and approval by CH2M stockholders, and is expected to close by the end of fiscal first
quarter 2018,

On January 27, 2017, we acquired Aquentz Consulting Pty Ltd. (“Aquenta”™) headquartered in Sydney,
Australia, an integrated project service solutions company. Also, on August 31, 2017, we acquired Blue Canopy,
LLC headquartered in Reston, Virginia. Blue Canopy provides data analytics, cybersecurity and application
development.

Backlog at September 29, 2017 was $19.8 billion, up $1.0 billion over 2016 and a record level for the
Company. New prospects and new sales remain strong and the Company continues to have a positive outlook for
many of the industry groups and markets in which our clients operate.

On December 1, 2016, the Company announced the approval of a cash dividend program. Quartetly
dividends of $0.15 per share were paid in each of the second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2017. On
September 27, 2017, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15 per share, which was
paid on November 10, 2017. Also, the Company repurchased and retired 2.0 million shares of its common stock
under its share repurchase program for $97.2 million.

Results of Operations
Fiseal 2017 Compared to Fiscal 2016

Total revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017, were $10.02 billion, a decrease of $941.4 million, or
8.6%, from $10.96 billion for the corresponding period last year, The decrease in revenues was due primarily to
lower volumes in the Petroleum & Chemicals, Aerospace & Technology and Industrial LOBs, partially offset by
an increase in volume in the Buildings & Infrastructure LOB, These lower volumes were driven mainly by lower
field services volume, primarily with Petrolenm & Chemicals customers and the timing of project completions
VEIsus new project timing.

Direct costs of contracts for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $8.25 billion, a decrease of
$945.8 million, or 10.3%, from $9.20 billion for the corresponding period last year, Direct costs of contracts
include all costs incurred in connection with and directly for the benefit of client contracts, including
depreciation and amortization relating to assets used in providing the services required by the related projects.
The level of direct costs of contracts may fluctuate between reporting periods due to a variety of factors,
including the amount of pass-through costs we incur during a period. On those projects where we are responsible
for subcontract labor or third-party materials and equipment, we reflect the amounts of such items in both
revenues and costs (and we refer to such costs as “pass-through costs™). On other projects where the client elects
to pay for such items directly and we have no associated responsibility for such items, these amounts are not
considered pass-through costs and are, therefore, not reflected in either revenues or costs. To the extent that we
incur a significant amount of passthrough costs in a period, our direct costs of contracts are likely to increase as
well.

Pass-through costs included in revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $2.54 billion in
comparison to $2.49 billion in line with amounts in the corresponding period last year. In general, pass-through
costs are more significant on projects that have a higher content of field services activities. Pass-through costs are
generally incurred at specific points during the life cycle of a project and are highly dependent on the needs of
our individual clients and the nature of the clients’ projects. However, because we have hundreds of projects
which start at various times within a fiscal year, the effect of pass-through costs on the level of direct costs of
contracts can vary between fiscal years without there being a fundamental or significant change to the underlying
business.
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As a percentage of revenues, direct costs of contracts for the year ended September 29, 2017 was 82.3%,
This compares to 83.9% for the year ended September 30, 2016. The relationship between direct costs of
contracts and revenues will fluctuate between reporting periods depending on a variety of factors including the
mix of business during the reporting periods being compared as well as the level of margins earned from the
various types of services provided. Generally, the more procurement we do on behalf of our clients (e.g., where
we purchase equipment and materials for use on projects and/or procure subcontracts in connection with
projects) and the more field services revenues we have relative io technical, professional services revenues, the
higher the ratio will be of direct costs of contracts to revenues. Because revenues from pass-through cost
arrangements typically have lower margin rates associated with them, it is not unusual for us to experience an
increase or decrease in such revenues without experiencing a proportionate increase or decrease in our gross
margins and operating profit. The reduction in cost relative to revenue is driven by both 1) our strategic focus on
realigning our portfolio to higher profit businesses and 2) a reduction in field services revenue, which tends to
have a lower margin, as a percent of total revenue resulting in higher margin overall.

Selling, general & administrative expenses for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $1,380.0 million, a
decrease of $49.2 million, or 3.4%, from $1,429.2 million for the corresponding period last year, The decrease in
SG&A expenses for the comparative annual periods was due mainly to lower Restructuring and other charges of
$75.9 million and related savings from the 2015 Restructuring, These decreases were offset in part by higher year
over year spending mainly in personnel related costs and professional service fees, including an additional
$17 million associated with CH2M professional service fees and integration costs.

Net interest expense for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $3.3 million, a decrease of $4.1 million
from $7.4 million for the corresponding period last year. The decrease in interest expense for the year ended
September 29, 2017 as compared to the corresponding period last year was due primarily to the reversal of
$2.5 million of accrued interest expense related to the statute expiration of a foreign tax reserve as well as higher
levels of interest income.

Miscellancous expense, net for the year ended September 29, 2017 was ($6.6) million, as compared to
($3.1) million for the corresponding period last year. This change was due primarily to a reversal in fiscal 2016
of $5.1 million of accrued penalties related to the statute expiration of a foreign tax reserve, which did not recur
in fiscal 2017, offset in part by other miscellaneous charges.

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of business and investments was $10.9 million and $(41.4) million for the years
ended September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively. The reported amounts for fiscal 2017 were
associated mainly with the Company’s divestiture of its equity investment in Neste Jacobs Oy, a joint venture
between the Company and Neste Corporation. The $(41.4) million loss on disposal in fiscal 2016 was mainly
attributable to the Company’s loss on the sale of our French subsidiary of $24.4 million, and a non-cash write-off
on an equity investment of $17.0 million,
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The Company’s consclidated effective income tax rate is generally lower than the U.S. statutory rate of 35%
primarily due to the impacts of favorable tax rate differences in our foreign operations. The following table
reconciles total income tax expense using the statutory U.8. federal income tax rate to the consolidated income
tax expense shown in the accompanying Consoclidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29,
2017 and September 30, 2016 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30,
2017 Yo 2016 %

SEAtUtory @mMOUNE ..o v vttty e e $137,626  350%  $100,353  35.0%
State taxes, net of the federalbenefit ............ ... . ...... 8,955 2.3% 7,853 2.7%
Exclusion of tax on non-controlling inferests ................ 2,223 0.6% (1,418 (0.5%)
Foreign:

Difference in tax rates of foreign operations ............. (16,987) (4.3%) (17,184)  (6.0%)

Benefit from foreign valuation allowance release ......... (3,085 (0.8%) (11,182) (3.9%)

U.K. tax rate change on deferred tax assets .............. —_ 0.0% 8,853 3.1%

Nontaxable income from foreign affiliate ............... (3.280) (0.8%) — 0.0%

U.S. tax cost of foreign operations . .................... 18,612 4. 7% 30,850 10.9%
Tax differential on foreign earnings ... ..................... 4,740)  (1.2%) 11,337 4.1%
Forejgntaxcredits .......... .. .. oo, (20,454) (5.2%) (44,018) (15.4%)
Uncertain tax positions . ... ..o et i i 5,779 (1.5%) 1,449 0.5%
Other items:

IRS §179D deduction . ..o iie it ei s (3.351) (0.8%) (2,153) (0.8%)

IRS §199D deduction . ... ot ii i e 2,113) (0.5%) (2,8000  (1.0%)

Foreign partnership loss . ... oo oo, (9,861) (2.5%) (2,658)  (0.9%)

Otheritems—net .......vt it it 3,336 0.7% 4,263 1.5%
Totalotheritems ......... .00 iiiiir i, {11,989) (3.1%) (3,348) (1.2%)
Taxes OnInCOME .. .v' ittt i e et e e $105,842 269% $ 72,208 25.2%

The Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate for the year ended September 29, 2017 increased to
26.9% from 25.2% for fiscal 2016. Key drivers for this year over year increase include the impacts of lower
foreign tax credit benefits and lower benefits from valuation allowance releases on foreign deferred tax assets,
partly offset by favorable impacts of U.S. tax cost of foreign operations, the non-recurrence of 2016 tax rate
change impacts on deferred income tax assets in the UK and favorable impacts from change in uncertain tax
positions.

Fiseal 2016 Compared to Fiscal 2015

Total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2016, were $10.96 billion, a decrease of $1.15 billion, or
9.5%, from $12.11 billion for the corresponding period last year. The decrease in revenues was due primarily to
lower volumes in the Petroleum & Chemicals, Aerospace & Technology and Buildings & Infrastructure LOBs,
partially offset by an increase in the Industrial LOB,

Direct costs of contracts decreased $1.0 billion, or 9.4%, from $10.1 billion during fiscal 2015 to
$9.2 billion during fiscal 2016. Direct costs of contracts include all costs incurred in connection with and directly
for the benefit of client contracts, including depreciation and amortization relating to assets used in connection
with providing the services required by client projects, The level of direct costs of contracts may fluctuate
between reporting pericds due to a variety of factors including the amount of pass-through costs we incur during
a period. On those projects where we are responsible for subcontract labor or third party materials and
equipment, we reflect the ameunts of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer to such costs as “pass-
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through costs”). On other projects, where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we have no
associated responsibility for such items, these amounts are not considered pass-through costs and are, therefore,
not reflected in either revenues or costs. To the extent that we incur a significant amount of pass-through costs in
a period, our direct cost of contracts are likely to increase as well. The decrease in direct costs of contracts
between fiscal years 2015 and 2016 is primarily a result of the general decline in cur business.

Pass-through costs decreased $112.7 million, or 4.3%, from $2.6 billion during fiscal 2015 to $2.5 billion
for fiscal 2016. In general, pass-through costs are more significant on projects that have a higher content of field
services activities, Pass-through costs are generally incurred at a specific point in the lifecycle of a project and
are highly dependent on the needs of our individual clients and the nature of the clients” projects. However,
because we have hundreds of projects, which start at various times within a fiscal year, the effect of pass-through
costs on the level of direct costs of contracts, can vary between fiscal years without there being a fundamental or
significant change to the underlying business.

As a percentage of revenues, direct costs of contracts were 83.9% for fiscal 2016, compared to 83.8% for
fiscal 2015. The relationship between direct costs of contracts and revenues will fluctuate between reporting
periods depending on a variety of factors including the mix of business during the reporting periods being
compared as well as the level of margins earned from the various types of services provided. Generally speaking,
the more procurement we do on behalf of our clients (i.e., where we purchase equipment and materials for nse on
projects, and/or procure subcontracts in connection with projects) and the more field services revenues we have
relative to technical, professional services revenues, the higher the ratio will be of direct costs of contracts to
revenues. Because revenues from pass-through costs typically have lower margin rates associated with them, it is
not unusual for us to experience an increase or decrease in such revenues without experiencing a corresponding
increase or decrease in our gross margins and operating profit. The ratio of direct costs of contracts to revenues
was flat over the pricr year period. The Company experienced a slight decrease in margins in fiscal 2016 when
compared to fiscal 2015.

SG&A expenses for fiscal 2016 decreased by $93.6 million, or 6%, to $1.43 billion, compared to
$1.52 billion for fiscal 2015. The decrease in SG&A expenses was primarily due to higher SG&A savings
associated with the 2015 Restructuring. Excluding the effects of the 2015 Restructuring in hoth fiscal 2016 and
2015, adjusted SG&A expenses for fiscal 2016 decreased $126.9 million, or 9%, to $1.24 billion from
$1.37 billion in fiscal 2015.

Net interest expense for fiscal 2016 decreased $4.8 million to $7.4 million from $12.2 million in fiscal 2015.
Included in net interest expense for fiscal 2016 was a reversal of $2.7 million of accrued interest expense related
to the expiration of the statute of limitations relating to a foreign tax reserve. Interest expense for fiscal 2016 was
also lower when compared to the same period last year due to lower debt levels.

Loss on disposal of business and investments for fiscal 2016 increased by $38.5 million to $41.4 million
from $2.9 million in fiscal 2015. The increase is due to the previously discussed fiscal 2016 loss items on the sale
of our French subsidiary of $24.4 million, and a non-cash write-off on an equity investment of $17.0 million.

Miscellaneous expense for fiscal 2016 increased $2.8 million to $3.1 million from $0.2 million in fiscal
2015. The increase over the prior year period was primarily due to realized exchange rate losses. Included in
miscellaneous expense for fiscal 2016 was a reversal of $5.1 million of accrued penalties related to the expiration
of the statute of limitations relating to a foreign tax reserve,

The Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate is generally lower than the 1.5, statutory rate of 35%

primarily due to the impacts of favorable tax rate differences in our foreign operations. The following table
reconciles total income tax expense using the statutory U.S, federal income tax rate to the consolidated income
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tax expense shown in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Barnings for the years ended September 30,
2016 and October 2, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 30, October 2,
2016 Y% 2018 %

StAtUtory amoOmnt . . ..o e e e 100,353 35.0% $150,548 35.0%
State taxes, net of the federal benefit . ............. ... .. ... ... 7,853 2. 1% 12,857 3.0%
Exclusion of tax on non-controlling interests . . ................. (1,418) (0.5%) (9,069) (2.1%)
Foreign:

Difference in tax rates of foreign operations ............... (17,184) (6.0%) (19,180) (4.5%)

Benefit from foreign valuation allowance release ........... (11,182) (3.9%) (3,372) (0.8%)

Tax deductible foreign currency loss ..................... — 0.0%  (23,100) (5.4%)

U.K. tax rate change on deferred tax assets ................ 8,853 31% — 0.0%

U.S. tax cost of foreign operations ...............coooint. 30,830 10.9% 6,814 1.6%
Tax differential on foreign earnings ........... ... coiinei.. ., 11,337 4.1%  (38,838) (9.0%)
Foreigntaxcredits ... ... iiitin i i, (44,018)  (154%) (21,313) (5.0%)
Uncertain tax positions . ... vviiiiii e iiiie i 1,449 0.5% 2,281 0.5%
Other items:

IRS §179D deduction ..o itiienre s (2,153) (0.8%) — 0.0%

IRS§199D deduction ...t ie i (2,800) (1.0%) (4,582) (1.1%)

Foreign partnership (loss)fincome ., ...............c0uut. (2,058) (0.9%) 11,858 2.8%

Otheritems—net ... ... ittt i it 4,263 1.5% 2A487) (0.6%)
Total Other RIS + ot v v et it e e i e e it i s (3,348) (1.2%) 4,789  1.1%
Taxes onincome .....o.vvei i e 72,208 252% $101,255 23.5%

The Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate for the year ended September 30, 2016 increased to
25.2% from 23.5% for fiscal 2015. The primary components of this increase in tax rate were due mainly to
unfavorable impacts from U.8. tax cost of foreign operations, the non-recurrence of tax deductible foreign
currency losses in fiscal 2015, unfavorable impacts from U.K. tax rates changes on deferred tax assets and other
unfavorable items. These unfavorable impacts on the tax rate were partly offset by favorable foreign tax credits
year over year, favorable income levels from our foreign partnerships in 2016 and comparably higher benefits
from foreign valuation allowance releases in fiscal 2016.
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Segment Financial Information

ey
(2)

The following table provides selected financial information for our operating segments and includes a
reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP operating profit by including certain corporate-
level expenses and expenses relating to Restructaring and other charges and CH2M professional fees and
integration costs (in thousands),

For the Years Ended

September 30, October 2,
2016 2015

$ 2,657433  $ 2,924,753
2,233,512 2,458,379
2,793,713 2,517,571
3,259,499 4,214,129

$10,964,157  $12,114,832

For the Years Ended

September 30, October 2,
2016 2015

$ 203,808 $ 205,368

174,648 145,299
81,268 126,531
126,604 138,351

586,328 615,549
(60,100) (15,739)
(187,630)  (154,283)

338,598 445,527
(41,410) (2,909)
(10,465) (12,481)

September 29,
2017
Revenues from External Customers:
Aerospace & Technology ................... $ 2,360,613
Buildings & Infrastructure .................. 2,452,321
Industrial . ... ... i i i 2,743,662
Petroleum & Chemicals .................... 2,466,192
Total .....coiiiiii i e $10,022,788
Septlember 29,
2017
Operating Profit;
Aerospace & Technology ............c..cvoin. $ 202,595
Buildings & Infrastructure (1) .................. 193,455
Industrial ... .. o e e e 115,262
Petrolenm & Chemicals .......... .o iiiinn. 113,858
Total Segment Operating Profit . ............ 625,170
Other Corporate Expenses ..., .vvvev i (81,595)
Restructuring and Other Charges ............... ..., (134,206)
CH2M Professional Fees and Integration Costs ........ (17,100)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit .......... 392,269
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of business and investments . ... 10,880
Total Other (Expense) income (2} ..., vvvevivnnnn. (6,932)
Earnings Before Taxes ... ......covtveveirennnnnnn. $ 393,217

$ 286,723 $ 430,137

Excludes $23,844 in Restructuring and other charges for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2017,

Years ending September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 include Restructuring and other charges of

$1,233 and $277, respectively.

In evaluating the Company’s performance by operating segment, the CODM reviews various metrics and
statistical data for each LOB but focuses primarily on revenues and operating profit, As discussed above,
segment operating profit includes not only local SG&A expenses but the SG&A expenses of the Company’s
support groups that have been allocated to the segments. In addition, the Company attributes each LOB’s specific
incentive compensation plan costs to the LOBs, The revenues of certain LOBs are more affected by pass-through
revenues than other LOBs. The methods for recognizing revenue, incentive fees, project losses, and change
orders are consistent among the I.OBs,

Aerospace & Technology

September 30, October 2,
2016

September 29,

17
) $2,360,613
Operating Profit ........... ... ... ... . .. 202,595

2015
$2,657,433  $2,924,753
203,808 203,368



Acrospace & Technology segment revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $2.36 billion,
down $296.8 million, or 11.2%, from $2.66 billion for the corresponding period last year. The decrease in
revenues was mainly in our U.S. government business sector, where rebid losses and small business award
preferences drove the declines, Unfavorable foreign currency impacts of approximately $13 million also
contributed to this year over year decline. These unfavorable items were partially offset by positive gains from
organic growth and improvement in our telecommunications sector, our NASA projects and our projects for the
Ministry of Defence in Australia,

Aerospace & Technology revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 were $2.66 billion, down
$267.3 million, or 9.1%, from $2.92 billion in fiscal 2015, The decrease was due mainly to the impact of certain
of our U.S. government customers’ shift to a small-business preference in contract awards of approximately
$281 million, offset slightly by stronger revenues in our UK. nuclear and defense markets of approximately
$14 million.

Operating profit for the Aerospace & Technology segment was $202.6 million for the year ended
September 29, 2017, down $1.2 million, or 0.6%, from $203.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2016.
This decrease in profitability was due primarily to the revenue declines in the U.S. government business sector
mentioned above, as well as lower equity income from our U.K. joint venture for the comparative periods mainly
associated with year over year declines in project funding.

Aerospace and Technology operating profit for the year ended September 30, 2016 was $203.8 million,
down $1.6 million, or 0.8%, from $203.4 million in fiscal 2015. The slight decrease in operating profit was due
mainly to the U.S. government customer shifts in fiscal 2016 described above but was mostly mitigated by
improving our performance on fixed price contracts, which increased operating profit by $14.5 million over the
comparable prior year period.

Buildings & Infrastructure

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016

2015
REVEIUE . oottt ettt e e e e e e e e $2.452.321 $2,253,512  $2,458,379
Operating Profit ........... ... ... it 193,455 174,648 145,299

Buildings & Infrastructure revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $2.435 billion, an increase
of $198.8 million, or 8.8%, versus $2.25 billicn for the comparable period in 2016, The year over year increases
in revenues was due mainly to U.S. client spending level increases in the project-management/construction-
management (“PMCM”) market. Year over year impacts on revenues from unfavorable foreign currency were
approximately $36 million.

Buildings & Infrastructure revenues for the year ended September 30, 2016 was $2.3 billion, a decrease of
$204.9 million, or 8.3%, from $2.5 billion in fiscal 20115, The decrease was primarily due to reduced U.S. and
UK, client spending in certain markets during fiscal 2016,

Operating profit for Buildings & Infrastructure for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $193.5 million,
up $18.8 million, or 10.8%, compared to $174.6 million for 2016, Excluded from the presented operating profit
amounts for the year ending September 29, 2017 were $23.8 million in Restructuring and other charges related to
strategic business restructuring activities in our U.K, Middle East and Europe businesses, Increases in
profitability for the period in 2017 over 2016 were due mainly to higher revenue from the U.S. PMCM projects,
partially offset by charges from a contract settiement of $6.0 million.

Operating profit for the year ended September 30, 2016 were $174.6 million, an increase of $29.3 million,
or 20.2%, from $145.3 million for 2015. Proactive cost control and restructuring efforts contributed to the
increase in operating profit for fiscal 2016 as compared to the corresponding period last year. As a result,
operating margin for fiscal 2016 improved to 7.8%, compared to 5.9%, in {iscat 2015.
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Industrial

September 29,  September 30, Ociober 2,
2017 2016

2015
REVENUE vt ottt ie et ieeeeansnsanes $2,743,662 $2,793,713  $2,517,571
Operating Profit ......... ... ... iiiiiiiiann. 115,262 81,268 126,531

Industrial revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $2.74 billion versus $2.79 billion for the
same period in 2016, down $50.1 million, or 1.8%. The decrease in revenues was due mainly to revenue declines
from Field Services project completions, weaker market conditions in the Mining & Minerals businesses and
unfavorable foreign currency impacts, partially offset by improvements in higher revenues associated with
increased client major capex spending in the Life Sciences business.

Industrial revenues for the year ended September 30, 2016 were $2.79 million, an increase of
$276.1 million, or 11.0%, from $2.5 billion in fiscal 2015. The increase was primarily due to new Life Sciences
projects offset by a decline in the Mining & Minerals business due to weak market conditions,

Operating profit for the year ended September 29, 2017, was $115.3 million, up $34.0 million, or 41.8%,
from $81.3 million for the corresponding period last year. The increase in profitability was due mainly to
improved project performance in the Mining & Minerals business and higher levels of professional service and
project procurement business in the Life Sciences business. Year over year profit comparisons were also
impacted by unfavorable charges in the second quarter fiscal 2016 associated with litigation settlements and a
customer bankruptcy amounting to $12.2 million.

Operating profit for the year ended September 30, 2016 was $81.3 million, a decrease of $45.3 million, or
35.8%, from $126.5 million, in fiscal 2013, The decrease was due to the decline in the Mining & Minerals
business and was caused primarily by a negotiated settlement of a project claim that occurred in the second
quarter of fiscal 2015 combined with the negative effects of a litigation settlement affecting the second quarter of
fiscal 2016 and a customer bankruptcy. These decreases were offset in part by the increases in the Life Sciences
market and benefits associated with the 2015 Restructuring. Although driven by discrete items in each of the
periods presented, the change in operating profit was negative. As a result, operating margin for fiscal 2016
declined to 2.9% from 5.0% for the corresponding period last year.

Petroleum & Chemicals

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016

2015
REVEIUS . ottt ettt et e reeenens $2,466,192 $3,259,499  $4,214,129
Operating Profit ............ . .ot 113,858 126,604 138,351

Petroleum & Chemicals revenues for the year ended September 29, 2017 were $2.45 billion, a decrease of
$793.3 million, or 24.3%, from $3.26 billion for the same period in 2016. The decrease in revenues for the year
ended September 29, 2017 as compared 1o the prior year was due primarily to the completion or wind-down of
several projects with significant pass-through revenue as well as award delays of large post front-end engineering
and design projects, as clients continue to evaluate their capital spending plans as oil prices remained low. Both
of these factors resulted in lower field service revenues compared with the prior year periods, while client
investment spending continues primarily on compliance, maintenance and sustaining capital programs.
Additionally, foreign currency impacts were unfavorable of approximately $18 million on year over year revenue
comparisons for fiscal 2017 versus fiscal 2016.

Petroleum & Chemicals revenues for the year ended September 30, 2016 were $3.26 billion, a decrease of
$954.6 million, or 22.7%, from $4.2 billion in fiscal 2015, The decrease was primarily due to lower business
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volume in the Oil & Gas market sector and to a lesser extent the Refining market sector, particularly in the
Middle East and Notth America, as weak oil prices have significantly impacted client capital spending and
delayed the pace of new contract awards.

Operating profit for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $113.9 million, a decrease of $12.7 million, or
10.1%, from $126.6 million for the corresponding period last year. The decrease in profitability as compared to
the prior year period was due mainly to revenue declines from lower business volumes mentioned above, offset
in part by SG&A savings from restructuring efforts and a one-time $9.9 million benefit associated with benefit
plan changes in our India operations.

Operating profit for the year ended September 30, 2016 was $126.6 million, down $11.7 miilion, or 8.5%,
from $138.4 million in fiscal 2013. The decrease in operating profit primarily was due to lower volume in the Oil
and Gas and Refining market sectors offset in part by significant savings from restructuring efforts and LOB
structure efficiencies. A continued strong focus on cost reductions has partially mitigated the volume reduction
impact on operating profit. As a result, operating margin for the year ended September 30, 2016 increased to
3.9% from 3.3% in fiscal 20135.

Other Corporate Expenses

Other corporate expenses were $81.6 million, $60.1 million and $15.8 million for the years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015. The increases across the respective years were
due mainly to higher spending in personnel related costs and outside services, offset by savings from the 2015
Restructuring program.

Included in other corporate expenses in the above table are costs and expenses which relate to general
corporate activities as well as corporate-managed benefit and insurance programs. Such costs and expenses
include: (i) those elements of SG&A expenses relating to the business as a whole; (ii) those elements of our
incentive compensation plans relating to corporate personnel whose other compensation costs are not allocated to
the LOBs; (iii) the amortization of intangible assets acquired as part of purchased business combinations; (iv) the
quarterly variances between the Company’s actual costs of certain of its self-insured integrated risk and
employee benefit programs and amounts charged to the LOBs; and (v) certain adjustments relating to costs
associated with the Company’s international defined benefit pension plans. In addition, other corporate expenses
may also include from time to time certain adjustments to contract margins (both positive and negative)
associated with projects where it has been determined, in the opinion of management, that such adjustments are
not indicative of the performance of the related LOB.

Backlog Information

We include in backlog the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of
performing work under contracts that have been awarded to us. Our policy with respect to Q&M contracts,
however, is to include in backlog the amount of revenues we expect to receive for one succeeding year,
regardless of the remaining life of the contract. For national government programs (other than national
government O&M contracts), our policy is to include in backlog the full contract award, whether funded or
unfunded, excluding option periods. Because of the nature, size, expected duration, funding commitments, and
the scope of services required by our contracts, the timing of when backlog will be recognized as revenues can
vary greatly between individual confracts.

Consistent with industry practice, substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation or termination
at the option of the client. While management uses all information available to it to determine backlog, at any
given time our backlog is subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as increases or
decreases in costs relating to the contracts included therein. Backlog is not necessarily an indicator of future
Irevenues.,
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Because certain contracts (e.g., contracts relating to large EPC projects as well as national government
programs) can cause large increases to backlog in the fiscal period in which we recognize the award, and because
many of our contracts require us to provide services that span over a number of fiscal quarters {and sometimes
over fiscal years), we evaluate our backlog on a year-over-year basis, rather than on a sequential, quarter-over-
quarter basis.

Please refer to Item 1A—Risk Factors, above, for a discussion of other factors that may cause backlog to
ultimately convert into revenues at different amounts,

The following table summarizes our backlog for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016
and October 2, 2015 (in millions):

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Backlog:

Aerospace & Technology ......... . ... ... $ 6,231,426  $ 5,109,973  § 4,880,775
Buildings & Infrastructure ......... . ... ... ...0. 5412377 5,033,539 4,723,034
Industrial .......... . . i e 2,836,854 3,106,575 3,650,520
Petroleum & Chemicals . ...............0nvu.s. 5,307,956 5,510,442 5,552,241
TOta]l i e $19,788,613  $18,760,529  $18,806,570

Increases in backlog in Aerospace & Technology for the years presented were primarily the result of new
awards from the U.S. federal government.

Increases in backlog in Building & Infrastructure for the years presented were primarily the result of new
awards in the U.S. market.

Decreases in backlog in the Industrial line of business resulted mainly from a large cancellation in the Life
Sciences area and strong revenue realization associated with large pharma projects for fiscal 2017 versus fiscal
2016. The decrease from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2016 was primarily related to a lower level of field services awards.

The decrease in backlog in Petroleum & Chermicals from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2017 was due mainly to
continuing weakness in the upstream market, partly offset by strong performance in chemicals backlog. The
decrease from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2016 was primarily related to weak oil prices affecting our customers’ capital
spend.

Backlog relating to work to be performed either directly or indirectly for the U.S. federal government and its
agencies totaled approximately $4.6 billion (or 23.2% of total backlog), $4.8 billion {or 25.4% of total backlog)
and $4.6 billion (or 23.9% of total backlog) at September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015,
respectively, Most of our federal government contracts require that services be provided beyond one year. In
general, these contracts must be funded annually (i.e., the amounts to be spent under the contract must be
appropriated by the U.S. Congress to the procuring agency, and then the agency must allot these sums to the
specific contracts).

We estimate that approximately $7 billion, or 35%, of total backlog at September 29, 2017 will be realized
as revenues within the next fiscal vear.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At September 29, 2017, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $774.2 million of cash and cash
equivalents, $1.3 billion of available borrowing capacity under our $1.6 billion 2014 revolving credit facility (the
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“Revolving Credit Facility”) and $1.5 billion of available borrowings under our Term Loan Facility (defined
below). Additional information regarding the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan Facility is set forth in
Note 6—Borrowings in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. We finance much of our operations and growth through cash generated by our operations,

On September 28, 2017, the Company entered into a $1.5 billion unsecured delayed-draw term loan facility
(the “Term Loan Facility”) with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders and letter of credit issuers. Subject
to certain terms and conditions set forth therein, loans under the Term Loan Facility may be incuired on the day
the CH2M acquisition is consummated in order to pay cash consideration for the transaction, and to pay fees and
expenses related to the acquisition and the Term Loan Facility.

The Company intends to finance the cash consideration for the CH2M acquisition, the repayment of
CH2M’s outstanding indebtedness and other transaction expenses with a combination of cash on hand and debt
financing, which includes Term Loan Facility in an aggregate principal amount of $1.5 billion and additional
borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company currently estimates that the aggregate principal
amount of indebtedness to be incurred in connection with the acquisition will be approximately $1.9 billion.

At September 29, 2017, our cash and cash equivalents were $774.2 million, an increase of $118.4 million
from $653.7 million at September 30, 2016. This compares to a net increase of $194.9 for the year ended
September 30, 2016.

The most significant factors contributing to the net increase in cash and cash equivalents for fiscal 2017
ftom fiscal 2016 were favorable cash from operations of $574.9 million, partly offset by cash outflows from
investing activities of $236.2 million, $242.6 million in cash used in financing activities and unfavorable effects
of exchange rate changes of $22.3 million. On a comparative basis, cash and cash equivalents increased
$194.9 million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2016 mainly from cash generated from operating activities of
$680.2 million, partly offset by cash used in investing activities of $139.6 million, cash used in financing
activities of $317.0 million and unfavorable effects of exchange rate changes of $28.7 million.

Our cash from operations for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $574.9 million, down $105.3 million
from the corresponding period of 2016. This net decrease was mainly associated with increases in net working
capital of $206.1 million (mainly higher accounts receivable and offset in part by higher accounts payable),
partly offset by higher net earnings of $72.% million, favorable cash flows from other deferred liabilities of
$34.8 million and other operating cash items. Our cash from operations for the year ended September 30, 2016
was $680.2 million, up $195.6 million from the corresponding petiod of 2015. This net increase was mainly
associated with decreases in working capital of $373.1 million (mainly lower accounts receivable and increases
in billings in excess of costs), offset in part by lower net earnings of $114.4 million and other operating cash
items.

With respect to the Company’s working capital accounts, the Company’s cash flows from operations are
greatly affected by the cost-plus nature of our customer contracts. Because such a high percentage of our
revenues are earned on cost-plus type contracts, and due to the significance of revenues relating to pass-through
costs, most of the costs we incur are included in invoices we send to clients. Although we continually monitor
our accounts receivable, we manage the operating cash flows of the Company by managing the working capital
accounts in total, rather than by the individual elements. The primary elements of the Company’s working capital
accounts are accounts receivable, accounts payable, and billings in excess of cost. Accounts payable consist of
obligations to third parties relating primarily to costs incurred for projects which are generally billable to clients.
Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from our clients of which a substantial portion are for project-related
costs. Billings in excess of cost consist of billings to and payments from our clients for costs yet to be incurred.

This relationship between revenues and costs, and between receivables and payables, is unique to our
industry, and facilitates review of our liquidity at the total working capital level.
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With respect to the Company’s trade accounts receivable, while our credit risk could be significant based on
the fact that we provide services to clients operating in a wide range of industries as well as in a number of
countries outside the U.S., we manage these issues closely to reduce exposures as much as possible and
historically have not experienced material losses, Our private sector customers include large, well-known, and
well-established multi-national companies, and our government customers consist of national, state, and local
agencies located principally in the U.S., the U.K., and Australia. Although we have not historically experienced
significant collection issues with our governmental or commercial customers, we continue to monitor our credit
policies with our customers in the markets we serve.

Our cash used in investing activities for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $236.2 million, up
$96.6 million from the corresponding period of 2016. This net increase in cash used was due mainly to higher
levels of acquisition spend of $100.2 million and higher capex of $50.4 million, partly offset by proceeds from
the sale of our Neste Jacobs joint venture. Our cash used in investing activities for the year ended September 30,
2016 was $139.6 million, up $43.5 million from the corresponding period of 2015. This net increase in cash used
was due mainly to higher levels of spend on acquisitions and divestitures of $60.9 million, offset in part by lower
capex of $20.7 million.

Our cash used in financing activities for the year ended September 29, 2017 was $242.6 million, down
$74.4 million from the corresponding period of 2016, This net decrease increase in cash used was mainly
attributable to lower net cash activity of long-term borrowings of $38.4 million and lower cash spend in common
stock repurchases of $55.4 million, offset in part mainly by dividends of $54.2 million paid in 2017. Our cash
used in financing activities for the year ended September 30, 2016 was $317.0 million, down $236.3 million from
the corresponding period of 20135, This net decrease increase in cash used was mainly attributable to lower cash
spent on common stock repurchases of $269.8 million, offset in part mainly by higher net cash used in long-term
borrowings activity of $32.7 million,

The Company had $774.2 million of cash and cash equivalents at September 29, 2017, Of this amount,
approximately $124.1 million was held in the U.S. and $650.1 million was held outside of the U.S. (primarily in
the UK., the Eurozone, Chile, and India) and was used primarily for funding operations in those regions, Other
than the tax cost of repatriating funds to the U.S. (see Note 10—Income Taxes of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page Ii-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K), there are no impediments to repatriating
these funds to the U.S.

The Company had $262.1 million in letters of credit outstanding at September 29, 2017, Of this amount,
$2.5 million was issued under the Revolving Credit Facility and $259.6 million was issued under separate,
committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities.

We believe we have adequate liquidity and capital resources to fund our operations, support our acquisition
strategy, service our debt, and pay dividends for the next twelve months. We believe that the capacity, terms and
conditions of the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan Facility, combined with cash on-hand and the
other committed and uncommitted facilities we have in place, are adequate for our working capital and general
business requirements for the next twelve months.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth certain information about our contractual obligations as of September 29,
2017 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Fiscal Period

1 Year 1-3 3-5 More than 5
Total or Less Years Years Years

Debt obligations ..............ovviuurnn... $ 238,071 $ 3,071 $235,000 — 5 -
Operating leases (@) ..........ooviiiviiie., 768,104 139,967 251,816 202,052 174,269
Obligations under defined benefit pension

plans (b) ... o e 254,483 23,874 47,607 52,510 130,492
Obligations under nonqualified deferred

compensation plans () ........c.ovi i, 135,996 27,159 57,620 51,217 —
Purchase obligations (d) .................... 1,333,934 1,333,934 — — —
Interest (€) .. ...covv i i i 13,568 4,065 7,865 1,638 —

Total ..ot i e e $2,744,156  $1,532,070 $399,908 $307.417 $304,761

(a) Assumes the Company will make the end of lease term residual value guarantee payment of $62.4 million in
2025 with respect to the lease of an office building in Houston, Texas, Please refer to
Note 11—Commitments and Contingencies, and Derivative Financial Instruments of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

{b) Assumes that future contributions will be consistent with amounts projected to be contributed in fiscal 2017,
allowing for certain growth based on rates of inflation and salary increases, but limited to the amount
recorded as of September 29, 2017, Actual contributions will depend on a variety of factors, including
amounts required by local laws and regulations, and other funding requirements.

{c) Assumes that future payments will be consistent with amounts paid in fiscal 2017, Due to the nonqualified
nature of the plans, and the fact that benefits are based in part on years of service, the payments included in
the schedule were limited to the amount recorded as of September 29, 2017.

{d) Represents those liabilities estimated to be under firm contractual commitments as of September 29, 2017,
primarily accounts payable, accrued payroll and acerued dividends.

{e) Determined based on borrowings outstanding at the end of fiscal 2017 using the interest rates in effect at
that time and, for our outstanding long term debt, concluding with the expiration date of the Revolving
Credit Facility, as defined below.

Merger Agreement

On August 1, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”)
with CH2ZM HILL Companies, Ltd. (“CH2ZM"), and Basketball Merger Sub Inc., a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger
Agreement, (i) Merger Sub will merge with and into CH2ZM, with CH2M continuing as the surviving corporation
and becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”) and (ii) each outstanding share of
common stock of CHZM will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of the holder thereof in
accordance with, and subject to, the terms, conditions and procedures set forth in the Merger Agreement, in each
case without interest the following consideration: (a) the combination of (x) $52.85 in cash and (y) 0.6677 shares
of common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the Company; (b) $88.08 in cash; or (¢) 1.6693 shares of the
Company’s common stock.

The Merger is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including without limitation,
approval by CH2M stockholders. For risks related to the Merger, see Item 1A-Risk Factors above.
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Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The effects of inflation and changing prices on our business is discussed in Ttem | A—Risk Factors, and is
incorporated herein by reference,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the form of guarantees not reflected in
our balance sheet that arise in the normal course of business. However, such off-balance sheet arrangements are
not reasonably likely to have an effect on our financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or resources that are material to investors, See Note 11 — Commitments and
Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition

From time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issues accounting standards
updates {cach an “ASU”) to its Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), which constitutes the primary
source of U.S. GAAP. The Company regularly monitors ASUs as they are issued and considers their applicability
to its business. All ASUs applicable to the Company are adopted by the due date and in the manner prescribed by
the FASB.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The new
guidance provided by ASU 2014-09 is intended to remove inconsistencies and perceived weaknesses in the
existing revenue requirements, provide a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues, improve
comparability, provide more useful information and simplify the preparation of financial statements, ASU
2014-09 was initially effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 13, 2016, In
July, 2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date of this standard. The revised effective
date for the standard is for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods
therein. The FASB also approved changes allowing for early adoption of the standard as of the original effective
date.

The Company’s adoption activities will be performed over three phases: (i) assessment, (ii) design, and
(iif) implementation. OQur assessment phase is substantially complete. The following are the potential significant
differences identified during the assessment phase:

Performance Obligations

Under current U.S. GAAP the Company typically considers engineering and construction services as
separate performance obligations, Under ASU 2014-09, the Company has determined, in most instances, it is
likely that engineering and construction services will be required to be combined into a single performance
obligation. In these instances, this will likely change the timing and pattern of revenue recognition.

Contract Modifications

In many instances, the Company enters into contracts for construction services subsequent to entering in to
engineering services contracts, Under ASU 2014-09, the construction services contract may be deemed to modify
the engineering contract, or may be required to be combined with the engineering contract. This modification or
combination of contracts may result in a camulative catchup adjustment, which will have an immediate impact
on the Company’s results of operations in the period the contract combination or modification occurs, In
addition, it will change the timing and pattern of revenue recognition after the period the contracts have been
combined or modified.

Page 64



The Company currently intends to adopt the new standard using the Modified Retrospective application.
This standard could have a significant impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and an
administrative impact on its operations and will depend on the magnitude of the items discussed above, The
Company will continue to evaluate the impact through the design and implementation phases.

Lease Accounting

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02--Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires lessees to recognize
assets and liabilities for most leases. ASU 2016-02 is effective for public entity financial statements for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is
permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The guidance must be adopted using a modified retrospective
approach for leases that exist or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the
financial statements. The Company is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial
statements, This standard could have a significant administrative impact on its operations, and the Company will
further assess the impact through its implementation program.

Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09—Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting. ASU 2016-09 simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification
on the statement of cash flows, ASU 2016-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted for any entity in any interim or
annual period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for issuance. If an entity
early adopts the amendmenits in an interim period, any adjustments must be reflected as of the beginning of the
fiscal year that includes that interim period. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the amendments
in the same period. The Company is evalvuating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial
statements and does not plan to early adopt this pronouncement.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

‘We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading, speculation or other purposes that would
expose the Company to market risk. In the normal course of business, our results of operations are exposed to
risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange rates,

Interest Rate Risk

Please refer to the discussion of the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan Facility in the liquidity
and capital resources discussion in Part II, Ttem 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and Note 6—Borrowings in Notss to
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on Page F-1 of this Annual report on Form 10-K.

Foreign Currency Risk

In situations where our operations incur contract costs in currencies other than their functional currency, we
attempt to have a portion of the related contract revenues denominated in the same currencies as the costs. In
those situations where revenues and costs are transacted in different currencies, we sometimes enter into foreign
exchange contracts in order to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies. We follow the provisions of
ASC 815-10—Derivatives and Hedging in accounting for our derivative coniracts. The Company does not
currently have exchange rate sensitive instruments that would have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements or results of operations.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item 8 is submitted as a separate section beginning on page F-1 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-X and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A, CONTROILS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined by Rule
13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of September 29, 2017,
the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Evaluation Date™), Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were functioning effectively as of
the Evaluation Date to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by the
Company in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining for the Company adequate internal controls
over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Management, with the
participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has assessed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of the Evaluation Date based on the framework
established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission {2013 framework). Based on this evaluation, management has
concluded that the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of the Evaluation Date were effective.
The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation
report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting which appears later in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the Company’s
fiscal quarter ended September 29, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,

Limitations on Effectiveness of Conirols

The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not
expect that its disclosure controls and procedures or its system of internal contrel over financial reporting will
prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed or operated, can provide
only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system of internal control are met. The
design of the Company’s control system reflects the fact that there are resource constraints, and that the benefits
of such control systems must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in
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all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that alt control failures and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities
that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the intentional acts of individuals, by collusion of two or
more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is also based in
part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that the design of
any patticular control will always succeed in achieving its objective under all potential future conditions.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IIX

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons

The information required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (c) through (g) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K
(except for information required by Paragraph (e) of that Item to the extent the required information pertains to
our executive officers) and Item 405 of Regulation §-K is set forth under the captions “Members of the Board of
Directors,” “Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of
our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference. The information required by Paragraph (b) of Item 401 of
Regulation S-K, as well as the information required by Paragraph {(e) of that Item to the extent the required
information pertains to our executive officers, is set forth in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Code of Ethics

‘We have adopted a code of ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers; a code of
business conduct and ethics for members of our Board of Directors and corporate governance guidelines. The full
text of these codes of ethics and corporate governance guidelines are available at our website at
www jacobs.com. In the event we make any amendment to, or grant any waiver from, a provision of the code of
ethics that applies to the principal executive officer, principal financial officer or principal accounting officer that
requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules, we will disclose such amendment or waiver and the reasons
therefor on our website. We will provide any person without charge a copy of any of the aforementioned codes of
ethics upon receipt of a written request. Requests should be addressed to: Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., 1999
Bryan Street, Suite 1200, Dallas, Texas 75201, Attention: Corporate Secretary,

Corporate Governance

The information required by ltems 407(d)(4) and (d)}(5) of Regulation $-K is set forth under the caption
“Corporate Governance” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A
within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference,

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

‘The information required by this Item is set forth under the captions “Corporate Governance,”
“Compensation Committee Report,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” and “Executive Compensation”
in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days afier the
close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Securities Aunthorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table presents certain information about our equity compensation plans as of September 29,
2017

Column A Colomn B Column C

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
Number of future
securities Weighted- issuance
to be average under equity
issued upon exercise compensation
exercise of price of plans
outstanding  outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants, warrants, reflected in
Plan Category and rights and rights Column A}
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders (a) ............. 2,516,825  $$46.19 7,664,358
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders ............. — — —
41 2,516,825  $$46.19 7,664,358

(a) The number in Column A excludes purchase rights accruing under our two, broad-based, shareholder-
approved employee stock purchase plans: The Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1989 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, as amended and restated (the “1989 ESPP™), and the Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
as amended and restated (the “GESPP”). These plans give employees the right to purchase shares at an
amount and price that are not determinable until the end of the specified purchase periods, which occur
monthly. Our shareholders have authorized a total of 32,3 million shares of common stock to be issued
through the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP. From the inception of the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP through
September 29, 2017, a total of 27.6 million shares have been issued, leaving 4.7 million shares of common
stock available for future issuance at that date.

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption “Security
Ownership” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120
days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information reguired by this Item is set forth under the captions “Members of The Board of Directors,”
“Corporate Governance,” and “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement
to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The imformation required by this [tem is set forth under the captions “Report of the Audit Committee” and
“Audit and Non-Audit Fees” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation
14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference,
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

{a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1)

2

&)

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements at September 29, 2017 and September 30,
2016 and for each of the three years in the period ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016
and October 2, 2015 and the notes thereto, together with the report of the independent auditors on
those Consolidated Financial Statements are hereby filed as part of this report, beginning on page
F-1.

Financial statement schedules—no financial statement schedules are presented as the required
information is either not applicable, or is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes
thereio.

See Exhibit Index below.

{b) Exhibit Index:

2.1

22

3.1

3.2

4.1
4.2

10.1

10.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 1, 2017, by and among Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc., CH2M HILL Companies, Ltd. and Basketball Merger Sub Inc. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on August 2, 2017 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Voting and Support Agreement, dated August 1, 2017, by and among Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc., Basketball Merger Sub Inc. and AP VIII CH2 Holdings, L.P. Filed as Exhibit 2.2 to the
Registrant’s Cutrent Report on Form 8-K on August 2, 2017 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on January 28, 2014 and incorporated
herein by reference,

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., dated January 19, 2017. Filed
as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A on May 15, 2017 and
incorporated herein by reference.

See Sections 5 through 18 of Exhibit 3.1.

See Article I1, Section 3.03 of Axticle III, Article VI and Sections 8.04 and 8.06 of Article VIII of
Exhibit 3.2,

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 7, 2014 among Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries as borrowers, and the Bank of America,
N.A. (as Administrative Agent); Bank of America, N.A., BNP Paribas, and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. (as Co-Syndication Agents); The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD, and TD Bank, N.A.
(as Co- Documentation Agents); Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (as Sole
Book Manager); and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, BNP Paribas
Securities Corp, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC (as Joint Lead Arrangers), Filed as Exhibit 10.1
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on February 11, 2014 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 4, 2015, among Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. and the
lenders thereto, and Bank of America, N,A., as administrative agent, to the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 7, 2014, by and among Jacobs Engineering
Group, Inc., the lenders from time to time party thercto and Bank of America, N.A,, as
administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8- on
March 5, 20135 and incorporated herein by reference,
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10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#

Amendment No. 2, dated as of September 28, 2017, among Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and
the lenders thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, to the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 7, 2014, by and among Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc., the lenders from time to time party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on
September 29, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

Credit Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2017, among Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and
the lenders thereto, and BNP Paribas, as administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on September 29, 2017 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Term Loan Commitment Letter, dated August 1, 2017, by and among Jacobs Engineering Group
Ine., BNP Paribas, BNP Paribas Securities Corp, and The Bank of Nova Scotia. Filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on August 2, 2017 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Revolver Backstop Commitment Letter, dated August 1, 2017, by and among Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc., BNP Paribas, BNP Paribas Securities Corp. and The Bank of Nova Scotia. Filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on August 2, 2017 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Offer Letter by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Steven J. Demetriou, dated July
10, 2015, Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8§-K on July 16, 2015
and incorporated herein by reference.

Offer Letter by and between Jacobs Enginecring Group Ine. and Kevin C. Berryman, effective
November 12, 2014, Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K/A on November 17, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Empleyment Agreement dated December 23, 2010 between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and
Gary Mandel. Filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
second quarter of fiscal 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Offer letter by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Robert V. Pragada, dated January
28, 2016. Filed as Exhibit 10.61 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference,

Offer letter by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc, and Michael Tyler dated May 28,
2013. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third
quarter of fiscal 2013 and incorporated herein by reference

Offer letter by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and William Benton Allen, Jr, dated
October 4, 2016, Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on
October 14, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Retirement Agreement by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Phillip J, Stassi dated
June 1, 2016. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10—Q for the
third quarter of fiscal 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Separation Agreement by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
and Lori Sundberg, dated July 26, 2017. Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and
certain of its officers and directors. Filed as Exhibit10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporated herein by reference.
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10.16#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#

10.22#

10.23#

10.24#

10.25#

10.26#

10.27#

10.28#

10.29:#

10.304#

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 401{k) Plus Savings Plan and Trust, as amended and restated
April 1, 2003. Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K
and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1989 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (as amended and restated on
January 19, 2017). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on
Janvary 24, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference,

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan (as amended and restated
on January 19, 2017). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on
January 24, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

The Executive Security Program of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Executive Security Program of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., dated
December 23, 2008, Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form
10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Executive Security Program of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., dated May 31,
2009. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1991 Executive Deferral Plan, effective June 1, 1991, Filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein
by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1993 Executive Deferral Plan, effective December 1, 1993, Filed
as Bxhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated
herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1995 Executive Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 1995, Filed as
Exhibit 10,7 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein
by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 2005 Executive Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 2005, Filed as
Exhibit 1011 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal
2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Amended and Restated Exccutive Deferral Plan. Filed as Exhibit
10.8 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Executive Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 2018. Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on October 2, 2017 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Directors Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 2018, Filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on October 2, 2017 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Management Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective
November 19, 2015, Filed as Exhibit 10.50 to the Registrant™s fiscal 2015 Anaual Report on
Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated., Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on January 28, 2014 and
incorporated herein by reference,
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10.31#

10.32#

10.33#

10.34#

10.35#

10.36#

10.37#

10.38#

10.39+#

10.40#

10.41#

10.42#

10.43#

10.444#

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as Amended and Restated.
Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of
fiscal 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc. 1999 Outside Directors Stock Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Nonqualified Steck Option Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc, 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Nonqualified Steck Option Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc, 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering
Grouwp Ine. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.49 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2013
Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awarded pursnant to the Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc, 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2015 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference,

Summary Description of Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awarded
pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.4
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2017 and
incorporated herein by reference,

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (with dividend equivalent rights) (awarded pursuant to
the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance Shares—Net Earnings
Growth—2014 Award) (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc¢. 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the
third quarter of fiscal 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance Shares—TSR—2014 Award)
(awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal

2014 and incorporated herein by reference,

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance Shares—Net Earnings
Growth—2015 Award) (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
third quarter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares—FEarnings Per Share
Growth—2016 Award) (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Ing, 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2015 Annual Report on Form
10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares—TSR—-2016 Award) (awarded
pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.47
to the Registrant’s fiscal 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference.
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10.451#

10.461#

10.47#

10.48#

10.49#

10.50#

10.51#

10.52#

121
1311

131.2

132.1

132.2

195.
T101.INS
T101.5CH
T101.CAL
t101.DEF
t101.LAB
1101.PRE

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares—Earnings Per Share
Growth—2017 Award) (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares—ROIC—2017 Award) (awarded
pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Cash Settled Non-US Employees) (awarded pursuant
to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.48 to the
Registrant’s fiscal 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K on June 1, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
1999 Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering Group
Inc.1999 Stock Incentive Plan), Filed as Exhibit 10.44 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2015 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering
Group Inc. 1999 Outside Directors Stock Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2016 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs Engineering
Group Ine. 1999 Outside Directors Stock Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 io the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2017 and incorporated herein by
reference.

List of Subsidiaries of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc,
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 306 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002,

Mine Safety Disclosure.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxenomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docutnent

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

T Being filed herewith.
# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: November 21, 2017

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC.,

By: Is/ STEVEN ], DEMETRIOU

Steven J. Demetriou
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature

fs/ STEVEN J, DEMETRIOU

Steven J. Demetriou

/s/{ JosepH R. BRONSON

Joseph R. Bronson

/s JUAN JOSE SUAREZ COPPEL

Juan Jose Suarez Coppel

/s RoOBERT C. DAVIDSON, JRr.

Robert C. Davidson, Jr,

/s/ RaLPH E. EBERHART

Ralph E. Eberhart

/s/ DAWNE S, HICKTON

Dawne S. Hickton

/s/ LINDA FAYNE LEVINSON

Linda Fayne Levinson

/s/ ROBERT A. MCNAMARA

Robert A. McNamara

/s/ PETER J. ROBBRTSON

Peter J. Robertson

/sf CHRISTOPHER M.T. THOMPSON

Christopher MLT, Thompson

/s/ KBvVIN C, BERRYMAN

Kevin C. Berryman

/s WILLIAM B, ALLEN

William B. Allen

Tiile

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director

Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Current Assets;

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share information)
At September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Cashand cashequivalents ........... .. it iiiii i eirannnes

Receivables .........

Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. ......c.oiuiiiinniiiaannn.

Total current assets

Property, Equipment, and Improvements, net .. ....... ... .o iiriiiinn,

Other Noncurrent Assets:

Goodwill ............
Intangibles, net .......
Miscellaneous . .......

Total other NONCUITENT ASSETS .. v v v it e ettt e i ecsnna s

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Notes payable ........
Accounts payable .. ...
Accrued liabilities . ...

Long-term Debt ..........
Other Deferred Liabilities . .

............................................

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity:
Capital stock:

Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized-—1,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding—none

Common stock, $1 par value, authorized—240,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding---120,385,544 shares and 120,950,899 shares as of
September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively ..........

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings . .. ..
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Jacobs stockholders’ equity . ... ..o e innannerenas

Noncentrolling interests

............................................

Total Group stockholders’ equity . ...

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016
$§ 774,151 $ 655,716
2,102,543 2,115,663
119,486 93,091
2,996,180 2,864,470
349,911 319,673
3,009,826 3,079,628
332,920 336,922
692,022 759,329
4,034,768 4,175,879
$7,380,859  $7,360,022
$ 3,071 $ 2421
683,605 522,427
939,687 938,378
299,864 319,460
1,926,227 1,782,686
235,000 385,330
732281 861,824
120,386 120,951
1,239,782 1,168,272
3,721,698 3,586,647
(653,514)  (610,594)
4,428,352 4,265,276
58,999 64,906
4487351 4,330,182
$7,380,859  $7.360,022

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016, and October 2, 2015

(In thousands, except per share information)

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

REVEIIUES L.ttt ittt e e e e e $10,022,788 $10,904,157 § 12,114,832
Costs and Expenses:;

Direct costs 0f COMTACTS v v v v i v et it e et e e (8,250,536) (9,196,326) (10,146,494)

Selling, general and administrative expenses .............. (1,379,983) (1,429,233) (1,522,811}
Operating Profit ........ .. ... i e, 392,269 338,598 445,527
Other Income (Expense):

Interest INCOmME . ..o v v et et et e 8,748 7,848 7,262

Interest eXpense .. .....covviiit ittt i e (12,035) (15,260) (19,503)

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of business and investments ........ 10,880 41,410) (2,909)

Miscellaneous expense, Bel . ... vu vy v vrerens (6,645) (3,053) (240)

Total other income (expense), net . ........o0vveven. 948 (51,875 (15,390)

Earnings Before Taxes ... ...t ii e 393,217 286,723 430,137
Income Tax BExXpense ........ooirnvrniinninnnennnn, (105,842} (72,208) (101,253)
Net Earnings of the Group ........ .ot 287,375 214,515 328,882
Net Loss (Earnings) Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests . .. ... 6,352 (4,052) (25.911)
Net Earnings Aftributable to Jacobs . ..............cvuiin. $ 293,727 $ 210463 $ 302,971
Net Earnings Per Share:

BasiC .. o 5 243 % 175§ 2.42

Diluted ... o e e s $ 242 % 1.73 % 240

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016, and October 2, 2015

(In thousands)

NetFarningsof the Group .........oo ot i i

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...................
Change in pension liability ..............cciiiriiniannn
(Losses) Gainson cash flowhedges .......................

Other Comprehensive Loss Before Income Taxes ................

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit:

Change in pension liability ........ .. . i iiiiiiinrann,
{(Losses) Gains on cash flowhedges .......................

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit ........... ... ... iiiiiiiat,
Net Other Comprehensive Loss . ...........coovii ..

Net Comprehensive Income of the Group .......................

Net Comprehensive Loss (Income) Attributable to Noncontrolling

=23 RPN

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

$ 287,375 $ 214,515  § 328,882
(140,527) (46,515) (136,168)

123,427 (111,488) 33,208

(1,350) (1,403) 2,949
(18,450) (159,406)  (100,011)
{24,380) 13,303 (438)
(50) 273 (766)
(24,470) 13,576 (1,204)
{42,920) (145,830)  (101,215)

244 455 68,685 227,667
6,352 (4,052) (25,611)

$ 250,807 $ 64,633 § 201,756

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements including the Company’s note on Other
Comprehensive Income for a presentation of amounts reclassified to net income during the period.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 29, 2817, September 30, 2016, and October 2, 2015

(In thousands)
Accumulated Total Total
Other Comp-  Jacobs Group
Additional rehensive Stock- Non- Stock-
Common  Paid-in Retained Income holders’ controlling  holders’
Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
Balances at September 26,2014 ... $131,753 $1,173,858 $3,527,193  $(363,549) $4,469.255 $36,405  $4,505,660
Nef earnings ................. — —_ 302,971 — 302,971 25,911 328,882
Foreign currency translation
adjustments ... — —_ —_ (136,168) (136,168) — {136,168)
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxesof $438 ........ .. ..l — — — 32,770 32,770 — 32,770
Gain on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $766 ....... — — — 2,183 2,183 — 2,183
Noncontrolling interest acquired /
consolidated ............... — — {9,709} — 9,709 9,627 {82)
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests ... — — — — — (7,230) (7,230)
Tssuances of equity securities, net
of deferred taxes of $10,332 . .. 1,550 80,801 — — 82,391 — 82,391
Repurchases of equity
securities .. ... (10,190  (117,515)  (324,243) — (451,948) — {451,948
Balances at October 2,2015 ........ $123,153 $1,137,144 $3,496,212  $(464,764) $4,291,745 $64,713  $4,356,458
Neteamings ...........000nu. — — 210,463 — 210,463 4,052 214,515
Foreign currency translation
adjustments . ... ..o ii. — — — (46,516) {46,516} — (46,516)
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $13,303 ............ — — — (98,185) (98,185) — (98,185)
Loss on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $274 ....... e — — (1,129) (1,129 — (1,129
Noncontrolling interest acquired /
consolidated ............... — {127) — — (127) (1,150 (1,277)
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests ..o — — (3,146) — (3,146) (2,709) (5.833)
Issuances of equity securities, net .
of deferred taxes of $3,382 .... 1,351 72,055 — — 73,4006 —_ 73,406
Repurchases of equity
SECUTItieS ... vviviini i (3,353} (40,800}  {116,882) — (161,235) — (161,235)
Balances at September 30, 2016 ., ., $120,951 $1,168,272 $3,586,647  $(610,594) $4,265,276 $64,906  $4,330,182
Netearnings ..o — — 293,727 — 293,727 (6,352) 287,375
Foreign currency translation
adjustments ................ — — — (140,527) (140,527 — (140,527
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $24,380 .. .......... — — — 99,047 99,047 — 99,047
Loss on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $90 . ....... — — — {1,440y (1,440) — (1,440
Noncontrolling interest acquired /
consolidated ............... _— — - — — 445 445
Dividends ,,................. — — (72,765) — (72,765) — (72,765)
Distributions to nonconirolling
interests .. ... —_ — (4,559) — (4,559) — (4,559)
Issuances of equity securities, net
of deferred taxes of $1,015 .... 1,468 99,117 — — 100,585 — 100,585
Repurchases of equity
securities ... .o (2,033) (27,607) (81,352) — (110,992) — (110,592)
Batances at September 29, 2017 .., $120,386 $1,239,782 $3,721,698  $(653,514) $4,428,352  $58999  $4,487,351

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 216, and October 2, 2015

(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net earnings attributable tothe Group .......... ..o innt,
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows provided by
operations:
Depreciation and amortization:
Property, equipment and improvements .. ..... ..o
Tntangible as8ets .. .ot ii i e e e s
(Gain) Loss on sales of investments . ........covveniiinenneen.
Lossonsales of business ...t
Gain on benefitplanchange ......... ... oo,
Stock based compensation . ....... .. e i e e
Tax deficiency from stock based compensation . ................
Equity in losses (earnings) of operating ventures, et ............
Change in pension plan obligations ..................... . ...,
Change in deferred compensationplans .. ........oovviiiiinnn
Tosses on disposals of assets,net . .....oov i i
Deferred inCOME tAXES ..ottt i ieiii i
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of businesses
acquired:
Receivables .. ..o
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .................
Accounts payable ... . . i i i e
Accrued liabilities . ... ... i
Billingsinexcessofcosts.......oo i a,
Income taxes payable ,...... ... .o i
Other deferred liabilities . ... ... i
Deferred gain on synthetic lease transaction .. ...... ...t
L 1 = N 1 1= A

Net cash provided by operating activities .....................

Cash Flows Used for Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment . ... ... .o o i i
Disposals of propertg and equinment ... v e e
Purchases of intangibles . ..., oottt i
Purchases of investments ..., ... ... i i e
Sales of INVESHMENLS « ..t s i it ettt s e st e e
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired ....................
Sales Of DUSINESS & v vt v e it i et e i e e

Net cash used for investing activities . ........................

Cash Flows Used for Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings .. ... ..o i e
Repayments of long-term borrowings . ..cvvviviiiiiniiirineasans
Proceeds from short-term borrowings . .......... oo
Repayments of short-term borrowings . ....oov et iiin s,
Proceeds from issuances of commonstock ... o
Common stock Tepurchases ..ottt i i i
Excess tax benefits from stock based compensation .................
Cashdividends ....... 0o i e
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests . ............ oo in.

Net cash vsed for financing activities . ........... ..o e nt,
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes ......... .. .. .. o i,

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ...............00
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period ............ . ... ...

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period ...............coovvivinnn

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017

2016 2015

$ 287375 $

214,515 § 328,882

82,363 99,924
47,608 49,368
17,049 —

24,361 2,909

32,370 41,412
B (1237)

(11,892) 5483
(9,380) (5.,980)
576 (3.229)

10,680 30,985
(27,407) (31,177

397,268 172,958
17,906 6,644
(44.214)  (28.943)
(71,930) (120,847

347 (52,441}
(4.586) (22,685
(28.801)  (15,759)
— 23,343
N7 4962

680,173 484,572

(118,060)
2,387

31,701
(150,190)
(2.036)

(67,688) (88,404)

10,479 369
(10,027) —
(3.403) —
13

(49,943) (8,101)
(19,039) —

(236,198)

(139,621) (96,123)

1,694,023

1,649,653 1,768,639

(LB46,797)  (1,840.789) (1.907.109)
1,347 3040 362433
(702)  (14.042)  (382,190)
62,645 43,140 33.222

(O7.180)  (152.550)  (422.316)
2.877 377 237
(54,234) — —
(4.559) (5,855) (7,230)
(242,580)  (317,026)  (553,314)
22,332 (28,669)  (106,923)
118,435 194,857  (271,788)
655,716 460,859 732,647
$ 774,151 $ 655716 $ 460,859

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business

We provide a broad range of technical, professional, and construction services including engineering,
design, and architectural services; construction and construction management services; operations and
maintenance services; and process, scientific, and systems consulting services. We provide our services through
offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, South America, Europe, the Middle East, India,
Australia, Africa, and Asia. We provide our services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts, The
percentage of revenues realized from each of these types of contracts for the fiscal years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 was as follows:

For the Year Ended
September 29, September 30,  October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Cost-reimbursable ... ... i 81% 82% 33%
Fixed-price ........ ..o 19% 18% 17%

Basis of Presentation, Definition of Fiscal Year, and Other Matters

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 1.5, GAAP
and include the accounts of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc, and its subsidiaries and affiliates which it controls,
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in conselidation.

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to September 30 (determined on the basis of the
number of workdays) and, accordingly, an additional week of activity is added every five -to- six years. Fiscal
2015 included an extra week of activity.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2016, we reorganized our operating and reporting structure around four
lines of business (“LOB™). This reorganization is intended to better serve our global clients, leverage our
workforce, help streamline operations, and provide enhanced growth opportunities. The four global LOBs are:
Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastructure, Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. Previously, the
Company operated its business as a single segment. For a further discussion of our segment information, please
refer to Note 15-Segment Information.

Please refer to Note 17—Definitions for the definitions of certain terms used in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements and these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Accounting for Contracts and Use of Joint Ventures

‘We recognize revenue earned on our technical professional and field services projects under the
percentage-of-completion method described in ASC 605-33, Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts.
In general, we recognize revenues at the time we provide services. Pre-contract costs are generally expensed as
incurred. Contracts are generally segmented between types of services, such as project services and construction,
and accordingly, gross margin related to each activity is recognized as those separate services are rendered. For
multiple contracts with a single customer we account for each contract separately.

The percentage-of-completion method of accounting is applied by comparing contract costs incurred to date
fo the total estimated costs at completion. On cost-reimbursable contracts, the cost of materials and subcontracts
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Centinued)

are generally excluded from the calculation of the measure of progress towards completion to provide a more
meaningful allocation of income. Contract losses are provided for in their entirety in the period they become
known, without regard to the percentage-of-completion,

Unapproved change orders are included in the contract price to the exlent it is probable that such change
orders will result in additional contract revenue and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably
estimated. Claims meeting these recognition criteria are included in revenues only to the extent of the related
costs incurred,

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts include incentive-fee arrangements, These incentive fees can be based
on a variety of factors but the most common are the achievement of target completion dates, target costs, and/or
other performance criteria. Failure to meet these targets can result in unrealized incentive fees, We recognize
incentive fees based on expected results using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. As the
contract progresses and more information becomes available, the estimate of the anticipated incentive fee that
will be earned is revised as necessary. We bill incentive fees based on the terms and conditions of the individual
contracts. In certain situations, we are allowed to bill a portion of the incentive fees over the performance period
of the contract. In other situations, we are allowed to bill incentive fees only after the target criterion has been
achieved. Incentive fees which have been recognized but not billed are included in receivables in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts with government customers as well as certain commercial clients
provide that contract costs are subject to audit and adjustment. In this situation, revenues are recorded at the time
services are performed based upon the amounts we expect to realize upon completion of the coniracts. Revenues
are not recognized for non-recoverable costs, In those situations where an audit indicates that we may have billed
a client for costs not allowable under the terms of the contract, we estimate the amount of such nonbillable costs
and adjust our revenues accordingly.

When we are directly responsible for subcontractor labor or third-party materials and equipment, we reflect
the costs of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer to such costs as “pass-through” costs). On those
projects where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we have no associated responsibility for such
items, these amounts are not reflected in either revenues or costs.

The following table sets forth pass-through costs included in revenues in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (in millions):

For the Year Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$2,539.3 $2,489.9 $2,602.6

As is common to the industry, we execute certain contracts jointly with third parties through various forms
of joint ventures and consortiums. Although the joint ventures own and hold the contracts with the clients, the
services required by the contracts are typically performed by us and our joint venture partners, or by other
subcontractors under subcontracting agreements with the joint ventures. The assets of our joint ventures,
therefore, consist almost entirely of cash and receivables (representing amounts due from clients), and the
liabilities of our joint ventures consist almost entirely of amounts due to the joint venture partners (for services
provided by the partners to the joint ventures under their individual subcontracts) and other subcontractors. In
general, at any given time, the equity of our joint ventures represents the undistributed profits earned on coniracts
the joint ventures hold with clients. Very few of our joint ventures have employees. None of our joint ventures
have third-party debt or credit facilities. Under U5, GAAP, our share of profits and losses associated with the
contracts held by the joint ventures is reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-9



JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Certain of our joint ventures meet the definition of a VIE. In evaluating our VIEs for possible consolidation,
we perform a qualitative analysis to determine whether or not we have a “controlling financial interest” in the
VIE as defined by U.S. GAAP. We consolidate only those VIEs over which we have a controlling financial
interest and are the primary beneficiary.

For the Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures, we use either the equity method of accounting or
proportional consolidation. '

There were no changes in facts and circumstances during the period that caused the Company to reassess the
method of accounting for its VIEs,

Fair Value Measurements

The net carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, and notes payable
approximate Fair Value due to the short-term nature of these instruments, Similarly, we believe the carrying
value of long-term debt also approximates Fair Value based on the interest rates and scheduled maturities
applicable to the outstanding borrowings. Certain other assets and liabilities, such as forward contracts and an
interest rate swap agreement we purchased as cash-flow hedges discussed in Note 11—Commitments and
Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments are required to be carried in our Consolidated Financial
Statements at Fair Value,

The Fair Value of the Cornpany’s reporting units (used for purposes of determining whether there is an
indication of possible impairment of the carrying value of goodwill) is determined using both an income
approach and a market approach. Both approaches require us to make certain estimates and judgments. Under the
income approach, Fair Value is determined by using the discounted cash flows of our reporting units. Under the
market approach, the Fair Values of our reporting units are determined by reference to guideline companies that
are reasonably comparable to our reporting units; the Fair Values are estimated based on the valuation multiples
of the invested capital associated with the guideline companies. In assessing whether there is an indication that
the carrying value of goodwill has been impaired, we utilize the results of both valuation techniques and consider
the range of Fair Values indicated. The range of values (both ends of the range) for each reporting unit exceeded
the respective book values by 27% to 110%.

With respect to equity-based compensation (i.e., share-based payments), we estimate the Fair Value of stock
options granted to employees and directors using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, Like all option-pricing
models, the Black-Scholes model requires the use of subjective assumptions including (i) the expected volatility
of the market price of the underlying stock, and (ii) the expected term of the award, among others. Accordingly,
changes in assumpticns and any subsequent adjustments to those assumptions can cause different Fair Values to
be assigned to our future stock option awards. For restricied stock units containing service, market and
performance conditions, compensation expense is based on the Fair Value of such units using a Monte Carlo
simulation.

The Fair Values of the assets owned by the varicus pension plans that the Company sponsors are determined
based on the type of asset, consistent with U.S. GAAP. Equity securities are valued by using market observable
data such as quoted prices. Publicly traded corporate equity securitics are valued at the last reported sale price on
the last business day of the year. Securities not traded on the last business day are valued at the last reported bid
price. Debt securities are valued at the last reported sale price on the last business day applicable. Real estate
consists primarily of common or collective trusts, with underlying investments in real estate. These investments
are valued using the best information available, including quoted market price, market prices for similar assets
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

when available, internal cash flow estimates discounted at an appropriate interest rate, or independent appraisals,
as appropriate. Management values insurance contracts, investments in infrasttucture/raw goods, and hedge
funds using actuarial assumptions and certain values reported by fund managers.

The methodologies described above and elsewhere in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements may
produce a Fair Value measure that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future Fair
Values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the Fair Value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different Fair Value measurement.

Cash Eguivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 consisted primarily of money
market mutual funds and overnight bank deposits,

Receivables and Billings in Excess of Costs

Receivables include billed receivables, unbilled receivables, and retentions receivable. Billed receivables
represent amounts invoiced to clients in accordance with the terms of our client contracts. They are recorded in
our financial statements when they are issued. Unbilled receivables and retentions receivable represent
reimbursable costs and amounts earned and reimbursable under contracts in progress as of the respective balance
sheet dates. Such amounts become billable according to the contract terms, which usually consider the passage of
time, achievement of certain milestones or completion of the project. We anticipate that substantially all of such
unbilled amounts will be billed and collected over the next fiscal year.

Certain contracts allow us to issue invoices to clients in advance of providing services. Billings in excess of
costs represent billings to, and cash collected from, clients in advance of work performed, We anticipate that
substantially all such amounts will be earned over the next twelve months,

Property, Equipment, and Improvements

Property, equipment and improvements are carried at cost, and are shown net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Depreciation and amortization is computed
primarily by using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, The cost of leasehold
improvements is amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset
or the remaining term of the related lease. Estimated useful lives range from 20 to 40 years for buildings, from 3
to 10 years for equipment and from 4 to 10 years for leasehold improvements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired business over the Fair Value of the net tangible
and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized; instead, on
an annual basis as of the end of the third quarter of each fiscal year we test goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives for possible impairment, Interim testing for impairment is performed if indicators of potential
impairment exist. For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is assigned to the applicable reporting units based
on the current reporting structure,

During the second quarter of fiscal 2016, we reorganized our operations around four global lines of
business, which also serve as our operating segments: Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastructure,
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. We determined that this new organization would better support the
needs of managing each unique set of customers that fall within each segment. As a result of the new
organization, we subsequently realigned our internal reporting structures to enable our Chief Executive Officer,
who is also our Chief Operating Decision Maker, to evaluate the performance of each of these segments and
make appropriate resource allocations among each of the segments. For purposes of our goodwill impairment
testing, we have determined that our operating segments are also our reporting units based on management’s
conclusion that the components comprising each of our operating segments share similar economic
characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria in accordance with ASC 350,

When testing goodwill for impairment quantitatively, the Company first compares the fair value of each
reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a second
step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment. In the second step, the Company compared the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the
carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized. During 2017, we completed our annual goodwill impairment test and quantitatively determined that
none of the goodwill was impaired. The Company recorded $119.3 million of goodwill during 2017 in
conjunction with the acquisitions of Aquenta Consulting Pty Ltd. and Blue Canopy LLC. Goodwill for each of
the Company’s segments is presented in Note 15,

We have determined that the fair value of our reporting units substantially exceeded their respective
carrying values for the Consolidated Balance Sheets presented.

The following table presents the components of our goodwill by reporting unit appearing in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 (in thousands):

September 29,

017
Aerospace & Technology ...\ ittt einaranrie e eanns $1,025,780
Buildings & Infrastructure ... ... .ot e 751,407
Industrial ... ... e e e 561,785
Petroleum & Chemicals . ... i i e et 670,854

Total Goodwill .. .ot i i e e i e e e e e e e $3,009,826

During the preparation of the Form 10-Q for the first fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company determined that
its prior financial statements contained immaterial misstatements related to incorrect translation of the
Company’s non-U.S. goodwill balances from local currency to the U.S. Dollar reporting currency. It was
determined that the Company had incorrectly nsed historical translation rates for the U.S. Dollar in place at the
time of the Company’s recording of its foreign goodwill balances rather than using current translation rates at
each balance sheet date in accordance with U.S. GAAP, The error dated back to the time of our initial reporting
of non-US goodwill balances in the late 1990s and affected our historical quarterly and annual reporting periods
through the first fiscal quarter of 2017,

As a result, goodwill and accumulated other comprehensive income in the Company’s September 30, 2016
consolidated balance sheet (which have not been adjusted) were each overstated by $209.9 million and were
corrected in the first fiscal quarter of 2017 foreign currency translation adjustment. Consequently, the correction
was a direct component of the overall translation adjustment amount of $140.5 million that was reported for
fiscal 2017. These adjustments had no impact on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings or Cash
Flows, Also, other comprehensive income for the year ended September 30, 2016 was overstated by
$33.8 million as a result of these misstatements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—{Continued)

The following table provides certain information related to the Company’s acquired intangible assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in
thousands):

Customer
Relationships,
Contracts, and  Developed Trade
Backlog Technology  Names Patents  Other Total

Balances, September 26,2014 ........... $408,041 $17,378  $14,148 3 — 3625 $440,192
Acquisitions .............. .. ... (4,315) —_ (1,292) — 300 (5,307)
Amortization ............ . 0. (39,967) (1,533 (4,172 — 277y (45,949)
Foreign currency translation ......... (34,418) — (1,085) — (14y (35,517

Balances, October 2, 2015 ... oot 329,341 15,845 7,599 — 634 353,419
Acquisitions ............. .0, 7,286 — 859 10,027 — 18,172
Amortization .............. .. ... (38,595 (1,534) (3,819 — 454) (44,402)
Foreign currency translation ... ...... 9,605 — 147 — {19) 9,733

Balances, September 30, 2016 . .......... 307,637 14,311 4,786 10,027 161 336,922
Acquisitions .............. ... ..., 29,803 1,685 4,417 — — 35,905
AmOrtization . ........ovevriran... (39,679) (1,534)  (2,549) 400y (50 (44,212)
Foreign currency translation ......... 3,707 — 45 553 — 4,305

Balances, September 29, 2017 ........... $301,468 14,462 6,609 10,180 111 332,920

Weighted Average Amortization Period
(Vears) ...ovunon i 7.9 7.7 4.4 24 22 8.3

The weighted average amortization period includes the effects of foreign currency translation.

The above table excludes the values assigned to those intangible assets embedded in the Company’s equity
method investment in AWE Management Ltd. (“AWE") and Guimar Engenharia LTDA (“Guimar”). Those
amounts are included in the carrying value of the Company’s investment in AWE and Guimar, The amount of
amortization expense we estimate we will record during each of the next five fiscal years relating to intangible
assets existing at September 29, 2017, including those associated with AWE and Guimar, is: fiscal 2018—
$49.7 million; fiscal 2019-—$48.3 million; fiscal 2020—3$46.1 million; fiscal 2021—$40.9 million; and fiscal
2022—%39.5 million.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, it is necessary to translate the financial statements of
our subsidiaries operating outside the U.S., which are denominated in cutrencies other than the U.S, dollar, into
the U.S. dollar. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, revenues and expenses of operations outside the U.S. are
translated into U.S, dollars using weighted-average exchange rates for the applicable periods being translated
while the assets and liabilities of operations outside the U.S, are generally translated into U.S. dollars using
period-end exchange rates, The net effect of foreign currency translation adjustments is included in stockholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Share-Based Payments

We measure the value of services received from employees and directors in exchange for an award of an
equity instrument based on the grant-date Fair Value of the award. The computed value is recognized as a
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non-cash cost on a straight-line basis over the period the individual provides services, which is typically the
vesting period of the award with the exception of awards containing an internal performance measure which is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period subject to the probability of meeting the performance
requirements and adjusted for the number of shares expected to be earned. The cost of these awards is recorded
in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The following table presents our stock-based compensation expense for the various types of awards made by
the Company as included in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29, 20417,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
Award Type 2017 2016 2015
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (exeluding Market and
Performance Awards) ......... .. it e $26,393 $21,156 $20,779
Stock OpHOnS « .ot e e e e e e e e 4,338 7,165 10,683
Market and Performance Awards . .......... 00t 8,033 4,049 9,950
TOtAl BXPEOSE . o\ttt e et ee et e e e $38,764 $32,370 $41,412

The Company has two incentive plans whereby eligible employees and directors of Jacobs may be granted
stock options, restricted stock, and/or restricted stock units.

Stock Options—Substantially all of the stock options granted during the previous years were awarded on the
same date for all employees and directors (although the date is different for employees and directors). For fiscal
year 2017, there were no stock options granted to either employees or directors. The following table presents the
assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for awards made to employees and directors for the
years ended September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015:

Awards Made to Employees Awards Made to Directors
September 30, Ociober 2, September 30, October 2,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Dividendyield ................. ... ..., — % — % — % — %
Expected volatility ... .......... oot 27.77% 27.00% 29.21% 29.28%
Risk-free interestrate ....................... 1.82% 1.67% 1.44% 1.63%
Expected term of options (in years) ............ 5.82 5.82 5.82 5.82

Market and Performance Awards—The Company granted restricted stock units containing service,
performance, and market conditions (“PSUs"}). PSUs are earned over a three-year performance period if the
specified performance metrics are met. During fiscal 20153, the Company only granted PSUs based on net
earnings growth (“Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs”). For fiscal 2016, half of the PSUs granted were based on
relative total stockholder return (“Relative TSR Based PSUs™) and the other half of the PSUs were based on
earnings per share (“EPS Based PSUs™). For fiscal 2017, half of the PSUs granted were EPS Based PSUs and the
other half were based on return on invested capital (“ROIC Based PSUs™).

2014 and 2015 Awards

The number of Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs awarded in fiscal years 2014 and 2015 which may
ultimately vest is equal to the sum of the following: (1) an amount, not less than zero, equal to one-third of the
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target Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs multiplied by the Net Earnings Growth Performance Multiplier (or,
“NEGPM”, as shown in the table below) determined based upon the growth in the Company’s Adjusted Net
Earnings (as defined in the applicable award agreements under the Stock Incentive Plan) over the period starting
on the first day of the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2014 (in the case of Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs
issued in fiscal 2014), or fiscal 2015 (in the case of Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2015) and
ending on the 1ast day of the Company’s second quarter of fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2016, respectively; plus, (2) an
amount, not [ess than zero, equal to (A) two-thirds of the target Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs multiplied by
the NEGPM determined based upon the average growth in the Company’s Adjusted Net Earnings over the period
starting on the first day of the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2014 (in the case of Net Earnings Growth Based
PSUs issued in fiscal 2014), or fiscal 2015 (in the case of Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs issued in fiscal
2015) and ending on the last day of the Company’s second quarter of fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2017, respectively,
minus (B) the amount determined pursuant to (1) above; plus, (3) an amount, not less than zero, equal to (A) the
target Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs multiplied by the NEGPM determined based upon the average growth in
the Company’s Adjusted Net Earnings over the period starting on the first day of the Company’s third quarter of
fiscal

2014 (in the case of Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2014), or fiscal 2015 (in the case of
Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2015) and ending on the last day of the Company’s second
quarter of fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2018, respectively, minus (B) the amount determined pursuant to {1) and (2)
above.

If the Company’s average growth in Adjusted Net Earnings over the applicable fiscal years during the
respective performance periods is between 5% and 10%, 10% and 15%, or 15% and 20%, the Net Earnings
Growth Performance Multiplier will be determined using straight line interpolation based on the actual average
growth in the Company’s Adjusted Net Earnings,

The following table presents the basis on which the Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs are determined:

Net Earnings
Growth

Performance
Average Adjusted Net Earnings Growth Multiplier
L8 than 576 . ..ottt e e et e e 0%
S v e e e e e e e e e 50%
L0l i e et e e 100%
d b e e e e e e e e e 150%
20 P 200%

Unless stated otherwise, the Net Earnings Growth Based PSUs are valued based on the closing price of the
Company's common stock as reported in the NYSE Composite Price History on their respective grant dates.

2016 Awards
EPS Based PSUs

For the EPS Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2016, the number of restricted stock units to be issued on the
vesting date of November 19, 2018 is based on the Company’s adjusted EPS growth over fiscal 2016, 2017 and
2018, The number of restricted stock units to be issued equals the sum of: (i) an amount, not less than zero, equal
to one-third of the target number of restricted stock units multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier (as
defined below) for that period determined hased upon the growth in the Company’s adjusted EPS (“EPS Growth
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Rate”) from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2016; (ii) an amount, not less than zero, equal to two-thirds of the target number
of restricted stock units multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier determined based upon the Compound
Annual EPS Growth Rate (as defined below) for fiscal 2017 as compared to fiscal 2015, minus the amount of
shares earned pursuant to clause (i); and (iii) an amount, not less than zero, equal to the target number of
restricted stock units multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier determined based upon the Compound
Annual EPS Growth Rate for fiscal 2018 as compared to fiscal 2015, minus the amount of shares carned pursnant
to clauses (i) and (ii}.

The “Compound Annual EPS Growth Rate” for purposes of clauses (ii) and (iii) above means the growth
rate, which when multiplied two times fiscal 2015 adjusted EPS (in the case of clause (ii)) or three times fiscal
2015 adjusted EPS (in the case of clause (iii)) results in a number equal to actual fiscal 2017 adjusted EPS and
fiscal 2018 adjusted EPS, respectively. The “EPS Performance Multiplier” is determined by reference to the
following table based upon the Company’s EPS Growth Rate or Compound Annual EPS Growth Rate over the
relevant fiscal periods. The Human Resource and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company set these metrics based on the Company’s plan at the start of the fiscal year.

EPS

Performance
EPS Growth Rate or Compound Annual EPS Growth Rate Multiplier
Less than 400 .. . ot e e e e 0%
Bl ot e e e e e e e 50%
00 100%
LD . e e e e 150%
e g 1 L 200%

If the EPS Growth Rate or Compound Annual EPS Growth Rate falls between 4% and 7.5%, 7.5% and
15%, or 15% and 20%, the EPS Performance Multiplier is determined using linear interpolation based on the
actual growth in adjusted EPS.

Unless stated otherwise, the EPS Based PSUs are valued based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock as reported in the NYSE Composite Price History on their respective grant dates,

Relative TSR Based PSUs

The number of Relative TSR Based PSUs which may ultimately vest is equal to the target Relative TSR
Based PSUs multiplied by the TSR Performance Multiplier. The TSR Performance Multiplier is determined by
comparing the Company’s total stockholder return to the total stockholder return of each of the companies in a
specified industry peer group over the three year period immediately following the award date. For purposes of
computing total stockholder return, the beginning stock price is the average closing stock price over the 30
calendar day peried ending on the award date (“Performance Period™), and the ending stock price is the average
closing price over the 30 calendar day period ending on the last day of the Performance Period. Any dividend
paymenis made over the Performance Period are deemed re-invested on the ex-dividend date in additional shares
of the applicable company.
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The following table presents the basis on which the Relative TSR Based PSUs are determined:

TSR
Performance
Company TSR Percentile Rank Mff_
Below 30thpercentile .........c i i e 0%
30thpercentile . ... i e e 50%
S0thpercentile . ... . i i i i e e 100%
TOth percentile or above ... ... .ot i i e e e e e 150%

If the Company’s total stockholder return over the Performance Period falls between any of the brackets
described above, the TSR Performance Multiplier will be determined vsing straight line interpolation based on
the actual percentile ranking.

Substantially all of the TSR Based PSUs awarded during fiscal year 2016 were awarded on the same date,
For fiscal year 2017 and 2015, no TSR Based PSUs were awarded. The following table presents the assumptions
used to value the TSR Based PSUs for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and Qctober 2,
2015;

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Dividendyield ..................c..c. ..., — % — % — %
Expected volatility ................ ... — % 25.06% — %
Risk-free interestrate . ..................... — % 1.21% — %
Expectedterm (in years) ................... — 3 —

2017 Awards

For the EPS Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2017, the number of restricted stock units to be issued on the
vesting date of November 16, 2019 is based on the Company’s adjusted EPS growth over fiscal 2017, 2018 and
2019. The number of restricted stock units to be issued equals the sum of: (i) an amount, not less than zero, equal
to one-third of the target number of restricted stock units multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier (as shown
in the table below) for that period determined based upon the growth in the Company’s adjusted EPS (“EPS
Growth Rate”) from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2017; (ii) an amount, not less than zero, equal to two-thirds of the target
number of restricted stock units multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier determined based upon the average
EPS Growth Rate in fiscal years 2017 and 2018 as compared to fiscal 2016, minos the amount of shares earned
pursuant to clause (i); and (iii) an amount, not less than zero, equal to the target number of restricted stock units
multiplied by an EPS Performance Multiplier determined based upon the average EPS Growth Rate in fiscal
years 2017, 2018 and 2019 as compared to fiscal 2016, minus the amount of shares earned pursuant to clauses
(i) and (ii).

The “EPS Performance Multiplier” is determined by reference to the following table based upon the average
growth in the Company’s adjusted EPS over the indicated fiscal periods. The Human Resource and
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company set these metrics based on the Company’s
plan at the start of the fiscal year.
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Average EPS Growth Rate from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2017

EPS
Performance
Average EPS Growth Rate Multiplier
Less than O ..ttt it e i it e i e i e 0
2 100%
LG 200%
Average EPS Growth Rate from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2018
EPS
Performance
Average EPS Growth Rate Multiplier
Lessthan 2090 . ..o i i i e e e s 0
A e e e e e e e e e 100%
B LD e e e 200%
Average EPS Growth Rate from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2019
EPS
Performance
Average EPS Growth Rate Multiplier
Lessthan 3,000 . . . e e e e 0
0 100%
P 200%

If the average EPS Growth Rate falls between the percentages referenced in the tables above, the EPS
Performance Multiplier will be determined using linear interpolation based on the actual average EPS Growth

Rate.

Unless stated otherwise, the EPS Based PSUs are valued based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock as reported in the NYSE Composite Price History on their respective grant dates.

For the ROIC Based PSUs issued in fiscal 2017, the number of restricted stock units to be issued on the
vesting date of November 16, 2019 is based on the Company’s average annual return on invested capital
{(“ROIC”) from fiscal 2017 to fiscal 2019, The number of restricted stock units to be issued equals the target
number of restricted stock units multiplied by an ROIC Performance Multiplier (as shown in the table below)
determined based upon the Company’s average annual ROIC from fiscal 2017 to fiscal 2019,

ROIC
Performance
Average ROIC — Fiscal 2017 - 2019 Multiplier
Less than 8.00h . ..o i i i i e e e e e e e 0%
R 50%
LR O 100%
L0 0 o e e e 200%

If the average annual ROIC falls between 8.9% and 9.9% and 10.9%, the ROIC Performance Multiplier will
be determined using linear interpolation based on the actual average ROIC.
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Concenitrations of Credit Risk

Our cash balances and cash equivalents are maintained in accounts held by major banks and financial
institutions located in North America, South America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and
Asia. In the normal course of business, and consistent with industry practices, we grant credit to our clients
without requiring collateral, Concentrations of credit risk is the risk that, if we extend a significant amount of
credit to clients in a specific geographic area or industry, we may experience disproportionately high levels of
default if those clients are adversely affected by factors particular to their geographic area or industry.
Concentrations of credit risk relative to trade receivables are limited due to our diverse client base, which
includes the U.S. federal government and multi-national corporations operating in a broad range of industries and
geographic areas. Additionally, in order to mitigate credit risk, we continually evaluate the credit worthiness of
our major commercial clients.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to employ estimates and
make assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities; the revenues and expenses
reporied for the periods covered by the financial statements; and certain amounts disclosed in these Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Although such estimates and assumptions are based on management’s most
recent assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances utilizing the most current information available and
past experience, actual results could differ significantly from those estimates and assumptions. Our estimates,
judgments, and assumptions are evaluated periodically and adjusted accordingly.

Earlier in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements we discussed three significant accounting
policies that rely on the application of estimates and assumptions: revenue recognition for long-term construction
contracts; the process for testing goodwill for possible impairment; and the accounting for share-based payments
to employees and directors. The following is a discussion of certain other significant accounting policies that rely
on the use of estimates:

Accounting for Pensions—We use certain assumptions and estimates in order to calculate periodic pension
cost and the value of the assets and liabilities of our pension plans. These assumptions involve discount rates,
investment reterns, and projected salary increases, among others. Changes in the actnarial assumptions may have
a material effect on the plans’ liabilities and the projected pension expense.

Accounting for Income Taxes—We determine our consolidated income tax expense using the asset and
liability method prescribed by U.S. GAAP. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and income tax purposes. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect
changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. If and when we determine
that a deferred tax asset will not be realized for its full amount, we will recognize and record a valuation
allowance with a corresponding charge to earnings, Judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision
for income taxes. In the normal course of business, we may engage in numerous transactions every day for which
the nltimate tax outcome (including the period in which the transaction will ultimately be included in taxable
income or deducted as an expense) is uncertain. Additionally, we file income, franchise, gross receipts and
similar tax returns in many jurisdictions, Our tax returns are subject to audit and investigation by the Internal
Revenue Service, most states in the U.S., and by varions government agencies representing many jurisdictions
outside the U.S.

Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations, and Insurance—In the normal course of business we are
subject to certain contractual guarantees and litigation. We record in the Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts
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representing our estimated liability relating to such guarantees, litigation, and insurance claims. We perform an
analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for both insurance-related claims that are known and have
been asserted against us as well as for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on
actuarial analysis, but have not yet been reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet
dates. We include any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings. In
addition, as a contractor providing services to various agencies of the U.S. federal government, we are subject to
many levels of audits, investigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the U.S. federal government with respect to
contract performance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement practices. We adjust revenues based upon
the amounts we expect to realize considering the effects of any client audits or governmental investigations.

Accounting for Business Combinations—U.S. GAAP requires that the purchase price paid for business
combinations accounted for using the acquisition method be allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based
on their respective Fair Values, Determining the Fair Value of contract assets and liabilities acquired often
requires estimates and judgments regarding, among other things, the estimated cost to complete such contracts.
The Company must also make certain estimates and judgments relating to other assets and liabilities acquired as
well as any identifiable intangible assets acquired.

During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company acquired Blue Canopy LLC. During the second fiscal
quarter of 2017, the Company acquired Aquenta Consulting Pty Ltd. During the first fiscal quarter of 2016, the
Company acquired J.L. Patterson & Associates. These acquisitions were not material to the Company’s
consolidated results for fiscal 2017 or 2016.

On May 19, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with Saudi Aramco to form a 50/50 Saudi
Arabia-baged joint venture company to provide professional program and construction management (“PMCM”)
services for social infrastructure projects throughout Saudi Arabia and across the Middle East and North Africa.
The venture commenced start-up operations in fourth quarter fiscal 2017. Initial funding commitments from each
of the partners include $6.5 million in capital contributions and $7.0 million in partner loans which are expected
to be executed during fiscal 2018. The partners have also committed up to an additional $7.0 million each for
future loans to the joint venture,

New Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition

From time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issues accounting standards
updates (each being an “ASU”) to its Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC™), which constitutes the primary
source of U.8, GAAP, The Company regularly monitors ASUs as they are issued and considers their applicability
to its business. All ASUs applicable to the Company are adopted by the due date and in the manner prescribed by
the FASB.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09— Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new
guidance provided by ASU 2014-09 is intended to remove inconsistencies and perceived weaknesses in the
existing revenue requirements, provide a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues, improve
comparability, provide more useful information and simplify the preparation of financial statements, ASU
2014-09 was initially effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. On
July 9, 2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date of this standard. The revised effective
date for the standard is for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods
therein. The FASB also approved changes allowing for early adoption of the standard as of the original effective
date.
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The Company’s adoption activities will be performed over three phases: (i) assessment, (ii) design, and
(iii) implementation. Our assessment phase is predominantly complete. The following are the potential
significant differences identified during the assessment phase:

Performance Obligations

Under current U,S. GAAP the Company typically considers engineering and construction services as
separate performance obligations. Under ASU 2014-09, the Company has determined that, in most instances, it is
likely that engineering and construction services will be required to be combined into a single performance
obligation. In these instances, this will likely change the timing and pattern of revenue recognition,

Contract Modifications

In many instances, the Company enters into contracts for construction services subsequent to entering in to
engineering services contracts. Under ASU 2014-09, the construction services contract may be deemed to modify
the engineering contract, or may be required to be combined with the engineering contract. This modification or
combination of contracts may result in a cumulative catch-up adjustment, which will have an immediate impact
on the Company’s results of operations in the peried the contract combination or modification occurs. In
addition, it will change the timing and pattern of revenue recognition after the period the contracts have been
combined or modified, '

The Company currently intends to adopt the new standard using the Modified Retrospective application,
This standard could have a significant impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and an
administrative impact on its operations and will depend on the magnitude of the items discussed above. The
Company will continue to evaluate the impact through the design and implementation phases,

Lease Accounting

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02—Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires lessees to recognize
assets and liabilities for most leases. ASU 2016-02 is cffective for public entity financial statements for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those annual periods, Early adoption is
permitted, including adoption in an interim peried. The guidance must be adopted using a modified retrospective
approach for leases that exist or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the
financial statements. The Company is evaluating the impact of the new gnidance on its consolidated financial
statements. This standard could have a significant administrative impact on its operations, and the Company will
further assess the impact through its implementation program.

Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09—Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting. ASU 2016-09 simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification
on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
and interim periods within those annual periods. The Company is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on
its consolidated financial statements and plans to adopt in fiscal 2018.
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3. Employee Stock Purchase and Stock Option Plans
Broad-Based, Employee Stock Purchase Plans

Under the 1989 ESPP and the GESPFP, eligible employees who elect to participate in these plans are granted
the right to purchase shares of the common stock of Jacobs at a discount that is limited to 5% of the per-share
market value on the day shares are sold to employees. The following table summarizes the stock issuance activity
under the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP for the fiscal years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and
Qctober 2, 2015:

For the Years Ended
September 29,  September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Aggregate Purchase Price Paid for Shares Sold;
Underthe 1989 ESPP ... ... . i e $21,084,657 $23,631,241 $28,621,800
Underthe GESPP ... . it i ie e 2,105,834 2,660,067 3,535,479
B e Y $23,190,491 $26,291,308 $32,157,279
Aggregate Number of Shares Sold:
Underthe 1989 ESPP ... ... . i i i 403,652 564,461 696,853
Underthe GESPP ... ... . i i i 39,048 03,196 84,361
B o Y 443,300 027,657 781,214

On January 19, 2017, the Company’s stockholders approved an increase in the number of shares authorized
by 4,350,000 shares for the 1989 ESPP and by 150,000 shares for the GESPP,

At September 29, 2017, there remains 4,545,854 shares reserved for issnance under the 1989 ESPP and
174,980 shares reserved for issuance under the GESPP.

Stock Incentive Plans

We also sponsor the 1999 SIP and the 1999 ODSP. The 1999 SIP provides for the issuance of incentive
stock options, nongualified stock options, share appreciation rights (“SARs™), restricted stock, and restricted
stock units to employees. The 1999 ODSP provides for awards of shares of common stock, restricted stock, and
restricted stock units, and grants of nonqualified stock options to our outside (i.e., nonemployee) directors. The
following table sets forth certain information about the 1999 Plans:

1999 SIP 1999 ODSP Total

Number of shares authorized . ... 0 i i i i 29,850,000 1,100,000 30,950,000
Number of remaining shares reserved for issuance at September 29,

1 9,641,396 539,787 10,181,183
Number of shares relating to outstanding stock options at September 29,

O 2,289450 227,375 2,516,825
Number of shares available for future awards:
At September 29, 2017 .. .. ... e e 7,351,946 312412 7,064,358
At September 30,2016 ... ... ... 7,233,173 319,535 7,552,708

Effective September 28, 2012, all grants of shares under the 1999 SIP are issued on a fungible basis. An
award other than an option or SAR are granted on a 1.92-t0-1.00 basis (“Fungible). An award of an option or
SAR are granted on a 1-to-1 basis (“Not Fungible™).
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The following table presents the Fair Value of shares (of restricted stock and restricted stock units) vested
for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (service

cOndition) ..ottt it i e e e $34,466 $17,481 $18,568
Restricted Stock Units (service, market, and performance

conditions attarget) .. ...t er i 4,183 4,336 11,264
Total .. e e e $38,649 $21,817 $29,832

The following table presents the Company’s total pre-tax compensation cost relating to share-based
payments included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$38,764 $32,370 $41.412

At September 29, 2017, the amount of compensation cost relating to nonvested awards not yet recognized in
the financial statements is approximately $83.7 million. The majority of the unrecognized compensation costs
will be recognized by the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The weighted average remaining contractual term of options
currently exercisable is 4.8 years.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the years ended September 29, 2017,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average
Stock Exercise
Options Price
Outstanding at September 26,2014 ........ .. ... . o i 4,221,147  $53.23
L V1117 614,759 $43.56
R0 T A (34,000) $31.54

............................................. (729,199)  $86.15
Outstanding at October 2, 2015 L. ... . i i ittt 4,072,707 $46.06

L 11 =« O 460,770 $42.17
LT ot £7« (412,416) $40.88
Cancelled orexpired ... .o i i e e (543,549)  $49.13
Outstanding at September 30,2016 . ... ... .. i 3,571,512 $45.69
L V174 — $ —

L5 T (906,648)  $43.79
Cancelled orexpired . ... i i i e i e e (154,039) - $48.79

.................................. 2,516,825  $46.19
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Stock options outstanding at September 29, 2017 consisted entirely of nonqualified stock options. The

following table presents the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised for the fiscal years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$14,713 $4,149 $442

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercisable at September 29, 2017 was approximately
$23.5 million. The following table presents certain other information regarding our 1999 SIP and 1999 OSDP for
the fiscal years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 20135:

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 20615
At fiscal year end;
Range of exercise prices for options
OMEStANTING . . oo e e $32.51 — $80.63 $32.51 — $80.63 $32.51 — $80.63
Number of options exercisable ............... 1,992,022 2,581,421 2,590,560
For the fiscal year:
Range of prices relating to options exercised .... $37.03 ~— $55.53 $36.88 — $55.00 $25.87 — $42.74
Estimated weighted average fair values of options
granted ... $ ~— % 12.80 % 13.41

The following table presents certain information regarding stock options outstanding and stock options
exercisable at September 29, 2017,

September 29, 2017
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining  ‘Weighted Average
Contractual  Average Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Number Life (years) Price Number Price
325183703 ... s 247,875 4.47 $36.99 247,875  $36.99
$A743 —$46.00 ... 1,360,188 5.63 $42.69 890,206 $42.65
$A7. 01— 855,13 L 836,312 5.30 $52.81 788,116  $52.80
$60.08 —F80.63 ... . e 71,950 4.23 $66.92 65,825 $67.52

2,516,825 5.37 $46.19 1,992,022 346,78

The 1999 ODSP and the 1999 SIP allow participants to satisfy the exercise price of stock options by
tendering shares of Jacobs common stock that have been owned by the participants for at least six months, Shares
so tendered are retired and canceled, and are shown as repurchases of common stock in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity,
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Restricted Stock

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued as
common stock under the 1999 SIP for the year ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2,
2015:

For the Years Ended
September 29,  September 30,  October 2,
207 2016 2015
Restricted stOCK « . i i i et i e — 597,001 507,882
Restricted stock units (service condition) .............. 496,951 183,131 126,635
Restricted stock units (service, market and performance
condItiONS) « vt i e e e e, 237,058 372,794 219,965

The amount of restricted stock units issued for awards with performance and market conditions in the above
table are issued based on performance against the target amount. The number of shares ultimately issued, which
could be greater or less than target, will be based on achieving specific performance conditions described in Note
2—Significant Accounting Policies.

The share amounts in the above tables reflect the Non—Fungibfe share counting of one share for each share
of restricted stock and restricted stock unit issued.

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units cancelled and
withheld for taxes under the 1999 SIP for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and
October 2, 2015:

For the Years Ended
September 29,  September 30,  October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Restricted Stock ... oot i e e e e 365,481 512,903 326,480
Restricted stock units (service condition) .............. 128,536 177,640 70,296
Restricted stock units (service, market and performance
CONAILIONS) .+ vt v v e e e e 86,742 275,933 194,115

The amount of unvested restricted stock units cancelled for awards with service and performance conditions
in the above table is based on the service period achieved and performance against the target amount.

The share amounts in the above tables reflect the Non-Fungible share counting of one share for each share
of restricted stock and restricted stock unit issued.

The restrictions attached to restricted stock and restricted stock units generally relate to the recipient’s
ability to sell or otherwise transfer the stock or stock units, There are also restrictions that subject the stock and
stock units to forfeiture back to the Company until earned by the recipient through continued employment or
service.
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The following table provides the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding
at September 29, 2017 under the 1999 SIP. Shares granted in the table below are granted on a 1,92 -to-1.00 basis
(fungible):

September 29,
2017

Total

Restricted stock ... oo i e e e 950,593
Restricted stock units (service condition) .......covereri v rennnan 766,759
Restricted stock units (service, market and performance conditions) ........ 672,440

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued under
the 1999 ODSP for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015:;

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Restricted stock units (service condition) ...... 21,123 23,000 13,500

The following table provides the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding
at September 29, 2017 under the 1999 ODSP:

September 29,
2017
Restricted SEOCK . oottt e e e e e e 34,000
Restricted stock units (service condition) ......covvriniriiinn .. 90,595

All shares granted under the 1999 ODSP are issued on a 1-to-1 basis.

Modification

On January 18, 2017, the Company modified time vested outstanding restricted stock units, paid out in stock
and cash, specifically to allow participants to be entitled to dividend equivalents during the vesting period on the
outstanding RSUs. Dividends will be paid out at the end of the vesting period and are forfeitable before the
vesting period concludes. This modification affected 786 employees and resulted in $1.1 million of incremental
compensation cost and will be recognized over the remaining vesting period for each grant, since dividends are
forfeitable until vesting is achieved.

4. Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted FEarnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed using the two-class method, which is an earnings
allocation method that determines earnings per share (“EPS™) for common shares and participating securities.
The undistributed earnings are allocated between common shares and participating securities as if all earnings
had been distributed during the period. Participating securities and common shares have equal rights to
undistributed earnings. Net earnings used for the purpose of determining basic and diluted earnings per share is
determined by taking net earnings, less earnings available to participating securities.
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The following table reconciles the denominator used to compute basic EPS to the denominator used to

compute diluted EPS for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in
thousands);

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS:
NEtinCOmME vttt e ie it e e e $203,727 $210,463  $302,971
Net income allocated to participating securities ... ................. (3,077 — —
Net income allocated to common stock for EPS calculation ... ..... $290,650 $210,463  $302,971
Denominator for Basic and Diluted EPS:
Weighted average basicshares ............................... 119,370 120,133 125,007
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock compensation plans . ... o o i 77 680 481
Restricted St0CK ... e e i e e e e 1,319 670 622
Diluted Shares . ...vver i ittt e e 121,466 121,483 126,110
Shares allocated to participating securities ... ...........c.ovvveen.. (1,319) — —
Shares used for calculating diluted EPS attributable to common

SEOCK .. e e e e e 120,147 121,483 126,110
Basic B .. e e $ 243 $ 175 § 242
Diluted EPS .. e e e e $ 242 $ 173§ 240

Share Repurchases

On July 23, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program to repurchase up to
$500 million of the Company’s common stock over the ensuing three years (the “2015 Share Repurchase
Program™). As authorized, share repurchases may be executed through various means including, without
limitation, open market transactions and/or privately negotiated transactions. The 2015 Share Repurchase
Program does not obligate the Company to purchase any shares, and expires on July 22, 2018. The timing of
shares repurchases may depend upon market conditions, other uses of capital, and other factors,

The following table summarizes the activity under this program during fiscal 2017 {in thousands, except
per-share amonnts):

Amount Average Shares
Authorized Price Per Retired Shares Repurchased
(in thousands) Share (1) (In thousands) (In thousands)
$500,000 $55.60 1,748 1,748

(1} Includes commissions paid and calculated as the average price per share since the repurchase program
authorization date.

Dividend Program

On December 1, 2016, the Company announced that the Board of Directors has approved the initiation of a
cash dividend program. Quarterly dividends of $0.15 per share were paid in each of the second, third and fourth
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quarters of fiscal 2017. On September 27, 2017, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of
$0.15 per share, which was paid on November 10, 2017, Future dividend payments are subject to review and
approval by the Company’s Board of Directors,

5. Restructuring and Other Charges

During the second fiscal quarter of 2015, the Company began implementing a series of initiatives intended
to improve operational efficiency, reduce costs, and better position itself to drive growth of the business in the
future. We refer to these initiatives, in the aggregate, as the “2015 Restructuring”. These activities evolved and
developed over time as management identified and evaluated opportunities for changes in the Company’s
operations (and related areas of potential cost savings), as economic conditions changed and as the realignment
of the Company’s operations into its four global lines of business was implemented. Actions related to the 2015
Restructuring included inveluntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, combining
operational organizations, and the co-location of employees into other existing offices. We did not exit any
service types or client end-markets in connection with the 2015 Restructuring,

The majority of the costs associated with the 2015 Restructuring are included in SG&A expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. The following table summarizes the impacts of the 2015 Restructuring on
the Company’s reportable segment income by line of business for the years ended September 29, 2017 and
September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017

2016
Aerospace & Technology ........... ..., $ 1,820 $ 5835
Buildings & Infrastructure ... ...o.vvirii i ennnnn 23,675 23,378
Industrial ... i e e e 6,698 29,600
Petroleum & Chemicals .........coivvinriniinnrnnnn. 36,664 87,188
Corporate . ..ot i e et 29,831 41,816
Total Restructuring Charges .......... ..ot $98,688 $187,907

Total 2015 restructuring charges were $157,192 for the year ended October 2, 2015. The activity in the
Company’s accrual for the 2015 Restructuring for the year ended September 29, 2017 is as follows (in
thousands):

Balance at September 30, 2016 . ..., .o i e e $ 152,174
L] 08,688
PayIEnlS . e e e e et e (122,407)
Balance at September 29, 2017 ... it i e e $ 128,455
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The following table summarizes the 2015 Restructuring by major type of restructuring costs for the years
ended September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands);

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Lease Abandonments ..........ccovvnivan.. $55,647 $ 92,643 $ 90,569
Involuntary Terminations . ................. 30,716 85,599 55,313
Outside Services ..ot et et 4,236 7,398 12,734
Other restructuring related costs, net ......... 8,089 2,267 (1,424)
Total ..ot e e $98,688 $187,907 $157,192

Cumulative amounts incurred to date for the 2015 Restructuring by each major type of restructuring costs as
of September 29, 2017 s as follows (in thousands);

Lease ADandomments ... ovren ittt i e e i e $238,859
Involuntary Terminations . . ..ot v ettt e e e rr s n et eenns 171,628
L7 TG T Tt 24.368
Other restructuring related cOSES, NEL v . v v v i vt ine s n it iraanneerss 8,932

B 0] 71 O $443,787

The 2015 Restructuring was completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017.

Also, during the second fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company entered into strategic business resiructuring
activities associated with realignment of its Europe, U.K. and Middle East regional operations in our Buildings &
Infrasiructure segment. Pre-tax net charges of $22.6 million were recorded associated mainly with net realizable
value write-offs on contract accounts receivable of $16.5 million, with additional charges recorded for statutory
redundancy and severance costs of $1.4 million and other liabilities of $4.7 million which are both expected to be
paid or settled within fiscal 2018. Additional charges of $1.2 million werte recorded under this business exit
during third quarter fiscal 2017 associated mainly with contract accounts receivable charges. Further,
management has determined that these business restructuring activities do not qualify for discontinued operations
treatment in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

6. Borrowings
Short-Term Credit Arrangemenis

The Company maintains both committed and uncommitted credit arrangements with several banks
providing for short-term borrowing capacity and overdraft protection. There were borrowings of $3.1 million
outstanding under these short-term credit facilities at a weighted average interest rate of 4.33% at September 29,
2017, and there were borrowings of $2.4 million outstanding under these short-term credit facilities at
September 30, 2016,

Long-term Debt

On February 7, 2014, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $1.6 billion long-term
unsecured, revolving credit facility (as amended the “Revolving Credit Facility™) with a syndicate of large U.S,
and international banks and financial institutions. The following table presents certain information regarding the

F-29



JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Company’s long-term revolving credit facilities at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (dollars in
thousands):

September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016
Prineipal Range Principal Range
Balance of Interest Balance of Interest
Outstanding Rates Outstanding Rates
$235,000 1.0% -2.23% $385,330 1.0% - 1.65%

The total amount outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility in the form of direct borrowings at
September 29, 2017 was $235.0 million. The Company issued $2.5 million in letters of credit leaving
$1.363 billion of available borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility at September 29, 2017, In
addition, the Company had $259.6 million issued under separate, committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit
facilities for total issued letters of credit of $262.1 million at September 29, 2017,

The Revolving Credit Facility expires in February 2020 and permits the Company to borrow under two
separate tranches in U.S. dollars, certain specified foreign currencies, and any other currency that may be
approved in accordance with the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility, Depending on the Company’s
Consolidated Leverage Ratio, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest at either a euro
rate plus a margin of between 1.0% and 1.5% or a base rate plus a margin of between 0% and 0.5%. The
Revolving Credit Facility also provides for a financial letter of credit subfacility of $300.0 million, permits
performance letters of credit, and provides for a $50.0 million subfacility for swingline loans. Letters of credit are
subject to fees based on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio at the time any such letter of credit is
issued. The Revolving Credit Facility also provides an accordion feature that allows the Company and the lenders
to increase the facility amount to $2.1 billion. The Company pays a facility fee of between 0.100% and 0.25%
per annum depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio. Amounts outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Facility may be prepaid at the option of the Company without premium or penalty, subject to
customary breakage fees in connection with the prepayment of eurocurrency loans, The Revolving Credit Facility
contains affirmative, negative, and financial covenants customary for financings of this type including, among
other things, limitations on certain other indebtedness, loans and investments, liens, mergers, asset sales and
transactions with affiliates, In addition, the Revolving Credit Facility contains customary events of default. We
were in compliance with these debt covenants at September 29, 2017,

On September 28, 2017, the Company entered into a Second Amendment to the Revolving Credit Facility,
which provides for, among other things, an amendment to certain financial definitions used in the Revolving
Credit Facility, including “Consolidated EBITDA”. These amendments are effective upon the consummation of
the acquisition of CH2ZM.

On September 28, 2017, the Company entered into a $1.5 billion unsecured delayed-draw term loan facility
(the “Term Loan Facility™) with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders and letter of credit issuers and
BNP Paribas as administrative agent, TD Bank, N.A. and U.S, Bank National Association as co-documentation
agent, BNP Paribas Securities Corp., The Bank of Nova Scotia and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC as joint book
runners, and as joint arrangers.

Subject to certain terms and conditions set forth therein, loans under the Term Loan Facility may be
incurred on the day the CH2ZM acquisition is consummated in order to pay cash consideration for the acquisition,
and to pay fees and expenses related to the acquisition and the Term Loan Facility. The Term Loan Facility has a
three year maturity from the date of initial funding and permits the Company to borrow in U.S. dollars at a base
rate or a eurocurrency rate. Depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, borrowings under the Term
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Loan Facility will bear interest at either a enrocurrency rate plus a margin of between 1.00% and 1.50% or a base
rate plus a margin of between 0.00% and 0.50%. In addition, prior to the date the acquisition is consummated, the
Company must pay a ticking fee of between 0.10% and 0.25% of unused commitments under the Term Loan
Tacility. Amounts outstanding under the Term Loan Facility may be prepaid at the option of the Company
without premium or penalty, subject to customary breakage fees in connection with the prepayment of
CUrQCurrency loans.

The Term Loan Facility contains affirmative, negative and financial covenants customary for financings of
this type, including, among other things, limitations on certain other indebtedness, investments, liens, mergers,
asset sales and transactions with affiliates. In addition, the Term Loan Facility contains customary events of
default. We were in compliance with these covenants at September 29, 2017,

The following table presents certain additional information regarding the Company’s long-term debt for the
fiscal years shown:

2017 2016
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the fiscal year .. ... $659,103  $958,460
Average amount outstanding during the year ......... ... ... o $639,210  $825,641
Weighted average interest rate during the year .. ........... ... ... ..., 1.67% 1.39%

The following table presents the amount of interest paid by the Company during September 29, 2017,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 Qctober 2, 2015

$12,862 $13,282 $15,506

7. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
Company-Only Sponsored Plans

We sponsor various defined benefit pension plans covering employees of certain U.S. and international
subsidiaries. The pension plans provide pension benefits that are based on the employee’s compensation and
years of service. Our funding policy is to fund the actuarially determined accrued benefits where applicable,
allowing for projected compensation increases using the projected unit method.

The accounting for pension and other post-retirement benefit plans requires the use of assumptions and
estimates in order to calculate periodic benefit cost and the value of the plans’ assets and benefit
obligations, These assumptions include discount rates, investment returns, and projected salary increases, among
others. The discount rates used in valuing the plans’ benefit obligations were determined with reference to high
quality corporate and government bonds that are appropriately matched to the duration of each plan’s
obligations. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is generally based on using country-specific
simulation models which select a single outcome for expected return based on the target asset allocation. The
expected long-term-rates of return used in the valuation are the annual average returns generated by these
assumptions over a 20-year period for each asset class based on the expected long-term rate of return of the
undeilying assets.
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The following table sets forth the changes in the plans’ combined net benefit obligation (segregated between

plans existing within and outside the U.S.) for the years ended September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in
thousands):

0.8, Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pension Plans
September 29, Sepiember 30, September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Net benefit cbligation at the beginning of the vear. ...  $185,664 $ 533,665 $1,363,782  $1,155,592
SEVICE COSE v vttt et i i e e e e 1,000 9,875 7,509 14,378
Interest COBt oo i vt i e e e e e 5,757 16,746 31,205 38,802
Participants” contributions ...................... — 1,847 250 2,255
Actuarial (gains)/losses ... ...... .. 0 e (9,922) 29,129 (142,273) 382,691
Benefitspaid ......... ... i i (14,338} (14,143) (40,208) (32,277
Curtailments/settlements ..........covevvivinry.. — (35,224) (1,375) (35,375)
Transfers * .., ... e i s — (356,231) — —
Effect of exchange rate changes and other, net . ., , , . 1,781 — 87,917 (162,374)
Net benefit obligation at the end of the year . ........ $169,942 $ 185,664  $1,306,807 §$1,363,782

*  Pension plan transferred to a new sponsor for the plan

The following table sets forth the changes in the combined Fair Value of the plans’ assets (segregated
between plans existing within and outside the U.S.) for the year ended September 29, 2017 and September 30,
2016 (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-US. Pension Plans
September 29, September 30, Septembex 29, October 2,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year ...  $142,464  § 379,907  $1,003,911 § 896,298
Actual returnon plan assets .........cv i, 18,662 28,835 16,789 242,927
Employer contributions .................... ..., 1,000 10,213 21,005 23,217
Participants’ contributions ....................... — 1,847 250 2,255
Gross benefits paid . ............. .. ...t (14,338) (14,143) (40,208) (32,277
Curtailments/settlements .............c0iinen... o (35,224) (228) (1,863)
Transfers * ... ... i e e — (228,971) — —
Effect of exchange rate changes and other,net ....... — — 75,409 (126,646)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear ........ $147,788 $ 142,464  $1,076,928  $1,003,911

*  Pension plan transferred to a new sponsor for the plan

During fiscal 2017 we curtailed the pension plan in Treland and in fiscal 2016 we curtailed our U.K, and
French pension plans,
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The following table reconciles the combined funded statuses of the plans recognized in the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (segregated between plans existing
within and outside the U.S.) (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pension Plans
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Net benefit obligation at the end of the year ... ...... $169,942 $185,664 $1,306,807  $1,363,782
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year ....... 147,788 142,464 1,076,928 1,003,911
Under funded amount recognized at the end of the
{221 o SO $ 22,154 $ 43,200 $ 229879 $ 359,871

The féllowing table presents the accumulated benefit obligation at September 29, 2017 and September 30,
2016 (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U,8.) (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S, Pension Plans
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Accumulated benefit obligation at the end of the
=1 $169,942 $185,664 $1,291,600  $1,331,884

The following table presents the amounts recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.8.) (in
thousands);

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S, Pension Plans
Sepiember 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Prepaid benefit cost included in prepaid assets . ... ... 5 — $ — $ 3,035 $§ 492
Accrued benefit cost included in current liabilities ... — [ 585 608

Accrued benefit cost included in noncurrent

Habilities ..ottt it i s 22,154 43,200 232,329 359,755
Net amount recognized at the end of the year .., ., ... $22.154 $43,200 $229.879 $359,871

In fiscal 2015 and through June 30, 2016, we were responsible for administering a U.S. pension plan for
participating employees who were assigned to, and worked exclusively on, a specific operating contract with the
ULS. federal government. The costs of this pension plan were fully reimbursed by the U.S. federal government
pursuant to applicable cost accounting standards. As of June 30, 2016, we ceased performing on this operating
contract, and, as such, we are no longer responsible for administering this pension plan. As a result of no longer
administering the plan, we derecognized the plan benefit obligation and plan assets pertaining to the plan
resulting in a decrease of plan benefit obligation by $356.2 million and plan assets by $229.0 million.
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The following table presents the significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses

and the following year’s benefit cost of the Company’s U.S. plans for the years ended September 29, 2017,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015:

For the Year Ended
September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 October 2, 2015
Weighted average discountrates .......... oot 3.5% 3.2 3.9% to 4.0%
Rates of compensation increases ..........cooiii i, — % — % 3.0%
Return on ASSets v v it i e e e 7.5% 7.4% 7.4%

The following table presents the significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses
and the following year’s benefit cost of the Company’s non-U.S, pension plans for the years ended
September 29, 2017, Septernber 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015:

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016

2015
Weighted average discountrates . ... .ov e e in e 1.3% to 7.0% 0.7% t0 7.0% 1.6% to 7.8%
Rates of compensation INCreases ... .vveve i ie i iinnren.ss 2.5% to 7.5% 2.5% to 7.5% 24% 10 7.5%
Expected long-term rates of return onassets . . ............ovenn.. 3.5% to 8.5% 3.5% to 8.5% 3.5% to 8.5%

The following table presents certain amounts relating to our U.S. pension plans recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive (gain) loss at September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30, OQOctober 2,
2017 2016 2015

Arising during the period:

Net actuarial (gain) 108S ... vivrn e ireeae e, $(11,372) $ 4,337 $12,237
Reclassification adjustments:

Netactuarial IoSSES ... h v it et it it rn i ae s (2,431) 2,312) (2,347
TOtAl L i e e e e e e e e, $(13,803) $ 2,025 $ 9,890

The following table presents certain amounts relating to our non-U.S, pension plans recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive (gain) loss at September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2013
(in thousands):

September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2013

Arising during the period:

Net actuarial (gain) loss .. ..o i i e e $(76,360) $102,925  $(27,165)

Prior service cost (benefit) ... .. . i i e 119 580 (1,512)

B3 1 (76,741) 103,505 (28,677)
Reclassification adjustments:

Net actuarial J0Sses ..o u et i it s st (8,732) (7,508) (14,034)

Priorservice cost ... .. i i e e et e 229 163 51

101 1 (8,503) (7,345  (13,983)
Total . e e i $(85,244) $ 96,160 $(42,660)
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The following table presents certain amounts relating to our pension plang recorded in accumulated other

comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost at
September 29, 2017, and September 30, 2016 (segregated between U.S. and non-U.S. plans) (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pension Plans
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016 :
Netactuarial 1055 .ot eie e e ae e e $47,681 $61,483 $218,752 $304,345
Priorservice cost . .....vviv i i e — — (855) (1,203)
Total ..o e $47,081 $61,483 $217,897 $303,142

The following table presents the amount of accumulated comprehensive income that will be amortized
against earnings as part of our net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2018 based on 2017 exchange rates (segregated
between U.S. and non-U.S. plans) (in thousands);

U.s. Non-U.8,

Pension Pension
Plans Plans
Unrecognized netactnarial 1o8s ... ...ttt $3,325  $6,829
Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSE ... .vvvti it i ca e e — (277)
Accumulated comprehensive loss to be recorded against earnings . . . ......... $3,325 $6,552

‘We consider various factors in developing the estimates for the expected, long-term rates of return on plan
assets. These factors include the projected, long-term rates of returns on the various types of assets in which the
plans invest, as well as historical returns. In general, investment allocations are determined by each plan’s
trustees and/or investment committees. The objectives of the plans’ investment policies are to (i) maximize
returns while preserving capital; (ii) provide returns sufficient to meet the current and long-term obligations of
the plan as the obligations become due; and (iii) maintain a diversified portfolio of assets so as to reduce the risk
associated with having a disproportionate amount of the plans’ total assets invested in any one type of asset,
issuer or geography. None of our pension plans hold Jacobs common stock directly (although some plans may
hold shares indirectly through investments in mutual funds). The plans’ weighted average asset allocations at
September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (the measurement dates used in valuing the plans’ assets and
liabilities) were as follows:

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S, Pension Pans
Seplember 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Equity securities ........ .. i 70% % 24% 25%
Debtsecurities ... ..ooovivii i e e 23% 20% 32% 32%
Real estate investments . ........c.cvinennnnn... — % 2% 3% 6%
Oher ..ottt e e e e e, T% T% 39% 37%
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The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s Domestic U.S. plan assets at September 29,

2017, segregated by level of Fair Value measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S.
GAAP (in thousands):

September 29, 2017
Fair Yalue, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs

Level 1 Level 3 Total
U.S. Domestic equities .. .....cvvvvvenn.. $103,760 $ — $103,760
U.S.Domestichonds ..........ovvveen, 33,404 — 33,404
Cashand equivalents .................... 4,448 — 4,448
Hedgefunds .......... ... ..ot — 6,176 6,176
Total .o e $141,612 $6,176 $147,788

The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.S. pension plan assets at
September 29, 2017, segregated by level of Fair Value measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy
promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

September 29, 2017
Fair Yalue, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs

Level 1 Level 3 Total
U.S. Domestic equities .................. $ 30,916 $ — $ 30916
Overseasequities ............cvvvvne.s, 229,205 — 229,205
US.Domesticbonds ......ooooiviinan,., 263,145 — 263,145
Overseasbonds ............... . c.uvu, 77,682 — 77,682
Cash and equivalents .........., . ........ 38,924 — 38,924
Realestate ......... it — 58,974 58,974
Insurance contracts ..............c...... — 74,353 74,353
Other ... i i e = 303,729 303,729
Total .o e e $639,872 $437,056 $1,076,928

The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s U.S. pension plan assets at September 30,
2016, segregated by level of Fair Value measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S.
GAAP (in thousands):

September 30, 2016
Fair Value, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs

Level 1 Level 3 Total
U.S. Domesticequities .................. $ 85,494 $ — % 85,494
Overseas equities . ........ .. oovtinnnnn. 15,169 — 15,169
US.Domesticbonds .................... 28,886 — 28,886
Cashandequivalents .................... 3,723 — 3,723
Realestate .........coviiviinreninnnnns —_ 3,477 3,477
Hedgefunds .............. .. oo — 5,715 5,715
B a7 1 $133,272 $9,192 $142,464

F-36



JACOES ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.S. pension plan assets at

September 30, 2016, segregated by level of Fair Value measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy
promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

September 30, 2016
Fair Yalue, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs
Level 1 Level 3 Total
U.S. Domestic equities .................. $ 31,972  J— $ 31,972
Overseas equities ...........covvievninn 220,179 — 220,179
U.S.Domestichonds .............cvvvns 258,949 — 258,949
Overseasbonds ..................... ... 61,974 — 61,974
Cash and equivalents .................... 63,182 — 63,182
Realestate ..........0covuvrvinvnnnnns, — 55,665 55,665
Insurance contracts ..................... — 39,473 39473
Hedgefunds ...............cvvevvnnnnt, — 272,517 272,517
Total ..o e e e $636,256 $367,655 $1,003,911

At September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, the Company holds no assets in the U.S. or non-U.S,
pension plans that use Level 2 fair value measurement inputs,

The following table summarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s U.S. Pension Plans’
Level 3 assets for the year ended September 29, 2017 (in thousands):

Real Hedge

Estate Funds
Balance at Septermnber 30, 2016 ... .. . i i i e $ 3,477  $5,715
Purchases, sales, and settlements ........... ... i it 3.477) (357)
Realized and unrealized gains . ... i i e e e — 1,018
Balance at September 29, 2017 .. . e s $§ — $6,176

The following table summarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.8S. Pension Plans’
Level 3 assets for the year ended September 29, 2017 (in thousands):

Real Insurance Hedge

Estate Caontracts Funds
Balance at September 30,2016 . ........... ... i $55,665  $39473 $272,517
Purchases, sales, and settlements .. ... ... oo i, (1,199) 422 (9,022)
Realized and unrealized gains (1ossas) ... v vieiiiinnn.. 2,642 (7,572 19,662
Transfers .. o e e e e — 40,031 11,758
Effect of exchange rate changes ............ ... .. .. cinunnn 1,866 1,999 8.814
Balance at September 29,2017 . ..., ... .. i ., $58,974  $74,353  $303,729
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The following table summarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s U.S, Pension Plans’
Level 3 assets for the year ended September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

Real Hedge
Estate Funds
Balance at October 2, 2015 . .. ot e e $9914 $16372
LTS (T T (6,530)  (10,788)
Realized and unrealized gains ................ ettt e 93 131
Balance at September 30, 2016 ..., .. $3477 % 5,715

The following table summarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.S. Pension Plans’
Level 3 assets for the year ended September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

Real Insurance Hedge

Iistate Contracts Funds
Balance at October 2, 2015 ... ..o vt $61,996  $32,522  $260,720
Purchases, sales, and settlements ., . ..........c0 i iiennnn.n. (462) (165) (1,205)
Realized and unrealized gains ........... ... ... 2,572 6,451 57,656
Effect of exchange rate changes ,..........cciiiiinvinnnns (8,441) 665 (44,654)
Balance at September 30, 2016 ., ..., .o i $55,665  $39473  $272,517

The following table presents the amount of cash contributions we anticipate making into the plans during
fiscal 2018 (in thousands): )

U.s. Nen-U.S.
Pension Plans Pension Pans

Anticipated cash contributions ... ......coiiiiiiri i $1,300 $22,574

The following table presents the total benefit payments expected to be paid to pension plan participants
during each of the next five fiscal years, and in total for the five years thereafter (in thousands):

U.s. Non-U.S.
Pension Plans  Pension Pans
22 $21,506 $ 31,063
1) 11,372 32,509
2 11,377 32,923
11 7.2 11,472 36,220
L 11,485 38,086
For the periods 2023 through 2027 ... .. ... . i, 54,747 231,183
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The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s U.S. pension
plans recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30, Oclober 2,
2017 2016

2015

IVICE COSE « vttt ettt it e et e e e $ 1,000 $ 9,875 $12,045
Interest COSt ...t e et e 5,757 16,746 20,629
Expectedreturnon plan assets . .. ... e it e (9,942) (22,368) (29,526)
Actuarial loss ... ... e e 3,085 7,512 3,756
PO SeIVICE oSt i i e e e e — (176) (239)
Net pension cost, before specialitems ..o oo vei i iiin e 800 11,589 6,665
Contractual expense/Settlement 1088 ... ..o o ierer i 1,781 8,061 —
Total net periodic pension cost recognized ............v0vvveeeni.. $ 2,581 $19650 § 6,665

The fiscal 2016 sefttlement loss included in the U.S, pension plan net periodic benefit cost table above
related to the previously discussed transfer of a U.S. pension plan to a new service provider.

The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s Non-U.S,
pension plans recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29, Septentber 30, Ociober 2,
2017

2016 2015
EIVICE COSE v vt vttt ettt e et e e e e $ 7,500 $14,378 $21,374
) (T A o -] A 31,205 38,892 44,659
Expected return on plan assets ... ..ot ir et it e (56,269) (50,190) (53,052)
Actuarial I08s ... o e e e 10,616 9.092 17,398
PrIOr SeIVICE COSE vt i e e ittt s e i e e (329) (260) (96)
Net pension cost, before special items .. ... .. oo oo i i e (7,268) 11,912 30,283
Curtailments and settlements . ... .o i n i e i e i (298) (7,512) 255
Taotal net periodic pension cost recognized ... .. ... ... o i, $ (7,566) $ 4400 $ 30,538

The fiscal 2016 settlement loss included in the Non-U.S. pension plan net periodic benefit cost table above
related to the sale of the Company’s French subsidiary.

Multiemployer Plans

In Canada and the U.S., we contribute to various trusteed pension plans covering hourly construction
employees under industry-wide agreements. We also contribute to various trusteed plans in Australia and certain
countries in Europe covering both hourly and certain salaried employees. Contributions are based on the hours
worked by employees covered under these agreements and are charged to direct costs of contracts on a current
basis,

The majority of the contributions the Company makes to multiemployer pension plans are outside the U.S.

With respect to these multiemployer plans, the Company’s liability to fund these plans is generally limited to the
contributions we are required to make under collective bargaining agreements.,
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Based on our review of our multiemployer pension plans under the guidance provided in ASU
2011-09—Compensation-Retirement Benefits-Multiemployer Plans, we have concluded that none of the

multiemployer pension plans into which we contribute are individually significant to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The following table presents the Company’s contributions to these multiemployer plans for the years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29,  September 30,  October 2,
2017 2016

2015
Canada ... o e s $35,182 $44,912 $42,575
BUTOpE oot i e e $ 6,212 $ 8,771 $10,902
United States ... o0ttt e $ 4,548 $ 5,058 $ 5068
Contributions to multiemployer pension plans .......... $45,942 $58,741 $59,445
Other Benefit Pians

During the second fiscal quarter of 2017, the Company restructured certain employee welfare trust plans
benefitting certain of its employees within its India operations by moving these plans under the legal ownership
and operation of the Company's legal entity structure in the region. Historically, the Company structured these
plans as separate, stand-alone entities outside of the Company’s conselidated legal entity framework. As a result
of these changes, the Company has recorded a one-time, non-cash benefit of $9,9 million reported in SG&A
expense in its Consolidated Statement of Earnings for the vear ended September 29, 2017, with corresponding
assets in the plans associated with restricted investments of $7.7 million and employee loans receivable of
$2.2 million and both recorded in Total other non-current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at
Scptember 29, 2017,

8. Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents amounts reclassified from changes in pension liabilities in other
comprehensive income to direct cost of contracts and SG&A expenses in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 related
to the Company’s defined benefit pension plans (in thousands):

September 29,  September 30,  October 2,
2017 2016 2018

Amortization of Defined Benefit Items:

Actnarial 10888 ... vt $(14,601) $(12,880) $(21,153)

Priorservice cost ....... ..o, 328 260 96
Total Before Income Tax ........c..vivennrnvnnn, (14,273) (12,620) (21,057)
Income Tax Benefit ............ ..., 3,339 2,963 4,727
Total reclassifications after-tax ...................... $(10,934) $ (9.657) $(16,330)

9. Savings and Deferred Compensation Plans
Savings Plans

We sponsor various defined contribution savings plans which allow participants to make voluntary
contributions by salary deduction. Such plans cover substantially all of our domestic, nonunion employees in the
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U.S. and are qualified under Section 401(k) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Similar plans outside the U.S.
cover various groups of employees of our international subsidiaries and affiliates. Several of these plans allow
the Company to match, on a voluntary basis, a portion of the employee contributions. The following table
presents the Company’s contributions to these savings plans for the years ended September 29, 2017,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$82,882 $89,966 $87,973

Deferred Compensation Plans

Our Executive Secutity Plan and Executive Deferral Plans are nonqualified deferred compensation
programs that provide benefits payable to directors, officers, and certain key employees or their designated
beneficiaries at specified future dates, upon retirement, or death. Benefit payments under both plans are funded
by a combination of contributions from participants and the Company, and most of the participants are covered
by life insurance policies with the Company designated as the beneficiary. The following table presents the
amount charged to expense for the Company’s deferred compensation plans for the years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$4,363 $5,792 $5,536

10. Income Taxes

The following table presents the components of our consolidated income tax expense for years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015

Current income tax expense:

Federal ...... ... i i $ 29,297 $ 36,020 § 72,840

State ..o e 8,535 11,336 16,248

Foreign ...... ... ... ....iiiievnninn 31,347 52,259 43,344

Total current taX eXpense . ............. 09,179 99,615 132,432
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):

Federal ............. ... 29,390 6,439 13,337

State . e e 3,407 485 2,295

Foreign ........... ... .o il 3,866 (34,331) {46,809)

Total deferred tax expensc (benefit) ...... 36,663 (27.407) (31,177)
Consolidated income tax expense ............ $105,842 $ 72,208 $101,235
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Deferred taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the amounts recorded as assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the comparable amounts recorded for income tax
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The following table presents the components of our net
deferred tax assets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016

Deferred tax assets:
Obligations relating to:

Defined benefit pension plans .........co i i $ 52299 § 77,834

Other employee benefitplans . ....... ..o i ittt 192,299 179,063

Net Operating LOsSes ..o vv i i eiecin i eieean s nns 136,783 139,125

Self-InSurance Programs . . oo vttt e it e e 489 1,722
Contract revenues and CoSES ..ottt i i et it (18,374) (8,177

Deferred Rent . ..ot i i e e i e e 25,654 7,955

ReSIIUCIUTINE o\ ottt i i e e 18,258 47,792

Other ..o e e e e 19,389 9,933
Valuation AIlOWEIICE . .\ v tr ettt et ettt iernans (58,097) (41,684)

Gross deferred taX a88eL8 . .. vttt et vt it e 368,700 413,563

Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization . ...ttt et (176,327) (154,939
L 11175 N 1 N (1,438) (1,555)
Gross deferred tax liabilities ........... ... ... it (177,765) (156,494)

Net deferretd Tam a558I5 v vttt vttt e e ettt et et e e e $ 190,935  $ 257,060

A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to
be realized based on an assessment of positive and negative evidence, including estimates of future taxable
income necessary to realize future deductible amounts. The valuation allowance at September 29, 2017 and
September 30, 2016 wag $58.1 million and $41.7 million, respectively.

Net operating loss carry forwards of foreign subsidiaries at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016
totaled $490.9 million and $483.4 million, respectively. If unused, foreign net operating losses of $117.1 million
will expire between 2018 and 2037, Net operating losses of $373.8 million can be carried forward indefinitely.

The following table presents the income tax benefits realized from the exercise of nongqualified stock
options and disqualifying dispositions of stock sold under our employee stock purchase plans for the years ended
September 29, 2017, Septernber 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in millions);

For the Years Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$5.20 $1.50 $0.20
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The Company’s conselidated effective income tax rate is generally lower than the US statutory rate of 35%
primarily due to the impacts of favorable tax rate differences in our foreign operations, The following table
reconciles total income tax expense using the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to the consolidated income
tax expense shown in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 29,
2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 {dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
_L i 2016 % 2015 i

Statutory amount ... ure it e a $137,626 350% $100,353 35.0% $150,548 35.0%
State taxes, net of the federal benefit ............. 8,955 2.3% 7,853 2.7% 12,857 3.0%
Exclusion of tax on non-controlling interests ....... 2,223 0.6% (1.418) (0.5%) (9,069) (2.1%)
Foreign:

Difference in tax rates of foreign operations . ., . (16,987) (4.3%) (17,184) (6.0%) (19,180) (4.5%)

Benefit from foreign valuation allowance

Telease ... . e e (3,085) (0.8%) (11,182) (3.9%) (3,372) (0.8%)

Tax deductible foreign currency loss ......... — 0.0% — 0.0% (23,100) (5.4%)

U.K. tax rate change on deferred tax assets .... — 0.0% 8,853 3.1% —  0.0%

Nontaxable income from foreign affiliate . . . ... (3,280) (0.8%) v 0.0% — 0.0%

U.S. tax cost of foreign operations ........... _ 18612 47% 30,850 10.9% 6,814 1.6%
Tax differential on foreign earnings . ............. 47400 (1.2%) 11,337 4.1% (38,838) (9.0%)
Foreigntaxeredits ... (20,454) (5.2%) (44,018) (154%) (21,313) (5.0%)
Uncertain tax positions ............ouvvnininn.. 5,779 (1.5%) 1,449 0.5% 2,281 03%
Other items:

IRS §179D deduction ..........covvvvnn (3,351) (0.8%) (2,153) (0.8%) —  0.0%

IRS §199D deduction ................ ..., (2,113) (0.5%) (2,800) (1.0%) (4,582) (1.1%)

Foreign partnership income/(loss) . ........... (9,861) (2.5%) (2,658) (0.9%) 11,858 2.8%

Otheritems —net ......... .. ivvivneeernnn 3,336 _0.7% 4,263 1.5% (2487) (0.6%)
Totalotheritems ............ . cciviinienn. (11,989 (3.1%)  (3,348) (1.2%) 4,789 1.1%
TaxeS OniNCOME ... . vvr vt ie e ennnennas $105,842 @% $ 72,208 252% $101,255 23.5%

The Company’s conselidated effective income tax rate for the year ended September 29, 2017 increased to
26.9% from 25.2% for fiscal 2016, Key drivers for this year over year increase include the impacts of lower
foreign tax credit benefits and lower benefits from valuation allowance releases on foreign deferred tax assets,
partly offset by favorable impacts of U.S. tax cost of foreign operations, the non-recurrence of 2016 tax rate
change impacts on deferred income tax assets in the UK and favorable impacts from change in uncertain tax
positions.

The Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate for the year ended September 30, 2016 increased to
25.2% from 23.5% for fiscal 2015, The primary components of this increase in tax rate were due mainly o
unfavorable impacts from U.S. tax cost of foreign operations, the non-recurrence of tax deductible foreign
currency losses in fiscal 2015, unfavorable impacts from UK. tax rates changes on deferred tax assets and other
unfavorable items. These unfavorable impacts on the tax rate were partly offset by favorable foreign tax credits
year over year, favorable income levels from our foreign partnerships in 2016 and comparably higher benefits
from foreign valuation allowance releases in fiscal 2016,
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The following table presents income tax payments made during the years ended September 29, 2017,
September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in millions):

September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
$78.39 $116.30 $156,50

The following table presents the components of our consolidated earnings before taxes for the years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
United States arnings . .o v vv vt i it ie i $232,342 $206,159 $283,504
Foreignearnings ...t renn, 160,875 30,364 146,633

$393,217 $286,723 $430,137

United States income taxes, net of applicable credits, have been provided on the undistributed earnings of
the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, except in those instances where the earnings have been permanently
reinvested. At September 29, 2017, approximately $26.1 million of such undistributed earnings of certain foreign
subsidiaries have been permanently reinvested. Should these earnings be repatriated, approximately $6.0 million
of income taxes would be payable,

The Company accounts for unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes. It
accounts for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as interest and penalties (i.e., not as part of
income tax expense), The Company’s liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits was $38.6 million and
$44.2 million at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively, all of which, if recognized, would
affect the Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate. The Company had $36.6 million and $36.4 million
in accrued interest and penalties at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively. The Company
estimates that, within 12 months, $6.5 million of gross, primarily non-U.S. unrecognized tax benefits will reverse
due to the anticipated expiration of time to assess tax. As of September 29, 2017, the Company’s U.S. federal
income tax returns for tax years 2015 and forward remain subject to examination.

The following table presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of nnrecognized tax
benefits for the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
27 2016 2015

Balance, beginning of year ......... ... ... $44,167 $42.666 $41,923
Additions based on tax positicns related to the current

.1 5,900 5,670 6,440
Additions for tax positions of prior years .............. 237 367 —
Reductions for tax positions of prior years ............. (4,524) 2451) (5,697)
Settlement ... ..o s (7,200) (2,085) —
Balance, endof year .. ...t $38,580 $44,167 $42,666
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11. Commitments and Contingencies, and Derivative Financial Instruments
Commitments Under Operating Leases

We lease certain of our facilities and equiprment under operating leases with net aggregate future lease
payments of approximately $753,102 million at September 29, 2017, payable as follows (in thousands):

In fiscal years,

0 G $139,967
201 e e e e 133,609
2020 e e e e 118,207
0 97,062
20 e e e 104,990
Therealter .o i e s 174,269
768,104

Amounts representing sublease income . ...... ... (15,002)
$753,102

‘We recognize rent expense, inclusive of landlord concessions and tenant allowances, over the lease term on
a straight-line basis. We also recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis for leases containing fixed escalation
clauses and rent holidays. Contingent rentals are included in rent expense as accruable. Operating leases relating
to many of our major offices generally contain renewal options, and provide for additional rental based on
escalation in operating expenses and real estate taxes.

The following table presents rent expense and sublease income offsetting the Company’s rent expense for
the years ended September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Rentexpense ...t it ii i $145,344 $151,539 $175,067
Sublease income .......... i (7,052) (7,212) (5,275)
Netrent ... . e e e e $138,292 $144,327 $169,792
Guarantee

‘We are party to a synthetic lease agreement involving certain real and personal property located in Houston,
Texas that we use in our operations. A synthetic lease is a type of off-balance sheet transaction which provides us
with certain tax and other financial benefits. Significant terms of the lease are as follows:

BEndoflease term . ...t i i e et ne e aennes 2025
End of term purchase option (in thousands) ........... ... 0vus. $76,950
Residual value guaranty (in thousands) .........covivvieiivrinnn, $62.412

The Company refinanced the synthetic lease agreement effective July 28, 2015 with a ten<year term. The
new lease agreement continues to gives us the right to request an extension of the lease term. We may also assist
the owner in selling the property at the end of the lease term, the proceeds frem which would be used to reduce
our residual value guarantee. The minimum lease payments required by the lease agreement is included in the
above lease pay-out schedule, We have determined that the estimated Fair Value of the aforementioned financial
guarantee was not significant at September 29, 2017,
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Derivative Financial Instruments

In situations where our operations incur contract costs in currencies other than their functional currency, we
attempt to have a portion of the related contract revenues denominated in the same currencies as the costs. In
those situations where revenues and costs are transacted in different currencies, we sometimes enter into foreign
exchange contracts in order to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies. The Company does not
currently have exchange rate sensitive instruments that would have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements or results of operations.

Letters of Credit

Letters of credit outstanding at September 29, 2017 totaled $262.1 million. Of this amount, $2.5 million has
been issued under the Revolving Credit Facility and $259.6 million are issued under separate, committed and
uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities,

12. Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations, and Insurance

In the normal course of business, we are subject to certain contractual guarantees and litigation, The
guarantees to which we are a party generally relate to project schedules and plant performance. Most of the
litigation in which we are involved has us as a defendant in workers’ compensation, personal injury,
environmental, employment/labor, professional liability, and other similar lawsuits,

We maintain insurance coverage for various aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance programs
have varying coverage limits and maximums, and insurance companies may seek to not pay any claims we might
make. We have also elected to retain a portion of losses that occur through the use of various deductibles, limits,
and retentions under our insurance programs. As a result, we may be subject to future liability for which we are
only partially insured or completely uninsured. We intend to mitigate any such future liability by continuing to
exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms and conditions of our contracts. Our insurers are also
subject to business risk and, as a result, one or more of them may be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations
due to insolvency or otherwise.

Additionally, as a contractor providing services to the U.S. federal government and several of its agencies,
we are subject to many levels of audits, investigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the U.S, federal
government with respect to our contract performance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement practices.
Furthermore, our income, franchise, and similar tax returns and filings are also subject to audit and investigation
by the Internal Revenue Service, most states within the U.S., as well as by various government agencies
representing jurisdictions outside the U.S.

We record in our Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such
claims, guarantees, litigation, and audits and investigations. We perform an analysis to determine the level of
reserves to establish for insurance-related claims that are known and have been asserted against us, and for
insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on actuarial analysis, but have not yet been
reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet dates. We include any adjustments to
such insurance reserves in our consolidated results of operations. Insurance recoveries are recorded as assets if
recovery is probable. Estimated liabilities are not reduced by expected insurance recoveries.

'The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such guarantees, litigation, U.S. government
contract-related audits, investigations and claims, and income tax audits and investigations should not have any

material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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On August 9, 2014, the Company received a Notice of Arbitration from Motiva Enterprises LLC (“Motiva”™)
seeking monetary relief in excess of $8 billion from the Bechtel-Jacobs CEP Port Arthur Joint Venture (“BITV™),
a joint venture between Bechtel Corporation (“Bechtel”} and the Company. On December 30, 2016, the arbitral
panel in this matter issued its unanimous decision, which rejected all of Motiva’s claims and assigned no liability
to BV, the Company or Bechtel.

On September 30, 2015, Nui Phao Mining Company Limited (“NPMC”) commenced arbitration
proceedings against Jacobs E&C Australia Pty Limited (“Jacobs E&C™). The arbitration is pending in Singapore
before the Singapore International Arbitration Centre. In March 2011, Jacobs E&C was engaged by NPMC for
the provision of management, design, engineering, and procurement services for the Nui Phao mine/mineral
processing project in Vietnam, In the Notice of Arbitration dated February 1, 2016, and in a subsequently filed
Statement of Claim and Supplementary Statement of Claim dated February 26, 2016, and an Amended Statement
of Claim dated August 17, 2017, NPMC asserts various causes of action and alleges that the quantum of its claim
exceeds $167 million. Jacobs has denied liability and is vigorously defending this claim. A hearing on the merits
is scheduled to begin on November 27, 2017, The Company does not expect the resolution of this matter to have
a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

On December 7, 2009, the Judicial Council of California, Adminisirative Office of the Courts (“AQC”)
initiated an action in the San Francisco County Superior Court against Facobs Facilities Inc. (“JFI”) and Jacobs
Project Management (“JPM”) and subsequently added Jacobs as a defendant. The action arises out of a contract
between AOC and JFI pursuant to which JFI provided regular maintenance and repairs at certain AQOC court
facilities. AOC has alleged, among other things, that the Jacobs entities are required under California’s
Contractors’ State License Law (“CSLL”) to disgorge certain fees paid by AOC, and the Jacobs entities have,
among other things, cross-claimed for unpaid sums for work performed. On May 2, 2012, the jury returned a
special verdict in favor of the Jacobs entities finding, among other things, JPM was owed approximately
$4.7 million in unpaid fees and that JFT was not required to disgorge the approximate $18.3 million that AOC had
paid for work performed. On August 20, 2015, the California Court of Appeal reversed the jury’s verdict, holding
that JFI had violated the CSLL. The Court of Appeal remanded to the San Francisco County Superior Court for
an evidentiary hearing to determine whether the JFI had “substantially complied” with the CSLL under
California Business and Professions Code Section 7031(e). Establishing “substantial compliance” would prevent
$18.3 million in disgorgement against Jacobs and permit Jacobs to recover $4.7 million. The evidentiary hearing
on substantial compliance was conducted between July 18 and August 5, 2016, On December 29, 2016, the court
issued a Statement of Decision in favor of the Company, finding that Jacobs Facilities had substantially complied
with the CSLL, and entered a judgment in favor of JPM in the amount of $4.7 million plus prejudgment interest.
On January 30, 2017, AOC filed a notice of appeal and has filed its opening brief, The Company’s response is
due in January 2018, subject to any extensions. The Company doees not expect the resolution of this matter to
have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

13. Common and Preferred Stock

Jacobs is authorized to issue two classes of capital stock designated “common stock” and “preferred stock”
(each has a par value of $1.00 per share). The preferred stock may be issued in one or ntore series. The number of
shares to be included in a series as well as each series’ designation, relative powers, dividend and other
preferences, rights and qualifications, redemption provisions, and restrictions are to be fixed by the Company’s
Board of Directors at the time each series 1s issued. Except as may be provided by the Company’s Board of
Directors in a preferred stock designation, or otherwise provided for by statute, the holders of shares of common
stock have the exclusive right to vote for the election of directors and on all other matters requiring stockholder
action. The holders of shares of common stock are entitled to dividends if and when declared by the Company’s
Board of Directors from whatever assets are legally available for that purpose.
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14. Other Financial Information
Receivables

The following table presents the components of “Receivables” as shown in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 as well as certain other related information (in
thousands):

September 29, September 30,

2017 2016
Amounts billed, net ... i e $ 949,060 $1,110,042
Unbilled receivablesandother .. ......o ot v oo 1,118,144 937,552
Retentions receivable . ... ... i i i e 35,339 68,069
Total receivables, DEt . ... v oo e $2,102,543 $2,115,663
Other information about receivables;

Amounts due from the United States federal government included
above, net of advanced billings ..............ccvvviiien.. $ 226,236 $ 235,203
Claims receivable ..t e e e e e $ 4,600 $ 26,061

Billed receivables, net consist of amounts invoiced to clients in accordance with the terms of the client
contracts and are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. We anticipate that substantially all of such
billed amounts will be collected over the next twelve months,

Unbilled receivables and retentions receivable represent reimbursable costs and amounts earned and
reimbursable under contracts in progress as of the respective balance sheet dates. Such amounts become billable
according to the contract terms, which usually consider the passage of time, achievement of certain milestones or
completion of the project. We anticipate that substantially all of such unbilled amounts will be billed and
collected over the next twelve months.

Claims receivable are included in “Receivables” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and
represent certain costs incurred on contracts to the extent it is probable that such claims will result in additional
contract revenue and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably estimated.

FProperty, Equipment, and Improvements, Net

The following table presents the components of our property, equipment, and improvements, net at
September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29,  September 30,
2017 2016

Land . e e e s $ 17,197 $ 16,680
Buildings ..ot s 93,313 91,194
Equipment ...... ... e s 627,609 531,539
Leaschold improvements . ... .o iiinr e s 220,295 221,437
Construction In progress . ... .cvviii it it 21,300 36,764
979,714 897,014
Accumulated depreciation and amgrtization ...................... (629,803) (577,941)

$349911  §$ 319,673
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Miscellaneous Noncurrent Assefs

The following table presents the components of “Miscellaneous noncurrent assets” shown in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016

Deferred iNCOmME taXES ..\ v ettt e i ittt e e e $368,700 $413,563

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies .. .........ovvivnnn. 130,411 122,364

g R 8 1= o1 145,069 178,256

Notes receivable . ..o i i e e e 17,839 18,303

L0 T3 30,003 26,843

1] 1 $692,022 $759,329
Accrued Liabilities

The following table presents the components of “Accrued liabilities” shown in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016

Accrued payroll and related liabilities ................. ... .. $572,946 $561,652

Project-related aceruals ... .. L e 71,815 102,400
Non project-related accruals .............coiiiiiiiinenennnann. 68,025 87,813
Insurance liabilities . ... oo ovr i e e e 67,546 54,984
Sales and other similartaxes ......... ... .ttt 32,163 37,029
Deferred rent . ...oo i e e s 60,593 69,059
Dividends payable ........ e e e 18,180 —

OHRET . . .ttt et e e e et e e e 43,419 25,441
Total . e e e e $939,687 $938,378

Other Deferred Linbilities

The following table presents the components of “Other deferred liabilities” shown in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016

Liabilities relating to defined benefit pension and early retirement

21 2 $254.,483 $402,955
Liabilities relating to nonqualified deferred compensation

ATTANEEIMENLS .ottt e i e st e e e 114,616 123,926
Deferred INCOME fAXES .. o vttt e et e it 177,765 156,494
MSCellanEoms . ..o v it et e e 185,417 178,449
B 07 21 $732,281 $861,824
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Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table presents the components of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” shown in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2017, and September 30, 2016 (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017

2016
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........................ $(386,131) $(245,603)
Adjustments relating to defined benefit pensionplans .............. (265,578) (364,625)
01 TS (1,805) (366)
Total oo e $(653,514) $(610,594)

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

During fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2016, the Company acquired businesses for cash of $150.2 million and cash
and stock of $49.9 million, respectively. The following table presents the non-cash adjustments relating to these
acquisitions made in preparing the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands):

September 29, September 30,
2017 2016

Working capital ... . . e s $ 9,121 $10,023
Property andequipment ...t i 912 879
NOBCUITENE A88ELS . . o vt ettt e et e ettt e s et n e enennsns 35,976 8,192
Deferred Liabilities ......... .o i i (273) —

Goodwill . ... e 104,454 30,849

15, Segment Information

During the second fiscal quarter of 2016, we reorganized our operations around four global lines of business
(“LOB”), which also serve as our operating segments: Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastructure,
Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. We determined that this new organization would better support the
needs of managing each unique set of customers that fall within each segment. As a result of the new
organization, we subsequently realigned our internal reporting structures to enable our Chief Executive Officer,
who is also our Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), to evaluate the performance of each of these
segments and make appropriate resource allocations among each of the segments, For purposes of our goodwill
impairment testing, we have determined that our operating segments are also our reporting units based on
management’s conclusion that the components comprising each of our operating segments share similar
economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria in accordance with ASC 350,

Under the current organization, each LOB has a president that reports directly to the Company’s Chairman
and CEO or CODM. In addition, the sales function, which had been managed centrally for many vears, is now
managed on an LLOB basis, and accordingly, the associated cost is now embedded in the new segments and
reported to the respective LOB presidents. In addition, a portion of the costs of other support functions (e.g.,
finance, legal, human resources, and information technology) is allocated to each LOB using methodologies
which, we believe, effectively attribute the cost of these support functions to the revenue generating activities of
the Company on a rational basis. The cost of the Company’s cash incentive plan, the Management Incentive Plan
(“MIP") and the expense associated with the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (1999
SIP”) have likewise been charged to the LOBs except for those amounts determined to relate to the business as a
whole (which amounts remain in corporate’s results of operations).
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Financial information for each LOB is reviewed by the CODM to assess performance and make decisions
regarding the allocation of tesources. The Company generally does not track assets by LOB, nor does it provide
such information to the CODM.

The CODM evaluates the operating performance of our LOBs using operating profit, which is defined as
margin less “corporate charges” (e.g., the allocated amounts described above). The Company incurs certain
SG&A costs which relate to its business as a whole which are not allocated to the LOBs.

The following tables present total revenues and operating profit for each reportable segment (in thousands)
and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S, GAAP operating profit by including certain
corporate-level expenses and expenses relating to the Restructuring and other charges and CH2M professional
fees and integration costs (in thousands).

For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Revenues from External Customers:
Aerospace & Technology ................... $ 2,360,613 § 2657433 $ 2,924.753
Buildings & Infrastructure .................. 2,452,321 2,253,512 2,458,379
Industrial ... ... i e 2,743,662 2,793,713 2,517,571
Petrolewn & Chemicals ............. . vty 2,466,192 3,259,499 4,214,129
Total ... $10,022,788  $10,964,157  $12,114,832
For the Years Ended
September 29, September 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Operating Profit:
Aerospace & Technology ..................... $ 202,505 $ 203,808 $ 205,368
Buildings & Infrastructure (1) ... ou. ... 193,455 174,648 145,299
Industrial ... ... i i i i 115,262 81,268 126,531
Petroleum & Chergdeals . ... oo oot 113,858 126,604 138,351
Total Segment Operating Profit ............. 625,170 586,328 615,549
Other Corporate Ttems . ... einrnnns (81,595) (60,100) (15,739)
Restructuring and Other Charges . ............ 00 {134,2006) (187,630) {154,283
CH2M Professional Fees and Integration Costs ........ (17,100) — —
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit .......... 392,269 338,598 445,527
Gain (Loss) on disposal of business and investments . ... 10,880 (41,410) (2,909)
Total Other Expense (2) .. ... covviii i, {9,932) (10,465) (12,481)
Earnings Before Taxes .. ..o veininnn 5393217 $ 286,723 $ 430,137

(1) Excludes $ 23,844 in restructuring and other charges for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2017.
{2) Years ending September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 include Restructuring and other charges of
$1,233 and $277, respectively.

Included in “other corporate items” in the above table are costs and expenses which relate to general
corporate activitics as well as corporate-managed benefit and insurance programs, Such costs and expenses
include: (i) those clements of SG&A expenses relating to the business as a whole; (ii) those elements of the
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Management Incentive Plan and the 1999 SIP relating to corporate personnel whose other compensation costs are
not allocated to the LOBs; (iii) the amortization of intangible assets acquired as part of purchased business
combinations; (iv) the quarterly variances between the Company’s actual costs of certain of its self-insured
integrated risk and employee benefit programs and amounts charged to the LOBs; and (v} certain adjustments
relating to costs associated with the Company’s international defined benefit pension plans. In addition, “other
corporate items” includes adjustments to contract margins (both positive and negative) associated with projects
where it has been determined, in the opinion of management, that such adjustments are not indicative of the
performance of the related LOB and therefore should not be attributed to the LOB.

Inciuded in gain on disposal of business and investments for the year ended September 29, 2017 was a gain
on the sale of the Company’s ownership interest in the Neste Jacobs joint venture. Included in loss on disposal of
business and investments for the year ended September 30, 2016 was the losses associated with the sale of the
Company’s French subsidiary and a non-cash write-off on an equity investment.

We provide a broad range of technical, professional, and construction services including engineering,
design, and architectural services; construction and construction management services; operations and
maintenance services; and process, scientific, and systems consulting services, We provide our services through
offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, South America, Europe, the Middle East, India,
Auvstralia, Africa, and Asia. We provide our services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts.

The following tables present total services revenues for each reportable segment for the three years ended
September 29, 2017, September 30, 2016 and October 2, 2015 (in thousands):

For the Year Ended
September 29, 2017
Aerospace & Buildings & Petroleum &
Technology Infrastructure Industrial Chemicals Total
Technical Professional Services Revenues
Project Services ...t nn.. $ 960,374 $2,185,220 $ 196,171 $1,464,098 $ 4,805,863
Process, Scientific and Systems
Consulting .............cooiiinn., 774,063 — — 31,081 805,144
Total Technical Professional Services
Revenues ...........c.ouvunn. 1,734,437 2,185,220 196,171 1,495,179 5,611,007
Field Services Revenues
Construction .. ....oovvvv e i 250,956 254,118 1,901,299 967,888 3,374,261
Operations and Maintenance (“O&M™) .. 375,220 12,983 646,192 3,125 1,037,520
) Total Field Services Revenues ... .. 626,176 267,101 2,547,491 a71,013 4411,781
Total Revenues . .......c.cvrvevinnennnns. $2.360,613 $2,452,321 $2,743,662 $2,466,192 $10,022,788
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For the Year Ended

September 30, 2016

Aerospace & Buildings & Petrolenm &
Technology Infrastructure Industrial Chemicals

Total

Technical Professional Services Revenues

Project Services ,.......ovevvrnnren.. $ 910,290 $2,054,282 § 891,018 $1,843,250 $ 5,738,840
Process, Scientific and Systems
Consulting ...........o0vivvenenn. 803,654 — — 48,675 852,329
Total Technical Professional Services
Revenues .........c.covvvvnnn. 1,713,944 2,094,282 851,018 1,891,925 6,591,169
Field Services Revenues
Construction . ... v oo i e 171,614 119,463 1,601,562 1,366,251 3,258,890
Operations and Maintenance (“O&M™) .. 771,875 39,767 301,133 1,323 1,114,098
Total Field Services Revenues ..... 943,489 159,230 1,902,685 1,367,574 4,372,088
Total REVENUES ........ovvvivrvnianrnins $2,657,433 $2,253,512 $2,793,713 $3,259,49% $10,964,157
The following table presents certain financial information by geographic area (in thousands):
For the Years Ended
September 29,  Septemnber 30, October 2,
2017 2016 2015
Revenues:
United States . ..ottt it e it et e $ 5822843 § 6,247.448 § 7,154,433
315 () o< 2,262,092 2,346,224 2,074,837
L7 T 590,604 927,942 1,065,651
-3 T N 253,167 209,052 304,393
India . oo e e e e 165,295 187,929 163,871
Australiaand New Zealand ............0 e irnrrnn. 628,945 436,670 611,271
South Americaand Mexico .......cooiiii i, 73,456 125,610 143,014
Middle East and AfTica ... ov it i e e e 226,386 392,382 597,362
Total o e e e $10,022,788 $10,964,157 $12,114,832
Property, equipment and improvements, net:
United States ... vt it c i i et e i e $ 220416 $ 195,392 $ 208,155
BUrope ..o e 46,108 37.163 55,713
L T . 18,435 21,464 36,647
ASIa L e e 2,793 3,069 3,859
3T T 19,191 13,350 16,264
Australinand New Zealand . ......... .. ... 0o i, 18,692 18,888 24,460
South America and MexXico . .. ..o oo i e i e e ns 4,619 5,621 9,127
Middle BEastand Africa ...... ... 0 i 19,657 24,726 27,013
Total e e e $ 349911 $ 319673 $ 381,238

Revenues were earned from unaffiliated clients located prirhari]y within the various and respective

geographic areas shown.
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The following table presents the revenues earned directly or indirectly from the U.S. federal government and
its agencies, expressed as a percentage of total revenues:

For the Years Ended
September 29, 2017 September 30, 2016 October 2, 2015
19.2% 21.4% 21.7%

16, Selected Quarterly Information—Unaudited

The following table presents selected quarterly financial information. (in thousands, except for per share
amounts):

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
September 29, 2017
Revenues ............covvvvnn, $2,551,604  $2,302,567(1) $2,514,751()) $2,653,866 $10,022,788%
Operating profit{a) ............. 88,628 68,1730 128,475(f) 106,993 392,269
Earnings before taxes ........... 85,880 60,491 127,356 119,450 393,217
Net earnings of the Group ........ 61,153 44,1635 88,629 93,428 287,375
Net earnings attributable
toJacobs ...........u.ienn, 60,536(f) 50,018(f) 89,032(f) 94,141(F)(g) 293,727
Earnings per share:
Basic ...........cov i, 0.50(6) 0.41(f) 0.74() 0.78(D(g) 243
Diluted ................... 0.50() 0.41(H) 0.74(D) 0.78(5)(g) 242
September 30, 2016
Revenues ...........ovvnvuninns $2,847,934  $2,781,763  $2,693,873 $2,640,587 $10,964,1537
Operating profita) ............. 59,450 86,781 109,556 82,811 338,598
Earnings before taxes ........... 57,787 90,456 102,807 35,673 286,723
Net earnings of the Group . ....... 50,300 63,389 70,937 20,883 214,515
Net carnings attributable
toJacabs ......... .. .. 46,514(b) 65,250(b} 69,055(b) 29,644(b) 210,463
Earnings per share:
Basic ..........coovniin, 0.38(b) 0.54(b) 0.58(b) 0.25(b) 1.75
Diluted ................... 0.38(b) 0.54(b) 0.57(b) 0.24(b) 1.73
October 2, 2015
Revenues ....oovvvevnennnennn. $3,187,005  $2,903,332  $2,907,541 $3,116,954 $12,114,832
Operating profit (@) ............. 158,223 133,045 100,434 53,825 445,527
EBarnings before taxes ........... 154,695 128,962 97,188 49,292 430,137
Net earnings of the Group ........ 106,195 88,110 97,308 37,269 328,882
Net earnings attributable
toJacobs ......... . 100,079 81,967(c) 91,062(c) 29,863(c) 302,971
Earnings per share:
Basic ........... ... 0.78 0.65(c) 0.74(c) 0.25(c) 2.42
Diluted . .................. 0.77 0.64(c) 0.73(c) 0.24(c) 240

{a) Operating profit represents revenues less (i) direct costs of coniracts, and (ii) selling, general and
administrative expenses.

() Includes costs of $48.1 million, or $0.39 per diluted share, in the first quarter of fiscal 2016, $25.7 million
or $0.21 per diluted share in the second quarter of fiscal 2016, $25.8 million, or $0.21 per diluted share, in
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the third quarter, and $36.0 miltion or $0.3 per diluted share in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, in each
case, related to the 2015 Restructuring, Also included in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016 were

$17.1 million, or $0.14 per diluted share related to the loss on sale of our French subsidiary; and

$10.4 million, or $0.09 per diluted share related to the non-cash write-off on an equity investment,

(c) Includes costs of $9.6 million, or $0.08 per diluted share, in the second quarter of fiscal 2015, $30.1 million
or $0.24 per diluted share in the third quarter of fiscal 2015, and $68.2 million, or $0.56 per diluted share, in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, in each case, related to the 2015 Restructoring.

(d) Includes costs of $47.0 million, or $0.35 per diluted share, in the third quarter of fiscal 2014, and .
$30.4 million, or $0.23 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, in each case, related to the
2014 Restructuring.

@ Includes $6.4 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, increase to net earnings related to a gain on the sale of
certain intellectual property in the second quarter of fiscal 2014,

() Includes costs of $31.7 million, or $0.18 per diluted share, in the first quarter of fiscal 2017; includes
$16.5 million in revenue, $72.2 million in operating profit, $45.2 million in net earnings attributable to
Jacobs, or $0.37 per diluted share, in the second quarter of fiscal 2017; includes $1 million in revenue,
$10.7 million in operating profit and $6.3 million in net earnings attributable to Jacobs, or $0.05 per diluted
share, in the third quarter of fiscal 2017; includes $19.5 million in operating profit, $13.6 million in net
earnings attributable to Jacobs, or $0.11 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017, in each case,
related to restructuring and other charges.

(g) Includes costs of $10.6 million, or $0.09 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017 related to
professional fees and integration costs for the CH2ZM acquisition.

17. Definitions

The following terms used in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and these Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements have the meanings set forth below:

“1989 ESPP” means the Tacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1989 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended
and restated. The 1989 ESPP is a sharcholder-approved, broad-based, employee stock purchase plan qualified
under Section 423 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

“1999 ODSP” means the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as amended and
restated. The 1999 ODSP is a shareholder-approved, equity-based compensation plan covering Jacobs®
non-management directors.

#1999 SIP” means the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.
The 1999 SIP is a shareholder-approved, equity-based compensation plan covering the Company’s officers and
key employees.

The “2015 Restructuring” refers to a series of initiatives intended to improve operational efficiency, reduce
costs, and better position the Company to drive growth of the business in the future. Actions included involuntary
terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, and the co-location of employees. Included in the
Company’s consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2017, fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2015 are pre-tax costs of
$98.7 million, $187.9 million and $157.2 million, respectively, relating to the 2015 Restructuring. These costs
are primarily included in SG&A in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings,

The “2014 Restructuring” refers to a serics of initiatives intended to improve operational efficiency, reduce
costs, accelerate the integration of SKM, and better position the Company to drive growth of the business in the
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future. Actions included involuntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, and the co-location
of employees. Included in the Company’s consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2014 are pre-tax costs of
$93.3 million relating to the 2014 Restructuring. These costs are included in SG&A in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

“ASC” refers to the Accounting Standards Codification as maintained by the FASB. The ASC is the primary
source of U.S. GAAP to be applied by the Company and all other nongovernmental entities. The ASC organizes
and presents hundreds of previously separate pieces of authoritative accounting guidance into a single on-line
research database. The accounting principles promulgated by the ASC are organized therein by broad topics, and
are updated by the FASB through the issuances of ASUs.

“ASU” means Accounting Standards Updates, the primary means by which the ASC is updated by the
FASB.

“Company” (including “we”, “us” or “our”) means Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates,

“Consolidated EBITDA” generally means consolidated net earnings attributable to Jacobs, plus consolidated
(i) interest expense, (i1} tax expense, and (iii) depreciation and amortization expense (including amortization
expense relating to intangible assets).

“Consclidated Funded Indebtedness™ generally means the sum of (i) the balances outstanding under all loan,
credit, and similar agreements for borrowed money (including purchase money indebtedness), (ii) all amounts
representing direct obligations arising under letters of credit, (iii) indebtedness in respect of capital leases and
similar financing arrangements, and (iv) the value of all gnarantees issued with respect to the types of
indebtedness described in (i) through (iii).

“Consolidated Leverage Ratio” means, as of any date of determination, the ratio of (i) the Company’s
Consolidated Funded Indebtedness as of such date to (ii) the Company’s Consolidated EBITDA for the
immediately preceding four consecutive fiscal quarters.

“EPS” means earnings-per-share. “Basic EPS” is computed by dividing the consolidated net earnings
attributable to Jacobs by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period.
“Diluted EPS” is computed in a manner similar to the computation of Basic EPS, but gives effect to all dilutive
securities that were outstanding during the period. Our dilutive securities consist of nonqualified stock options
and restricted stock (including restricted stock units)

“Fair Value” means the price that would be received from selling an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in
an orderly transaction between market participants as of the date fair value is determined (i.e., the “measurement
date”). When determining fair value, U.S. GAAP requires that we consider the principal or most advantageous
market in which we would transact any sale or purchase. U.S. GAAP also requires that the inputs (factors) we
use (consider) to determine fair value be considered in the following order of priority:

+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 inputs are ohservable inputs (other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1)
such as (i) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, (i) quoted prices in markets that have
insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (i.e., less active markets), and (iii) model-driven
valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or
corroborated with, observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and
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* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the fair
value measurement.

“FASB” means the Financial Accounting Standards Board. The FASB is the designated organization within
the U.S. for establishing standards of financial accounting that govern the preparation of financial reports by
nongovernmental entities,

“GESPP” means the Jacebs Engineering Group Inc, Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended.
The GESPP is a sharcholder-approved, broad-based, employee stock purchase plan covering employees of
certain of Jacobs” non-U.S. subsidiaries.

#Group” refers to the combined economic interests and activities of Jacobs and the persons and entities
holding noncontrolling interests in the subsidiaries and affiliates that are consolidated into the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements,

“Jacobs™ means Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
“U.5. GAAP” means those accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the United States.
“U.8. IRC” means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“VIE” means a “Variable Interest Entity” as defined in U.S. GAAP. A VIE is a legal entity in which equity
investors do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support or, as a group, the holders of the equity investment at risk lack any one of the
following three characteristics: (i) the power, through voting rights or similar rights, to direct the activities of a
legal entity that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance; (ii) the obligation to absorb the
expected losses of the legal entity; or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual returns of the legal entity.
Accordingly, entities issning consolidated financial statements (i.e., a “reporting entity**) shall consolidate a VIE
if the reporting entity has a “controlling financial interest” in the VIE, as demonstrated by the reporting entity
having both (i) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic
performance; and (ii) the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE or
the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE,
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholdets
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc,

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and
subsidiaries as of September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the
period ended September 29, 2017. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries at September 29, 2017 and
September 30, 2016, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
fiscal years in the period ended September 29, 2017, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of
September 29, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated
November 21, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

{5/ Ernst & Young, LL.P

Dallas, Texas
November 21, 2017

F-58



Report of Ernst & Young LLP
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

We have audited Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as
of September 29, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria).
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the affectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects, Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro] based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Becanse of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
confrols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of September 29, 2017, based on the COSO criteria,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc, and subsidiaries as of
September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016 and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended September 29,
2017 of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated November 21, 2017 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/S{ Ernst & Young, LLP

Dallas, Texas
November 21, 2017
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COUNTY OF NABSAT

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM
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6. Listall affiliated and related compatiies and their relationship 1o the fivm entered on ling

1. abgve (if none, snter “Nane”). Attach a sepasate disclosure form Tor zach affiliated or
subsidinry company that may talcs patt in the performance of this.contract. Such disclosire shall
‘b updated to include affiliated o subsidiary comparies not previously disclosed that partisipate
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDORS DISCLOSURE FORM

4. List narnes and addresses of all. prinmpais, ‘that Is, alf individoals serving on the Board

.nf Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all gorporate officers,
alf parfies of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limitad liability companies

: {atta{:i% additional sheets If necessary)
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Vice Presidant
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_ New York, NY 10018
752923005 | JE Architests/Engineers, P.C {717 Muin Strpnt
o . e | Fort Workh, TX 76102
800529415 | Leightisher Inc. | 1999 Bryan Strest, Suite 1200 |
s L o | Dallas, T4 75201
1 22:3584442 | Jacobs Telacommunications fic. 299 Madison Avenue
e , | Marristain, Nl 07962
-13-3914330 | lfland Kevanagh Waterbury, PLLC | 500 7™ Averive, 17% Floor
’ _ ' | ‘New York, NY 10018
800078175 | CH2M Hill New Yark, Ine. 122 Gartlandt Stregt
R j.“(&'éfﬂﬂﬁbﬁﬂmpﬁﬂ?} w*, ﬂiNEW’?’m!’k NY ?Qﬁﬁ?

farcbs Project Maragement Co. 1§ subrmiltiing this-propesal but we acknowledge that thereare
geveralJacoby entitias that condutt business In New York. Wéare aware of the requirermeiits

regarding conflicts of | Interest and will adhere to those requirements dutlfig the daraﬁm of the
agreement if swarded the contract,




AMENDMENT NQ. 1

THIS AMENDMENT Ne. 1 (this “Amendment”), dated as of fhe -date this
Amendment is executed by the County of Nassau, between (i) Nassau County, & municipal
corporation having its principal office at 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, New York 11501
{the “County™), acting on behalf of the Departmetit of Public Works having its prineipal
office at 1194 Prospect Avente, Westbury, New York 11590 and (if) Jacebs Project
Magagement Co., having its principal office at 1305 Franklin Ave, Suite 245, Garden City,
Y 11830 (the “Firm™ ),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to County confract mimber$35121-09M between the County
and the Firm, executed on behalf of the Cﬁunty on Augyst 27, 2014 (the “Ongu_:gal
Agreement™), the Firm performed certain services for the County in connesetion with
Constfiiction Managerhent Services, which services are more flly described in the
Ougn:mal Agreemnerit (the sprvices contemplated by the Original Agreement, the

#Services”};

WHEREAS, theterm of the Original Agreement was from August27, 2014through
July 27, 2018 (the. “Orzgmai Term™); through notice of gxtension the term of the agreement
was extended to July. 27,2019.

WHEREAS, the County and the Contractor desite to extend the Original Term;

- NOW, THEREPORE, in ecotsideration of the premises and mutudl covenants
contained in this Amendment, the parties agree ds follows:

1. Term Bxtension, The Term of the Original Agreement shall be extended by
ong (1) year so that the termination of the Original Agreement, as amended by this
atnendment (the “Amended Agreemeit”™) shall be July 27, 2020.

2. Full Foree and Bffect, Allthe terms and conditionis of the Original Agreenient
notexpressly amended by this Amendment shall remzin in full force and effect and gouvern
the relationship of the parties for the term of the Amended Agreement.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as-of the
-date first ahove wektfen,

Jacobs Project ﬁ?iagﬁme:ﬁt Company

By: L/Q

s

“Wame: VifcentMangiere _
litle: ¥ice President

Dats: Jure 18, 2018

NASSAU COUNTY

Bw

Name:

Title: County Bxecutive

Deputy County Executive
Date:

PLEASE EXECUTE IN BLUB INK



STATE OF NEW YORK)

Js8.1
CQUNTY OF NABSAU)

On the 18th dayof June in theyear 2019 before-me persondlly
came VingentA. Mangiers ‘to me personally known, who, being by me duly
sworh, did deposerand say that hie or she resides in the County . of Westchsster ; that.
he or 8his is the Vice President of Jacobs Projéct Management Co. , the

cptporation described herein and which executed the above instruitient; and that he or she
signed his or her name thereto by autharity of the board..qf _e;c’sor's* of gald corporation.

me‘f ?%auc sma OE NEW‘!UBK

NOTARY PUBLIC Rl
o. (160

| ADCKLAND GOLNTY. |

| W%?QESEN wmssiufei‘sz’f?
STATE OF NEW YORK)

Jas.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU )
Onithe  dayof in the-yoar 201 before me personally

came to wig perspnally known, who, beiig by me duly
sworn, did depese and say that he or she residesin the County of i that

fie orshie is County Executive of the County of Nassau, the municipal corporation
deseribed herein and which executed the-above instrument; and that he or she signed his
or her name thereto pursuant to Seetion 205 of the Connty Government Law of Nassan
County.

NOTARY PUBLIC



3. Compliance with Law,

(&) Prohibition of Gifts. In accordance with County Executive Order 2-2018, the
Contractor shall not offer, give, or agree to give anything of value to any County employee,
agent, consultant, construction manager, or other person or firm representing the County (a
“County Representative”), including members of a County Representative’s immediate family, in
connection with the performance by such County Representative of duties involving
transactions with the Contractor on behalf of the County, whether such duties are related to this
Agreement or any other County contract o matter. As used herein, “anything of value” ghall
include, but not be limited to, meals, holiday gifts, holiday baskets, gift cards, tickets to golf
outings, tickets to sporting events, currency of any kind, or any other gifts, gratuities, favorable
apportunities or preferences. For purposes of this suhsection, an immediate family member
shall include a spouse, child, parent, or sibling. The Contractor shall inelude the provisions of
this subsection in each subeontract entered into under this Agreement,

(£ Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest. Tn accordance with County Executive Order 2-
2018, the Contractorhas disclosed as part of its response to the County’s Business History
Form, or other disclosure form(s), any and all instances where the Contractor employs any
spouse, child, or parent of a County employee of the agency or departinent that contracted or
procured the goods and/orservices described under this Agreement. The Contractor shall have
a contipuing obligation, as clrcumstances arise, to update this disclosure throughout the term of
this Agreement.

L)
Signawe t
é/mf /9

S L7 Vice President

e

Date



FW: Sludge Dewatering Amendment Zero Tolerance Policy Page 1 of 1

FW: Sludge Dewatering Amendment Zero Tolerance Policy

Mangiere, Vinny

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2019 9:48 AM

To: Posner, David N.; Xenakis, Gus X.
Attachments: Jacobs 535121-09M Amendmen~1.pdf (241 KB)

| hereby attest to the fact that ! signed the attached document.

Vincent A. Mangiere, PE|Jacobs | Vice President| 646-908-6665|917-734-0314 cell
vinny.mangiere @jacobs.com| 500 7th Ave. 17th Fl New York, New York 100138 |

From: Posnher, David N.

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2019 9:46 AM

To: Mangiere, Vinny <Vinny.Mangiere@jacobs.com>

Cc: Xenakis, Gus X. <Gus.Xenakis@jacobs.com>

Subject: Sludge Dewatering Amendment Zero Tolerance Policy

Vinny,

The County Attorney has asked for proof that you have signed the Zero Tolerance Policy document since there
was no space for you to print your name. An email from you will suffice.

Please send me an email directly with the document attached to this email indicating that you have signed the
document. | will then forward to the County.

Thank youl

Regards,
David

JACOBS Global Buildings North America | David Posner | Senior Budget Manager | 516.535.1932
desk | 516.526.5541 cell | 516.571.9675 fax | David. Posner@Jacobs.com <mailto: David. Posner@Jacobs.com>

cfo Nassau County DPW
1194 Prospect Avenue
Westbury, NY 116590

www.jacobs.com

https://mail jacobs.com/owa/?ac=ltem&t=IPM.Note&id=RgAAAADITXAoburwQY%2{P... 6/26/2019



1.

4,

Appendix LY
Certificate of Compliance

In compliance with Local Law 12006, as amended, the Proposer/Bidder hereby certifies the
following:

The managing principal of the Proposer/Bidder is:

Jacobs Project Management Company (Name)

1303 Franklin Avenue, Suite 245, Garden City, NY 11530 (Address)

{516) 307-1320 {Telephone Number)

The Proposer/Bidder agrees to comply with the requirements of the Nassau County Living Wage
Law, and with all applicable federal, state and local laws,

In the past five years, Proposer/Bidder has___ ¥ has not been found by a court or a
government agency to have violated federal, state, or local laws regulating payment of wages or
benefits, labor relations, or occupational safety and health. If a viclation has been assessed by the
Proposer/Bidder, describe below: .

In the past five years, an administrative proceeding, investigation, or government body-initiated
judicial action has Y has not been commenced against or relating to the
Proposer/Bidder. If such a proceeding, action, or investigation has been commenced, describe
below:

See attached

* The answers to the questions on this questionnaire that pertain to affiliates of the
business submitting the questionnaire, Jacobs Project Management Co., are responsive
for United States affiliates only. Jacobs Project Management Co. operates in the United
States only.



5. Proposer/Bidder agrees to permit access to work sites and relevant payroll records by authorized
_Cﬁunty representatives for the purpose of monitoring compliance with the Living Wage Law and
investigating emplovee complainis of noncompliance.

I hereby certify that I have read the foregoing statement and, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, it is true, correct and complete. Any sfatement or repressnitation made herein shall be
aceurate and true as of the date stated below

3/2é/f?

ated

Sworn to before me this

267 day of M"?m}?

/’

Signature of Vice President

Vincent A Mangiers

MName of Vice President

L2017

NESRKA c::zu :
Nafary Publie - Stale of New York

NO, BHIL6167612

Aok U

Notary Public

‘ Cueliffed In Brom Gounf
 my Commission Ex ,QQZAW?




Response to Item 4

Jacobs Project Managetment Co. (JPMCo.) entered Into an agreement with the New York City Housing
Authority (NYCHA) effective April 2014 to provide construction management services in connection with
various projects related to NYCHA's Hurricane Sandy Restoration Program. Under the Agreement
Jacobs was issued a Task Order for a project developed by NYCHA to repair damages caused by
Superstorm Sandy in crawl spaces beneath NYCHA developments located in the boroughs of Manhsttan,
Brooklyn and Queens in New York City. The Project was divided into two phases; Phase | was an
environmental assessment of the crawlspaces and Phase 2 was the remediation based on the
assessment.

The Construction Contractor was awarded the Construction Contract with NYCHA. It was the
Construction Contractor that was responsible for and performed all construction services, pursuant to its
contract with NYCHA, including but not limited to the removal of debris, remediation of ACM in soil and
hazardous materials, the re-insulation of piping in the crawlspaces, including the measurement of
same. JPMCo. only provided construction management services and performed no construction in the
crawlspaces.

The New York City Inspector General (IG) has notified participants on the Project that there are significant
discrepancies betwsen the claimed quantity of removals and re insulation of piping in the crawlspaces
and the actual installed quantity as measured by their agents. The IG is conducting an investigation on
the Project. Jacobs was unaware of the discrepancy prior to the information provided by the (G and has
been cooperating with the IG. Jacobs has not been notified that it is a target of the investigation and does
not believe that it will become a target of the investigation.



COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Office of the County Executive
Att:  Brian J. Schneider, Deputy County Executive

FROM: Department of Public Works
DATE: April 3, 2019

SUBJECT: Sludge Dewatering Facilities Improvements Construction Management Services
Extension of Time
Agreement No.: 835121-09M
" Encumbrance No.: CFPW 14000036
Capital Project No.: 35121

This Department is requesting approval to amend the existing personal services agreement $35121-09M
with the firm Jacobs Project Management Co. This amendment is necessary to continue with the
construction management services in connection with the Dewatermg Facilities Improvements Project
at the Bay Park STP.

Jacobs has been providing construction management services for the subject project; however, the term
of their personal services agreement, having already been extended one (1) year, expires on July 27,
2019, It is the intent of this Department to amend the existing agreement to extend those services for an
additional year to July 26, 2020, without an increase in fee.

The Dewatering Facilities Improvements Project entails a complete renovation of the facility and the
installation of dewatering centrifuges. It was issued NTP on December 7, 2015. Substantial completion
is currently forecast for April 30, 2019; however, it is projected that the coordination and final approvals
for the fire alarm system and resolution of some equipment warranty issues will not be resolved until
the end of 2019.

If you approve or disapprove of the above request, please signify below and return the memo to this
office for appropriate action.

Kenneth G, Arnold
Commissioner

KGA:VFE:xp
c: Cliristopher Nolan, Deputy Budget Director
Vincent Falkowski, Deputy Commissioner
Roseann D’ Alleva, Deputy Commissioner
Loretta Dionisio, Assistant to Deputy Commissioner
Edward Visone, Assistant Superintendent of Sanitary Construction
Eric Mills, Hazen/Arcadis IV

APPROVED: DISAPPROVED:

| W / z/2 /i /

Brian J. Sefneider Dafe Brian J. Schneider Date
Deputy CSunty Executive Deputy County Executive

SAADMINALetters for Signature\Water Management\Petfettin§35121-09M DCE Memo Extension of Time.doex




k3 TalE £

U5 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OFFIGE OF JUBTICE PROGRAMS
 DFEFIGE OF THE:GOMPTROLLER

o ~ Cerfification Regarding ,
Debainent, Suspension, inaligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
' Lower Tier Govered Transactions

I This cariifcalion 15 required by the TegulaRons implsmentng Execuive Drder 12549, Debarmant

| andl Suspension, 28 CFR Part-87, Seciion 87,610, Patlicipants’ responsibilifles, The regulations |

| were published as Part VILof the May.26, 1988 Faderal Reglster {pagés 1918018211},

" (BEFORE COMPLETING CERYIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

Tristiglble, o voluntatlly exclided from particlpelion In -thié transaction by ahy Faderal

| department uf egancy, - _ . _
| {2} Where tha prospactive lower fier particlpant Is Uniable to-cerlify to any of the staterents iy
this certification; such prospective participant shall attach an-sxplanation i thiz proposgal:

Vingent 4, Mangiere, RE Vics Presldent tleslass
| Name and Tife of Authorized Representalive T . i

]

e . Bote

| Jucobs Projset Management Co.
Raprig of Organization

| 500 7th Avenue, 1Tt Fléot New York, NY 10018
Addreas of Organization o

| (1) The prospeative lower Het partisipant eeriifies, by submisslon of s proposal, that neither & |.
jhor fts prindipals ere presently debarved, suspended, preposed for debarment, deciared

e OIP ORI 06111 (FEV, £159) Frovios 6dions a7s OhROIE

1A OZUHA o
e - §laie of Maw Yotk
momelsiaz
B a7 |

R R AT

cni erve et et 50 2 i ST T




Instructions for Gertifioation

4. By signing and submitting this propasal, e prospactive tower tier- parfisipant Is -providing the
cetifoation set out below, .

2, The pertification 1 this clause s a matatlal reprasantation.of fact tpon Whish blianes Was placed whsh
this: teansaction was entered info. If 1t 8 Jatdr determined that the prospectve lewer tigr participant’
knawlngly rendered an attonsous sertifioation, Jn eddition to. offier. romedies awallable % the Federal
Governtent, the department or agency with which ¢ dransaction. ofiginated may piirstie available
temadies, including suspension and/or debanment: ' - - '

3. The prospactive lower ter participant Shall-piovide Inrediste written notics to the parson to which s
propgosal s subriltted if at any fime the prospeotive lower ier partiolpant lsams that jts vertification: was
greanebus when submitted br has begome erronaous by réason-of changed clroumstanges,  «

4, The-teims "covered tmnsaclion,” “debarred,” 'suspended,” “inaligble," "lower tier covered transaation,"
"parflolpant,” "person,* "primiaty covered transaction, "pHincipal," “proposes,"and “voluniatlly excluded.™ as
. used In-this tlause, have the meanligs set out In: the Definliions snd Coverage. sections -of nilas
implementing Executive Order 12649, ‘ '

8, The prospective lowar Yer participant agrees. by submitting this. proposel that, should the proposed
coverad transection be entered into, it shiall nut knawingly enter Into any lowsr fler covered transaction with
& person whia'ls deberred, suspended, daclared Ineligible, of volurtarlly exciuded from pariiolpation in this
covered transaction, unlees aisthorized by the departraent or agency with whish this transaction orlginated,

& The prospective Jower tier particlpant further agrées by submiting this propessl el it wiil- Intlude the
clauss tilled, "Corlifivation Regarding Debarment, Suspenakin, inslighility ahd Voluntary Exclosion ~ Lower
Tier Coverad Tramasotion," without modiffcation I all lowsr Her sovered transactions snd s all saliciations
for lower fier soversd trangastions.: ' '

7i A participant In' & covered trangaction may rely ipon a cetfification of 2 prospective pariclant in s dwer
Har ouverad transaction thet it Is not debarred, suspanded, ineligibla, or volurdarily exdluded from tha
eovered tansaotion, unless it knows. that the cerfification is “erroneaus. A participant may- decide-the
-method and frequenay-by which It determiies the eligibility of s principals. Eact participant mey thesk s

Nonprocurement Ligt

8. Mothing-contained in {heforegoing shall be sonatrued t require establishment of a systam of reports In
“ordar fo rander I goor falth the veriification required by this eclase, The kriowisdge and jnformation ef &
partigigant is not requirad fo exceed that whish'is normally possessed by & prudent parson.in the ordingiry
coursa of businass dealings. ' o

- Exeept for bansastions-authorlzed under paragraph 5 of these Instuotions, if a parficipant In « goverad
Transaction knbwingly erters Into a fower Yier covered ‘ehsaction with & person who Is. suspended,
debanisd, ineligible, or veluntary exchuded from parficipsation in this tansaction, in. addition 1o other
remedies avallable {0 the Federal Sovernment, the department or agency. with- which this transaction

otighnated may pursue avallable ramedies, insluding suspension andior debarment.




Aﬁf@” CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE T

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUGER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUGER LIC #0437153 1-212-548-1306 SRHEACT
Marsh Risk & Ingurance Services PHONE FAX
" ,1-212-948-1308

GIRT'S Bupport@jacobs.com LA, Mo, B {AIC, Nol:

633 W, Fifth Street ADDRESS;

INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Loz Angeles, CA $0071 INSURER A : ACE AMER INS CO 22667
INSURED INSURER B :

Jacobs Project Management Co.

INSURER G :

¢/0 ¢lobal Risk Management INSURER D ;

1000 Wilshire Blwd., Suite 2100 INSURERE :

Log Angeles, CcaA 90017 INSURERE :
- COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56388656 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TC THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM CR CONDITICN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUER| POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY HDO G71565129 07/0L/19 | 07/01/20 | EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR PREMISES {Ea accurrence) $ 500,000
X | CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY MED EXP {Any one person) $ 5,000
I PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poLicy |:| B |:| LOG PRODUCTS - GOMP/OP AGG | $ 1,000,000
OTHER: _ $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (En acdident) $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED :
AUTOS ONLY ALITOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB GLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED | | RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION ¥ | PFER QTH-
A | AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY viN SCF 65892327 (WI) 07/01/1% | 07/01/20 | STATUTE | ER
B |ANYPROPRIETCR/PARTMEREXECUTIVE WCUCEEE92285 (AK, LA, QH, TEOF/01/19 | 07/01/20 | Et, EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,0C0,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? III NiA
A |i{mandatary In NH) WLE C65892248 (AOS) 07/01/19 | 07/01/20 | g\ piseasE - EaEMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe undar
DESCRIPTIGN OF OPERATIONS Safow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A |PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY BON (21655065 0QLQ 07/01/1% | 07/01/20 [ PER CLAIM/PER AGG | 2,000,000
"CLATMS MADE™ AGGREGATE 4,000,000
DEFENSE INCLUDED

DESGRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATICONS ! VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additicnal Remarks Schedule, may be atfached if more space is required)

QFFICE LOCATION: New York, NY 101Z1. PROJECT MGR: Vinny Mangiere. RE: Compreshensiwve Construction and Post-Constructio
Phasa Services. CONTRACT NUMBER: S35121-09M. CONTRACT END DATE: 2016. SECTOR: Public. *$2,250,000 SIR FOR STATES OF
LA, OH, TX. WNassau County is added ag an additional ingured for general liability as respecte the negligence of the
insured in the performance of imsured's gervices te c¢ert holder under contract for captioned work. *THE TERMS,
CONDITIONS, AND LIMITS PROVIDED UNDER THIS CERTIPICATE OF INSURANCE WILL NOT EXCEED OR BROADEN IN ANY WAY TEE TERMS, !
CONDITIONS, AND LIMITS AGREED TO UNDER THEE AFPLICABLE CONTRACT.* i

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION i

) SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
County of Nassau Department of Public Works THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Attention: Mr. Damon Urso
Cadar Creek WPCP/Building 'R', 3rd Floor/3340 Merrick Rcad AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Wantagh., NY 11793-4311 _ W |
I USA - :

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reservad.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
Cert_Renewal
56388696




DATE

SUPPLEMENT TO CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 86/05/2013

NAME OF INSURED: Jacobs Project Management Co.

SUPP (10/00)




LAURA CURRAN KENNETH G, ARNOLD, P.E.

NASSAU COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMISSIONER
COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
1194 PROSPEGT AVENUE
WESTBURY, NEW YORK 115902723
June 27, 2018

Gus Xenakis, Program Manager
Jacobs Project Management Company
1305 Franklin Avenue, Suite 245
Garden City, New York 11530

Re:  BayPark Sewage Treatment Plant
Sludge Dewatering Facility Improvements
Construction Management Services ‘
Agreement No, S35121-09M
Extension of Time Request

Dear Mr. Xenakis:

We are in receipt of your attached letter dated June 27, 2018 requesting a one (1) year time
extension for the above referenced contract. The term of the subject agreement was forty-
seven (47) months commencing on August 27, 2014 and terminating on July 27, 2018, By
routual agreement both Nassau County and Jacobs Project Management Company, agree to
extend the agreement for one (1) year to July 27, 2019. You are hereby advised that an
extension of time for construction management services is granted to July 27, 2019. All other
terms and conditions of the agreement remain the same.

Should you have any questions, please contact Mr, Damon Urso of this office at 516-571-
7534.

Very truly yours,

Kenneth G. Amold, D.E,
Commissioner of Public Works

KGA:VExp
Attachment
c Vinny Falkowski, Deputy Comumissioner for Environmental Programs
Damon Urse, Sanitary Engineer ITE
Artem K, Jacobs
Eric Mills, Hazen & Sawyer
Josephine Santoro, Hazen & Sawyer
Matt Duffy, Inspector, Office of the Comptroller

KAADMIN\Letters for Signature\Water Management\Perfettivg35121-09M Time Ext Jacobs.doc




Contract ID¥: 53512 1-00M

€ X (Capital)

E-196-

(FPwI40000 3¢

Department Pub lic Wotks

Cx

Addl Funds

4) Vendor Ownership & Mgmt. Disclosure Attached; __4-¥es XN [

Contract Details SERVICE;

NIFS ID #: NIFS Entry Date: Term: from{omsagmet to 47 months
New X Renewal ] 1) Matidated Program: Yes X | Nol ]
Amendment 1 Z) Comptroller Approval Form Atlached: Yes X | NoL]
Time Extension  [_] 3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance Attached: Yes X | No [}

O
L

Blanket Reschition ,
RES# 5} Insurance Required

( Yes X ]

Agency Information

1305 Franklin Avenus Vineent A. Mangiere,

Wame Yendar ID# Dapatiment Contact
JACOBS PROJECT 35-2%21289 Kenneth G. Arnold,
MANAGEMENT CO. Agsistant to Commissioner
Address Cantact Person Address

1194 Prospect Ave.

. Westhury, NY 11590-2723
Garden City, NY 11530 P.E,,Vice President . ’
Phone Phone
(212) 246-2230 516-571-9667
Routing Slip
Department NIFS Entry (Depy) [
{ NIFS dppvl {Dept, Head) ]
DPW (Capital Only) | CF Capital Pund Approvel [}
OMB NIFS dpproval ]
- . CA RE & fnsyrance !
-7/'5,'1; 4 County Attorney Verificatlon " ,M
N I ‘
County Attorney CA Approval as to form E
Legislative Affairs Iéﬁ of Qriginal Contract to r
Rules [ )/ Leg. [ [
County Attorney NIFS dpproval L4
Comgpirolier NIFS dpproval @K’/{

Notarization

County Executive Filed with Clevk of the Leg. ||

KAADMINWLettors for Signatore\Waler ManagementiShin\StaftSumForm.Jacobs Dowater CM.061014.DWU.doc



Contract Summary

Contract ID#: 835121.09M Departinent: Public Works

Description: Construction Management Services Agreement for the Bay Park Sewage Treatrnant Sludge Dewatering
Facility Demolition and Improvements

Purpose: Agreement to provide Construction Management Services for the Bay Park STP Sludge Dewatering Facility
Demolition and Improvements construction coniract $35121-09R, and future 835121-09G.

Method of Procurement: Qualification Based Selection (QBS) procedure for the procurement of professional services,

developed in accordance with procedures stipulated in the Board of Supervisor’s Resolution 928-1993 and the County
Executive’s Order No. 1-1993,

Procurement History: A Request for Proposal (RFP) was advertised in Newsday and the County Website on April 4, 2014
with technical proposals received on April 25, 2014, Eight (8) Firms responded to this REP, All of the Firms except one

(1) were considered local Firms (Firms having a main or branch office in Nassau or Suffolk Counties), After review of the
Technical Proposals and Costs, JACOBS was deemed the highest technical rank.

Description of General Proyisions: This Agreement provides for complete Construction Management Services including

furnishing resident engineer, inspectors, schedulers, cost estimators, evaluation of contractor clalms and other construction
related services.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Funding for these sefvices to be provided under this Agreement will come from
Capital Project 35123. JACOBS propesed fes was determined to be fair and reasonable. This forty-seven (47) menth
Agreement has a maxitmum payment limitation of $4,550,000,

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: Not applicable

Recommendation: . Approve as submitted

Advisement Information

Fund; . CSW. ke | Revenue Contract [ 1 $ 4,550,000
Control: 35 W' County § 4,550,000 2 $
Resp: 123 Federal 3 3 3
Dbject: 4003 State 3 AU,y J;f Mm//q p / VaE
Transaction; Cupital 3 O R T 4

Other $ O .‘.;; Y T '”’“*““ i
; i TOTAL | § 4,550,000 TOTAL | $ 4,550,000

% Increase
Doeument Prepared Damon W, E‘I‘SQ, Sanitary Enginegr X1  Dater June 16, 2014
fi e T R 7 X AR AR

) ; . Name.
1 carliy ot 15 Cooumentwas eecested ito IES, \ | sorfity thal anupsncumbsred betonce sUlliclen to cover this conimt is

praaentin Uk appropadadion o be chargad.

S d O | RPN

Dale 1{'\\\%\\ \% Bate = / o / » _— Y For Offce sz Gib)

KAADMIMN\Lettors for Signature\Water Management\ShimStatfSumTForm.Jasubs Dewater CM.061014. WU, dos
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RULES RESOLUTION NO, 937 2014

A RESCLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EBXECUTIVE
TO BXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, AND JACOBS

PROIECT MANAGEMENT COMPANY.

Passed by the Rules Commities
Rasspr Courty Logisiature

" By Valise Votp mﬂ__};&ﬁ_f -

VOTING: 5
ayen_J_wayes,_¢) wbstalned S revawed, O,
Legislators prosentt 7

Wl--IERBAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement

with Jacobs Project Management Company, to provide construction

management services for the Bay Parkk Sewage Treatment Sludge

Dewatering Facility Demolition and Improvements, a copy of which is on

file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County

Legislature authorizes the County Bxaecutive to execute the said agreement

with Jacobs Project Management Corpany.




RULES RESOLUTIONNO. -2014

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE
TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, AND JACOBS
PROJECT MANAGEMENT COMPANY.

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agrecment
with Jacobs Project Management Company, to provide construction
management services for the Bay Park Sewage Treatment  Sludge
Dewatering Facility Demolition and Improvements, a copy of which is on

file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County
Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement

with Jacobs Project Management Company,



Te L - | DY
REQUEST TO INITIATE To b5 %’ﬁ‘zlmumbm%

—
P, i

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL/REQUEST FOR BID CONTRACT ‘

PARTI: Approval by the Deputy County Executive for Operntions must be ohisined prior to ANY RFQ/RFP/RFBC

1 REQ ] i RFF [l RFBC D In-Iouse or Requirements Work Order

gy

Project Title: Bay Park Sewage Treatment Plant Sludge Dewatering Facility Demolition/Improvements (835121-00M)
Department: Public Works Project Manager: Damon Urao Date: June 11, 2014

Service Requested: An agresment with a qualified firm to provide Construction Management {CM) services for the Bay Park
Sludge Dewalering Facility.

Justification: This agreement will provide staffing to ensure that the required management, inspections, speoialty inspections, and
scheduling services are available during the construction phase of the project (demolition and installation),

i{equested by: Water/Wastewater Enpineering Unit Department/ Agency/Office

Project Cost for this Phase/Contract: (Plan/Design/Construction/CM/Equipment)  $4,550,000.00 (Includes Contingencies)

Circle appropriate phase
Total Project Cost; $63,000,000.00 Date Start Work; July 27, 2014 Duration: 47 Months
Includes, deslgn, construction and CM Phase being requested Phase being requested

Capital Funding Approval:  YES [T} NO[]

SIGNATURE . DATE
Funding Allocation {(Capital Project):
See Attached Shest if multiyear
NIFS Entered ATM Eaterad;
SIGNATURE i DATE SIGNATURE DATE
Funding Code: Timeshest Code;

use this on alt “encumbrances use this on timeshests

State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA): -
Type IT Action [_] or, Bavironmental Assessment Form Required U
Supplemental Environmental Documentation

Department Head Approval; YES [] No{]

SIGNATURE

DCE/Ops Approval; ves b woll

SIGNATURE

PART II: To beswbmitted to Chief Deputy Couniy Executive after Qualifications/Proposals/Contraets are recelved from yvesponding vondors,

1 Vendor Quote Comment See Attached Sheet ||

2.

3.

n

DCE/Ops Approval: YES NO Signature I
S8MEKGAI LD cs

KAADMINAL eiters for 8 ipnaturebWater ManagemenfShin\Request to Initiste Form Jacobs, CM.06 1084, DWHU.doe !
et
ool |



COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Civil Service Employees Association, Nassau Looal 830
At Ronald Gurrierd, Exeoutive Vice President

FROM: Department of Public Works

DATE; June 17,2014

SUBJECT:  CSEA Notification ofa Proposed DPW Construction Management Contract

Proposed Contract No, 835121-0¢M
Capital Project No, 38121

The following notification is to comply with the spirit and intent of Sectlon 32 of the County/CSEA
contract. It should not be fmplied that the proposed DPW contract/agreement is for the work which hus
“historically and exclusively been performed by bargaining unit members",

L.

3.

4,

DPW plans to recommend a contrast/agreerment for the following services:

Construction Management Services .

The work involves the following:

Seape of Work: Management of the General congtruotion conteact for the Bay Park STP Sludge
Dewatering Facility demeolition snd installation, which when completed will include four (4) new
dewatering cenirlfliges.

An estimate of the eost Is: 54,550,000.00

An estimate of the duratlon is:  Forty-seven (47) months

Should you wish to propose an alternative to the proposed conbract/apreement, please respond within ten
(10) days to: Department of Public Works, Att: Kenneth . Arnold, Assistant to Commissioner, telsphone
1.9807, fax 1-9657.

Kenneth (. Atnold .
Assistant fo Commissioner

KGAJLD:es
¢!

Christopher Fuseo, Divector, Office of Labor Relations

Kelth Cromwell, Office of Lahor Relations

Willian 8. Nimme, Deputy Commissioner

Joseph L. Davenport, Unit Head, Water/Wastewater Engingering Unfi
Patricia Kivo, Unit Head, Human Regsources Uit

Damon W. Urso, Sanitary Bngineer II1

Loretta V. Dionisio, Hy<rogeologist 11

4 EAADMINLatters for Sipnaturc\Water ManagemantShind>SE A, MotiGeation - Mamo-CM Dewater, 0611 14, 3wvat.dog



COUNTY OF NASSAU
" DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Qffice of the County Exceutive
Aft:  Riohard R, Walker, Chief Deputy County Executive
FROM: Deperiment of Public Works
DATE; June 10, 2014
SUBJECT: Bay Park STP Sludge Dewatering Facility

Selpetion of Finm for Construction Management Services
Proposed Agreement Mo, 535121-09M

This Department intends o procure a firm to provide construction management services through 2 personal service
agreement, in regard to Consttnetion Managemsit (CM) for the Bay Park Sludge Dewatering Facility Permanent Repalr and
Mitigation Project. Services shall include a full-time vesident englneer, inspection, office enginear, monitoring and reviewing
contractor’s CPM seheduling, perform cost estimating, and other ¢onstruction administrative services.

Firms were requested to submit technical and cost proposals It secordance with the Department’s Request for Proposa)
(RFF) dated April 4, 2014, The REP was prepared in accordance with the Department’s policy for assessing teohnisal
undarstanding, statemant of qualifications and proposed projust schedule. The R¥P was posted an the County’s webslia and
advertised in Newsday. ik

Proposals from eight (8} firms wore received on April 25, 2014. The technical proposals wers evaluated by professionals
from within the Department of Public Works, FoHowing the review, the technical rank was established and the cost proposals
wore reviewed. The results of the technical evaluation re surnmarized below, along with each firm's total praposed project
fee bused upon project duration of forty-four (44) months,

Proposed Cost with

Firm Name Rank Rating Proposad Cost Contingency
Jacobs 1 $9.3 $3,815.014.00 $4,963,418.00
Genneit Fleming 2 34.0 $2,072,009.00 $2,693.612.00
Dvirka & Bartilucci 3 83.3 $1.990,000.00 i2,587,000,00
HAKS 4 82.3 $4,147,935.00 $5,302,313.00
Lockwood, Kessler & Barlett 5 813 $3,484,868.00 54,530,328.00
ABCOM ] 8.0 $3,563,742.00 $4,632.865.00
Savin Engineers ¥i 78.8 $4,126,027,00 £5,363,835.00
Haider Engineering 3 718 $4,145,100.00 $5,388,630.00

When reviewing the cost proposals in more detall, it was found that two (2) of the firms significantly underestimated the
stalling required to appropriately manage znd ovorses the construction petivitics. A project of this magnitde necossitutas a
full-time staff of four (4) or more, including the resident engineer, office englneer, and two (2) full-time inspection staff, as
weall as sufficient additional man-hours for speclal inspections, cost estimating and other as-needed services. The cost
proposal submitted by Gannett Fleming, based 1pot the man hour summary, only provides for2,8 full-time employees. The
cost proposal submitted by Pvirka and Bartliucel only provides for 2.6 full-time emptoyees, In each instance, if some portien
of the proposed man-howrs is to be set aside for special/periodic serviees, it further reduces the number of full-time
employees,

Additicnally, white the proposal from Jucobs received the highest technical rating, it was believed that clarification to the
basis for thelr proposed cost was necessary. A discussion was held with representatives of Jacabs to discuss the scepe of
services. Subsequent to this diseussion, Jacobs submitted a revised cost proposal of £3,500,000.00 {$4,550,000.00 with
contingency) for this project.

RMADMINLetiers Por SlgnalurétWater Manugamen(Shin$35121-00M DI 3P Sludge Bewir CoBxeo Res Moo Chd Jacobs.JLD Aoy



Office of the County Exscutive

“hme 10, 2014

Page 2

Subject:  Bay Park STP Sludge Dewatering Facility
Selection of Firm for Construction Management Services
Proposad Agreement No, 335121-00M

Considering the forsgolng, ihe following technical ranklng with adjusted proposed costs was developed;

Adjusted Cost with

Firm Name Rank Raiting Adjusted Proposed Cest Contingency
Jacoby 1 82,3 $3,500,000,00 $4,550,000.00
Ganett Fleming 2 8§40 $3,508,748.00 $4.561,372.00
Dvirka & Bartilucct 3 835 $3,671,295.00 $4,772.684.00
HAKS 4 £2,3 $4,147,933.00 $5,392,313,00
Lockyeood, Kessler & Bartlett 5 81.3 $3,484,868.00 $4,530,328.00
ABCOM 6 3.0 $3.563,742,00 $4.632.863.00
Suvin Englneers 7 78.8 B4, 128 027.00 $5.363,835.00
Haider Engineering & 71.8 $4,145,140.00 £5.388,630.60

In owr professional judgment, the proposal subritted by Jacobs,

having received the highesttechnical ratlng and propos ing a

reasonable cost, represents the best value to'ths County. Therefore, we recommend proceeding with o Personsl Serviee
Agreament with Jacobs for $3,500,000.00 to provide Construction Management Services for the Bay Park Sludge
Dewatering Facility Project, iy

The funding for these professlonal servives is available under Capital Project No. 35123, It Is expected dnt the full aost of
these services will be eligible for reimbursentent by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMAYunder the Robart
T, Stafford Disaster Relief and Fmergency Assistance Act.

I accordance with the procsdiral guidelines, CSEA has been natified of this proposad agreement,

Please signify below if you approve or disapprove of our recommendation after which we will fmplement the next
appropriate Depariment procedure(s),

Iljcharc/. et

Chief Deputy Commissioner

RPMEKGAIL Dics

"H Shila Shah-Gavnoudias, Commissionar

Kenneth G. Arnold, Asslstant to Commissioner

Joseph L. Davenport, Unit Head, Watat/Wastewater Engineering Unlt
Damon W, Urso, Sanitary Enginesr [IE

Leretta V. Dionisio, Hydrogeologist I

APPROVED: DISAFPROVED:

/740 o( o[t

Richard R, ngom“-/ ' Date Richard R. Walker Date
Chief Deputy County Executive Chief Deputy County Execntive




George Maragos
Comptroller

QFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER.
240 Old Country Road
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Attach this form along with all personal, professional or human services contricts, coniracet renewals, extensions
and amendments.

CONTRACTOR NAME: Jacobs Project Management Co.
CONTRACTOR ADDRESS: 1305 Franklin Avenue, Garden City NY 11530
FEDERAL TAX 1D #; 35- 2321289

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (i) after one of the followmg Roman
Numerals, and provide all the requested information.

I. O The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement for
sealed bids. The coniract was awarded affer a request for sealed bids was published
in [newspaper] on

[date]. The sealed bids were publicly opened on [date]. [#] of sealed
bids were received and opened.

IL. O The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals.

The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on [date],
Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the REP by [newspaper
advertisement, posting on website, mailing, etc.]. [#] of potential proposers requested copies of the
RFP. Proposals were due on [date]. [#] proposals were received and evaluated.
The evaluation committee consisted
of:

flist members]. The proposals were scored and ranked. As a
resull of the scoring and ranking (attached), the highest-ranking proposer was selected.

KAADMINVLetters for Signature\ Water Manzgement\Shin\Compt Approval, 53512 [-09M-NewForm.061714 (Rey. 2-04),DWU.doc



III. O This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract.

The contract was originally executed by Nassau County on [datel,
This is a renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or
RFP (copies of the relevant pages are attached). The original contract was entered into after

[describe procurement method; ie., RFP, theee
proposals evaluated, ete.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation of the contractor’s performance for any
contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the Department
must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to continue to contract with the County.

IV.[X] Pursuant to Executive Order No., 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three proposals
were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the department head
describes the proposals received, along with the cest of each proposal.

I A, The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR:

0 B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s) why the contract was
awarded to other than the lowest-cost proposer. The attachment includes a specific delinsation of the
unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed superior, and/or why the
proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other proposers,

V. O Pursuant to Executive Order No, 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not obtain '1t
least three proposals,

1 A. Thete arc only one or two providers of the services sought or less than three providers submitted
proposals. The memorandum describes how the contractor was determined to be the sole source
provider of the personal service needed or explains why only two proposals could be oblained. If two
proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was awarded to the lowest cost
proposer, or why the selected proposer offered the higher quality proposal, the proposer’s unique and
special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to perform in the most immediate and timely
meanner.

[0 B, The memorandum explaing that the contractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a federal or

New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. (Copies of the relevan: documents are
attached).

[0 C. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
required  through a New  York State Office of General Services contract-

no, , and the attached memorandum explaing how the purchase is within
the scope of the terms of that contract.

1 0, Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 119-0, the departent is purchasing the servmes
required through an inter-municipal agreement.

FAARMINLetters For Signaturc\Water Managemenf\Shim\Compt Approval. §35121-08M-NewForm.0617 14 (Rev. 2-04).DWU.doe
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YI. I This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a
competitive process has not been initiated. Attached is a memorandum that explains the reasons for
entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department intends to
initiate a competitive process for the future award of these services, For any such contract, where the vendor has
previously provided services to the county, attach a copy of the most recent evaluation of the vendor’s
performance, If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the
contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county.,

In certain Hmited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance evaluations
may not be possible because of the nature of the human services program, or because of a compelling need to
continue setvices through the same provider., In those circurnstances, aftach an explanation of why a
competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicable,

VIL (X) This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering

or surveying services. The aftached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance with
Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No.928 of 1993, including its receipt and evaluation of annual Statements
of Qualifications & Performance Data, and its negotiations with the most highly qualified firms.

In_addition, if this is a contract with an individual or with an entity that has only one or
twe employees:

Cl areview of the criteria set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1 C.B.
296, attached as Appendix A to the Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004, concerning
independent contractors and employees indicates that the contractor would not be considered an employee

for federal tax purposes.

Depariment Head Signature

221/ /5
Date 7 7

NOTE: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be included in the county’s “staff
summary” form in lieu of a separate memorandum.

Compt. form Pers./Prof. Services Contracts: Rev. 02/04

KAADMIN\Letters for ShmturehWater ManagementShin\Compt Approval.835121-09M-NewForm.061714 (Rey, 2-04),DWU.doe



COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
CONSULTANT S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

[ Nameof Firm: __Jacobs Project Magaugment o,
Addrosy: _ Two Penn Plozs. Sufie 0603 - S,
Clty andd State: __New Youk, New Youk _2ZipCode 10121, o ’
3. Timy's Vendor Identilicstion Mhomber: 352321289
3. Type of Business:
o Publie Corp, ... Parnership ... Sote Proprietership ___Jabnt Venture
- L Liahity Company Clusely Held Carp. Corporation X Other (speeify)
4. List nemos and adiress of all principals; thal is, ol} individuals serving on the Roard of Dirgotors or eomparable body, all partnets and limitod pariness. 4
corporate afficess, ull parties of Jeing veninres, and all members and officers of Limited Liability Companies (attach additionn) sheet () 17 nevessory)
- Lwerge Kunberper, Disector : Mlilee Udoivig, Seergtary
_Lireg Langdey, Direetor Jeffrey D, Roberison, Assistant Secretry
,,,,, Phillip J. Stassi, Dirgeter . dohn Waryen, Prosser. Ji,. Treasurer
e Mighag] Bante, Assistant Secretury ' Jefiroy Goldfurk, Assistunt Troasurer
. ..n...eﬁ.;uﬁliﬁll':eif" n ‘Cl(} Vic’-Pmﬁﬂf:m l)[)ngmwm&mcnt
Dovid Syphard, Viee Pregldent o . Doug Yvdo, Yieo Presiden),
o8 BIEANSIGE Yiee Prosident Ed Pogreby, Vice Presidont
... Jobn Pisher, ¥ige President Dovg Tieer, Vies President . ~
tsspm Khatal, Vies Fresident R dip Malean, Yice President

el Mangiors, Yiee Peesident

i

List all namias and address of all shareholders, mumbers, or parioery of the frm, 1 the shareholkler is not an fodividin), #se the individual
sharcholderw'partners/miambers, [ * ITa Publicly held Corporation Inglade a copy of LOK form in ticw of completing this soetion § (attach addidonal she
() iF pecessary).
. Ansobs Ensineerivg Group Ine. - 100% shareholdor
Jaeahs Enginesilne Grown bos. 18 8 peblicly held cormaoratipg,

- Listall affitizted and related sonipaniss and their relativnship to the firm entered on Line £ {onc above [ i none, enier “Mone® ] ¢ * inciude a separate

disclosurs fonim for gach affillated or subsidiary conpany ) (attech additionnl sheet (5) 1 necessury),

NOME ( Parent company Listed in #5)

- Y
Dated: _ June 27, 2014 Signed: f/ ‘:;?/""7’4

VERIFICATION: This section roust be slgned by a pringipal of the Consultpnt, Contractine or Vendor author{zed as signmior of te Girm for the Prpese o

executing contraels. The undersigeed aflicms and so swears thut hn/she had read and understoad the foregoing stsments and they are, o histher awn
knowledge, tue.

. 7 . -
Print Nume-incent A, Mangiere, PE . 3 !

Titke: Vies President,




COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT CF PUBLIC WORKS
CONSULTANT'S. CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURY STATEMENT

Foo Mame of Pirm _Jaeobs Project, Matapement Co,
Address: _Two Peun Pliza, Suite 0603 o
City and Srater . New York, New York e Zlp Code 10121 L
1. Fion's Yendor Identfeation Number: 52321240 .
3. Type of Business:
. PubBe Carp, __ Poitnership __ Sole Proprietorship _ Joint Veniure
o Lad Linbitity Compnizy o Closely Held Carp.  Covporation X, Qther (speeify)
4. Lrstnames and address of all prinsipals; that s, zll individuals serving vo the Board of Dlsectors or comparalble body, all partaess and lmited pariners, a
corperate olifvers, all parties of Joint veniuzes, end all members nnd officers of Limited Lisbility Cowpanies (attach nddilionnl shewt (3} §f necessory}
_ Ldaorge Runberpor, Director . Milee Udnyig, Secretmry ]
Giree Landey, Divector Jelfrey 1. Robyrison, Assistont Secrotury
e Bilkip I, Btagsi, Direior fobn Wieren Progser, Jr., Tredsmer
e Michae! Bapte, Assistant Secretary $effroy Goldfarb, Assistant Treasurer
o Antheny Feruesto, Vise Prodddon ' Doug Mouton, Vies Pregidem -
Diovid Syphard, Yice President Loug Fhvds, Yiee Progident }
. Seott MeAllisiur, Yiee President Ed Pogreba, Yice President
. dohn Fisher, Yiee President Doug Tiezer, Yiee President o
Bssam Klataf Viee President Jim Melean, Viee President
Yineent Manmere, Yieco Pregident
5 List al names and address of alf sharsholders, members, or pariners of the firm. 1T the sharcholder is not an individual, lst the individual
sharehelders/pavtners/members. ( * [ 9 Publicly held Comoration include  copy of 10K form in llen of completing this scebion ) (attreh additionn) she
(=) if pecessary).
. Inpobs Bxeineuring Groun e« 100% shavehatder -
—Jneobs Engingerine Croup luc. ie 8 publicly held sorporation, o
. Listall affilisted and related conipaniey and their relatdonship to the lim entered oo e [ {one) above (I none, enler “None™ | 1 * inelude a seporate
digelosure form for each affillated or subsidisty campany } (attach additional sheet (s} it necersary),
U NONE S Parent eompany Bsed sy
7. YERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principa] cof the Consultat, Contrastor or Venchut suthorized as signator of e tim for the purpase ¢
exequting coniracts. The eodersigned affirms and so swears that hefshe hagg read and understood the fovegotng stateinents and they are, (o kisther awn
knowledge, rue. ;
Dated:  Jung 27, 2014 Sipmed; g/"l s

Print I\‘t-n&:“'\’fi‘ﬂcmt A Mangiere, PE

Title: Viee President

e B e



$35121-09M
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT (together with the schedules, appendices, attachments and exhibits,
il any, this “Agrecment”), dated as of the date this Agreement is executed by the County of
Nassau, between () Nassau County, a municipal corporation having its principal office at 1550
Franklin Avenue, Mineola, New York 11501 (the “County”) acting on behalf of the County
Department of Public Works, having its principal office at 1194 Prospect Avenue, Westbury,
New Yotk 11590 (the “Department”) and (if) JACOBS Project Management Company, a
consulting engineering firm having its principal office at 1305 Franklin Avenue, Suite 245,
Garden City NY 11530 (the “Firm” or “Contractor”)..

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County desires to hire the Firm fo perform the services deseribed in this
Apgreement; and

WHEREAS, the Firm desires to perform the services described in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenanis contained
in this Agreement, the partics agree as follows:

1. Term.

This term of this Agreement shall commence on the date on which this Agreement is executed by
the County (the “Commencement Date”) and terminate on the Forty-seventh (47) month
anniversary of the Commencement Date (the “Expiration Date™) unless sooner terminated or
extended in accordance with its terms, Netwithstanding the foregoing, the Department, in its sole
disctetion, shall have the right to extend this Agreement one year delivering a notice of extension
to the Firm at least thirty (30) days prior to the Expiration Date. The Apreement so extended shall
be on the same terms, conditions and covenants as during the initial term except that the Expiration
Date shall be modified in accordance with the notice of extension.

2.. Services.

() The services to be provided by the Firm under this Agreement for the Bay Park
Sewage Treatment Plant Shudge Dewatering Facility Demolition and Improvements Construction
Management, shall consist of those specific work divisions and deliverables as enumerated in the
“Detailed Scope of Services,” attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof ag Exhibit “A”,

(b) At any time during the term of this Agreement, the County may, in its sole and
absolute discretion, require the Firm to perform fxtra Services. The Firm shall not perform, nor
be compensated for, Extra Services without the prior written approval of the Comimissioner. The
Firm agrees fo perform any such Bxtra Services in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, As used herein, “Iixtra Services” means additional services which
are (1) generally within the scope of services set forth in this Agreement, (ii) necessary or in

furtherance of the goals of this Agreement and (i) not due to the faukt or negligence of the
Contractor.

(©)  The follewing items are not included in the Firm’s fee, and shall be reimbursable at
an actual cost as expenditures in the interest of the project, provided (i) they have been approved in
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advance by the Commissioner of the Department in writing, in his/her sole discretion, (i1) are not
considered services as set forth in this Agreement, and (iif) subject to compliance with the
County’s bill paying procedures:

(1) The direct cost of expenses for travel to locations other than the County and
or the project site, including transportation (coach unless otherwise authorized by the
County), reasonable meal and lodging expenses, at rates established by the County for its
own employees, and as have been approved in advance by the County.

(2)  Testing Laboratory Services.

(3)  Messenger service and cables as not necessarily incurred in the performance
v of services hereunder by the Firm and their sub-consultants,

- (4)  Final models, photographs and renderings as requested by the County.

(5)  Reproduction of design development and construction document drawings,
specification, reports and other documents furnished to, or on behalf of, the County in
excess of five (5) copies each. Any items prepared on behalf of the Firm or their sub-
consultants shall not be paid for by the County.

(6)  Other cdmparable expenses as approved by the County.

3. Payment,

(a)  Amount of Consideration. The amount to be paid to the Firm as full
consideration for the Firm's services under this Agreement, including any extra services that may
be so authorized, shall be payable as itemized in the “Payment Schedule,” attached hereto and
made & hereby part hereof as Exhibit “B”. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum amount
to be paid the Firm’s services under this Apreement, including any Extra Services that may so be
authorized, shall not exceed Four Million Five Hundred Fifty Thousand ($4,550,000) dollars.

(b)  Vouchers; Voucher Review, Approval and Audit. Payments shall be made to the
Firm in arrears and shall be contingent upon (i) the Firm submitting a claim voucher (the
“Youcher”) in a form safisfactory to the County, that (a) states with reasonable specificity the
services provided and the payment requested as consideration for such services, {b) certifies that
the services rendered and the payment requested are in accordance with this Agreement, and (¢)
is accompanied by documentation satisfactory to the County supporting the amount claimed, and
(i) review, approval and audit of the Voucher by the Department and/or the County Comptroller
or his or her duly designated representative (the “Comptrollet™).

{c) Timing of Claims for Payment. The Firm shall submit claims no later than three
(3) months following the County’s receipt of the services that are the subject of the claim and no
more frequently than once 2 month.

(d) No Duplication of Payments. Payments under this Agreement shall not duplicate
payments for any work performed or to be performed mnder other agreemenits between the Firm
and any funding source including the County.
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(¢}  Payments in Connecticn with Termination or Notice of Termination. Unless a
provision of this Agreement expressly states otherwise, payments to the Firm following the
termination of this Agreement shall not exceed payments made as consideration for services that
wete (i) performed prior o termination, (ii} authorized by this Agreement to be performed, and (iii)
not performed after the Firm received notice that the County did not desire to receive such
services,

(® Payments Relating fo Services Rendered by Subcontractors. The County retains
the right, but not the obligation, prior to making any payment to the Firm, to demand that the
Firm furnish to the County, proof acceptable to the County, in its sole and absolute discretion,
that all due and payable claims made by subcontractors in connection with this Agreement have
been paid to date or are included in the amount being requested by the Firm.

4, Owmnership and Control of Work Product

()  Copyrights.

(i) Upon :execution of this Agreement, any reports, documents, data, photographs
and/or other materials.produced pursuant to this Agreement, and any and all drafts and/or other ~
preliminary materials in any format related to such items, shall become the exclusive property of :
the County.

(i)  Any reports, documents, data, photographs and/or other materials produced
pursuant to this Agreement (“Copyrightable Materials”) shall be considered “work-made-for-
hire” within the meaning and purview of Section 101 of the United States Copyright Act, 17
U.8.C. §101, and the County shall be the copyright owner thereof and of all aspects, elements
and components thereof in which copyright protection might exist. To the extent that the
Copyrightable Materials do not qualify as “work-made-for-hire,” the Firm hereby irrevocably
transfers, assipns and conveys exclusive copyright ownership in and to the Copyrightable
Materials fo the County, free and clear of any liens, claims, or other encumbrances. The Firm
shall retain no copyright or intellectual property interest in the Copyrightable Materials, and they
shall be used by the Firm for no other purpose without the prior written permission of the
County.

(ili) The Firm acknowledges that the County may, in its seole discretion, register
copyright in the Copyrightable Materials with the U.S. Copyright Office or any other
government agency authorized to grant copyright registrations. The Firm shall cooperate in this
effort, and agrees to provide any further documentation necessary to accomplish this,

(iv)  The Firm represents and warrants that the Copyrightable Materials: (1) are wholly
original material not published elsewhere {except for material that is in the public domain); (2)
do not violate any copyright law; (3) do not constitute defamation or invasion of the right of
privacy or publicity, and (4) are not an infringement of any kind, of the rights of any third party.
To the exlent that the Copyrightable Matetials incorporate any non-original material, the Firm
has obtained all necessary permissions and clearances, in writing, for the use of sueh non-
original material under this Agreement, copies of which shall be provided to the County upon
gxecution of this Agreement.

(b)  Patents and Inventions. Any discovery or invention arising out of or developed in
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the course of performance of this Apreement shall be promptly and fully reported o the
Department, and if this work is supported by a federal grant of funds, shall be promptly and fully
reported to the Federai Government for determination as to whether patent protection on. such
invention shall be sought and how the rights in the invention or diseovery, including rights under

any patent issued thereorn, shall be disposed of and administered in order to protect the public
interest.

(©) Pre-existing Rights, In no case shall 4(a) or 4(b) above apply to, or prevent the
Firm from asserting or protecting its rights in any report, document or other data, ot any
invention which existed prior to or was developed or discovered independently from the
activities directly related to this Agreement.

(d)  Infringements of Patents, Trademarks, and Copyrights, The Firm shall indemnify
and hold the County harmless against any claim for any infringement by the Firm of any
copyright, trade secrets, trademark or patent rights of design, systems, drawings, graphs, charts,
specifications or printed matter furnished or used by the Firm in the performance of this
Agreement. The Firm shall indemnify and hold the County harmless regardless of whether or
not the infringement arises out of compliance with the scope of services/scope of work.

(e} Antitrast. The Firm hereby assigns, sells, and transters to the County all right, :

title and interest in and to any claims and causes of action arising under the antitrust laws of the
State of New York or of the United States relating to the particular goods or services procured by
the County under this Agreement.

5. Independent Contractor, The Firm is an independent contractor of the County.
The Firm shall not, nor shall any officer, director, employee, servant, agent or independent
contractor of the Firm (a “Contractor Agent™), be (1) deemed a County employee, (ii) commit the
County to any obligation, or (iii) hold itself, himseif, or herself out as a County employee or
Person with the authority to commit the County to any obligation. As used in this Agreement the
word “Person” means any individual person, entity (including partnerships, corporations and
limited liability companies), and government or political subdivision thereof (including agencies,
bureaus, offices and departments thereof),

6. No Arrears or Default. The Firm is not in arrears to the County upon any debt or
coniract and it is not in default as surety, Firm, or otherwise upon any obligation to the County,
including any obligation to pay taxes to, or perform services for ot on behalf of, the County.

7. Compliance with Law,

(a) Generally.  The Firm shall comply with any and all applicable Federal, State
and local Laws, including, but not limited to those relating to conflicts of interest, human rights,
a living wage, and disclosure of information, in conmection with its performance under this
Agreement. In furtherance of the foregoing, the irm is bound by and shall comply with the
terms of Appendices “EE™ atiached hereto and hereby made a part hereof. As used in this
Agreement the word “Law” includes any and all statutes, local laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, applicable orders, and/or decrees, as the same may be amended from time to time,
enacted, or adopied.

(b) Nassau County Living Wage Law. Pursuant to LL 1-2006, as amended, and to the
extent that a waiver has not been obtained in accordance with such law or any rules of the
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County Executive, the Firm agrees as follows:

(iy . Firm shall comply with the applicable requirements of the Living Wage
Law, as amended;

(i)  Failure to comply with the Living Wage Law, as amended, may constitute
a material breach of this Agreement, such breach being determined solely
by the Ceunty. Firm has the right to cure such breach within thirty days of
receipt of notice of breach from the County, In the event that such breach
is not timely cured, the County may terminate this Agreement as well as
exercise any other rights available to the County under applicable law.

(iii) On a yearly basis, Firtn shall provide the County with any material
changes to its Certificate of Compliance, attached hereto and hereby made
a part hereof as Appendix “L.”

(¢)  Records Access. The parties acknowledge and agree that all records, information,

Agreement shall be used and disclosed solely for the purpose of performance and administration
of the contract or as required by law. The Firm acknowledges that Firm Information in the
County’s possession may be subject to disclosure under Article 6 of the New York State Public
Officer’s Law (“Freedom of Information Law” or “FOIL”). In the event that such a request for
disclosure is made, the bounty shall make reasonable efforts to notify the Firm of such request
prior to disclosure of the Information so that the Firm may take such action as it deems
appropriate.

(d) Protection of Client Information. The firm acknowledges and agrees that all
information that the Firm acquires in connection with the performance under this Agreement
shall be strictly confidential, used solely for the purpose of performing services to or on behalf of
the County, and shall not be disclosed to third parties except (i} as permitted under this
Agreement, (i) with the written consent of the County (and then only to the extent of the
consent), or (iii} upon legal compulsion.

8. Minimum Service Standards. Regardless of whether required by Law:
(a) The Firm shall, and shall cause Firm Agents to, conduct its, his or her activities in
conneetion with this Apresment so a1 not to endanger or harm any Person or property.

(b)  The Firm shall deliver services under this Agreement in a professional manner
consistent with the best practices of the industry in which the Firm operates. The Firm shall take
all actions necessary or appropriate to meet the obligation described in the immediately
preceding sentence, including obtaining and maintaining, and causing all Firm Agents to obtain
and maintain, all approvals, licenses, and certifications (“Approvals™) necessary or appropriais in
connection with this Agreement.

9. Indemnification; Defense; Cooperation.

(a)  The Firm shall be solely responsible for and shall indemnify and hold harmless
the County, the Department and its officers, employees, and agents (the “Indemnified Parties™)
from and against any and all liabilities, losses, costs, expenses (including, without limitation,
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attorneys’ fees and disbursements) and damages (“Losses™), arising out of ot in connection with
any acts or omissions of the Firm or a Firm Agent, regardless of whether due to negligence, fault,
or default, including Losses in connection with any threatened investigation, litigation or other
proceeding or preparing a defense to or prosecuting the same; provided, however, that the Firm
shall not be responsible for that portion, if any, of a Loss that is caused by the negligence of the
County.

(b)  The Firm shall, upon the County’s demand and at the County’s direction,
prompily and diligently defend, at the Firm’s own risk and expense, any and all suits,
actions, or proceedings which may be brought or instituted against one or more
Indemnified Parties for which the Firm is responsible under this Section, and, further to
the Firm’s indemnification obligations, the Firm shall pay and satisfy any judgment,
decree, loss or settlement in connection therewith.

(¢)  The Firm shall, and shall cause Firm Agents to, cooperate with the County and the
Department in connection with the investigation, defense or progecution of any action, suit or
proceeding in connection with this Agreement, including the acts or omissions of the Firm and/or
a Firm Agent in connection with this Agreement.

(d) Ti}e provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.“
10.  Insurance.

(@  Types and Amounts. The Firm shall obtain and maintain throughout the term of
this Agreement, at its own expense: ({) one or more policies for commercial general liability
insurance, which policy(ies) shall name “Nassau County” as an additional insured and have a
minimum single combined limit of liability of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per
oceutrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate coverage, (ii) if contracting in whole
or parl to provide professional services, one or more policies for professional liability insurance,
which policy(ies) shall have a minimum single combined limit liability of not less than two
million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and four million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate
coverage, (iif) corpensation insurance for the benefit of the Firm’s employees (“Workers’
Compensation Insurance™), which insurance is in compliance with the New York State Workers’
Compensation Law, and (iv) such additional insurance as the County may from time to time
specify,

(b)  Acceptability; Deductibles; Subcontractors.  All insurance obtained and
maintained by the Firm pursuant to this Apreement shall be (i} written by one or more
commercial insurance carriers licensed to do business in Now York State and acceptable (o the
County, and which is (ii) in form and substance acceptable to the County. The Firm shall be
solely responsible for the payment of all deductibles to which such policies are subject. The
Firm shall require any subcontractor hired in connection with this Agreement to carry insurance
with the same limits and provisions required to be cartied by the Firm under this Agreement.

(c) Delivery; Coverage Change: No Inconsistent Action. Prior to the execution of
this Agreemeni, copies of current certificates of insurance evidencing the insurance coverage
required by this Agreement shall be delivered to the Department. Not less than thirty (30) days
priot to the date of any expiration or renewal of, or actual, proposed or threatened reduction or
cancellation of coverage under, any insurance required hereunder, the Firm shall provide written
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notice to the Department of the same and deliver to the Department renewal or replacement
certificates of insurance. The Firm shall cause all insurance to remain in full force and effect
throughout the term of this Agreement and shall not take or omit to take any action that would
suspend or invalidate any of the required coverages. The failure of the Firm to maintain
Workers” Compensation Insurance shall render this contract void and of no effect. The failure of
the Firm fo maintain the other required coverages shall be deemed a material breach of this
Agreement upon which the County reserves the right to consider this Agreement terminated as of
the date of such faiture,

11.  Assignment; Amendment; Waiver; Subcontracting. This Agreement and the
rights and obligations hereunder may not be in whole or part (i) assigned, transferred or disposed
of, (ii) amended, (iii) waived, or (iv) subcontracted, without the prior written consent of the
Counly Executive ot his or her duly designated deputy (the “County Executive™), and any
purported assignment, other dispesal or modification without such prior written consent shall be
null and void.. The failure of a party to assert any of its rights under this Agreement, including
the right to demand strict performance, shall not constitute a waiver of such rights.

12, -Termination.

(a) Grenerally. This Agreement may be terminated (i) for any reason by the Céhnty
upen thirty (30) days® written notice to the Firm, (ii) for “Cause” by the County immediately
upon the receipt by the Firm of written notice of termination, (iii) upon mutual written
Agreement of the County and the Firm, and (iv) in accordance with any other provisions of this
Agreement expressly addressing termination,

As used in this Agreement the word “Cause” includes: (i) a breach of this Agreement;
(i) the fuilure te obtain and maintain in full force and effect all Approvals required for the
services described in this Agreement to be legally and professionally rendered; and (iii) the
termination or impending terminetion of federal or state funding for the services to be provided

under this Agreement.

(b) By the Firm. This Agreement may be terminated by the Firm if performance
becomes impracticable through no fault of the Firm, where the impracticability relates to the
Firm's ability to perform its obligations and not to a judgment as to convenience or the
desirability of continued performance. Termination under this subsection shall be effected by the
Firm delivering to the commissioner or other head of the Departinent (the “Commissioner™), at
least sixty (60) days prior to the termination date {or a shorter period if sixty days’ notice is
impossible), a notice stating (i) that the Firm is terminating this Agreement in accordance with
this subsection, {ii) the date as of which this Agreement will terminate, and (iif) the facts giving
vise to the Firm’s right to terminate under this subsection. A copy of the notice given to the
Commissioner shall be given to the Deputy County Executive who oversees the administration
of the Department (the “Applicable DCE”) on the same day that notice is given to the
Commissioner.

{c)  Firm Assistance upon Termination, In connection with the termination or
impending termination of this Agreement the Firm shall, regardless of the reason for termination,
take all actions reasonably requested by the County (including those set forth in other provisions
of this Agreement) to assist the County in transitioning the Fitm’s responsibilities under this
Agreement. The provisions of this subsection shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
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13.  Accounting Procedures; Records. The Firm shall maintain and retain, for a period
of six (6) years following the later of termination of or final payment under this Agreement,
complete and accurate records, documents, accounts and other evidence, whether maintained
electronically or manually (“Records™), pertinent to performance under this Agreement. Records
shall be maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and, if the
Firm is a non-profit entity, must comply with the accounting guidelines set forth in the federal
Office of Management & Budget Circular A-122, “Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations,” Such Records shall at all times be available for audit and inspection by the
Comptroller, the Department, any other governmental authority with jurisdiction over the
provision of setyices hereunder and/or the payment therefore, and any of their duly designated
representatives. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

14.  Limitations on Actions and Special Proceedings againgt the County, No action or
special proceeding shall lie or be prosecuted or maintained against the County upon any claims

arising out of or in connection with this Agreement unless:

(8) . Natice. At least thirty (30) days prior to seeking relief the Firm shall have
presented the demand or claim(s) upon which such action or special proceeding is based in, writing
to the Applicable DCE for adjustment and the County shall have neglected or refused to make an
adjustment or payment on the demand or claim for thirty (30) days after presentment. The Firm
shall send or deliver copies of the documents presented to the Applicable DCE under this Section
to each of (i) the Departiment and the (i) the County Attorney (at the address specified above for
the County) on the same day that documents are seot or delivered to the Applicable DCE. The
complaint or necessary moving papers of the Firm shall allege that the above-described actions and
inactions preceded the Firm’s action or special proceeding against the County.

(b) Time Dimitation. Such action or special proceeding is commenced within the
carlier of (i) one (1) year of the first to occur of {A) final payment under or the termination of this
Agreement, and (B) the acerual of the canse of action, and (ii) the time specified in any other
provision of this Agreement.

15.  Work Performance Liability, The Firm is and shall remain primarily Hable for the
suceessful completion of all worle in accordance this Agreement itrespective of whether the Firm
is using a Firm Agent to perform some or all of the work contemplated by this Agreement, and
irrespective of whether the use of such Firm Agent has been approved by the County.

16, Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue; Governing Law, Unless otherwise specified
in this Agreement or required by Law, exclusive original jurisdiction for all claims or actions
with respect to this Agreement shall be in the Supreme Court in Nassau County in New York
State and the parties expressly waive any objections to the same on any grounds, including venue
and forum non conveniens. This Agreement is intended as a contract under, and shall be
governed and construed in accordance with, the Laws of New York State, without regard to the
conflict of laws provisions thereof.

17, Notices. Any notice, request, demand or othet communication required to be
given or made in connection with this Agreement shall be (&) in writing, (b) delivered ot sent (i)
by hand delivery, evidenced by a signed, dated receipt, (ii) postage prepaid via certified mail,
refurn receipt requested, or (iil) overnight delivery via a nationally recognized courier service, (c)
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deemed given or made on the date the delivery receipt was signed by a County employee, three
(3) business days after it is mailed or one (1) business day after it is released o a courier service,
as applicable, and (d)(i) if to the Department, to the atteation of the Commissioner at the address
specified above for the Departmert, (if) if to an Applicable DCE, to the attention of the
Applicable DCE (whose name the Firm shall obtain from the Department) at the address
specified above for the County, (iii) if to the Comptroller, to the attention of the Comptroller at
240 0ld Country Road, Mineola, NY 11501, and (iv) if to the Firm, {o the attention of the person
who executed this Agreement on behalf of the Firm at the address specified above for the Firm,
ot in each case to such other persons or addresses as shall be designated by written notice,

18. All Tegal Provisions Deemed Included; Severability: Supremacy and
Construction.

()  Every provision required by Law to be inserted into or referenced by this
Agreement is intended to be a part of this Agreement. If any such provision is not inserted or
referenced or is not inserted or referenced in correct form then (i) such provision shall be deemed
inseried into or referenced by this Agreement for purposes of interpretation and (ii) upon the
application of either party this Agreement shall be formally amended to comply strictly with the
Law, without prejudice to the rights of either party. '

! 3

(b) 1 In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall
not in any way be affected or itnpaired thereby.

(¢)  Unless the application of this subsection will cause a provision required by Law
to be excluded from this Agreement, in the event of an actual conflict between the terms and
conditions set forth above the signature page to this Agreement and those contained in any
schedule, exhibit, appendix, or attachment to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth
above the signature page shall conirol. To the extent possible, all the terms of this Agreement
should be read together as not conflicting,

(dy  Each party has cooperated in the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement,
Therefore, in the event that comstruction of this Agreement occurs, it shall not be construed
against either party as dratter.

19.  Section and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained in this
Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning ot interpretation of
this Agreement.

20, Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the full and entire understanding
and agreement between the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all

prior agreements (whether written or oral) of the patties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

21, Administrative Service Charge. The Firm agrees to pay the County an
administrative service charge of Five Hundred Thirty Three Dollars ($533.00) for the processing
of this Agreement pursuant to Ordinance Number 74-1979, as amended by Ordinance Number
128-2006. The administrative service charge shall be due and payable to the County by the Firm
upon signing this Agreement.
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22. Joint Venture,

(a)-  If the Firm is comprised of more than one legal entity or any group of partners or
joint venturers associated for the purpose of undertaking this Agreement, each such entity
acknowledges and hereby affirmatively represents and agrees that each has the power to bind the
Firm and each of the others hereunder; and as such, each acts both as principal and agent of the
Firm and of each of the others hereunder. Each further acknowledges and agrees that all such
entities, partners or joint venturers associated for the purposes of undertaking this Agreement
shall be jointly and severally liable to third parties, including but not limited to the County, for
the acts or omissions of the Firm or any other entity, partner or joint venturer hereunder,

(by  If the Contractor is comprised of more than one legal entity or any group of
partners or joint venturers associated for the purposes of undertaking this agreement, each such
entity acknowledges and hereby affirmatively represents and agrees that the respective rights,
duties and liabilities of each hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York,
including but not limited to the New York Partnership Law..

28.  Executory Clauge. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreerent:

(2} Approval and FExecution. The County shall have no liability under this
Agreement (including any extension or other modification of this Agreement) to any Person
unless (1) all County approvals have been obtained, including, if required, approval by the
County Legislature, and (ii) this Agreement has been executed by the County Executive (as
defined in this Agreement).

(b)  Availability of Funds. The County shall have no liability under this Agreement
(including any extension or other modification of this Agreement) to any Person beyond funds
appropriated or otherwise lawfully available for this Agreement, and, if any portion of the funds
for this Agreement are fron: the state and/or federal governments, then beyond funds available to
the County from the state and/or federal governments.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFTY BLANK]
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INWITNESS WHEREQF, the Firm and the County have executed this Agreement as of

the: date first above written,

[NAME OF FIRM] Jacobs Project

Name:_Vincent A. Mangiar

Title:

v,
Ay

Vice President

Date:__{ "gf/ 9‘"69/ ! I]pL“"

* NASSAU COUNTY

Name:
Title:

Date:

e

Ny
I A (YU e
0

PLEASE EXECUTE IN BLUE INK
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STATE OF NEW YORK)

JEE
COUNTY OF NASSAU)

Onthe Z{_day of g MASE, in the year 2014 before me personally came
y;ﬂ(fﬁn”l ":k MM@;QQ £, to me personally known, who, being by me duly swom, did depose
and say that he or ghe resides in the Coynty ol ‘hﬁ@}% ; that he or she is the
"]ﬁc,g/ (w&,a»\:? of }:Ulrf‘ mlxe anageu "C—‘-"’the cotporation described herein

and which executed the above instrument; and that he or she signed his or her name thereto by
authority of the board of directors of said corporation.

WILLIAM E, GOVE

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
NORARY PUBLL No. 008083470

QUALIFIED IN AQCKLAND COUNTY
M\p/?e oA MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JUNE 2, 20

STATE OF NEW YORK)
)ss

COUNTY OF

ngr\,tt] "] day o&%@ _in the year 2014 before me personally came
190] 0 me personally) h bemg by me duly sworn, did depose

and say that he or she resides in the County o ; that he or she is County
Executive of the County of Nassau, the municipal wrporatmn dcscrlbcd herein and which
executed the above instrument; and that he or she signe his or her name thereto pursuant to

Section 205 of the County GOVernmcnt Law of Nassau County

NOTARY PUBLIC

COMGETTA A PETRU G
Wotary Pubdry, Bimte of Mow Yol
Mo, 01 PEOERoRe
Ouaiitad in Mases Tounty J
Comenloaton Sxpirea fpdt 02, 20,46
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Exhibit “A”
DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES

The FIRM shall provide comprehensiva construction and post-construction phase services. The
scope of services to be performed in the respective phases (which may overlap) is summarized
below.

Construction Phase Services

Commengement and Duration - The Construction Phase will commence with the award
of a construction contract for the project and will terminate upon final acceptance of the
Project in it's entirety by the County. The construction phase is scheduled for 44 months
plus one (1) month of pre-construction duties and two (2) months of post-construction
duties for a tetal duration of 47 months.

General Construction Administration - The FIRM shall provide administration of the
Project and shall administer all consfruction contracts on the County's behalf, This
project is being built under a Project Labor Agreement (PLA) using a single prime
Censtruction Contractor (“CG"). Therefore, the FIRM s required to perform as the PLA

" administrator of Nassau County's Master Project Labor Agreement ag amended for this
project. The FIRM will be previded a copy of "the Procedure Manual for Project
Management” prepared by the Nassau County Department of Public Works, as a guide to
the County's standard administrative procedures. Administer the construction of the
Project, including scheduling of the Work and coordination of the Construstion Contractor
(CC). The FIRM shall maintain competent fulltime staff at the project site to administer
the project, at all times Work is being performed by CC. Tha FIRM shall furnish his staff
with personal equipment reguired for prolect administration, including, but not limited to
personal protective equipment, digital cameras, cellular telephones, aic,

Site Conditions - As partiens of the Work become accessible, FIRM shall promptly and
diligently investigate existing conditions and repert to the Couniy and the Design
Engineer, those conditions which differ substantially from the information contained in the
Construstion Documents,  Collaborate with the County and the Design Englneer to
devise appropriate medifications to the Contract Documents.

Quality Assurance - The FIRM shall create and implernent a Quality Assurance Program
consisting, at the minimum, of testing, controlled inspection, ahd the FIRM's routine
observation of the Work of the CC with respect to conformance to the Gonstruction
Docuntenfs. The FIRM shall endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and
deficlencies in the Work, and shall coordinate testing and controlled inspection by third
parties with the Work of the CC. The FIRM shall promptly notify the County, Design
Engineer, and CC, as applicable, of defective, deficient, andfor non-conforming Work,
and shall make recommendations for cotrectionfresolution. Track all defective and non-
conforming Work through correction until final acceptance by the County.

Scheduling - The CC shall prepare the Master Construction Schedule (baselire) and
monthly updates. This Schedule shall be prepared using the critical path mathod and
Priravera 3 (or lajer version) software, and shall be broken down in sufficient detail to
be usaful for monitoring progress, delay analysis, and administering the CC's coniract
provisions. The schedule shall be cost and resource loaded by the CC. The FIRM ig
responsible for menitoring accuracy and completeneas of the CPM Schedule, to review
Baseline and updates, analysis of delay, proparation of reports as required by the
County, negotlation of delay claims and recommaendation for recovery or nacessary
changes to complete the project within budget and schedule, The FIRM shall evaluate
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CC’s requests for extension of the Contract time, and advise the County confidentially on
the quantum and merits of such requests. The CC shall update the Master Scheduls
monthly to show progress,compile 2-week look-ahead schedules from the Master
Schedule and augment same.. The FIRM shall follow up with the CC who will prepare
Schedule updates as necessary to reflect changes and show the impact of changes to
the critical path and completion milestones. The FIRM shall review in a timely manner
ag per contract specificaticns.

Cash_Flow Forecast - With the cooperation of the CC, FIRM shall prepare a cash flow
forecast for the entire project, basad on the project schedule, and shall revise same,

whenhavar there Is a significant change in the schedule that would warrant a revision ko
the cash flow forecast,

Menitor Progress - Monitor the progress of the CC’s work and prepare written daily
repoits documenting the type and location of work performed, the CC's trade labor and
equipment, and all pertinent details relative to the progress of the Work. Augment the
written reports with photographic documantation of the work in progress. Photographs
are required when unforeseen conditions, disputed work, or deficlencies In the Work are
encountered. Pro-actively monitor the progress of the Work, taking such steps (on behalf
of the County) as are authorized under the CC's contract, to ensure that the CC's
workforce is sufficlent and the work i3 being diligently prosecuted. Where progress is
impeded by actionsfingctions of the Design Engineer, or others, bring such matters
promptly to the attention of the County for resolution, The FIRM shall monitor the
progress in such a manner as to complete the project within the schedule and budget, on
behalf of Nassau County.

Information Management Sysiem - Implement an information management system to
track and update the status of all pertinent project informatlon, including FIRM's daily
reports. Develop and maintain paper and electronic project files, including, but not limited
to, project correspondence, contract drawings and documents, submittals, payment
requisitions, standard forms (such as insurance certificates, bonds, lien waivers,
releases, efe.} and reports. Documents and records will be maintained by the FIRM for a
periad of six (8) years after complation of services. The FIRM shall rack all drawings,
CC submittals, meeting minutes, requests for information, bulletins, changes orders, CC
requisitions/payments, correspondencs, reports, and all documents, which should be part
of the project record. Project records, including the project directory and emergancy
contact information, will be kept well organized and the information maintained current at
all times. The FIRM shall receive the CC's submittals such as shop drawings, product
data, and samples, promptly review them for completeness and responsiveness, log and
finally distribute them to the Design Engineer for review and approval: within 48 hours of
receipt by FIRM of CC's submittals. The FIRM shall return submittals to the GG within 24
hours of receipt from the Dasign Engineer, and shall update the submittal log accordingly.
FIRM shall collect and compile as-built drawings, operations and maintenance manuals,
spare parts and attic stock provided by the CC and ig responsible for documenting
acceptability and ths transfer of thess items to Plant Operations..

CC Payments: - Reseive, review, and recommend for processing by the County, all
schedules of values, invoices, and requests for payments prepared by the CC. FIRM
shall correlate CC's payment requests with the progress of the work and take into
account any deficiencies in the work for which payment is being requested, in making his
recommendation.  The FIRM's recommendation for payment shall consiiiute a
representation to the County, that, to the best of the FIRM's knowledge, information and
helief, the Work has progressad to the point indicated, and the quality of the Work js in
accordance with the Contract Documents. All payments shall be based on the cosi
loaded CPM schedule.

Meetings - Schedule and conduct regular weekly meetings with the CG, the Desigh
Engineer, the County, and others, where necessary to plan and coordinate the Work,
discuss progress, and solve problems related the Project. The FIRM shali also attend
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weekly meetings with the County andfor the Design Engineer. Prepare and timely
distribute meeting minutes and agenda. Special meetings will be scheduled as tha need
arises and participation by the FIRM at these meetings shall be at no additional cost to
the County.

Reporting — The FIRM shall prepare monthly written progress reports and deliver 5
coples of same to the County, no [ater than the 10" day of the following month. Such
reports shall include the following Infarmation at a minimum:

A. Executive Summary

B. Prograss Narrative « supported by photographs and the project schedule
updated to show progress

C. issues Report - Report on all critical and important issues, which require
the attention of the County

D, Change Orders - log the status of change orders (e.g., potential,
proposed, pending, processad)

E. CC Payment Summary - include & discussion of variances between
amounts paid to date and the cash flow forecast :

F. Budget Report )

G. Lag of Non-conforming or deficient work .

H. Attachments ~ attach photographs, logs, reports, etc. which are germane

to the Issues Report.

Safety - The FIRM shall require the GC to submit its safety program and shall serve a
central role in dissemination of safefy-related information between the CC and the
Nassau County Plant and Construction personnel. The FIRM shall not have contrel over
or charge of the Work and the FIRM shall not be responsible for CC's means, methads,
tachniques, sequences or procedures, andfor for safety precautions and programs in
connection with the work of the CG, since these are solely the CCs’ responsibility. The
FIRM shall not be responsible for the CC's fallure fo carty out the Work in accordance
with the CC's Safety Programs, andior applicable safety rules and regutations.
Nevertheless, the FIRM shall promote safety and endeavor ta guard against the creation
of unsafe conditions by the CC. The Flrm must review the CC safety program and Inform
the Department of its adequacy.

Changes ~ The FIRM shall review all Supplementary Bullstins prepared by the Design
Engineer prior to their issuance; prepare cost estimates; review CC's proposals: and
submit formal written recommendations, including confidential memoranda to the County,
clearly delineating the scope and reason for the changed work. Evaluate the CC's
proposed adjustment to contract price and time; and assist the County in negotiating
Change Orders. Whers changes arg, or may be, the result of the Design Engineer's
error or omission, the FIRM shall confidentially inform the County of such, and shall track
all such changes separately on the County's behalf. Keep a log of all Requests for
Information, Bulleting, Proposals and Change Orders.

Partial Occupancy and Beneficial Use - The FIRM shall asslst the County in determining
dates of Partial Occupancy of the Woark, or porfions thereof, designated by the County;
and shall assist in cbtaining any necessary temporary occupancy cettificates. Review
any lists prepared by the Design Engineer of incomplete or unsatisfactory work, prepare
schedules for completing and correcting the Work, and monitor the complationfcorrection.

Field Office - The FIRM will be provided space within the Construction House andfor field
trailer for use as temporary offices, during the construction phase. All FIRM's offica
equipment and supplies, including, but not imited to computers (with software and high
spead internet access), printers, coplers, scanners, facsimile machines, otc. shall be
provided, maintalned, and subsequently removed by the FIRM, and the cost of same is
included in the FIRM's Fee. Telephone service and up to 2 lines and telephones wiil be
provided to the FIRM for exclusive use on this project, by the County.
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New York Sfate Revolving foan Project - The County anticipates funding for this project
under the New York State Revolving Fund program. Accordingly, the CM will be
responsible to see that the Contractor{s} comply with the New York State Environmental
Facilities Corporaticn (NYSEFC) bid package and guidance documents and forms which
are part of the contract documants and are included herein. The GM will be responsible
to administer this program on bshalf of the County and provide the NYSEFC with the
required compliance Information,

Construction and Pﬂst-Constructionr Phase Services

Contract Closeout - Conduct final inspeciions with Design Engineer and the County, at
the completion of aach phase of the project, and prepare detailed punch lists {observed
discrapancies, deficiencies and incomplate items of worlk), as required. |t is understood
that the project will be completed in phases and that multiple final inspecltions ara
needed. Compile project record documents cellected during the construction phase and
supplement with any information collected following occupancy. Review the as-built
drawings provided by the CC and verify that the as-built drawings, to the best of the
FIRM's knowledge, based upon the FIRM's observations during the progress of the
project, document the actual construction of the project. The FIRM shall then transmit
the verlfied as-built drawings to the Desigh Engineer for the preparatlon of record
drawings. Schedule and record/document the training of County personnel with respact
to the opsration and maintenance of components and systems.

CC _Claims and Dispuied Work ~ The FIRM shall promptly review the CC's claims for
additional compensation and/or extension of time, whather these claims are received
during or after construction. Where the Work is disputed, promptly refer the matlei(s)
under dispute to the Design Enginaer for interpretation. Canfer with the Design Enginesr,
and advise the County on the quantum and merits of each ¢laiim, and/or recommended
resolution of each dispute. Af the County's request, and at no additional cost to the
County, schedule and aftend dispute resolution meetings related to each claim/dispuiz,
whether or not such meelings are held during the construction or post-construction
phase. With the County's concurrence, prepare written response to CC's claims,
incerporating the Design Enginear's determination, where applicable,

Limitation of Services - Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to require
or authorize the FIRM to periorm any act or render any services other than those of a
profassional Construction Manager, as defired herein. The services, recommendations,
and advice furnished by the FIRM shali not be deemed to be warranties, or guarantess,
or constitute the practice of any profession other than that of a professional Construstion
Manager. Notwithstanding any language to the contrary, this Agreement shall neither
require, nor authorize, the Construction Manager to assume any duty, role, responsibility,
or obligation; or perform any task, function, or activity, which is properly that of the Design
Engineer. '
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Exhibit “B"

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Payment to the FIRM for ail services under this Agreement that may be authorized under this
Agreemant, shall be made as follows:

The amount to be paid to the FIRM as full consideration for the FIRM’s services under this
Agreement, including any Extra Services that may be so authorized, shall not excesd Four
Miliion Five Hundred Fifty Thousand (34,550,000} dollars.

Compensation for services provided under the terms of this Agreement shall be on a monthly
basis, the actual salaries pald to the technical personnel engaged in performing the sarvice,

exclusive of payroll taxes, insurance, and any and all fringe benefits, times a multiplier of two
and ten hundredths (2.10).

Subcontractors engaged by {he FIRM shall be compensated on the same basis as provided
herein for employees of the FIRM. The FIRM shall be reimbursed the actual cost of the feas of
the subcontractor as approved by the County.

The FIRM shall be reimbursed for the actual cost of “out-of-Pocket” expenses that have been
approved in writing by the Commissioner of Public Works.

The FiRM shall prepare and attach to this Agreement a Maximum Hourly Wage Rate Schedule
listing the job classifications and the maximum hourly wage rate for each classificaticn. The
salaries of all employees rendering services under this Agreement must be within the limits of
the approved Maximum Hourly Wage Rate Schedule. The Maximum Hourly Wage Rate
Schedule will be adjusted annually in accordance with any wage increases granted to County
employees in the Civil Service Employees Association. The FIRM may grant an employee a
salary increase within a classification or a change of classification upon written notification to the
Department one menth prior to the effectiva date of such increase or change and with written
approval of the Department. Premium pay for overtime work, over and above the straight hourly
rate, performed for any services rendered under this Agreement shall not be subject to any
multiplier. In computing the cost to the County for overtime work performed, the overtime period
shall be paid at the agreed multiplier times the straight hourly rate plus the actual premium cost
incurred. Notwithstanding the foregeing, the maximum billable rate, after application of ths
multiplier for any services provided undsr the terms of this Agreement shall not exceed one
hundred and seventy five dollars {($175.00)
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Appendix EE
Equal Employment Opportunities for Minorities and Women
The provisions of this Appendix EE are hereby made a part of the document to which 1t is attached.

Tha Contractor shall comply with all federal, State and local statutory and constitutional anti-diserimination
provisions. In addition, Local Law No. 14-2002, entitled “Participation by Minority Group Members and
Women in Nassau County Contracts,” governs all County Confracts as dafined by such titie and solicitations
for blds or proposals for County Contrasts. [n accordance with Local Law 14-2002;

(& The Contractor shall not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of
race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status in recruitment, employment, job
assignments, promotions, upgrading, demotions, transfers, fayoffs, terminations, and rates of pay or other
forms of compensation. Thea Coniractor will undertake or confinue existing programs refated to recrutment,
employment, job assighments, promotions, upgrading, transfers, and rates of pay or other forms of
compensation to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment
opportunities without discrimination,

(b) Atthe request of the County contracting agency, the Contracior shall request each employment
agency, labor union, or authorized representative of warkers with which it has a collective bargaining or
other agreemsnt ar understanding, to furnish a written statemenit that such employment agency, union, or
reprasentative will not discriminate on the basis of race, cread, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or
marital status and that such employment ageney, labor union, or representative will affirmatively cooperate
in the implemantation of the Contractor’s obligations herein.

{c) The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advartisements for employees, that, in the
performance of the County Contract, alf qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities
without discrimination because of race, ereed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status.

{d) The Contractor shall make Best Efforts to solicit active participation by certified minority or wornen-
owned businass enterprises ("Certified MAWBES") as definad in Section 101 of Local Law No. 14.2002,
includling the graniing of Subcontracts.

(e} The. Contractor shail, in its advertisements and solicitations for Subconbractors, indicate its interest
in receiving bids from Certified MABES and the requirement that Subcontractars must be equal opportunity
employers.

{H Contractors must notify and receive approval from the respective Department Head prior to issuing

any Subcontracts and, at the time of requesting such authorization, must submit a slgned Best Efforts
Checklist,

{g) Contractors for projects under the supervision of the County's Department of Pubiic Works shall
also submit a utilization plan listing all proposed Subcontractors so that, 1o the greatest extent feasible, all
Subcontractors will be approved prior to commencement of work. Any additions or changes to the list of
subcontractors under the utilization pian shall be approved by the Commissioner of the Depariment of
Public Works when made. A copy of the utilization plan any addifions or changes thereto shail be submiited
by the Contractor to the Office of Minority Afiairs simullaneously with the subtmission to the Department of
Public Works,

(h) At any time after Subcontractor approval has been requested and prior to being granted, the
contracting agency may require the Contracter to submit Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to
Obtain Certified Minority or Women-owned Business Enterprises. in addition, the contracting agency may
require the Contractor to submit such documentation at any time after Subcontractor approval when the
contracting agency has reasonable cause to believe that the existing Best Efforts Checklist may be
inaccurate. Within ten working days (10) of any such request by the contracting agency, the Contractor
must submit Documentation.

{H In the case whers a request is made by the contracting agency or a Deputy Gounty Executive
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acting on behalf of the contracting agenay, the Ceontractor must, within two {2) working days of such request,
submit evidence to demonstrate that it employed Best Efforts to obtaln Certified M/WBE participation
through proper documantation.

M Reward of & County Contract alone shall not be deemed or interpreted as approval of all
Contractors’ Subcentracts and Contractor's fulfiiment of Best Efforts to obtain participation by Cerfified
MMWEBES.

(i) A Contractor shall maintain Decumentation Demonstrating Best Efforts fo Obtain Certified Minority
or Women-owned Business Enterprises for a period of six {6) years. Failure to maintaln such records shall
be desmed failure to make Best Efforts to comply with this Appendix EE, evidence of false certification as
MMBE cormpliant or censidered breach of the Gounty Gontract,

{1) The Contractor shall be bound by the provisions of Section 109 of Local Law No. 14«2002 providing
for enforcement of viclations as follows;

a. Upon receipt by the Executive Director of a complaint from a contracting agency that a County
Contractor has falled to comply with the provisicns of Local Law No. 14-2002, this Appendix EE or any other
contractual provisions included in furtherance of Local Law No. 14-2002, the Executive Direclor will try to
resolve the matter.

b. If sfforts to resolve such matter to the satisfaction of all parties are unsuccessful, the Executive
Director shall refer the matter,within thirty days (30} of receipt of the complaint, to the American Arbitration
Association for proceeding thereon,

G, Upon conclusion of the arbitration proceedings, the arbitrator shall submit io the Executive Director
his recommendations regarding tha imposition of sanctions, fines or penalties. The Executive Director shall
either () adopt the recemmendation of the arbitrator (i) determine that ne sanctions, fines or penalties
should be imposed or (i) modify the recommendation of the arbitrator, provided that such modification shall
not expand upon any sanction recommended or impose any naw sanction, or increase the amount of any
recommanded fine or penalty, The Executive Director, within ten days (10} of receipt of the arbitrators’
award and recommendations, shall file a determination of such matter and shall cause a copy of such
determination to be served upon the respondent by parsonal service of by certifled mall return receipt
requested. The award of the arbitrator, and tha fines and penalties imposad by the Exacutive Director, shall
be final determinations and may only be vacated or modified as provided in the civil practice law and rules
{'CPLR").

{m) The confractor shall provide contracting agéncy with information regarding all subcontracts awardad
under any County Coniract, including the amount of cortipensation paid to each Subcontractor and shall
camplete all formns provided by the Executive Director or the Department Head relating to subcontractor
ufilization and efforts to obtain MAVBE participation,

Fallure to comply with provisions {a) through {m) above, as ultimately determined by the Executive Director,
shall be a material breach of the contract constituting grounds for immediate termination. Once a fina)
determination of failure to comply has been reached by the Executive Director, the determination of whether
te terminate a confract shall rest with the Deputy County Executive with oversight responsibifity for the
contracting agency.

As used In this Appendix EE the term “Best Efforts Checklist® shall mean a list signed by the

- Contractor, listing the procedures it has undertaken to procure Subcentractors in aceordanca with this

Appendix EE.

Asused in this Appendix EE the term “County Contract’ shall mean {1} a written agreement or purchase
order instrument, providing for a total expenditura in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars {$25,000}),
whereby a County contracting agency Is committed to expend or does expend funds in return for 1abor,
services, supplies, eguipment, materials or any combination of the forageing, to be performed for, or
rendered or furnished fo the County; or (i) a written agreament in excess of one hundred thousand dollars
($100,000), whereby a County contracting agency is committed to expend ot does expend funds for the
acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and
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improvements thereon, However, the term “County Contract” does not include agreements or orders for the
following services: banking services, insurance policies or contracts, or contracts with a County contracting
agency for the sale of bonds, notes or other securities.

As used in this Appendix EE the term "Cotnty Gonfractor” means an individual, business enterprise,
including sale proprietorship, partnership, corparation, not-for-profit eorporation, or any other parson or entity
other than the County, whather a contractor, licensor, licensee or any other party, that is (i) a parly to a
County Contract, (i) a bidder in connection with the award of a County Contract, o (iil) a proposed party to a
Cotinty Confract, but shall not include any Subhcontractor.

As used in this Appendix EE the term *County Confractor” shall mean a person or firm who will manage and
be responsible for an entire contracted project.

As used in this Appendix EE "Rocumentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain Certified Minority or
Women-owred Business Enterprises” shali include, but is not imited to the following:

a, Froof of having advertised for bids, where appropriats, in minority publications, trade

newspapers/notices and magazines, frade and union publications, and publications of genaral circulation in
Nassau County and surrounding areas or having verbally solicited MMWBESs whom the Gounty Contractor
reasonably believed might have the qualifications to do tha work, A copy of the advertisement, if used, shall

be included to demonstrate-that it contained language indicating that the County Contractor welcomed bids

and quotes from MAWBE Subcontractors. In addition, proof of the date(s} any such advertisements !
appsarad must be included in the Best Effort Documentation. I verbal solicitation is used, a County :
Contractor's affidavit with a notary’s signature and stamp shall be required as part of the documentation.

b. Proof of having provided reascnable time for MAWBE Subcontractors to raspond to bid opportunities
according to industry norms and standards. A chart outiining the scheduleftime frame used to obtain bids
from MAVBES is suggested to be inciuded with the Best Effort Documentation.

c, Proof or affidavit of follow-up of telephone cails with potential MAVBE subcontractors encouraging
their participation. Telephone logs indicating such action can be included with the Best Effort
Documentation

d. Proof or affidavit that MAWBE Subcontractors were allowed to review bid specificafions, blue prints
and all other bid/RFP related items at no charge to the MAWBES, ather than reasonable documeantation
costs incurred by the County Contractor that are passed onto the MAWBE,

e Praof or affidavit that sufficient time prior to making award was allowed for MAWBES to participate
effectively, to the extent pracficable given the timeframe of the County Contract.

f, Proof or affidavit that negotiations wers held in Best Efforts with interested MAWBES, and that
MMBEs were not relected as unqualified of unasceptable without sound business reasans based cn (1) a
tharough investigation of MANBE qualifications and capabiliies reviewed against industry custom and
standards and (2) cost of performance. The basis for rejecting any MAVBE deemed unqualified by the
County Contractor shall be included in the Best Effort Documentation.

a If an MMWWBE is rajected based on cost, the County Contraciormust submit a list of all sub-bidders
far each item of work solicited and their bid prices for the work.

h. The conditions of petformanca expacted of Subcontractors by the County Gontractor must also be
included with the Bast Effort Documentation

I. County Gontractors may include any other type of documentation they feel necessary to further
demanstrate their Best Efforts regarding their bid documents.

As used in this Appendix EE the term "Executive Direcior” shall mean the Executive Director of the Nassau
County Office of Minority Affairs; provided, however, that Execufive Director shall include a designee of the
Executive Director axcent in the case of final determinations issued pursuant to Section (a} through (1) of
these rules.
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As used in this Appendix EE the term “Subcontract” shall mean an agreement consisting of part or parts of
the contracted work of the Counly Centractor.

As used in this Appendix EE the term "Subcontractor” shall mean a person or firm who performs part or
parts of the contracted work of the County Contractor. The work shall include, but not be limited to, labor,
malerials and/or supplies, and professional services necessary for a County Contractor to fulfill the
obligations of a County Contract,
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Appendix L
Certificate of Compliance
In compliance with Local Law 1-2006, as amendsd, the Proposer/Bidder hereby certifies the following:

1. The chief executive officer of the Proposer/Bidder is:

Vincent A, Mangiere. Vice President ___(Name)
Two Penn Plaza, Suite 0603, New York, NY 10121 (Address)
212-268-1500 {Telephone Number)

2. The Proposer/Bidder agrees to comply with the requirements of the Nassau County Living Wage
Law, and with all applicable federal, state and local laws,

3. Inthe past five years, Proposet/Bidder has __ X has not been found by a court or a
government agency to have violated federal, state, or local laws regulating payment of wages or

benefits, labor relations, or cocupational safety and health, If a violation has been assessed by the
Proposer/Bidder, describe below:;

4. In the past five years, an administrative proceeding, investigation, of government bady-initiated

judicial action has __ X _ has not boen commenced against or relating to the
Proposer/Bidder. If such a proceeding, action, or investigation has been commenced, deseribe
below:;
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5, PloposerJBdem agrees to permit access to work sites and relevant payroll records by authorized

County representatives for the purpose of monitoring compliance with the Living Wage Law and
investigating employee complaints of noncompliance,

Y ‘

I hereby certify that I have read the foregoing statement and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is {

true, correct and complete. Any statement or represeniation made herein shall be aceurate and true as of
the date stated below.

F—E\»LLJEJ?,@ Z@\d A‘gz /

Dated nature of Vice President

‘m.—ub“r

Vincent A, Mangisre
Name of Viee President

Sworn to before me this

T ay of TCe 2014,

]/@A WILLIAM E, GOVE
| £tangmbneer, o NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
Notary Public  \_ Ho, 01608093470

QUALIFIED [N ROCKLAND GOUNTY
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JUNE 2, 200,55
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